INFORMATION FOR GUIDES °
oF

HISTORIC CHARLESTCHN

S s

T




FOREWORD

These pages contain information on the history and architecturs.
of Charleston, Scouth Carolina, compiled from the records of the late
Miss Mary A. Sparkman. These records ﬁere up~dated by Miss Marguerite
C. Steedman in 1973 and by Mr. Robert P, Stockton in 1975. Every at-
tempt has been made to correct this information as of August 1975,

The newlj formed Arts and History Commission (May 1, 1975) re-
quested the reprlntlng and updatlng of these notes as a valuable source
document and a basic text to anyone interested in Charleston history
and architecture or aspiring tc become a registered tour gﬁide. As.
there were only a few copies df the former_printing available, City
Council agreed to this project.

I would like to express appreciation teo Mr. Stockton, Mayoer J.
Palmer Gaiilard; J;.; commission members Mrs. Rutledge R. Webb and

Mr. L, Louis Green,'III, and others who assisted in the preparation

@im%m: . Lf—.iw }-i

Chalrman
Arts and History Commission

of this book. -

August 18, 1975 _ : . : ' o |
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- INTRODUCTION
J

The English colonists who reached this harbor in the spring of

, established their first settlement on the west bank of the Ashle

River, which the Indians called the Xiawah. They named their new

home "ALBEMARLE" or Albemarle Point, at first, for Gecrge Monck, Duke

of Albemarle, cne of the Lords Proprietors of Carolina. The Proprie-

tors were eight English noblemen who sponsored this colony and had

furnished the ships, funds and ?roviéions which had hrought about 1

hardy pioneers to the coast of Carolina.

Within a year, they changed the name of the settlement to Charles
in honor of Xing Charles II of Eng

land, who had granted the land

on which they now lived, to the Proprietors. In ten ears, thé site

-waﬁ abandoned -for the present peninsula, to which the settlers moved
The new town seems to have?been;called'charles Town by com-
mon consent,‘even before the arrival %f a royal 6rder to:ﬁhat effect.
The abéndoned site of the first settl;ment was thereafter known a#
0ld Town. It became part of a plantaticn known as Old Town Plantation.
In 1968, with the Tricentennial celebration ofASouth Carolina
{1970) just twb vears off, the City of Charlesteon and the.State of
South Carolina purchased thig site of the.first”settiement.' Thcuéh
time, plows, and axes had obliterated most traces of the old town at
Albemarle Point, archealogists found an Indian Village which had once
bkeen there, the line of the.settlers' palisade and other interesting

survivals., Today, the area, called Charles Towne Landing, draws

tourists from 21l over the country and abroad.
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////(H);;arles Towne Landing, which was scarcely ready for the Tricentennial

celebration in April 1970, comprises 184 acres of high ground and
about 200 acres of marshland, walks and drives through the park, with
its magnificent oaks and pines, its streams and lagoons, make it easy
to imagine how it looked wﬂén the first settlers made it their owm.

_f_land be

The new settl ah

pt was on the tongge‘

(later called A&

;) and the Etiwan, (the names were used

interchangeably in the colony's”éafiy days) now called the Coop

River. BAccording to reports sent to the Lords Proprieteors, the first

‘had recognized the strategic importance of the site and reserved it
for permanent settlement. Its two rivers, like natural moats of a

. fortification, provided great protection against Indians, Spaniards

-and pirates. It was a healthier location than-Albemarle Point, and

the great harbor:-on which the new settlement lay made an excellent site

fér tfade and commerce, At first, this new site-of'charlegaTown was
often called “éyster éoint," and "White Peoint," the reason for both
Aameé prabgsly Séiné the éreat qua;tities-of whitening oyster shells
on the sloping shores.

Six hyndred acres at the tip of the peninsula were reserved for

the rew settlement, with the north boundary set at a 1i

would extend across Besufain an ts. A plan for the new

town, kncwn as the Modell"” was sent from England and was used

(to some extert at least) as a guide in laying out the streets and lots.,
The settlers of ccurse had to build their houses, churches, markets,
wharves and public landinge, as well as construct a sea-wall to pro-

tect them, zs they said, "froem the encroachment of the gea."
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The colonists mounted both large and small guns a2t "The great
battery" at the foot ¢f Cocoper, later named Broad Street, and at the ./éfg é

half-moon and small batteries, but it was after they moved

I’?O"‘
LY

Charles Town one

alled cities i

The

others were Quebec and St. Augustine.

Charles Town's £first effective walls were constructed der the

direction c¢f the governor, Sir Nathaniel Johnsen, appointed to the

position in 1703. By 1704 if Edward Crlsp S marp of the city publish-

ed that year, is correct, Chazles Tocwn presented the aspect of a Furo-

rose on- these and on pilings ena logs, sheatbed with earth, with "1c0C

choise great G ] mounted therecn.“

.. Luckily for Charles Town, her governcr had served abroad”iﬁ wars

'that tock 'him inte France and Holland, just at the tlme when frontiers

were belng fortified by Louls XIV 5 great military englneer,‘Vauban
(1633—1707); This giftad man revolutionized the entire art of forti-
fication. Charles Town's walls went d§ in'hia lifetime. So threaten~
ing an aspect had they that when a comblned French-Spanlsh fleet
approached the clty in 1706, it.came to a sudden halt, and dared not
attempt a frontal attack. The lines of these fortifications can still
be traced in the ‘streets and boundaries of Charleston.

The lines and survey of these‘fcrtificaticns are ;eccrded.iﬁ the

statutes of the Province and on a ﬁapkcublished in 1704. Here, the

names-of the various bastions and the fort are reccrded, together with




the principal places of the town. A replica of this map has been pro-
duced on the markers at the sites of the four principal bastions -=
p:ojecting works ~-- jutting from the main walls of a fortification.
The map shows, likewise, that some people were still living outside
the walls of the town. It alsolshows that the area within the encom-
passing walls was only a small part of the "Grand Modell™ for the city.

The walls surrounding the settlement ran from the "great fort”

called Granvill

e. The wall

ersection of

a gquadrangular enclosure twe blocks wide and four blocks long. The

streets dividing this city were

East and West, Dock (changed in 1734 to Queen) Street,

(now Broad) Street, and Tradd Street. North and south, there was

first Meeting Street for a time called Church Street. But it is noted

in records, and was described so often as "the eat street that leadeth

to the Meeting Housge" that it gradually became known as Meeting. Church
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Street, parallel to Meetlng, at first extended only from the north end

of the town {(no t) . to a creek at the south end, named

Vander Horst'(pronounced "Van Dross") Creek. When Church Street was

the exten-

et, the waterfront thoroughfare, known as

The Bay, later was called East Bay, as it is today. It extended from

s, our present Market and the north end

of High Battery.

In addition to the forts and batteries, the present buildi

where the old Exchang

e Bulldlng stands now. This "Court of Guardr"

which was the “Watch—House,“ or quarters of the milita quard, cor-

responds to what in later years was called tne "Guard House," and in
_ PO

modern times would be termed a pollce statlon. Beyond the walls were

the Quaker Meeting house, the parsona-e of the English Church, and

other dwelllng houses and small farms.

The houses of that early period were substantially buile, pegged
together with wooden pins, (The list of carpenter's stores on the
CAROLINA included a large assortment of nails, whose sizes have not

ehanged with the time: "twenty-penny,” "ten-penny,” and so on, but




12

\ : they must have been used up long before the settlers of Albemarle Point

moved to the peninsula. Houses wére small and compact, their founda-
tions low, théif timber walls thick. The houses stood almost on the
ground. The early draﬁings show hipped roofs, and much crowding in
the town -~ perhaps for protection, perhaps simply because houses in
the land they had left were builf that way.

As the town grew and the menace of Indians, Spaniards and pirates
disapﬁeared, merghants and planters prospered, the walls of the city
were taken doyn gradually, streets were opened and extended, houses
became more commodicus and magnificent, with spacious grounds surround- ﬁ
ing thgm, trade and exports flourished, and Charies Town became a thriv—i
ing seaport and one of . the most important cities of America. At the

time of the Revolution, the boundaries of the city had not been changed

houses, with an air of ease and dignity, of charm and gracious hospi-~

tality. After the Revolution, by the Act O:. arch 13th, 9, the

Cocper Rivers.
An Act of December 19, 184%, annexed to the city that part of the
Parigh of St. Philip which lay between the then existing northern boun-

dary and 2 line drawn due west from the Cooper River to the Ashlev
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River, by thg'junction of Meeting and King Streets. ‘This line runs
through fhe center of Mt., Pleasant Stregé,_and ;onstitgtgs the citv's
present northern boundary on:the peninsula as itqhas beéﬁ.for the past
114 years. o | ’ |
By 1959, when Mayor J. Palmer Gaillafd, Jr., assumed off;ce,
heavily populated areas had developed immédiately adjacent to the city
of Charléston. The city submitted merger proposals to areas west of
_:thg Ashley River, and successful merger elections were conducted in
. 1960 and- 1962, which added four wards- to the municipal area. Since
zhen other areas have been annexed.

After the Revolution the area north of BCUNDARY STREET began to

be developed more extensively. It was called THE NECK, a name applied

in the earliest déys of the colony to the iand'fust north of the town
limits; as the téwn grew, it continued to be applied always to the
area. just beyond thE‘cify limits, The:earlydp;ty'digggtories-reseIVed
a separate section te list res¢§ent§‘on.THE NECK. All that remains
of fHE NECK today is the narrow strip of land between the two rivers,
from Mt., Pleasant Street to the Viaduct. The name seems to have been
forgoﬁtén for many years, certainly is no longer used,

Landowﬁers to wﬁcmhad’been granted large tracts of land or who
had acquired-thém thrcugh the years, laid cut numerocus subkdivisions
of real estate calied Boroughs or Villages. In most instances these
were givep th¢lnamgs of the criginal owners. For'instance, there wezxe

ton,.Gadsdenboro,




one of the famous race-tracks, the Newmarket Race Course, which alsc

is commemorated in Race Street. There were alsc the Glebe Lands, Free

Scheool Land, Rugley Lands, Wragg Lands, and many others.

In the years fol

to be noted for its wealth, culture and commercial activities. This

period brought new businesses, new methods of transpertation, and many

other improvements and benefits to the city. Then came the Confederate

War, which en

of éharlestonians for generaticons, and Charleston and her pecple had
to begln life anew. -

 In the face of almost lnsu:mountable‘obstécles, people worked
hard to restore the 0ld city, to build a new life, and to carry on

in the traditicons of the past. They had made great strides forward

when the earth

86 demolished buildings and damaged or destroy-

ed many beautiful homes. In 1238, in one hour, tornadoes - five of

themt = killed thirty-two pedple, and created greaf'haVOC and widespread
destyuction throughout the city. 3But in spite of all disasters - tornadces,
fires, wars, earthquakes, storms, epidemics cf Yellow Fever, Smallpox,

eﬁc., which have afflicted Charlesteon in her lifespan of more than

three hundred years, and which have ruined or destroyed so many hand-

some public buildings, so many fine homes, we still have today in our

fair city, as Mr. Samuel G. Stoney said: "a birthright unsurpassed

To quote another Charlestonlan {by adoptlon), the late Wllllam

Watts (Mr. Bllly) Ball famous Editor of the famous newspaper,. THE

NEWS AND COUR4ER,'“Hlstory is written by men in wood and' rlcks and

stone, while flesh and bloed are making it." There are a few




reproductions of early structures in Charleston, but we also have hun-
dreds of original bulldings - dccuments of wocd and bricks and stone -
written while our notable citizens were making our colorful history
with flesh and blood. The Federal Government has realized the impor-
tance and value of Charleston's historic treasures, and in recognition

thereof has designated the city a National Historic Landmark (See Section

on Markers).
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THE LORDS PROPRTETORS,

FATHERS OF CAROLINA

Why are we in this particular portion of America? Who began and

- fostered the Province of Carolina (North and South), became its abso-

lute owners and rulers (under the King of England), invested their
money in a wilderness? For'many vears, Charles Town WAS Carclina--a
city/state, azlmost in the ancient sense. This is how it began.

England claimed the entj

the strength of the disco es of John Cabot, a Venetian navigator

up to this time have remained unknown to Christians." This was in

1497 ears after Columbus' first voyage. The elder Cébot

touched land, but his reports were vague. His son, Sabastian, sailed

two years later and explored the Atlantic coast as far south as Virginia.
Meanwhile, Spain, Portugal and France were all p;obing the New World

and carving it up hetween themselves. But England remained steadfast

in her early:claim.

The 1l6th and 17th Ceﬁturies were times of great political and
religious upheaval. The latter conflict, called the Reformation,
swept across all Europe. But it was Henry VIII of England who first
declared an open break with the Catholic Church, which had refused him
a divorce from his aging Spanish queen, Katherine of Aragon, who could
not give him a male heir. Henry's five other marriages produced the
sickly Edward VI, who died at the age of 17, a confirmed Protestant;
the great Elizabeth I, who confirmed that Protestantism; and of course
Queen Mary I, Henry's child by his first wife wheo was a dedicated

Catholic and tried, by force and torture, to restore her unwilling
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kingdom to the Catholic faith. With reason she is known as "Bloody

Mary."

The constant conflict between Catholicism and Protestantism in

England and Scotland {then separate kingdoms) resulted in waves of
emigration for the Quts when the Ins were in power, and vice versa.
fhis disseneion, deep, bitter and not resolvea to this day, brought
Dissenters to Massachusetts ahd to Carclina, and adherents of the
Church of England to Virginia and Careclina, to Bermuda and Barbadoes,
when the Purttans were in power under Oliver Cromwell ({which 1aeted
from 1649luntil 1le60).

eromwell had come to power because Xing Charles I, father of
the monarch in whose reign. Carolina was founded, had been arrcgant
and stupldly confident of his divine right of kingship. His reign
resulted in the Ehglish Ciwvil Wars, lasting from 1642 tc:1649, in’
which year the King was tried by a court of Puritans,‘conyicted of
.treason and beheaded

The Stuart kengs, however, elways had charm and . inspired a, loyal-
ty and devotion ameng their followers which is incredible today.  BAll
during the ClVllWa.IS ' the Stuart adherents followed their king and
thelfrince_of Wales (later Charles II) through hardship and defeat,
giving their lives,-selliné their valuables, pawning their lands -

. against the day when "the King should come into his own again.” With

the Prince of Wales in‘exile_across the Chanhel and Cromwell's grim

relgn snreadlng 11ke a black cloud over England, the Stuart followers,

the Cavellers, contlnued o plot, pawn, pray and work agalnst the

klnd of rule that banlshed the arts, closed the theatres, smaehed_
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stained-glass windows and priceless cathedral art. "The Puritan,"”

reqarked a later historian, "detgsted bear-baiting not because it gave

pain to the bear but because it gave pleasure to the spectators.”
Cromwell died and his weak son, Richard, was unable to take the

reins of power. England called home her prince and Charles II {l660-1685)

came to the throne, backed by maﬁy men who had fought for more liberty
for Englishmen, which Cromwell had seemed to promise, but who had seen,
on Cromwell's death, that only Charles could save the land from chaos.
There were men, ;oo, who had beggared themselves in behalf of the king
and his father, called by them "Charles the Martyr." Charles II owed

these ex-generals and humbler followers his throne, and needed their

continuing efforts to keep him on it, for Puritanism had by no means
died with Cromwell., Like an honorable prince and good diplomat, ﬁe
set out to pay his debt to eight men to whom he owed his very throne.
He gave them Carolina.

On March 24, 1663, Charles II granted to the Lords Proprietors a

imerica running from the Atlantic to the Pacific, lying

between 36 degrees north latitude on the north and 31 degrees on the

south-=-that is to say, from a line running thr th Carolina going

directly through what is now Durham, N. C. to a line passing almost
directly across the northwestern boundary between Georgia and Florida.

In other words, the huge slice of MNorth America that once was Carolina i

and more than half of

gll of Texas, with a s;ice of northern Mexico; almost all of New Mexico

anéd Arizona; and most of thern California.




This huge slice of continent was granted absolutely to the follow-
ing men, to be financed by them, and for them to prefit by, and toc rule,
with the help or interference of such a local government as they might

permit. Above them was only the XKing. 1In the order named in Charles'

charter they were 18 Earl of Clarendon, the Duke of Albemarle, Lord

Craven, Lord Berkeley, Lord Ashley, Sir George Carteret, gSir William

Berkeley and Sir John Colleton. (Six of these gentlemen were also

given the Bahama Islands!) Now, what had they done to deserve this?

Edward Hyde, Earl of Clarendon (1609 - 1674) had been one of the
supporters of périiaﬁentary fights against Charles I, But when the
Parliament Party (meaning Pu;itans)_att;sked thg:Establishgd Church

of England, Hyde joined Charles.I arid became one of his most distin-
gquished and wise councilleors. Charles II made him Lbrd High Chancellor
and chief minister.. The dissclute hakits of the royal cburt, however,
aroused Hyde's disapproval; and political enemies finally undermined
him until he was driven_f;om office and into exile. He was the father
of Annézﬁfde, wﬁo.méiried Charleﬁ_i1'§ brother, the future James II
{(deposed 1688 for his Catholic vievg)‘agé ﬁg was-g;ag@ﬁathe;;gﬁ two
gueens, Anne I and Mary II::-. h H | | |

Geo

e Monc# Duke of Albemarle (1608-~1670) had served with dis-
tinction in the Parliamentary army and under the Commcnweaith kCromwell's
regime). He was distinguished both as a general, naval commander and
civil administrator under Cromwall. But on Cromwell's death, quck
realized that it was Charles on the throne or chaos. His services

w;re rewarded with the title of Dpke_qfua;pemgxlg”gndaa%lggge‘pension.

Because of him, SOUTH CARCLINA BEGAN IN A PALACE.
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As early as June, 1663, letters, agreements, etc., between the

Lords Proprietors are datelined, "The Cock Pitt."” This was not a

tavern in London, as its name might imply, but was a princely set of
apartments in the old palace at‘Whitehall {destroyed in 1698 hy fire).
Cromwell had 1ived in them, as héd Qisiting nobles} Princess Anne
(later.Queén Anne) would. occupy theﬁ. They were Monck's own private
aéartmeﬁts where the Proprieﬁors could gather and plan the new ventu:é
of Carolina. These state apartments were called the "Cock Pit" becausg
they had been built over an area formerly used for cock-fighting by

Henry VIII.

aven} (1606-1657) A devoted fol-
lower Qf the Stuarts. The sums he sééﬁt on defending Charles I were
enormous. He had a distinguished military career in Germany. He was

a patron of the arts and letters, an early member of the Royal Society
(scientific research} in london and was rewarded by Charles II ﬁith many

1

honors and much wealth. He outlived
died, a bachelor, at the age of almost 87.

John, first Baron Berkeley of Strattorn (1607=-1678) Like Craven,

he was an almost fanatical follower of the Stuarts. During the Civil
Wars, when Charles I's queen was gxpeqting_a'child, her husband placed
her at Exeter because it was‘under Berkeley's command. A skillful
pelitician, he was president of thé important Council for Foreign
Plantations, making many decisions affecting Eritish possessions in

America.

Anthony A {1621-1683) The most

versatile and brilliant of the Proprietors. Like Albemarle, he had




served the Parliamentary forces but he also cooperated with Monck in
restoring Charles II as the only means of natiénal_pe;ce, Hshaftesbury
was a pronounéed liberal and.véry much opposed to religious intolerance
and persecution. The Fundamental Constitutions of Carolina, the laws

for the new province, were the work of Shaftesbury's friend and secre-

, the philosopher John L; bﬁt they contain evidences of Shaftes-

bury's collaberatiocn, too. The laws he helped to write produced the

e of politica

pus Act whereby an accused man cannot be held inde

, an English la; ﬁhiﬁh pagﬁed into that of the
United states. - .
Shaftesbury not only had his holdings in Carolina, but he had been
part owner of a sugar plantation on Barbadoes, and a shareholder in
the Hudson's Bay Company. As Charles II grew more absolute in his
Tule, and as protestantism faced extinction in Engiand if Charles'
Catholic brother, James II, should succeed him, Shaftesbury opposed the
growing political and religious absolutism he saw approaching,. fell
out :of Charles' favqr, was exiled to Holland and died there.
sir George Carteret {1615~1680} came of old French stock on the
Channel island of Jgrsey, which he held for Xing Charles I as the last
Stuart stronghold to surrender to Cromwell. He was a distinguished
naval officer, though rather careless in business and without much
education. He died juét too soon to receive the patent of nobility
the king had intended for him. Carteret and Lord Berkeley were for
a while Lords Proprietors of New Jersey, which he named for his home

island.
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hn Colleton {l1608-=1666) rose to rank in the King's army dur-~

ing the Ciwvil Wars, spent 40,000 in the service of Charles I, and

lost much more when his property was sequestered (taken over) by the

forces of Pazliamgnt. He retired to Barba@oes and was one of about
~a dozen Stuart.fo;lowers there who were knighted by Charles II. He

was a member of the Council for Foreign Plantations and of the Royal

African Company which introduced slavery into British possessions in

North America. (not.just in the south). He was an early promoter of

the Carplina grant and activg;y interested in the successful develop-~
_ mentjqf.tpe Province. He was the first Proprietor to die.

e

Sir William Berkeley (1606~1677), youngest brother of Lord Jochn

Berkeley, was the peppery governor of Virginia who had won the enthusi-

astic support of the pepulation, banished its Puritaﬁs, and invited
Charles II to come over during his exile and be king of Virginia.

He was quick*témpered'and'sglf willed and br%tal in putting down any
oppesition to his orders. When his iron rule in Virginia produced the
insurrection known as Bacon's Rebellion, Berkeley suppressed it with-

out mercy and hanged so many of the rebels that Charles IT exclaimed;
"That old fool has put to death more pecple in that naked country than

I did here for the death of my father!" He marriéd Frances Culpeppér,
widow of Samuel Stephegs, an early governor of Carolina. When Ring
Charles, informed of Berkeley's brutality, removed him from the governor-

ship and recalled him to England, Virginia celebrated his going with

bonfires and general merry-making. He sought an interview with Charles
but the King always postponed it until the old man died, still ﬁaifiié.

His contempcraries said he died of chagrin.




SOUTH CAROLINA A PIONEER IN RﬁL;GIOUS FREEDOM u,/’//

In this era when persecution of the Jews and of other religious
and political minorities has heen wide-spread, it is well to remember
that THE FIRST LAWS OF CAROLINA, BROUGHT BY THE FIRST SETTLERS, THE

+FOUNDERS QF CHARLES TOWN, GUARANTEED THE WIDEST MEASURE OF RELIGIOUS

LIBERTY IN ALL THE THIRTEEN COLONIES.
: T e

Historians have strangely ignored this fact. ‘when the
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South Carclina Historical Society published the Shaftesbury Papers

.
i
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{(Vvol. V) and thus made available  to students everywhere the early laws
of this Province, there is no excuse for such ignorance and neglect-~-
particularly since we are taught that religious minorities in Europe

came in order to enjoy liberty of worship and of conscience.

The Pilgrims, or Puritans, of.Massachusetts Bay Colony certainly
did not come to.enjoy ﬁﬁcﬁ.liberty. They came in order to be_frge to.
worship as they chose., On the contrary, land hélding depeﬂded on one's
membership in the Puritan, or Congregatioﬁal church,. and Quakers and
other minorities were persecuted, driven from Massachusetts and even
put to death. (See any good encyclopedia.) Histories of New England
call the first government of Massachusetts Bay "the Puritan theocracy.”

Marvland, founded by Catholics fleeing from Puritan persecutions
in England, was morerliberal, granting to Protestants some liberty of.
conscience and worship. But Jews were not allowed to settle in Maryland
nor‘fo carry on business there or own land. Full civil and peolitical
rights for Jews were nct sécured for them in that colony until 1825.

Until the founding of Carolina, it was the tolerant Dutch of New
amsterdam (later New York) who permitted Jews to settle ané trade in
all the realm of New Netherland, provided their old ard infirm did

not become a charge on the state,
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In contrast with this limited freedom granted minorities, consider

No that the entire text, with passages ruled out or inserted--in
short,/ a kind of working copy--appears in the Shaftesbury Papers.

Many parts of this-hody of laws scon proved unworkable, for they even

set up a s & inas : . 1 3 §%

Bor this reason, and others dealing only with
Carolina's political arrangements, Locke's Fundamental Constitutions
have been the butt of ridicule for generations of historiang--~which

shows that they must.have been familiar with these laws.

REDZ Here .are some of its partiéulars:
"Articla 86: No man shall be permitted to be a free man of
Carolina, or to have any esfate or habitation within it vt doth
not acknowledge a-God,'&jy;s'i@ﬁaﬁisfﬁﬁﬁiiélﬁﬁaﬂd:solemnly3tcfbeﬁ
woEshiped:™ | o
{strictly ihterpratedf that law would have permitted A"Ho;'
hammedan to settle here and build a mosgue!) |
"Articié:é7: But since ye natives of yt place who will be
- concernd in‘our'ﬁiantafiohs are_uttefiy\Straﬂgers to Chfiﬁﬁiaﬁify,
whose idollatry, ignorance, or mistake gives us noe right té ex~
pell or use ym ill, & those who remove from other parts to plant

there, will unavoydably be of different opinions concerning matters
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of religion, ye liberty whéreof they will expect to have allowed

ym, & it will not be reasonable for us on this account to keep ym
out, yt civil peace maj be maintaind amidst ye diversity of opiniens,
& our agreement & compact with all men may be- duly .& faithfully ob-
served, ye viclation whereof upon what Pretence scever, cannct be
without great offence to Almighty God, & great scandal to the true
religion y# we professe, & also yt heathens, Jues (Jews), and other
disenters;frcm the purity of Christian religion may not be scared
and kept at a distance from it, but by having an oppertunity of
acqﬁ;inting tﬁemselves with ye truth and reasonableneésipf_i;s
doctrines, & ye peaceablenes & inoffencivenes of its prqﬁgssors,

may by good usage and perswas;on & all those convincing methods of
'geﬁtiénes ;Imeeknes suitaplg to gg-rules_;_degign of the Ghoespel,

he wgn§ ovgr-Fojimbrace and unfeynedly receive yYe truth. Therefore
an?”sgaveﬁ ér more pérsons agreeing in:apy_;eligion:Shgll constitute
a‘;hurqh or p;gfgssion,'to whiéh they shall give some name to. dis-
tinguish it from othggg,“;:.J

By Article 30

"Article 97: ?Nd“pérscn“éhall“usefany-reproachful revileing




pr_gbusiveulanguaqqhagainstiye;;gligiq@,gi;qu.chp;qh_oFﬁPeressiOn-

yt being the_certaine;wayhgfﬁdi§tu;bipgﬂz§rppp;ick,peacea..
"Article 100: No person whatsoevr;:shall disturbe, molest, or -

:Qgr;e;u;e,anothe:ﬂfpr.his speculative,opinionsmin"religion, or his

ﬂNﬁonfﬁwbrshippg"

{Some abbreviations in the old text have been expanded into their

plain meaning, in order to make them intelligible to modern readers.

But in the main, the o0ld spellings and abbreviations have been observed.)

On the Crisp Map of 170

showing the

the intersection of Broad and Meeting Streets; the ¥

just behind Carteret's Bastion, near the corner of Meeting and Cumber-

its present location. Just below the intersection of

at its pre-

In the time when Edward Crisp drew his plan of early Charles Towm,

there were few placss on earth where such a map could truthfully have

been drawnm.
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THE FIRST SETTLERS OF CAROLINA

The following names and lists are taken from The Collections of.

the South Carclina Historical Society, Vol. V, published by the Society
in 1897. This book, long out of print and usually referred to as The

Shafteskury Papers contains an invaluable collation of early letters,

lists, laws, etc., relating to the earliest attempted English settle-
ments in Carclina, and to the first successful one. These papers were

in possession of Lord Anthony Aashle t Earl of

the most able and energetic of the Lords Proprietors. ‘A descendant
of his deposited these documents in the British Public Record Office,

in London, and they were copied, under the direction of W. Noel Sainsbury

who procured them for the Centennial celebration of the City of Charleston

in 1883. They were aftefwards'presented by Mayor W. A. Courtenay and U&Q-“

City Council to the South Carolina His£orical_Sociéty,_and funds for
thei: publication were furni;hed by both the Ciﬁy and the State.

It is doubtful if a more unvarnished account of the struggles,
failures, complaints and achievements of any Americap colonial adventure

exist, Invaluable,'as well are the pages of bookkeeping, particularly -

the inventory of the ship, CAROLINA's cargo, which included spare rigging,

clothing, utensils for cﬁoking, toels, carpenter aﬁd medical_chests,
trace beads #nd othef such goods for the_Indiéns, and even.; drum for
ﬁignalling and a flag to fly oﬁer the future fort. Condgnsed, the story
of the venture that brought the first Charlestonians follows:

Three ships, the CAROLINA (about 200 tons-a little larger than the

MAYFLOWER, 180 tons) cost 430, age unknown, repairs cost an additional
500, crew, 18 men. She was a frigate, a long, light built, square

stern vessel.

I3

-




The second frigate, PORT ROYAL, probably under 100 tons, cost 125

-—'—u_,__%

and carried a crew of seven men. The sloop, ALBEMARLE, 30 tons, shallow
.

—

built so that she could go up into rivers, etc., cqst 50 and had a crew
of five. In terms of tﬁe Pound sterling, equally'SELOO, the entire ex=-
pedition--three ships--cost less than $6,000. The exact figure is
$5,505.00.

Names of captains and crew follow:

u/// Commander of the Whole Expedition = Joseph West

L//Z CAROLINA: Captain, Henry Brayne; Mate, John Coming; Gunner, Richard

Dyas; Carpenter, Richard Cole; Trumpeter, Peter 3Salter:
Boatswain's Mate, Arthur Roper; Seamen - John More, Thomas
Joy, William orr, Thomas Sumers, George Gray, Henry dongs,
James Shepard, John Williamson, James Roberson, John Rippett,
" Alexander John Stowne (Stone?), Henry ffarro; Carpenter’s
Mate, Hailes Porter,

PORT ROYAL: Master, John Russell; Carpenter, William Allan; Boatswain,
?eter Stanford; Seamen - Tobias Cox, Lewes (Lewis?), Corson,
George f£farro; Mate, Robert Chappell.

ALBEMARLE: Master, Edward Baxtar;.Seémen - George Buggy, John Rogers,

Georga Young, Henry Buck.

{Shaftesbury Papers, pp 141-143)
A footnote on page 143 accounts for some of these crews. Brayne,

Coming, Dyas, Cole, Joy, Sumers, Williamson and perhaps others of the

crews settled in Carolina 1870. The last four prcbably left descendants.

Dyas had lands 1674. Ccle was in Parliament 1672, died about 1637.
William Joy lived in Christ Church Parish, 1692. Thomas Sumers in

Chestertocwn 1698, 1706. Williamson died about 1701.

e B B e O e
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Passenger List

This is divided into Masters and Servants. A footnote on Pg 134
explains that Master here ﬁeans Pater familias, or head of the house-
hold. Servants included kin, dependents, employees and servants. The
list is tabulated into three columns--Masters, Servants, Numbers of
Names (Master and those he was bringing be counted togéther}.

"A List of all such Masteré, free passengers and servants which
are now a board the Carclina now ridinge in the Downes. August the

10th, 1669,
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MASTERS SERVANTS. NUMBERS OF NAMES

Capt: Sullivan Ralph Marshall
James Montgomery

Rich: Allexander

Stephen Wheelright 8
Tho: Kinge '

Eliz: Dimmock

Eliz: Mathews

Step: Bull Robert Done
Burnaby Bull
Tho: Ingram ' : 7
Jonathan Barker :
John Larmouth
pudley Widzier

.Ed: Hollis & .
Jos: Dalton George Pridecx
’ Thomas Younge

Henry Price
Will: Chambers 11
-Jonn Dawson
Will: Roades
Alfra (Affra) Harleston
Susanna Kinder

Tho: Smith
Paule Smith Alice Rixe
Jo: Hudlesworth
Jo: Borroughs 9
Hugh Wigleston
Eliz: Smith
Andrew Boorne
Francis Noone

Hambleton

{Maj.Edward Hamilton)Tho: Gourden
Will: Lumsden
Jo: Frizen
Step: Flinte
Edw: Young
Jo: Thomson : 10
Samell Morris
Tho: -Southell
Agnis Payne
Jo: Reed

{Continued next page)
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{CAROLINA Passenger List Continued)

MASTERS SERVANTS o MUMBERS OF NAMES
Jo: Rivers ' Tho: Poole : _
" Rob: Williams : 5

Henry Burgen
Math: Smallwood

Nich: Cartwright

Tho: Gubbs

Lo: Lovde

Martin Bedson ' 3
Step: Price '

Will: Jenkins

Morris Abra: Phillips
Mathews -~ Reighnold Barefoot : 5
' Mathew Hewitt _ _ |
Eliz: Currle ' . ' *

Will: Bowman . Abraham Smith _

Millicent Howe . 3 |
Doctor Will Margarett Tuder ' _ _ 2 |
Scrivener ' E ' : '
Will Qwens ' John Bumfreys

Christopher Swade 4
John Berley " : -

Tho: Midleton . S - . .

Eliz: uxor ejus Rich: Wright

{his wife) " Tho: Wormes ' - 4
Samuell West ' Andrew Searle .

'- Will: West _ 3

Passengers that have noe servants.

Mr. Tho: Rideall
Mr. Will Haughton
Mr. Will Kennis - -
Mr. Tho: Humfreys
Eliz: Humfreys
Marie Clerke
Sampson Darkenwell
Nathanyell Darkenwell
Mr=. Sarah Erpe
Eliz: Erpe
Martha Powell
Mrs Mary Erpe
Thomas Motteshed.

Totall Number now aboard is 92."
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(Spellings and abbreviations are given verbatim. "Step:"™ is Stephen,’
"Tho:" is Thomas; "Jo:" is Probably Joseph though it could also be John;
the George ;nd Hepry ffarro among the seamen followed an old English
custoﬁ of beginning their names with a doubkle letter instead cf a single
capital.}

It was to the settler’s advﬁntage to bring in as many people as
possible, because the Masters gained a land premium for every dependent
they brought. The instructions to the Commission for the Governoxr and
Council, dated Jﬁly 27, 166% states (language modérnized):

"You are to take notice that we do grant unto all free pérsons
above the age of sixteen years that do come to Port Roval"” (the settlers'
first destination) "to plant before the.25th day of March, 150 acres of
land for themselves and 150 acres more for every able man servant éhey
bring with them or cause to be transported into the said Colony. and
100 acres for every woman servant and man servant under 16 years of age.
And one hundred acres to any servant when out of their time to his or
her own proper use.

"To every free person that shall there arrive to plant and inhabit
before the 25th day of March, 1671, one hundred acres. And 100 acres
more for each man servant they bring with them or cause to be transport-
ed into the said Colony.' And 7¢ acres for each woman servant or man
sefvant under sixteen years of age. And to every servant that shall
arrive before the time last mentioned, seventy acres to his or her
proper use for them and theif heirs forever."

(Shaftesbury Papers, pg 121)
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The Passenger Lists of the PORT ROYAL and ALBEMARLE .are not pre=-
sented as that of the CAROLINA was. The tempestuous voyages of these
vessels, the loss of the PORT ROYAL and ALBEMARLE probably account for
this lack, or it may be that.the lists were among the papers in Shaftes-
bury's possession and lost or mislaid before being turned over to the
Public Record Cffice. It is known that the PORT ROYAL's master, Jonn
Russell, counted 36 passengers. O©On the CAROLINA's list, neither
Jeoseph West ner the fifteen servants of the Proprietors are named.

Major Hamilton-was not aboard. His steward, J. Reed, Mr. Thomas Humfreys,

his wife and child and Mr. William Bowman left the CAROLINA when she

stopped for more passengers at Kinsale, Ireland, before proceeding to

. the next stop, Barbadoes.
" These Settlers Reached Carclina -_’,r’/f

Capt. Florence O'Sullivan, Mr. Cartwright, Mr. S. Bull, Mr. Dalton,
Messrs E. and Thcmas Smith {gfterwards Landgrave and Governor), Mr.
Mathews, Dr. Scrivener, Mr. Owen, Mr. S. West, Mr. Kennis, Mrs. Sarah
Erpe (Lot 37, Charles Town, 1681), Mrs, Mary and Elizabeth Erpe, Mr.
Marshall, Mr. Donne; Mr. B. Bull, Mr. T. Ingram, Jonathan Barker, S.
Wheelwright (commissioned Surveyer 1673) W. Chaﬁbers {Lot in Charles
Town, 1l68l1), ARffra Harleston, Jane Lawscn, Susan Kinder (Lot in Charles
Town, 1672), Mathew Smallwocd, d. 1728),'Johh Burley, W. West, and
Major Hamiiton's servants. Alsc, probably Thomas King, d¢. 1706. Others

included J. Humphreys, C. Swade, Elizaheth Curle, Millicent Howe, Serle,

Price, Jenkins, Carmichael and all of Capt. 0'Sullivan's servants. A

few servants joined the CAROLINA at Kinsale. Sir John Yeamans, Mr.
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Barrow and wife, Mr. H, Hughes, Mr. Thomas Norris, Mr. John Jones, Mr.
H. Simons, J. Collins, H. Cartwright, James Marshall, George Beadcn, A.

Churne, William Carr, Samuel Luéas, C. Edwards and others joined the

expedition at Barbadoes. Dr. Henry Woodward came abroad at the island
of Nevis, Gov. Sayle and his son, Nathaniel, at Bermuda.
The ALBEMARLE was wrecked in the hurricane at Barbadoes on November

2, 1669, as she lay at anchor, and was replaced by a borrowed sloop,

N T PR e S s

THE THREE BROTHERS, THE THREE BROTHERS stopped at "Wallie" (Guale},

now St. Katherine's Island, on the Georgia coast and a party went ashore

for water, fresh meat and to wash clothes. Spaniards and their Indian

allies took them prisoner. Some were killed, others released much

later. Capt. Bailey, Mr. Riwvers, J. Collins, M. Bedson, Margaret Tuder

and W. Carr were among. those captured. ‘
Mf..Barrow and wife and probably Mr, Middleton and wife, Mr. Hollis,

Mr. Rideall, Mr, Houghton, S. and N. Darkenwall, T. Motteshed and others

wexe on the PORT ROYAL.
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THE NIGHTMARE VOYAGE OF THE FIRST CHARLESTONIANS

During_the.discoveries of American territory and its colonization,
stormé and shipwreéks playved important roles. ﬁqoden ships with no
steering gear worth mentioning; with instruments of navigation almost as
primitive as that of the Greeks and Romans, wallowed across roaring seas,
guided by maps based as much on imagination as on fact., Terrified humans
below decks existed for months on worm-eaten ship's biscuit, rotting meat,
rancid butter in wooden casks, and slimy ﬁater. Deaths at sea were fre-
guent.. Entire shiploads of settlers often succumbed to epidemics of
typhus and other diseases. t is well to remember what our forefathers --
and foremothers, who often bore children in those small, pitching ships,
without medical aid=--endured to found this countfy.

The voyage of the MAYFLOWER was very stdfmy{ During a tempesﬁ,’
one of her timbers buckled and.began to'splif. Ingenious members of the
crew and some of the passengeré jacked.up'the beém with the tail.scréw
of the printing press which was part of the supplies in the hold. |

Consider now, the nightmaré voyage of the Carolina expedition, -
first composed of three ships, the CAROLINA, the PORT ROYAL and the
sloop ALBEMARLE. After some delay they éailed from Gravesend, part
of the Port of Londﬁn, in August, 166%, They were instructed to keep in.
sight of each other, and arrived at ¥Kinsale, Ireland, on the 29th, 30th,
and 3lst of August.

After waiting for more passengers (very few came abeard) they
saéled for Barbadoes about September 1llth. For some reason they put

back into Kinsale harbor and did not sail again until Septembef 17th.
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Tpfee days later, the ALBEMARLE disappeared from sight, though she
made it safely to Barbadoes three days after the other two ships had
arrived. A tragic report by Joseph West, commander of the expedition,
and written from Barbadoes November 8, 166%, to Lord Ashley, states
that while the ships lay an&hored at Barbadoes, "it bley hard" and the
ALBEMARLE's cables broke. She was swept up upon the rocks and was

a total wreck. The PORT ROYAL had also lost an anchor, and cables had
been snépped aboard the CAROLINA. Damage aboard both the CAROLINA
and PORT ROYAL were severe and repairs might last until spring. . Food
was so short that Sir John Colleton and Major Kingsland had takenrmore
that 20 servants ashore to their plantations.

Alsloop, THREE BROTQERS,lwas borrowed from the Colletons to re=
place thg wrecked ALBEMARLE. . The ships set out again, reaching the
island of Nevié on December 9th. They put to sea again, and were soon
scattered by storms. The PORT ROYAL, beating back and forth for six
weeks in the Bérmuda éhannel, was wrecked near Abaco. The slocop was
whirled northward by the hurricane to the meouth of the Nancimond River in
Virginia, and long presumed to be lost. The CAROLINA alone limped into
Bermuda harbor and there tock on the 73-year-old Governor William Sayle,
his son, and a few servants. We know of the horrors of the voyage only
that "the stern of the ship"” (CAROLINA) broke in." and Affra Harleston's
prayer that "God will preserve me as He hath in many great dangers-when
I saw his wonders on ye Deepe & was by him Delivered.” Letters from cther
passengers show that the gquns locaned to the expedition by Charles II were
mostly lost overboard; that the colonists' supply of powder was "damnifyed”

(wet s¢ as to be useless); and that water-damage in the ships was such as
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to soak even the supply of paper akboard and make it necessary to send to i
|
England‘EE%pE~EESE~;n which to keep recocrds, etc.

0ld letters tell how the carpenter on the wrecked PORT POYAL went

e
mad after the ship was driven on Abaco. He refused to build a boat
F—-'-"h

from the PORT ROYAL's timbers and grew so violent that Captain John

Russell and the cther passengers marcon im on a neighboring island
e,
and patched together a small boat from the frigate's timbers. This took
— e —

them back to Bermuda. There they joined the crippled CARCLINA.

on February 26, 1670, the small expedition left Bermuda for Carclina,

planning to settle at Port Royal, the destination the Proprietors had

agreed upon. On March 15th or lsth, they reached Seewee (Bull's) Bay
m

and anchored at the north end of what is now Bull's Island, about a

day later. They had badly overshot Port Reoyal. Going ashore, the

colonists were greeted enthusiastically, in bad Spanish by the Indians:
o N —— _ _
"Bony Coﬂraro Anglesl" ~~ "Good English comrades!" Here they were met

by the Cassique of Kiawah, the land nea

% Ashley River, who had traded

with the Cape;féar Barbédian colony (which had heen scattered by hunger
:2fijfffEffffﬁ;»ﬁég“ma&E\é’geyaGEJwith the discoveregL_ggEEEE_Sandford,

and was a fifm friend of the English. He guided the settlers to Port Royal,
i;nce they désired it, but urged them to settle in his country, where

£he grdund was higher, the soil better and the small colony would be

safer from the Spanish in Florida and from hostile Indians. The Cassigue's

own people lived in mortal fear of the nearby savage Wes ipe, said

tc be cannibals. They had raided the Cassigque's own country a short

time before. He wanted ;ﬁe Good English Comrades and their cuns.

— "
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éxplorers who sailed up and looked over the ground, the first Carolinians
dropped anchor at the mouth of the Ashley River, at an unknowh date in

April, 1670. "EBarly in aApril"” is the only date we know.

Six weeks after the CARCLINA's arrival, the THREE BROTHERS joined

her. The sloop had been attacked by Indians and hostile Spaniards on

her way south from Nancimond, where she had been repaired and re-supplied

by a settlement of Virginia Puritans. She.had overshot Port Roval,

blundered into the épanish Country of Guale, near the present St. Catherine's
Island, Georgia. Twelve of her passengers were missing from a group

that had gone ashore for fresh water, fresh meat and to do some much-

needed laundry. Some had been killed, others taken prisoner and their

fate unknown. The sloop had been forced to leave them, hal turned north

again and had been met by cances full of friendly Indians who told them

there were English at XKiawah.

The stormy voyvage of the Mayflower lasted 63 days. She had only
one false start. o .l |

The first settlers of Carolina, of Charleston, were on the way
for more than 90 days, and the CARQLINA alone had nine starts before she

reached her destined haven.
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ANSONBOROUGH
Anson Street starts at Market Street and runs north teo Calhoun
Street. It is in the areaz known as Ansonborough. According to Dr.

Edward McCrady, the historian, it was Charles Town's first suburb.

{"South Careclina Under Royal Government, 1719-1776" page 534.)

| By the 1950's, Ansonboroﬁéh was so dilapidated that parts of it
were approaching the condition of a tenement district or slum. The
rescue and renovation of this area is one of the most hearterning and
dramatic storiés in the ‘history of preservation in this country.

Ansonbérough takes its name from George anson (1697-1762) who,
e S —
as the 26-§ear—old captain-of_H.M. Ship, SCARBOROUGH, (his first im=

portant command) was sent on patrol duty in South Carolina waters, to

protect the region from pirates. He remained here from 1724 until 1730

e
P

and was wel; known and very popular in Charles Town.

McCrady records an old tradition that Captain Aqson'bought the ’\;:L
tract which later would bear his name, from his winﬁings at cards. \ o
According to another story, he won the entire tract in a single game, é;ﬂ’ '
The area, bounded on the north in early days by Boundary (now Calhoun)

Street, and including a tract between King Street and the Cooper River,

and running south to a line halfway between Soclety and Wentworth Streets:

was part of an original grant to the emigrant, Isaac Mazyck, and con='

tained about 90 acres. Mazyck sold 64 acres, more or less, to Thomas

Gadsden. On Marcn 26/ Thamas Gadsden conveyed this tract to

Captain George Anson for 300 sterling. This was a very large sum of money

——

for such a young raval officer to possess, much less pay out, so it is

quite possible that Anson's winnings at cards did purchase the futire

Ansonborough, but the old deed in the Mesne Conveyance cffice in Charleston

shows that this was a regular sale, for a specific sum.




After Dthef tburs of duty, Anson returned to South Carolina in
the SQUIRREL, cruising Scuth Carolina and Georgia waters in search_of
Spanish.privateers. Later, he tocd command of a squadron during the
war with Spain, commanding the 60-gun frigate, CENTURION. His orders
were to attack Spanish ships and cities fifst in the Caribbean, then
on the Pacific coasts of South America. He sailed around the Cape of -
Good Hope, and as his squadron dwindled by reason of storms and mis-—
fortune, ended by circumnavigating the globe alone in the CENTURICN,
bringing back to England, four years after his departure, treasure amount-
ing to 560,000 — tﬁé-largest booty ever returned to England'in a
single wvessel. Honors were heaped upon him. He was knighted, later
became a Baron, and First Lord of the Admiralty. His voyages and dis-
éoveries aie among the most glorious and fantastic sagas of Britsh
sea~history.

Anson had his Charles Town tract subdivided, iaid off in streets
and lots. In addition to George and Anson Streets, which still hear -
his hame, he named three Dtherslfor the ships that héd counted most in
his cafeer. SCARBOROUGH and SQUIRREL had brought him to South Carolina.
CENTURION had won him fame and fortune. 'it is sad that these three
streets havé.since lost their distinctive names. According to The
Ichnography of Char1e§ Town, published in 1782 in which all three streets
are shown, Scarborough and Centurion were asborbed into Laurens and
Society-Stréets, while Squirrel is_plainly marked as an extension of
Meeting Street. Anscon Stfeet’s sevéﬁ blocks at first had four names,
all of which were used for 60 years before a city ordinance changed

all except Anson which then was applied to the full length of the street.




George Street once extended only to Meeting, but after the Revolution,
when the city expanded, it was continued through to Coming Street, on
the edge of another suburb, the Village of Harleston.

Most of the Ansonborough houses were destroyed in the fire of
1838, which swept away at least a third part of Charleston. Th?;bUild‘
ings were replaced by handscme brick houses, most of which date from

f _ -
the 1840's. The area was in a sad state when, in 1959, the Historic }ﬁ 5 7

Charleston Feundation began its rehabilitation, which has become naticon-

ally acclaimed as an outstanding example of preservation and restoration.
The plﬁn was conceived, financed, and administered by the Foundation,
leadiné to the saving and restoration of more than 100 houses.

chording to its brochure, the Founda;ion, crganized in‘1947,
chose Ansonborcugh because: "It is one of Charleston's richest remaining
_ ‘concentrations of early architecture. It c0nta;n5'the oldest.dwelling
— - .

in the entire city, the 1712 William Rhett house at 54 Hasell Street,

et o,

a few other 18th Century houses, and a number of early 19th Century
houses in the highly sophisticated Adam style.... In all, it contains

more than 125 pre=Civil War houses, plus four churches and one public

—

e

building, the first public city high school, at 55 Society Street.

————

Another factor in the choice of the area was that,'from one of the finest

N
i

residential areas in ante-bellum Charlesteon, it had gradually declined
to a point where tenements and slums were beginning to predominate.
It was felt that a few more years ﬁf deterioration.would have meant
irretrievable loss of its fine architzscture.”

Ansonborough also contained a large number of small aﬁd medium

sized houses and many large, shady vards, and was near all of Charleston's

main shopping areas. These factors provided an excellent potential
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"not only for the preservation of the city's special character, but
alsc for the creation. of the kind of in-city residential areas so nec-
essary to the solution of urban revitalization problems.."

In other words, this Charleston-hased, Charleston~conceived organi-

- zation, working on a sheestring, in comparison with the rescurces of

such outfits as Historic Williamsburg, has managed tc save, for the
city's use and beauty, her loveliest historic suburb by one simple.rule:
"Save it by restoration and repair, instead of bulldozihg it down.”
The Foundation is now extending this sa@e type of work into nearby low-

income areas with considerable success.  Many young families have moved

'in Ansonborough, often deing a share of the work of restoring thair homes,

with their own hands. Thus the historic area, lived in as it was intended
o be, does not resemble an outdoor mussum.

Ansonborough is. shown with other Charleston areas during the Founda-
tion's Séring Tours. _The houses rescued and resto?ed by the Foundatioﬁ
now bear small‘wsﬁden markers, giving the name of the builder or criginal
occupant, the date of the house, and the foundation's name.

The properties thus marked were eithe:-rescue& by the Historic
Charleston Foundatioﬁ,.and restored for sale or rental, or were in a
few cases, bought by donors who were réally knowledgeable friends of
the city and presented them to the Foundation. In case visitors ask
how the Foundation works, by all means tell them that Ansonborough is
not their only project. The fruit of their efforts is seen throughout
historic Charleston. The Foundation feels that if Charleston's remaining

architectural treasures are tc be saved, no time can be lost. Already

. toc much that is irreplaceable has gone to make way for parking lots,

etc. The Foundation's 1956 goal was a "Revolving Fund" of $100,000.
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fof tﬁe preservation of the city's historic buildings and areas. This
$100,000. has revolved many times. This is a non-profit, tax free
eleemqsyna:y c@rporation which "approcaches its preservation cbjective
Iin_ﬁerms o£ a living community"”, according to the Foundaﬁion's b;o-
chure, titled ... Worth Sa&ing." |

Historic areas, rather than individual houseS-would be given prefer-
ence for restoration. If an area of architectural importance, now
deteriorated, is partially restored, the Foundaticn feels that private
funds would be attracted, toe restore the remainder, Not all these houses
need be restored as dwellings. They can be purchased and developed into
rental units such as apartments, offices, stores, etc., depending on
the neighberhcod. Werthy properties could_bé purchased for re-sale,
with :estrictions concerning future alterations and use,

The Foundation seeks to have worthy properties willed or donated
to it; such properties t¢ be scold to'“persons-who will agree t¢ maintain
their architectural integrity."_.There_argxdthqy provisions but this gives

the idea.
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CANNCNSEBORQ

Cannonsboro received its name from Daniel Cannon, house carpenter

and mechanic¢, who between 1762 and 1800 écquired the large, low and -
e ——————— —

it

marshy tract, generally north of Boundary Street and west of Coming’'s
.Creek. Cannon built lumber mills on the Ashley River side of ;is ac-
quisitions. His Upper Mill was in the vi;inity of Cannon Street; his’
Lower Mill in the wvicinity of Boundary Street {now Calhoun).

There were many pieces of marshland and small creeks which split
. up Cannon;s holdings and which had to be filled, but.by early in the
19th Century several good houses were grected, chiefly along Pinckney
Street (now Rutledge Avenue), which was the highest ground'in the grea.

Later, the lower part of Cannon's holdings, in the vicinity of
Calhoun Street, was acquired-by'Jonathan Lucas, whq built rice mills
‘as well as sawmills in the area.

Cannonsbors  included the area now bounded generally on the north
by Spring Street, eastward as far as Coming Street, thence south along
Coming Street to Morris Street, thence west to Smith Stréet, thence

south to Calhoun Street, thence west to Rutledge Avenue, thence south

to just below Bennett Street, thence west to the Ashley River.
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ELLIOTTEBOROUGH

' This area was partitioned among the Elliott family and surveyed

into streets in the 1570'5.

Included was the area bounded today by Line, Coming, -and Spring

Streets and a line just west of Rutledge Avenue.
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FREE SCHOOL LANDS

An Act of the Commons House of Assembly, in 1710, authorized the

dcquisition of land for a Free School. The Commissioners of the Free

School bought from a member of the Harleston family the area bounded
today by Calhoun, St. Philip, George and Coming Streets.

——

—

The Free School was apparently built soon afterward, as from the

tombstone of the Rev, John Lambert in St. Philip's Churchyard, we learn

that the gentleman, who died in 1729, was a "Master Preceptor and Teacher

—cET ¢

of-Grammgr and other Arts and Sciences Taught in the Free Schoel af
Charlestown."

However, by 1757, the usé of the building as a free school had
been discontinued, and in that year, it was renovated for the use of
military officers and barracks sufficient for 1,000 men were built on
the Free School Lands.

In 1785, the Free School Lands were given to the newborn College
e

of Chérleston, which renovated one of the barracks buildings for its

p—

OWll Purposes.

Subsequently, howéver,thg college had financial reverses and had
to divide all but a quarter of the Free School Lands into lots, which

were first leased and finally secld., Thus, College Street and Green

Street {the latter presumably named for the College Green) were created.

During the current expansion of the college, begun in 1970, ail

the Free School Lands have been returned to educational purposes.
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GLEBE LANDS

Mrs, Bffra Coming, in 1698, made a deed of gift of 17 acres of
R, s : -

land to the Minister of the Church of England in Charlestown, and his

successors in office. The tract was that now bounded by George, St.

Philip, Beaufain and Coming Streets.

In 1770, an act was passed to open streets through the Glebe Lands

and through Harleston Village. The same act ordered the building of

a new parsonage on four acres to be reserved for that purpose, the rest

of the Glebe to be divided into 38 lots.

The Glebe Lands were divided in 1770 between St. Philip's and St.

e e ——
- ——

Michael's. St. Michael's received most of the portion s
e T
worth Street, with the rest geoing to St. Phlllp

The four acres for St. Phlllp s rectory were laid out on the north

| 710 @Jﬂe v
side of Wentworth Street and the rectory (now 6 Glebe St.) was built, 8

O 2 4 m\ NS

replacing the former one at St. Phlllp and Beaufaln streets. In l797,AA¢¢43”J”}
14 more lots were created from the parscnage lot, and Glebe Street was
cut through.

The Glebe lots were at first let to tenants on long leases, with
the tenants agreeing to build upon them. Gradually, beginning in the

mid-19th Century, the lots were scld off, until only a few Glebe lots

remain.
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HAMPSTEAD

The Village of Hampstead was laid out for Henry Laurens in 1789,
though there are no known' 18th Century houses in the area.
Hampstead's focal point is Hampstead Mall or Square, at the inter-

section of America and Columbus streets,
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HARLESTON VILLAGE

Harleston Village was originally part of a grant made to John
Coming in 1685. After the death of Coming and his wifé, Mrs. Affra
Cnminq, it was inherited by Mrs. Coming's nephews, the Harlestons.

The section bore their name when it was déveloped and streets were open-
ed up in 1770.

Streets were patrictically named for famous men of.first the Colonial
period, then éor heros of the Revolution. Thus we find a street named
for the Rofal Governor, Lord Charles Greville Montagu, intersecting
with streets named for John Rutledge,.Thomas Lynch, William Pitt.and
Christopher Gadsden.

Despite its early creation, Harleston was but slowly covered with
houses, and in 1819, a comtemporary described it as indented with marsh
and creeks.

A large part of Harleston was acqguired by Thomas Bennett, Sr.,
who, with Daniel Cannon, used the ebb and flow of the tides to power
large lumber mills. Thus, the part of Harleston near the Ashley River
was covered with huge mill ponds. The ponds persisted after the develop-
ment of the use qf steam power, and were not finally filled until the
1880s.

The first golf nlub in America, established in 1786, had its golf

~— —
course in Harleston Village. The club held its meetings and annual
dinners in its "Club House on Harleston Green."

Harleston Viliage was granted "Old and Historic" zoning status in

1966. The village is also a Registered National Historic Landmark.
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LAURENS SQUARE

Now pgrt of Anscnborough, this area, bounded teday by Laurens,
Anson and Society St:eets and the Ccoper River, was acquired about
1755 by Henry Laurens, later President of the Continental Congress.

Here, Laurens built his "large, elegant brick house" and he and
Mrs. Laurens created a large botanical garden, containing such exotics
as orange, oiive, lime, capers, ginger and guinea grass.

The property was laid out in buiiding lots in 1804 by his sen,
Henry Laurens the Younger. The family name is commemorated in Laurens

Street.
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MAZYCKBOROUGH

This area was developed by Alexgnder Mazyck. It was surveyed'
and laid off into stréets in 1786..

Mazyckborough is bounded by Chapel, Elizabeth and Calhoun streets_
and the Cooper River.

With Wraggberough, it was granted "Old and Historic" zone status
in 1975 and itg residents have joined with these of her sister boroﬁgh

in the active Wraggborough-Mazyckborough Historical Neighborhood Assn.
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MAZYCK LANDS

This area, bounded generally by the present streets -- Broad,
Logan, Queen, Archdalé, geaufain and Smith -- was granted to James
Moore in 1698 and conveyed by the trustees of his.will to Isaac Mazyck
in 1712. |

Tn 1742, the Mazyck Lands were partitioned among his.several child-
ren; - i

Not a pért of.the Mézyck Lands was the block today bouﬁded by
Magaziné,'Logan; Queén and Franklin streets, which was early set aside:

for public uses.




MIDDLESEX

Now part of Ansonborough, the Village of Middlesex was laid out
by Christopher Gadsden. The area of Gadsden's lands were bounded by
Present~day Calhoun, Anson and Laurens streets and the Cooper River.
Gadsden had the area laid out into six wharf lots and 197 back or
building lots. He fiiled the marsh, and in cooperation with his neighbor

to the north, Alexander Mazyck, straightened the creek between them by

digging a canal which followed the course of present-day Calhoun Street,
terminating about wher; Calhoun crosses Washington Street.

The Souéh Carolina Gazette, on March 7, 1774, described Gadsden’®s
wharf development as the most extensive of its kind ever complgted in
America.

Gadsden named his streets for his political leanings. But Virginia,

Pitt, Wilkes and Massachusetts Streets, Corsican Walk and Hand-in-Hand

Corner have not survived.
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NEW MARKET

The Village of New Market was generally north of Line Street and
.east of King Street. Except for its extreme southern portion, it re-
mained largely undeveloped until the early part of this century.

This large tract was purchased by Landgrave Joseph Blake in 1700
and most of it remained in his family for more than 200 years.

New Market was the site of the Newmarket Race Course which was
used unﬁil thé Waghington Race Course, established in 1790, superceded

it.




RADCLIFFEBORO
Thomas Radcliffe acquired the tract of land now bounded by King,

Vanderhorst, Smith and Radcliffe Streets and had it surveyed in 1786.

.

After Radcliffe was lost at sea, development of the suburb was
continued by his widow, Mrs. Lucretia.Radcliffe, and other heirs.

The area called Radcliffeboro téday.also.includés the Elliott
Lands qnd the western porticon of the Wragg Lapds.

The Elliott Lands, bounded by present-day Radcliffe, Smith, Mo:ris
and King Streets, were surveyed iﬁ 1786.

The western portion of the Wragg Lands was bounded by present-day
Vanderhorst, Smith, Calhoun and XKing Streets.

Radcliffeborc has its own neighborhocd preservation association

and in 1975 was granted “0ld and Historic" zoning status.

57
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RHETTSBURY

ﬁilliam Rheft acquired The Point Plgntation in 1712 and renamed
it Rhettgbury;' The southern boundary was the nofthern boundary of the
Grand Model, slightly béloﬁ'present-day'Hésell Streat., It extended to
present-day King Street én the west ana just'above present-day Wentworth
Street én the north. ..

This area was partitioned Ly his great-érandaughters, Susannah and

Mary Hasell, who married, respectively, Parker Quince and John Ancrum.
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WASHINGTON

“The Village of Washington was laid out from.King Street westward,
just scuth of the Washington Race Course {now* Hampton Par?.)
Its streets were patrictically named, and Moultrie, Cohgress, and
President Streets remain. |
This area remained sparsely developed until about'l900, when the
present neighborhood of attractive houses and tree shaded streets began

to be developed.

|
|
[
|
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WRAGGBOROUGH

This area was part of the extensive holdings of Joseph Wragg,
partitioned among hi; heirs in 1751. A plat of 1806 shows it substantially
as it exists today, bordered by Meeting, Mary, Calhoun, Elizabeth and
Chapel Streets and the Cooper River.

The streets of Wraggboro were named with the Christian names of
Wragg children. The two parksé Wragg Sguare and Wragg Mall, were gifts
to the public 1801.°

Wrangorough has received {1975) "0ld and Histeric" zoning status.




STREETS
STRUCTURES
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CHARLESTON'S OLD STREETS

Taken from the Year Book of the City of Charleston, 1936. This infor-

mation .was drawn from an article in the Charleston Daily Courier published

August 29, l868.

The article explains that the. information was arawn from Edward Petrie'’s
Ichnography of Charleston, from an actual survey made Auqust 2, 1788,

by Edward Petrie, for the use of the Phoenix Fire Company of Lendon.

EAST BAY began at James Sommers' house at the sﬁuthéast corner of Stoll's
Alle?, known now as the site of the residence of Gen. Wilmot

G. DeSausﬁure.. The original grantees of this lqt, numbered

1l in "“a very old.plat,..which has ‘been shown to'ush were Peter
Girard and Mathew -and James Moore. Later, James Scmmers

owned it and bduilt a brick residence on the site. Gen., De-

Saussure purchased this house for his home. During his remodel-

ling, a copper coin dated 1737 was found in the plastering.

From Scmmer's house, East Bay centinued without interruption
to Governor's Bridge, spanning the_creek running up the present
site of the Markef, and up beyond Church Sﬁ. From Governor's
Bridge East Bay continued to Society St. From there to Fedezal
Green, a large open spacs to the north of Lauﬁens st. and east
of Anson Sﬁ., it was known as "So-Ba~=It Lane." 1In 1795, East
Bay was opened te Asnley River on thé south.

SOUTH'BAY’beQan at Meeting Strget and ended at Gibbs' Whé:f, to the west

of Legare Straet. It was continued toc East Bay about the year

1837.
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STOLL'S ALLEY began at East Bay and ended at Church Street, as at present

Longitude Lane also had the same beginning and end as it has now.
TRADD STREET begin at East Bay and continued beyond Mazyck Street.

BEDCON'S ALLEY began at Tradd and ended at Elliott Street. From Bedon's
" Alley, about midway between Tradd and Elliott, an alley ran
to East Bay called Inglis’ Arch, or Mitchell's Alley. This

was closed in 1836.
ELLIOTT STREET began at East Bay and ended at Church Street.

ST. MICHAEL'S ALLEY and GADSDEN'S ALLEY had the same beginning and end

as'at present (1866).

BROAD STREET began at Eagt Bay and continued bevond Mazyck Street.
éﬁl Broad Street was once known as Cooper Street, or simply de-
scribed as "the street leading from the Exchange past the

Market Place.™

STATE STREET, ffém Broad to Queen, was known as Union Street, and from
Queen Street to the creék, now thermarket site, as Unicn
Street continued, or Mofte Street; The name.wés changed to
State Street about 1810. -

CHALMERS STREET.from staté to Church wés known as Chalmers Alley, and.
from Church té Meeting it waé known.as Beresford's Alley.

It was also designated at one time as Mulattb Alley.

UNITY ALLEY began at East Béy and terminated at State, as at present.

B
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QUEEN STREET began at East Bay and continued beyond Mazyck'street.

It was at one time known as Dock Street.

e —m— .

KINLOCH'S CQURT, now_known as'Philadelphia Street, began at Queen Street

and ended near Cumberland Street. It was opened to Cumberland

in 1810,

LODGE ALLEY began at East Bay.and ended at State Street as at present

(1866).

WRAGG'S ALLEY, now known as Cumberland Street and at ane time as Amen

Street, began at East Bay and ended at Church.

N

CHURCH STREET began at the south side of Market Street and endad near
South Bay. At this point a small street ran to Meeting,
which howrforms-part of South Bay.“ It was known as Fort

Street.

ATLANTIC STREET and LIGHTWOOD'S ALLEY were then known as Lynch's Lane.
WATER STREET began at Vanderhorst's Creek and ended at Meeting.
ROPER'S LANE ran eastwardly from Meeting Street, as at present.

CUMBERLAND STREET began at Church and ended at Meeting. It did not,

as now (1l866) connect with that portion of the strest lead-

ing to East Bay.'

ELLERY STREET began at East Bay, oa the north margin of the creek which
ran through a portion of the presant Market site and ended
at Meeting Street. It was a little north of what is now known

as Market Street., It was finally closed up in 1838.
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MAIDEN LANE began at Ellery'street, near Meeting, and ended at Hasell

Street.

FRENCH ALLEY also began-at Ellery Street, cpposite Church Street and
ended at Guignard Street. The alley ceontinued from Guignard
to Pinckney Street but no name is given to it on the 1788

plat.

ANSON STREET, from Ellery cr.Market Street to Pinckney Street was known
as Chérles Street. From Pinckney to Society, it was Quince
Street. From Society to George Street, it was Anson Stréet.
From George tc Boundary Street, then the northern limit of
the-city, it was_known_as Scarborough Street. .Thus it will
ke seen that what is now_{1866) known as Ansqn Street on;e

had four different names.

RAPER'S ALLEY - A small alley ran from Ellery Street to Guignard Street,
which has no designation on the chart. It is now (1866)

known ag Raper’'s Alley.
GUIGNARD STREET began east of East Bay Street and ended at Meeting.:

PINCKNEY STREET began at Mey's Wharf, tec the east of East Bay, and
ended at Maiden Lane. A court or alley ran from Pinckney
" between Anson and East Bay and ended near Hasell Street.

Pinckney was opened to Meeting Street about the year 1816.

HASELL STREET began at East Bay Street and terminated at Xing Street.
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WENTWORTH STREET, from East Bay to Kiﬁg,'was known as Trott Street,
From King Street to Coming Street, its terminus at that time

(1788) was known as Wentworth Street.

Thus. far the Charlestoen Daily Courier, in 1866. Note that when

the expression, "now," or "as at present" is used, it means that the
location was given as of 1866. There have been numerous changes of

name since that time. The Mazyck Street often referred to is now Logan
N .
S
Street. No reflection on a street or its occupants is meant by the.
———— : .

terminaticn, "Alley." Webster defines an alley as "a narrow passage

or way in a city, as distinct from a main street.,”




ADGER'S WHARF

During the antebellum period, this wharf was the terminus for

James Adger and Co., which instituted the first steamship line between

W
Charleston and New York. One of their finest ships, the James Adger,

happened to be in New York harbor when the Confederate War broke ocut.
It was confiscated by Union authorities and was used throughout the
war by the U. S. Navy.

After port activities moved up the peninsula, the wharf was abandoned.
Recently, it has been reclaimed as a léndscaped public park with funds
from a private donor.

West of the park, Adger's Wharf divides into two streets called
North Adger's Wharf and South Adger's Wharf. Scuth Adger's Wharf is one
of Charleston's few remaining cobblestone streets. Both streets are

lined with o0ld warehouses which have been "recycled" as offices and

residences, and with new townhouses.
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ALEXANDER STREET

5 ALEXANDER ST. -- Three story clapboard house built about 1813 by

Simon gude Chancognie, Prench consular official and merchant.
The house has fine Adam style woodwork and interesting, graceful

stairway. Chancognie also built the house around the corner at

48 Laurens St.

80 ALEXANDER ST. -— 3Site of the LIBERTY TREE. Marker placed by Scons of the

American Revolution states: "Near this spot, once stood the Liberty

Tree where colonial independence was first advocated by Christopher

Gadsden, in 1766 and where tzn years later the Declaration of

Independance was fifst heard and applauded by South Caroclinians.”

Gadsden and his fellow revolutionaries, who led public meetings here
to protest the British_Stamp Act and later the Tea Tax, called.
themselvas the "Sons of Liberty." Seeking to prevent the large

cak tree from becoming a Patriot shrine, the British cut down the

Liberty Tree during their occupation of the city in 1780-82.




AMERICA STREET

America Street forms the backbone of the historic suburb of Hamp-
stead, thch was laid out for Henry Laureps in 1789. During the early
part of this century, this street of small, mostly 19th Century houses
degenerated into glum conditions.

The Charleston County Bicentennial Commission in 1973 chose America
Street as an area for rehabilitation in cleebration of the American
Revolution Bicenteﬁnial. A revolving fund to provide low interest loans
to America Street property owners was established, but the project was
stymied by a lack of'localﬁfund;nq due largely to the national economic
recession. |

Subsequently, the Preservation Society of Charleston and Charléstop
Pride, Inc., two local nen~profit organizations, applied for funds from .
the Federal Home Investment Task Force. The Preservation Society and
Charleston Pride also proposed that the City of Charleston supplement
these funds with federal fnnds‘segured qnder the Housing and Urban
Development Act. At the same time, Historic Charleston Foundation pro-
posed that funds obtained under that act be used toc rehabilitate housing
in histﬁric neighborhocds above Calhoun Street.

On August 19, 1975, City Council ratified an ordinance setting
up the Commission of Redevelopment and Preservation, to initiate and
direct the City's Housing Rehabilitation Leoan Program. The commission
consists of the mayor and six other members appointed by him, including
two City Council members. The commission will administer a revelving
fund for loans to homeowners in the America Strset area. The revolving
fund consists of an initial $250,000, with additional funding for twe

subsequent years.




AMHERST STREET

2 AMHERST ST. == "Presqu'ile." (pronounced Presk-eel). The French

L/,//// phrase for "peninsula" was applied as the name of this house

because, when built about 1804, it stood on a finger of high

ground projecting into the Cooper River marshes, which ﬁavé

been filled in since then. Jacob Belser, a planter of German
descent} built "Presqu'’'ile"™ as a suburban villa. In 1840,
the.property was acquired by Henry Grimke, also of Germaﬁ descent,
who added the squarish rear wing. The house has fine Adam

style interior decorations, all of carved wood.

42 AMHERST ST. -- This small two story wooden house with a pan~tiled

roof was' built after 1818 by James Brown, a "free person of

coler.”

|
|
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ANN STREET

23, 25 and 29 ANN ST. -- Antebellum warehouses built by South Carolina

Railroad Co.

31 ANN ST. -- CAMDEN DEPQT -- only the crenellated gates remain of the

depot, built about 1850 by the South Carolina Railroad Co.
Design of the Gothic Revival towers has been attributed to
‘f;\ Edward Brickell White, noted mid-19th Century Charleston

architect.

40 ANN ST. -- South Carolina Railrocad Co. warehouse. On the keygtone of
sach arch over the doorways a palmetto tree stands under

the encircling initials "S.C.R.R." and beneath is the date 1857.
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ANSON STREET

11-25 ANSON ST. -- Goldsmith's Row, built 1894 by Isaac A. Goldsmith,

a2 dentist, industrialist and real estate investor.

27 ANSON ST. -- Palmetto Fire Hall, built in 1850 for volunteer fire

company. Designed by architect EdwardC.__Jones.‘l:;Z

30 ANSON ST. -— Notable antebellum single house.

34 ANSON ST. == Three story brick house built by the widowed Mrs. Mary
H. Lanneau (pronounced La-New) about 1848.. The red brick is
unusual for that period in Charleston.

42 ANSON ST. == New house designed to blend with nearby historic struc-

tures. Notable garden.

45 ANSON ST. ~- Double outbuilding built before 1770 by John Ash on this
site. Burned in great fire of 1838, rebuilt on same founda-

tions soon afterward.

46 ANSON ST, ==~ Built before 1853 by'Thqmas Wallace, dry goods. merchant.
50 ANSON ST. -~ Martin Dowd's Tenement, c. 1845,

53 ANSON ST. == Built c. 1843 by William Thompson.

38 ANSON ST. -- Built by 1851 by Robert Venning, factor. Unusual ell

is of the same date. Placement of the outbuildings in this manner

was -necessary by the shallowness of the lot. This house is

one of several in the vicinity built by the Venning family, a

clan of planters in Christ Church Parish.

60 ANSON ST. -~ Three story brick store and residence built c. 1851 by

R.M. Venning, planter. According to tradition, it was the place
of business of Claus Spreckels, who later became a sugar mualti-

millionaire in California.




63 ANSON ST. == Small brick outbuilding built by Mrs, Susan Rocbinson as
dependency of 48 Society St., after great fire of 1838.

66 ANSON ST. -- Built in 1839 by Mrs. Elizabeth C. Chazal, widow of Jean
.Pierre Chazal, captain of the privateer Saucy Jack in the War
of 1812, Mrs. Chazal's-accoun£ bock showing periodic payments
for labor and materials while the house was under construction,
is still in existance. The house was the home of her son,

Dr., J.P. Chazal, deén of the Medical College of South Carclina
‘in 1877-82. The interesting brick piazza columns are apparsntly

original.

--?St;astéphenfs Episéopél;cﬁurﬁh; ;Built:1835§353@yﬁ§§§py

Horlbeck and %_::r.eia_tive- E. Horlbeck, of the famous family

'EffﬁﬁiIQEFS anduqxchi;ects, ;Bri¢k§ for the.structure possibly

came from the Horlbeck brickyard #t‘ﬁééne Hall Plantation.
‘The: chapel was built for. Episcopal :':Chq.r‘.r.:.h: members -who could
fiot afford to. purchase’ pews, aswas .then the.custom.. The.
&PF@l@iﬂg“35¢éégdﬁﬁheﬂg#9§t“ﬁife'in¥833’ which{deyast;tgd
thejneighbérhqu td theH§outh;Qf the_chape&.

71 ANSCN ST. =-- Thomas Doﬁghty ﬁouée, c..1804; Essentially Adam style
with'finely'&etailed woodwark. Noté interesting baroque gable
over piazza entrance and unusual gabled bay on the garden
side of the house. This_property was resto?éd in 1959, the
first in the Ansonbﬁrough Rehabilitation Project,

72 ANSON ST. =-- Benjamin Simons Neufville House, c..1846. Handsome
Greek Revival drawing rooms. i |

74 ANSON ST. —- Michael Foucout House, circa 1812. This two-and-one-half

story building was moved by Histeric Charleston Foundation
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from the arsa cleared for the Charleston Municipal Auditorium in 1967.
75 ANSON ST, = Joseph Legare House, c¢. 1800, This building was called

a "white elephant” of the Ansonborough project because, for a .

decade, a buyer could not be found.for the large house and
extensive line of outbuildings. When the present owner complet-
ed the restoration of the properfy in 1974, she had the house paint-
gff ed "elephant gray.” The restoration project included the
Lf removal of 2 third story and replacement of the original hip
roof, and complete rebuilding of one of the butbuildings. The
Leautiful iron—railed.entrance.stairway was added about 1838

by Benjamin J. Howland,

79 ANSON ST. -- Built hefore 1760 by Daniel Legare, planter of Christ Ga\ﬂ

_Gzt\rﬁ

L,af”/ of Ansonborough was smaller tﬁan the present historic district

Church Parish. The sign proclaiming it as the "Qldest House

in Ansonborough" is technically true. The original suburb

of that'name, being bounded by present-day Anson, Calhoun,

King and Society streets, . The Col. William Rhett House,

.built c. 1712 at 54 Hasell St., was not then in Ansonborough,

though it is now.

82 ANSON ST. -- Built c. 1799 by Josiah Smith Jr., merchant, for his
daughter, Miss Mary Smith. Moved to permit the extension of
George Street from Anson to East Bay Street when Municipal
Auditorium was built, Restored by Historic Charleston Foun-

dation, which brough present piazzas from the 3lake House on

East Bay Street.

93 ANSON §T. -- St. John's Reformed Episcopal Church. Built i 1850,
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Patrick M. Lynch took up residence in St. Joseph’s Rectory

for the duration of thé\gonfederate War. During the fede-

~ times by shells,and_badly-damaged.- It was repaired after

- a:great-.decrease inamambe;shipt;thewcbursh_was closed in

. 1965. . In 1971, St. John's Reformed Episcopal Church bought

this small Gothic Revival structure first served as the
Anson Street Chapel, for black presbyterians. In 1861,

it became St. Joseph's Roman Catholic Church., St. Joseph's
was knewn as "The Church of the Irish,” as it served a large
number of pa{ishiongrs of Irish origin who had settled in
the area. Tﬁé former rectory at 91 Anson St. predates

+he church. When the disasterous fire of 1861 destroyed

the bishop's residence on Broad Street, the Right Rev.

N
N,

ral bombardment in 1864~75,. the church was struck several

the war_and~almost~completely rebuilt in 1883, The school-

house at-89 Anson st., a small‘board-and-batten structure,

dates from 1887, when St.sJoseph‘s_Schpol"opened. after

and restored the p;ope:ty;fo:'theﬂﬂﬁa of . that congregation.
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ARCHDALE STREET

Street named for John Archdale, a Quaker, governor of the Province L

of Carclina in 1l695-1€96,

4 ARCHDALE ST. =-- Gage Hall. Owned by the Unitarian Church. Has assembly

room on first floor,rand above, living quarters for the Uni=-

tarian minister.

gargenion

SR i
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Perpendicular Gothic style in 1852-54 bw Francis D. Lee,fone of

Charleston's foremost mid=-1%th Century architects. Retaining

the 18th Century walls, Lee attenuated the windows with Gothic

arches, added buttresses and made the tower "more lofty and
imposing," in his own wqrds. For the interior, he drew his
inspiration from the fan-tracery vaulting and pendants from the
Henry VII Chapel at Westminister. Lee's vaulting is not
structural, however, but composed of laths:and plaster. The
building suffered severe damage in the earthquake of 1886 and
was restored with contributions from Unitarians throughout

the country. The church is one of the terminals of the Gate~

way_Walklrdevelopeq by the Garden Club of Charlestecn, the other

being,StﬂiEhi;¢p{sE?rotestant'Episcopalychurch.qn Church street.

wooden structure stood to the rear of the present structure,
approximately where the parish house stands today on Clifford
Street. During the Revolution, the Lutheran pastor, the Rev.
John HNicholas Martin refﬁsed to pray for the King of England.
He was expelled froﬁ the city and his property was confiscated
by the British. His successor,the Rev, Christian Streif,

was taken prisoner by the British. a native

of Rhinebeck, N.Y., B

3¢

Under his direction,

the present structure was The building
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is thought to have been designed by {Frederick Wesner,

Charlestonian of German descent who was the architect for the

01d Citadel and other landmarks. It is known that Wesner had

..—“_-"-—m——\ .
the contract for the wooden portions of the building. Jchn

Horlbeck Jr. and Henry Horlbeck had the contract for the
brickwork. The pulpit wag donated by the cabinetmaker, Jacob
Sass, The tall iron gates and fence were designed by Abraham

P. Reeves and executed by Jacob S. Roh in 1822.. The steeple,

e e

added in 1853, was designed by Charles Fraser, the famous

Charleston painter of miniatures. The recessed chancel with

its memorial windows was added in 1896.

continued as pastor until 1874, #

—

- laborated with John James Audubon on the famous books, "Birds
s

of America” and "The (Quadrupeds of North America." Two of

Audubon's sons married ‘two of Dr. Bachman's déughters. Dr.

Bachman, though reluctant to see South Carélina secede from the

e T .

Union, was convinced the Southern cause was just and made

the opening prayer at the Secession Convention.

15 ARCHDALE ST. -- College Preparatory School,.a private day school.
The headmaster’'s office, in the small older bﬁilding, con~
taing Adam style woodwork taken from Ophir Plantation in the
1930s when the plantation area was flooded by the Santee~Cooper

Dam project.
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16 ARCHDALE ST. =-- Built 188l as rental unit by Henry Viehl, grocer.

19 ARCHDALE ST. =- Philip Porcher House, built c. 1765. A planter of
st. Stephen's Parish, Santee, Porcher (pronocunced Por-shay)

\4/// was an ardent loyalist during the Reveolution and his property
was confiscated by Patriot authorities. After the war, however,
it was restored to himrbecause of his “universa; good character.”
Subsequently, the Porcher family sold the property but after
a lapse of many vears, title again is vested in a lineal descen-
| dant. 6S\kﬁx>\ %> (L*\@ncvv;)

21 and 23 ARCHDALE ST. -- Dr. Samuel Wilson's Houses, two tall brick

Adam style single houses built about 1809. Dr. Wilson built

No. 21 for himself and No. 23 for his son Dr. Isaac Mazyck Wilson.

-27 RRCHDALE ST. ~- Here the German Friendly Society, organized
\/,//f as a beneveolent society, built a handsome hall in 180l1. The

first president of the society, Hichaéi Xalteisen, participated
in the cornerstone laying and was later buried in front of the
hall. Recently, however, his remains were moved to Bethany
Cemetery. The hall was built by‘John Horlbeck Jr. and Henry
Borlbeck, both of whom served as president of the society.
The hall was badly damaged by the federal boﬁbardmént and sub-
sequently burned in 1864. The two story maseonry building in

the middle of the lot was completed in 1802 by the Horlbeck

brothers. It served as the kitchen for the‘hall and as the

residence of the society's schoolmaster. The society's school,
housed in the hall, was remarkable for its supply of scienti-
fic apparatus and for the fact that girls as well as boys

were taught its use. The hall was the scene of many sumptous

dinners as well as meetings, and guests of the society included
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the royal Duke of Saxe~Weimar-Eisenach, who visited in 1825,

and was made an honcorary member. The society's hall is now

at 29 Chalmers St.

29 ARCHDALE ST. =-- Small two-story masonry single house built in 1876

by Miss Mary Jane Ross as a rental. unit.

NORTHWEST CORNER, ARCHDALE AND WEST STREETS -- Site of St. Andrew's

iscontented members

Presbyterian’ Churchjibuilt in 1814 by

Pfééb?terian Churchi In 1823; the church"

-ﬁasyreorganizedaaSTthe'Third'Presbyterian»Chu;Ch.= The

congrégation moved in 1850 to Meeting Street andilater hLécame’

Wesfmiﬁéter&Presbyterian} The abandened Archdale Street

church was destroyed a few years hefore the Confederate War.

Title to the propert nained with the Westminster congre-:

gation until’ 19534 when the:City of Charleston:ipurchased’ it®
for a:public parkiv’ Recently, it was purchased by the Epis-
copal Diocese of South Carolina as part of the parking lot for

Cantebury House, an Episcopal senior citizens' home.
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ASHLEY AVENUE

Ashley Avenue, from Calhoun te Beaufain Street, first was named
Lynch Street. After the Revolution, the street from Calhoun north was
called Paine. 1In 1869, Lynch Street was extended south to Broad Street

and still later to Tradd. 1In 1897 the name, Ashley Avenue, was applied.

55 ASHLEY AVE. =-- Baker Memorial Hospital. Built in 1812 as Baker San-

atorium, at a cost of $100,000, Before the Confederate War,
SEEEEEEZEELE*EEEQEE—EEE} stood on the site.

6l ASHLE? AVE, == Small single house 5ui1t before 1807 by Richard H.

| Peyton. The house has fine Adam style interiors. The fine
two story stable and carriége-house and the impressive rear
gates were added in the 1830s or 1840s. The formal garden
is featured in the book, '"Charleston Gardens."

70 ASHLEY AVE. -- Hotable antebellum house. |

75.ASHLEY AVE. == Neotable antebellum house with elaborate Greek Revival
deoorway. Built c¢. 1830 by Daniel Fairchild.

76 ASHLEY AVE. == Built <, 1855 by John Hume Simons, rice planter.

' The huge deouble drawing rooms were used és a church by St.
Mary's Roman Catholic Church on Hasell Street during the
federal bombardment of the city.

96 ASHLEY AVE. -- Notable house, built c. 1800. Dr. Willis Wilkinson
bought the house in 1825.. His two daughters, Mary and Sarah,
both married Christopher G. Memminger, Confederate Secretary
of the Treasury. According to tradition, Memminger fell in

love with the seceond sister during their joint visits to the
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grave of the first. 3By ﬁay of proposal, Memmiﬁger said to
her, "Will you accompany me to the grave?"” Thinking he meant
her sister's grave, the young lady said, "Yes.“. The mistake
was later resolved, however, and the ccuple were happily married.
107 ASHLEY AVE. -- Valuable Greek Revival style house, built <. 1845.
109 ASHLEY AVE. -- This house has a notable circular staircase, which
according to tradition, was first forgotten in the planning
of tﬂe house and added as an afterthought.

113 ASHLEY AVE. -- Built c. 1800 by Thomas Be , mayor of Charleston

and governor of South Carolina. Sold in 1825 to Mrs. Susan
McElhenny, whose daughter married Paul Hamilton Hayne; Their

son, Paul Hamilton Hayne, the noted poet, was born here in

1830. The house has intéresting Adam style woodwork, especially
in thé spacious stairhall,.

139 ASHLEY AVE. -- Notable antebelluﬁ(single house. Note terracotta
cornices over windows.

Pass MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CARCLINA (Which.See)

178 ASHLEY AVE. ~-— Qutstanding Greek Revival style mansion, built about
1840 by Jonathan Lucas, planter and rice mill owner.

192 ASHLEY AVE. =-- Built c. 1855. Occupie& during the federal seige

[~

of Charleston by Gen. Pierre T.'Beauregard, Confederate com-
i .

Ly

mander. Soldiers were quartered in the ample basement, ac—

Wy,

cording to tradition.

209 ASHLEY AVE. ~- Built before 1230, notable house with unusual curving

kays and semicircular piazzas.

215 ASHLEY AVE. -- Notable antebellum house.




216 ASHLEY AVE. -- Notable antebellum house with beautiful classic portico.

217 ASHLEY AVE. -- Notable antebellum house.

218 ASHLEY AVE. -- éhurch of the Boly Communion {Episcopal). Congregation
organized in 1848 in the home of the Rt. Rev. WNathaniel Bowen.
The Rev. Anthony Toomer Porter became pastor in 1854, when the

p L —
members met for services in a room in the U.S. Arsenal. The

cornerstone of the present structure had been laid; it was
consecrated in 1855. An industrial school was founded, and
later provided uniforms and camp eguipment for the Confederacy.
Dﬁring the federal.bombardment, the Confederate Post Office

e
was located here. In 1867, Dr. Porter founded the Hely Com-

munion Church Institute, which later became Porter Military
Academy, now Porter-Gaud Séhool. He also traveled North to
secure funds to establish a school for blacks and to re-open
the theological seminary. Dr. Porter obsé:ved the rubrics
of the Prayer Book and Liturgy of the anciept Church. Holy

Communion's "high Episcopal" features -- the white marble altar

with marble cross, candlesticks and missal stand, recessed
chancel and sanctuary, and vestments in liturgical colors --
were the first in Charleston. In 1872, he had the church
remodeled. in its present architectural lines,land introduced
the first permanent vested choir. .The church haé maintained
the tradition of historical liturgical worship which he insti-
tuted.

219 ASHLEY AVE. =-- Store puilt in the 1830s by Henry Buck, German merchant.

It remained in his family until 196C.
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BARRE STREET

Barre Street was the name given, just befeore the Revoluticn, to

a street in Harléston Village, which had originally been Harleston

Street. The renaming honored a member of the British Parliament, who,
like Sir william Pitt, sponsored the cause of the colonists against
unjust taxation by the Crown. ﬁoth the name and the street went out
of existance after the Revolution. Subsequently, the name was revived

and given to this street.

69 BARRE ST. =-- Gov. Thomas Bennett House, built ¢, 1820. When built,

. . — e T
the house's broad piazza looked out on the governor'’s rice
mills and sawmills to the south. The house has valuable in-

teriors in the Regency style, including a free-flying stzir-

case, which rises for one floor without visible means of support.

The only other free-flying staircase in .the city is in the

Nathaniel Russell House on Méeting Street.

ATLANTIC STREET

1 and 3 ATLANTIC ST. -- Small interesting wooden houses, built c. 1830 by

Capt. Benjamin Smith, shipbuilder. No..3 was ‘once home and

studio of artist Elizabeth 0'Neill Verner.

8 ATLANTIC ST. -~ Valuable house, built c. 1805 by Thomas Young.

10 ATLANTIC ST, -~ C. 1762 by William Hinckley. Home of McGillivray

and Snowden about 150 years.
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BEAUFAIN STREET

Beaufain Street was named for Hector Rerenger de Beaufain, a French

duguenot who came to Carolina about 1735 and lived here until his death
e — TS oo,

in 1766. He was a prominent citizen, a member of the St. Andrew's
oY

Society and other celebrated organizations here and abroad. He was
one of the founders of the Charlestown Library Society, a member of His
Majesty's Council, and for 24 vyears was Collector of Customs. He was ¢

buried in St. Philip's Churchyard and a monument given by his fellow

citizens was placed in the church. It was destroyed when the church
burned in 1835. Beaufain Street formed part of the official boundary
until after the Revolution, when the city limits were extended to Boun=-

dary (now Calhoun) Street. Beaufain Street also marked the south boun-

" dary of the Glebe Lands (which see).

20 BEAUFAIN ST. -- Memminger Elementary School. The'first parsonage
of St. Philip's Episcopal Church was built on this site about
1658. The property was conveved to 5t. Michael's Church in
1797.. The parsonage étood until 1858 whén‘a gifls' scﬁool
was built here. The school was later naméd fc; CEEEEESB;ex—C.

Memminger, Confederate Secretary of the Treasury. The City

Board of School Commissioners bought the property in 1899,

The antebellum school building has been replaced by a modern
structure. |

22 BEAUFAIN ST. -~ Memminger Auditorium, built 1938.

63 BEAUFAIN ST. -~ Notable antebellum house, built c. 1849, incorporated
into Robert Mills Manor, a public housing project, in 1938-39.

65 BEAUFAIN ST. ~=- MNotable house built c. 1815, incerporated into Robert

Mills Manor.
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64, 66 ahd 68 BEAUFAIN ST. —- Three single houses built for rental

purpeses by Francis Quinlan McHugh, circa 1832.

71 BEAUFAIN $T. -- Site of Calvary Episcopal Church. Built 1847 for

black communicants by the Episcopal Diocese. It no longer

was used for church services when the building was incorporated

into Robert Mills Mancr. The building was used as Civilian
Defense Headquarters and subsequently razed.

72, 74 and 76 BEAUFAIN ST. -- Three 18th Century structures moved by
M—_‘

the Preservaticn Society of Charleston from the site of the

‘ negzgity parking garage at St. Philip and George Streets in

1975, WNe. 72, formerly 32 St. Philip St., is composed of sev-
eral -.old buildings joined together in the early part of this
century; the oldest portion was built in the 1790s by Norwocod

Conyers. No. 74, formerly at 30 St. Philip.St., was built

in the 1790s by Anthony Gabeau. No. 76 is an 18th Century

kitchen building which stood formerly at 34 sSt. Philip St.

Also moved from the parking garage site were structures now

at 2 and 4 Pitt St. and 30 Rutledge Avenue (which see).
89 BEAUFATN ST. =-- Built between 1815 and 1819 by William G. Steele,
lIumber merchant. The house was later the home of the U.S. -

¥Naval hero, Duncan Nathaniel Ingraham. Ingraham, in 1853,

refused to surrender to Austrian authorities a political refu-
gee named Martin Koszta, who had taken refuge on Ingraham's

" ship. The house has fine Regency style interiors. The carved

marble surround of the piazza entrance is also neteworthy.
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108 BEAUFAIN ST. -- Built 1840-42 b§ John Steinmeyer, prosperous saw-
mill owner. In 1909, it became the Argyle Louden Campbell
Memorial.Home for Presbyterian ladies. Recently, it again
has becoﬁe a.private residence. Note shiplap siding scored

W——-——""".—'—-—\
to simulate stone blocks. The property alseo has a noteworthy

accessory building in the rear.
110 BEAUFAIN ST. -=- Tall singlé house built by Robert Shands Smith,
. mexrchant.

112 BEAUFAIN ST, =~ Doﬁble hoﬁse in Greek Revival style, built between
1837 and 1840 by.Whiteford Smith. From 1B49 to 1879, it was
the home of James W. Gray, master of eguity, and his family.

118 BEAUFAIN ST. -- Quaint cottage built after 1845 by John Henry Stein-
meyer, lumber merchant.

BEDON'S ALLEY

2 BEDCN'S ALLEY == Humphrey Sommers, a subcontractor of st. Michael's

Church, acguired this property in 1757. His will, in 1788,
devised this tenement building to his daughter, Ann Olney

Scommers,

5 BEDON'S ALLEY -- Built c. 1783-1730.

BEE STREET

12 BEE STREET ~- Built c. 1858 by William Reobb, partner in the East
Point Mills. In the early part of this century, the building
became Mercy Maternity Hospital and later became an Episcopal

Church Home.
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BEROAD STREET

BROAD STRﬁET was just that-~the broadest street in the first Charles-
town. A memorandum in John Locke's handwriting, at the end of the
Proprietors' directions for laying out the . town gives.thé followiﬁg
dimensions: "That ye Model of ye Town .., was of streets running strait,
whereof ve largest was B0 foot, ye back street to it 40 foot, ye next
60 foot and ys back street 30, with streets divided the Towne into
squarés, each of whose sidés wa§ 600 foot." (Shaftesbury fapers, 323-24)

Charieston's creeks, marshes and generally brakeﬁ-up surface did
not admit of such large streets, but the old surveyors d4id the best
they could. Fires, floods, etc., having changed building lines, Broad
Street was still véry broad in 1788, when the Phoenix Fire Co. of London,
had a detailed map of the toﬁn made for insurance purposes. This map
shows that Broad Street had tapered--from 61 feeé wide at East Bay to
100 feet between St. Michael's and the Beef Markét, a2 building swept
away in one of the town's numerous fires and replaced by the Bank of
the United States (1801), now the City Hall. [ })§

CE T

Right here it might be well to point out that Charlestown was con-
ceived by its_znglish planners in the classic gridiron pattern, with
streets forming regqular squares, A glance at the maps of most European
cities with their wildly erratic streets will show how unusual this pattern
for a city was.

Broad Street was first called Cooper Street, for Lord Anthony

o-—_"__'-—_ e —iA S———rr—
Ashley Cooper. It was Cooper Street for at least 25 years--perhaps longer--'
- - '

before being changed to Broad Street.

%r\oa,& N Coo@m SJ‘*.
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BANKERS TRUST OF S. C., No. 1 Brocad Street, is housed in a three-
story buillding faced with Connecticut brownstone, built 1853. This

huilding was the work of two Charleston architects, Ederd C. Jones and

"

Francis D. Lee, his former pupil., Jones and Lee planned many Charleston

st —— T T ERNTL

buildings, and Jones worked elsewhere in South Carolina, gaining a reputa-
_ﬁx' tion in his native state but remaining'almost.unknown to the rest of

9' ‘the country. Many of the buildings executed by this firm have gone,

T %

6*’ including the South Carolina Institute Hall, where the Ordinance of Se=~
| oJ’ e : D )
O

> a cession was signed in December 1860. The hall burned in the 1861 fire.
A N ot 4 e
{"\Q"' ()w«%' WALKER, EVANS & COGSWELL COMPANY, No. 3 Broad Street. This build-

ing was also designed by Jones & Lee. This veteran firm of printers
Patiadsiti e

and stationers began in in the same locaticn it occcupies today,

when Joseph Walker, stationer and boock-binder, opened his firm. Iﬁ
1861, the company was appointed printers to the anfederate Government
and preduced, in this building, stamps, bank notes, bonds, certificates
of stock, executive documents, medical publications and military manuals.
fConsidering that the Confederacy lasted four years, its publication
- history is phenomenai. The war had shut out quthern publications and
left a clear field to Scuthern competitors. Go through any old Charleston
library today, and at least a third of the boost—maybe more-~will bear
seme variation of the Walker, Evans & Cogswell imprint.)} 'Tﬁe firm has
,ifﬁgl kept its lithographic stones with which Confederate money was printed,
\S} j//// and if the Scuth ever Rises Again, they can go right back into production.
In 1863, the company moved to Columbia, where stock and machinery were
destroyed in the fire of 1865. The wrecked firm was reorganized by three
former Confederate cfficers: CDL..JDSEPh Walker, Gen. C. I. Walker and

.Cecl. B. F. Evans, together with Mr. Harvey Cogswell.
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The company publishes.books regularly for Charleston writers. Perhaps its
all-tiﬁe best seller is the cook-book compiled by the. Junior League,
CHARLESTON.RECEIPTS. First published in 1950, it's now (1975) in its
20th ediﬁion and has sold more than 330,000 copies.

Note restoration of exteriors on huilding on both sides of the street
from East Bay to Meeting. Recently, small circular wooden plaques
giving the names of builders and dates of construction have been added to
many structures. A& close look at the ornate scrolls, etc., at the very
tops of the buildings often show the builders' names and dates. Note
also the careful color coordination of the buildinés' fronts. Some
of the more orxnate facades may be cast iron, a building practice once
commeon and now passing into the realm of the antigue.. Note also bal-

conies and ironwork on buildings throughout the street.

SOUTH CAROLINA NMATIONATL BA 16 Broad Street. uilt in 1817

for the Charleston branch of the Second Bank of the United States.

Note the eagle in the gabie. The building was acguired in 1835 and oce-
cupied continuously as a bank since.thgt date by the Bank of Charleston,
now the South Carclina National Bank. (Its directors' room, not open
usually to visitors, has recently been restored--a handsome and ornate

chamber with heavy furniture, much marble, etc.) This bank was the

only one in the State to resume business after the Confederate War

Street. This modern building stands upon one of the most historic s

in Chazleston, for it occupies the site of a tavern (called variously
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SHEPHEARD'S, SWALLOW'S, CITY and THE CORNER) as owners died off and the
place changed hands. Here some of our most important history was made,
from the 1730's into.the 1780's.

Charles Town had many taverns that must have resembled their English
counterparts closely. They were not just places where one went only
for a drink, or where travellars could get a room, meals, stabling
for their horses and so on, though most taverns did offer these facili-
ties. Charles Town's taverns seem primarily to have Eeen the gentlemens'’
home away from home where they could gather to smoke the long-stemmed,
white clay "Church-Warden" pipes, whose fragments have been found in
many places in the city (one never smcked in the presence of one's
women folks); gather for a friendly meal or a discussion of current
political and civic problems; form another society; read the latest
newspapers from the North and from abroad, kept'on racks for the con-.

venience of the customers, and so on.

Those who have seen one of London's last old taverns to escape

"Progress"” and the Blitz--the Cheshire Cheege, off Fleet Street, heart

of London's publishing district-~can easily visualize Charles Town's .
early taverns. They were piain; comfortable, mostly low ceilinged, with
long tables, benches, an cccasional chair, and maybe, as at the Cheshire
Cheese, booths whe;e small groups could sit. -

._Most taverns. also had a "Long Room” or a "Great Reoom," which might
bg an axteﬁsion of the downstairs, or might be a single big room upstairs,
Our modern egquivalent would be the private rooms offered by hotels and
restaurants, where conventions and civic groups meeﬁ. Here Qere held

the Assemblies~-dances with ranks of young ladies and formidable Chap=-

ercones sitting at the sides, where young gentlemen came to beg the favor
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of a dance. The dancers took up the remaining'space and the orchestra
generally sat at one.end of the room. Thése Long Rooms and Great Rooms
were also meeting places for lodges and societies, and for our first
dramatic performances.

Early pages of the South-Carolina Gazette {founded 1732) carry many

announcements of such meetings and assemblies held in a favorite tavern.

And one of Charles Town's most frequented taverns was Shepheard’s, at
e~

the corner of Church and Broad Streets. C, c)‘ 5

p———

As the bronze marker on the present bank building attests, this
site was a very early center of American Masonry. On Qctocber 30, 1736,

the Gazette carried the following notice:

"Last Night a Lodge of the Antient and Honourable Scciety 5
of Pree and Accepted Masons was held fqr the flrst time at Mr.
Charleg Shepheard's in Broad Street.”

Here, then, was organized Solomon's Lodge No. 1., Free and Accepted

Masons. In 1801, the Supreme Council, 33rd Degree, Ancient and Accepted

Scottish Rite of Free Masonry was organized in this same tavern--the first

Scottish Rite lodge in America. (The part played by South Carclina mem-

bers of the Masonic order in the kévolutiOn has been largley neglacted,
but many.of Charles Town's.Sons of Liberty were mémbers, and at leaét one
spectacular “flbat" with lifesiéed figqures, typifying rebellion against
the tax on tea was built in "Lodge_hlley,“ very near this preéent bahk
structure, by members of the Sbns of Liberty, who.were Masons.)

Here, too,.began the first reco:ded theatrical season in Charles
Town and oné of the earliest in this country. The Gazette had been

founded in 1732. We know that an English actor,'Tony Aston, arrived

in Charles Town in 1703 and, writing his own show, "produced what was
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various spots in Charleston. On pg. 110 of Mr. Cohen's book, we find

probably the first professional dramatic performance written and acted

in the American celonies”--according to Hennig Cohen's fine book, The

South-Carolina Gazette, 1732-1775. But on this spot, now occupied by

*

a bank, began Charles Town's first real theatrical season.
On January 11, 1735, the Gazette carried an announcement that: f;///
"On Friday the.24th Inst., in the Courtroom will be attempted ‘/7 3
a TRAGEDY, W, "
The author was Thomas Otway (1652-1685). The Qrphan had been
written in 1680, the year the settlers at Albemarle Point had moved to
the peninsula.

The scene of this mysterious "Courtroom" has been pointed cut in

that this Courtroom was simply Charles Shepheard's Long Room, which had

been rented out for several years before 1738 to the provincial govern-

ment for meetings of the court, since the Province possessed no suitable

building and there were disagreements between governor and council about §'
where one should be built. Space, therefore, was rented from "Charles
Shepheard, Vintner." The use of judicial chambers for publib entef-
tainment-ﬁas not unusual, Mr. Cohen ekplains. A dancing master, Henry
Holt, had given a ball in the courtroom scarcely a month before The
Orphan was presented there.

When Charles Shepheard died, his widow, Anne, tock over the tavern

and ran it, Meanwhile, Shepheard's had also been Charles Town's Post

office. 1In 1743, "Charles shepheard, inn-keeper" received and distri-

buted mail arriving on ships and through the country.

T AT

In the 1770's, Shepheard's had become Swallow's Tavern, and the

scene of a "Charleston First." The Gazette of December 13, 1773 carried
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the following notice:

"Last Thursday there was a General Meeting of the Gentlemen
in Trade of this Town, at Mrs. Swallow's, when it was proposed,
that a Chamber of Commerce should be formed, John Savage, Esg;
was chosen Chairman, and a Committee of Twenty-One appointed.”

¢2E9 This was the first municipal Chamber of Commerce in America. ;i '-7f7;3

Thus, on one spot, at the corner of Broad and Church Streets, we

1. The site of the organization of one of this country's earliest Qﬂ? é@

!

Masonic lodges.

2. The location of the earliest Scottish Rite lodge in this country.f

-Town and one of the earliest in America.

4. The site of one of Charles Town's first post officesgrg T?ag >

5. The place where Rmerica's first municipal Chamber of Commerce g
was organized, '

u/ 3. The scene of the first recorded theatrical season in Charles 531§

6. AS, '.'Tl‘ie Corner Tavern,” this place was a hotbed. of Revolutionary 5??
activity, as well. . :
CITIZENS & SOUTHERN NATIONAL BANK, Trust Department, No. 50 Broad
Street. This building was erecte@ about l79f for the Bank of South
L/// Ccarolina. In 1835 it was purchased by the Cbarleston Library Society
which occupied it until 1914. For many years thereafter it was thg head-
quarters of the Charlestqn Chamber of Commerce. |
In 1802, as a bank, it was the object of the daring GROUND MOLE PLOT.
A would-be safe-cracker, Withers, entered the drain under the street_
near the building and for three months tunnelled hisg way towards its
vaults, living underground all the time and beiﬁg supplied with food

and water by an accomplice--whose carelessness ultimately betrayed the

"Mole." The vault was never entered.
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In 1916, the Charleston Library Society sold it to the Chamber of
Commerce. In 1266, this organization sold it to the Citizens & Scuthern
Naticnal Bank, and 1t is ﬁsed by the Trust Department and for offices
for bank officials. Beautifully restored, it.is believed to be the

oldest building in the United States built for banking and currently ‘used

rar—

for that purpose. Its 30-inch~thick brick walls have resisted fires,

it

LR IS

hurricanes, bombardments and the 1886 earthquake,

In the basement is the Hunley Museum, maintained by the Charleston
Museum. Here is a full-scale model of the Confederate Submarine,
H. L. Hunley, named for its inventof, which sank the great Federal .

sloop of war, Housatonic on the night of February 17, {1864, and went 5}9

to the bottom with the big blockading ship. The Hunley was the first

submarine to sink a surface vessel, and even though she died in doirg

- it, she had changed the whole course and technigque oﬁ modern naval

warfare.

A section of the hull has been removed, s¢ that spectators can
see the lifesized figqures within, their hands on the crank that turned
the prepeller. Projecting from her bow is the harpoon—liké spar-torpedo
designed to be.rammed against the veésel attacked. It was inﬁented by

the Charleston architectf Francis D. Lee.

The fiqures were molded on‘living models and painted in life-like
colors by Emmett Robinson, director of the Footlight Players in the
Dock Street Theatre. The only difficulty about'maintaining the figures
is the requlér disappearing of wigs on the heads, which are snatched

off by "sight-seers™ and newer found again.
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The Hunley Museum alsc contains naval artifacts and ship models

‘from days of the Confederate War. Cne of the models, an iron-clad,

“is the Palmetto State, known as "The Ladies' Gunboat" because it was built

with funds (330,000} raised or contributed by the women of South Carolina.

CCNFEDERATE HOME, 62 Broad Street. Founded in 1867 for the benefit
off wives, mothers and daughters of Confederate veterans, by two devoted
Confederate Carolinians, Mrs. Mary Amarinthia Snowden and her sister,
Mrs. Isabell S. Snowden, The? mortgaged their own hﬁme to pay the first
vear's rent on the building. Erected about 1804, the Confederate Home
was successively the Carclina Hotel, a re%idence,[a department store,

a home for Confederate dependents, and the Confederate College, in
which some of Charleston's most brilliant men taught the students with-
out receiving or asking for any salary. 'Cne of these was Dr. Cha;les S.
Vedder, foi fifty years pastor of the Huguenot Church.
The rear'sectioﬁ on Chalmers Street was occﬁpied by a U, 8. Court

for fifteen years until 186Q. Here, when the news of Lincoln's electicn

reached Charleston, Federal Judge A. G. McGrath divested himself of his

robes of office and, in a2 brief and bitter address, thanked God that

- this temple of justice has "been closed before its altar has

aﬁa spectators wept. McGrath's speech apd dramatic gesture so discon-
certed the authorities at Washington that President Buchanan declared
himself more disheartened by McG;ath's action than by any other, includ-
ing Major Robert Anderson's.occupation of Fort sSumter.

These rear rooms are now-occupied by the offices and research

library of the Huguenot Society of South Carolina.
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The courtyard of the Confederate Home is shady .and attractive and
overhanging piazzas of the Home are noteworthy since they have no visible
support. Note inscriptions over the Broad Street entrancé: "RUINED BY
THE EARTBQUAKE OF 1886. RESTORED BY THE PECPLE QF THE UNION 13887."

DANIEL RAVENEL HOUSE, No. €8 Broad Street. Single house, built

c. 1800 on foundations of an earlier building destroyed in the fire

of 1796. This large residence overlobking Washington Park has been lived
in by the same family for more than seven generations,
WASHINGTON SQUARE was so named October 19, 1881 in commemoration
of the centennial of the surrender of the British at Yorktown, 1781.
It contains monuments to the ﬁé;hingtcn Light Infanﬁfy: to the Charleston~

born peoet, Henry Timrod (1829-1867)} ; to Gen. P. G. T. Beauregard, com-

mander of Confederate forces at Charleston during the first bombardment

of Fr. Sumter, in 1861; to Elizabeth Jackson, mother of Andrew Jackson,
‘_‘—“‘——ﬁ____*—_——-_‘___-—u -
and the famous battered statue of William Pitt, Earl of Chatham, who

championed the cause of the colonists against England's unjust taxation.
P -

This statue, lacking an arm and with obvious signs that its head

has been broken off and clumsily replaced, is a real Charleston First. \k ‘ﬁi%

The work of Jogeph Wilton, in England, it was erected at the crossing :%?\i

of Broad and Meeting Streets on July 5, 1770-«the first in the country ' &
T e et v -

erected to a public man, Statues had been ordered in several of the colo- \\

———r—

nies, but New York's marble Pitt was ere;ted just two months and oné

day later (September 7, 1750) and her bronze statue of King George III

on August l6th of the same year, while Virginia's statue of Lord.Botetourt,
royal governor (still étanding in the College of William and Mary) didn't

arrive until 1773.
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The Charleston statue of Pitt cost 1,000; a sum voted in May,

1766, by thé Commens House of Assembly in gratitude for Pitt's aid in
S e

repealing the Stamp Act. The statue, like many of the 18th Century,

portrays Pitt as a Roman orator clad in a toga, with one arm (now ﬁissing)
raised dramatieally while the other holds a scroll. The upraised arm
was broken off in 1780 by a shell fired from a British battery on James
Island., The head was broken off when careless workmen-were removing
the statue, in 1794. By then it had become an obstruction to traffic.
It was first stored and later set up in the yard of the Orphan House
(Sears, Roebuck, on Calhoun Street now occupies the site). There, the
Orphan House children described the figure as "George Washington just
getting out of bed."” In 1891, the statue reached its present location.
The granité marker to Mrs. Elizabeth Jackson, mother of Andrew

'Jacksqn, coﬁmemorates a brave wvolunteer nﬁrse during an epidemic iﬁ
Charleston, Mrs. Jackson caught the disease, died and was buried just
beyond the city limits of that périod. The marker stands in the north
walk of the square.

On the east wall of the square isg a ?EEEEE_EE-EEEEQLS—SalHQdQr'

the first Jewish participant in representative government in America
T T — .

and the first Jew to die for his country in America. Salvador was elect-

ed to the first and second Provincial Congresses of South Carolina. ¢&1]7'7Q

e

He was killed and scalped during a British-inspired Chercokee raid on

P

Ninety=-Six District, during which scores of settlers were killed. He

died Auqust 1, 1776, aged 29. The plague to his memory was unveiled
T— i

with impressive ceremonies on November 20, 1950. ;
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THE CORNERS OF FOUR LAWS is the name applied by %igigy, author of

e l

-

"Believe It Qr Not," to the four corners of Broad and Meeting Streets.

These four corners were set apart in the Grand Model of Charles Town

in 1672 for a “church, town house and other public structures," and
e e st .

e ——

ig have always been cccupied by "public structures." Church, City, State

- [ g™ e

and Federal Laws are represented by the buildings on these sites.
—————
CITY HALL, North East corner Broad and Meeting Streets. Building

erected 18Q1l for the Charleston Branch of the First Bank of the United
o -

L

States. Stands on site set apart as a Market Place in 1672, and used

e, R

for that pﬁrpose until 1796, when the "Beef Market," as it was then called,

was destroyed by fire. Purchased by the city in 1818 from the United
States Govermment which swapped it for the 0ld Exchange Building at the

foot of Broad Street. It has been occupied as the City Hall ever since.

En ¢>\ The famous'Trumbuli portrait of George Washington hangs in the_é;t

&557 Gallery, which also is Council Chamber. It contains many other fine
e \’-‘—'_’"“"""““—‘-—_— . . )
portraits and art and historic treasures. Note marker on building.

COURT HOUSE was built 1788-1800 on site of 0ld STATE HOUSE, which
' — et R

was destroyed by fire in 1788. The north extensicn was added in 1941.

Note marker on bulldlng. :

HEBREW ORPHANAGE BUILDING 88 'Broad Street. rected in post-

Revolutlonary perzod, was ' occupledfby the0ffice of Discount and.: Dep051t,

which was the name given tc the Charleston Branch of the First Bank of

the Ynited States, prior to 1800. . Thirty-five years later the building
was acguired Ly the Hebrew Orphan Society and served as the Society's

Hall, and later, as the Hebrew Orphanage. WNow an office building. -

Note marker.
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92 BROAD STREET. Home of Dr. David Ramsay, historian and physician.

Built 1740.

DR. JOHMN LINING HOUSE, Northwest corner King and Broad. This house

bears the name of a Scottish-born physician, John Lining (1708-17€0),

because it was believed for many years that he conducted the first
syiEEEEEEf_&ggEQg;;gQgg;gégépns with scientific instruments here.

More recent research, however, proves that Dr. Lining actually conducted
his scientific’ studies, beginning in 1737, in a house on the eastern

end of Broad Street, facing State Street. This house, built either

by Dr. Lining for one day only, in 1754. Dr. Lining also conducted on

himself experiments in human metabolism (1740) believed to have been

——

the earliest such studies conducted in this country. He corresponded
_ SRR huteec

with Benjamin Franklin on the subject of electricity and carried out
l-u—n--—“"#-‘-'——“.‘—_--._ .

Pranklin's £ i and key experiment in a local thunderstorm.

His report of this was published in the Gentleman's Magazine, of Londen,
in September, 1753 and gave rise to a large correspondence from Euro-

pean experimenters. Dr. Lining also wrote one of the earliest descrip-
i e AT T

tions of yellow fever. Dr. Andrew Turnbull, a Tory,'established in the

e e i

building in 1780 an apothecary shop, the first of a series of such shops

which continued in operation to 1960. The interior of the last one
is in the Charleston Museum. The building was cccupied in 1782 by the
South Carolina Gazette, published by Mrs. Ann Timothy. Building was
reétored in.1960 by the Preservation'Society of Charleston and is now
é private residence.

110 BROAD STREET, built before 1728 by William Harvey. Ralph

izard, planter, purchased it in 17536. It remained in his family until

1715 or c. 1730, belonged to Dr. Lining's wife's family and was owned
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1857 when it was purchased by Judge Mitchell Xing, in whose family it
remains.

COL., THOMAS PINCKMEY, JR. HOUSE., 114 Broad Street. Begun in
1790 by Ralph Izard, completed c. 1829 by Col. Pinckney. One of Gen.

Beauraegard's Headguarters. Now residence of the Bishop of the Roman
s

Catholic Diocese of charleston.

JOHN RUTLEDGE HQUSE, 116 Broad. Pre~Revolutionary house zaid to

—————

have been built by John Rutledge {1739-1800), "Dictator" of South Car-
it Ao e dieheiad

olina in the Revolution, governor, asscciate justice and chief justice

of the U. S, Supreme Court, chief justice of the South Carolina Supreme

—

-\f“fCourt. Later home of Gen. John McPherson, Revolutionary Patriot and famous
"__"‘“—"‘—'-.

horse breeder. Remodeled in 1853 by'Thqmas Norman Gadsden, real estate

broker and slave trader. BArchitect for the remodeling was T. K. Hammarskoild,
—_'”“——‘_-—‘_-__‘\\
a Swede. Ironwork by Christopher Werner. In early .part of this century,

home of Mayor R. Goodwyn Rhett, who entertained President William H.

-

Taft here, Later home of Gaud School, now law offices.
T ’
-EDWARD RUTLEDGE HOUSE, 117 Broad St. Built c. 1760 for James

———————

Laurens by John Fullerton, architect-builder. Later home of Edward
Rutledge, signer of Declaration of Independence. Remodeled c. 1900 by

Capt. F. W. Wagener, wealthy grocer, horse breeder and president of
the S. C. Interstate and West Indian Exposition, For a time a convent,
now again a private residence.

118 BROAD STREET. Site of Hall of St. Andrew's Society, founded

1729 and the oldest one of its name in the world. 1In the Hall, erected’

—— ———
in 1815, the Ordinance of Secession was adopted December 20, 1860. It
—_— <

was actually signed a day later at the S.C. Institute Hall on Meeting

Street (Which ses). The Hall was destroyed in the great fire of 1861,
/-—_‘

See marker on fence with a depiction of the Hall. The flag~-stone
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pavement laid in front of the entrance to the hall is still there.
_ﬁ
CATHEDRAL CF ST. JOHN THE BAPTIST. Broad Street at Legare. This
w
property was once the VAUXHALL GARDENS (a post-Revoluticnary "Circus”
or pleasure ground for entertainments and plays.) It was bought by

Bishop John England for the Roman Catholic Church in 1821. First

Cathedral on this site, named St. Finbar's and St. John's, was Qsifﬁgx%d

by the great fire of 186l1. Present structure complete%:ln 1907.>

BROAD AND-NEW STREETS. The brick house between Broad and New
Streets, near the corner, occupies the site of the City, or Charleston
JE;::;;T-;hich stood on what cnce was known as SAVAGE'S GREEN. The Green
lay between two creeks, paralleling what are now New and Savage Streets.

e A

The high ground was used for a drilling ground by the militia, and by

boys for a playground. The 1owar_gai-:f the creeks were marshy at low
water, but were favorite swimming places at high tide. 1792 the
Charleston Theatré, designed by James Hoban, wa; built there. In 1833,
the Faculty and Trustees of the South Carolina ﬁedical College had a
disagreement and most of the Faculty left the Céliege on Queen Street,
purchased the Theatre building, and held classes there. Later on the
two groups patched up their differences and returned to the College on
Queen-Street. The Theatre was another one of Fhe many buildings de-
st¥ove e gre T 1861. Both SAVAGE'S GREEN and SAVAGE
STREET wére named after the owner of the Green-Thomas Savage.

180 BROAD STREET. Buil%t circa 1850. Used for prison for Federal
Qfficers during the Confederate War.

THE WEST END CF BROAD STREET was the south boundary of the arsa

known as THE ASHLEY RIVER EMBANKMENT AND COLONIAL COMMCNS. Rutledge
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Avenue was the East boundary, Beaufain Streét, the North boundary, and

'Ashley Riﬁer, the Western one. The Lake,'officially named COLONIAL

LAKE, but almost univérsally called The Pond, was developed after the
Revolution. The park area around it, and the playground west of Ashley
Avenue also are included in fhe "COLONiAL.COMMONS," from which thé
Lake gets its name. The area was deedeﬁ in pérpetuity to the people
of Charlestown_ten years before the Revolution.
BULL STREET

Bull Street was named for William Bull, a native South Carclinian

who was the last te fill the Royally-appointed office of lieutenaﬁﬁ_ﬁ

governcr of the Province,

2-8,‘12, 18 and 24 BULL ST. {See COLLEGE CF CHARLESTON).

.43 BULL ST. ~- Built between 1849 -and 1852 by John C. Simons, prosperous

' King Stréet merchént; Trom 1948 td 1951, home.qf Judge Joseph
Frombefg, outspoken proponent of.judicial %nd.ﬁrison reform,
Ironwork and fountain are iﬁtéresting features,

48 BULL ST, == Valuabie plantation style hduse, of l8th Century orrearly
19th Century construction. | | | |

49 BULL ST; -=- Holy Trinity Reformed Episcopéi Chuzrch. Iﬁ 1874, a group
Of bia¢k-mémbersyleft the ProtestantuEpiscopé;_Church and'yefe_
admitted into the Reforﬁed Eﬁiscopal.éﬁﬁféh.. in 1873, they organized
undexr the pfesent néﬁe, and in.1876.acquired the pr;sent site.
In 1880, the congregaﬁiqn hired Weiling and Gleason, Contractors,
to build the present structure. It.was éémpleted in th;ee weeks
at a cost of Sl,OOO.; The cornerstone was laid by the Rt. Rev.

Peter Fayssoux Stevens,xfirst bishop of the Reformed Episcopal
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was organlzed in 1897, They built a church on this site in 1904.
Pha present sanctuary was built in 1960. The congregation is one
@f bBha lavgest of its denomination in South Carolina.

203 CALHOUN AT, -- Bishop England High School. Named for the Rt. Rev.

967 SALHOUH 97, e= Bullt c. 1817 by Richard Brenan, merchant, this tall

ft recently has been converted into an office building.
ﬁ@ﬁﬂ AT, == Built c. 1830 by Bethel Methodist Church. One
-ﬂlﬁﬁ %E &hLE double residence was the home of the minister, the

QE&@E ﬁ%ﬁﬁ WQQ thé home of the presiding elder. The piazzas were

addad \stiE,

414 @i&ﬁ@ﬂﬁ:@@ ;@ﬁi&ﬁ—&ftﬁr 1834 by Frederick Shaffer, prosperous

heousa carpan 'Ehig'hxick residence on a high basement is remi-

nlawant @ﬁ h@n_é§:$ﬁ:Beaufort.

220 CALHOUN 4T, == @lﬁ ﬁgﬁhal M&thodlst Church. This is the oldest

atruaturé of M@&h@éiam'xn tha Lowcountry and possibly in South

Yo,

Caroline. e iﬂ Eh@,ﬁhig@fa;dest church building in the city.

i

Originally, 1% a@mmd ha'équthwest corner of Pitt and Calhoun

streets. 1In 1852 Ehé ﬂrama building was moved to the western

part of the church grmunda and usad there for class meetings of

Bethel's black members, aﬂt@r tha present brick sanctuary of Bethel
Methodist Church was built. In 1880, the building was giwven to

the black members and rolled across Calhoun Street to its present
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Church in South Carolina.

'66 BULL ST. -—-Bﬁilt.before.1819 Ly John Cart, lumberman and measurer of
wood and coal. Adam style interiors.

76 BULL ST. -- Built c¢. 1813 by George Mathewes. Home from 1821 to
1843 of Hugh Swinton Legare (1797-1843), member of the South
‘Carolina legislature, publisher of the Southern Review, state -
Attorney General, diplomat, Congréssman, u.s. Attofﬁey General
and Secretary of State.

86 BULL ST. ---Built c. 1815, by Isaac Bennett, of the famous sawmilling
ané building family. Gable roof unusual for period. Note Adam
style cornice.with swags. |

99 BULL ST.  -- Notable antebeilum house, home of Capt. Warrington Dawson,
British~born editor of the News and Courier. Capt. Dawso# was
honored by the Pope for his editorials against dueling.

100 BULL ST. -- Western portion of this hybrid house was built c. 1820

by Honore Monpoey, factor and planter. The'larger”easterﬁ”portion o

was added about 1890.

101-107 BULL ST. =-- Row houses in Italianate style of architecture, built

c. 1854 by sarah Smith., During the Confederate War;.William c.

Bee and Co. moved its stores to the row, which was beyond the range
of the federal guns. Shoppers went to the "Bee Block" or the "Bee
Store," as the;row was called, to buy merchandise brought into
port by Confederate blockade runmners.

ﬁLL ST. == Built before 1802 by Thomas Bennett, builder, architect

d lumberman. Notable Adam style structure.




106

125 BULL ST. -- Built 1867-68 as Avery Normal Institute, first free
! | — ) [ ——

'secondary school for blacks. Graduates included T.M. Stewart,

-

Liberian Supreme Court judge, and Dr. R.S5. Wilkinscon, president
of sSouth Carolina State College. The school was merged with

Burke High Schoocl in 1354. 1In 1955, the building became Palmer

S ——y

Business School which later became Palmer College.
W T e, .

128 BULL ST. -- Built before 1814 by Joseph Bennett. Also known as the

Thomas Grangg Simons House. Notable Adam style house.

129 BULL ST. ~-— Back portion of this house built before 1822 for Mrs.
Rebacca Drayton., Remodeled and enlarged in 1846 by Lewis Rebb,
building contractor.

CALHOUN‘STREET
Calhoun Street is named for John C. Calhoun, the "Great Nullifier."

Originally the eastern portion of the street was BOEEEifEHEEEEEEL as

after the Revolution it marked the northern extent of the city. The

& I

portion west of XKing Street was called'Manigault Street, for Peter Man-
i

——

igault, speaker of the Commons House of Assembly of South Carolina.

g app—ay,

The entire length of the street received Calhoun's name after his

death in

77 CALHOUN ST. =-- Charleston Municipal Auditorium. Built by the City of

T g Ty

Charleston, tﬁe auditorium was dedicated incg§§;> The building
occupies a l2~acre sité between Alexander and. Anson Streets and,

as a result of this construction, George Street was extended east-
ward from Anson to connect with East Bay at a point where Minority
Street formerly intersected East Bay Street. The auditorium was
designed by Lucas and Stubbs Architects, and constructed by McDivett
and Street of Charlotte, N. C., at a cost of $5,500,000, including

land and buildings. The main part of the auditorium seats more
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than 2,700 persons and the Exhibition Hall has 14,000 square feet
and can accommodate 1,500 persons in banquet style. The building
was designéd so that separate events can he carriea on simultan*.
eously in the auditorium and hall.

85 CALHOUN ST. -- Arch Building, So~called from the wide arch through
its middle,_this building was saved during the clearing of.the
auditorium site and regtored by Historic Charleston Foundation.

It houses the Tourist Information Center of the Charleston Trident

Chamber. of Commerce.

110 CALHOUN ST. -- Emanuel African Methodist Episcopal Church.  The

original congregation of this church, consisting of free blacks
M .

\Jfff”'wﬂ and slaves, was organized in 179l as the Free African Society,

B — — P

later known as Bethel Circuit, Morris Brown led the movament in

e

Charleston to organize black Mathodlsts into an independent crgani-
zation. In 1817-18 Emanuel Church had a membership of about 1,000
——
and was part of the Bethel Circuit. A lot was acquired and a large
but simple house of worship was built. In'iéﬁé;”after the Demmark
Vesey plot was disceovered, thﬂ,church‘was investigated because it
was said that Vesey had bean a membexr, ﬁorris Brown was found
innccent of any connection of the plot, but due to bad feeling
éngendered by the plot, he was prassured into leaving for Phila-
delphia. The church was closed, The church was reorganized in
1865. The present structura was builtuif_iggi*- Emanuel is one

s
of the largest congregations of lts denomination in the South.

123 CALHOUN ST. -- Site of Zlon Preabyterian Church. Designed by

]

e
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Charleston architect Edward C. Jones and built by contractor David
e A T it

Lopez in 1B53, it was the city's largest brick church. Jones
— . . ]

p—

became an elder in the church, which was largely devoted to mission
work among black people and had a predominantly black congregation.
The building was replaced sevéral years ago by a motel parking lot.

125 CALHOUN ST. (In front of Holiday Inn) -- Temperance Fountain, memo-

- rializing the fight against the evils of drink. An official state

heliday, October 25, honeors Frances Willard, the 19th Century

e ri———

tempergnce‘leader. The Francis Willard Society, a tongue-in-cheek
local organization, meets annually on Francis Willard Day, for an
irreverent alcoholic toast to its namesake.

PASS MARTION SQUARE (Which See).

160 CALHOUN ST, =-- Site of Charleston Orphan House, oldest municipal

— ———r o sar T

orphan house in the United States. Founded in-1790, the Orphan

House was built on this gite in 1792-54, the building having been

——

designed by Thomas Bennett, builder-architect. The need for the
s e A N b,

institution had arisen from a series of yellow fever épidemics
which left many children parentless., The Orphan House was enlarged
and remodeled in 1853~5S5 in the Italianate style by the architects,
Edward C., Jones and Francis D. Lee. The building was demolished
—E———— —————

for the érection of the Sears store, which cpened in 1554. A

new orphanage, consisting of medern cottages, was built at Oazk
Grove, north of the city. The Charleston Orphan House numbered

among its graduates many who attained state and national promi-

nence,

PASS COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON (Which See).

172 CALHOUN ST. -~ First Christian Church (Disciples). The Congregation
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was organized in 1897. They built a church on this site in 1904.
The present sanctuary was built in 1960. The congregation is one
of the_lafgest of its dencmination in South Carolina._

+

203 CALHOUN ST. -- Bishop England High Schocl. Named for the Rt. Rev.

John England, first bishop of the Roman Catholic Diocese of Charles-

———

——

ton. The school was establlshed in 1814 and was housed in a bulldlng
r—
known as the Pro-Cathedral,.on Queen Street, and later moved to this
51te.
207 CALHOUN_S&. -— Built c¢. 1817 by Richard Brenan, merchant, this tall
single house became the parsonage of Bethel Methodist Church in
lwﬂwf 1881, It recently has been converted intc an office building.
210-210.C3LHOUN.ST. - Built c. 1830 bg Bethel Methodist Church. One
“ side of this double residence was the home of the minister, the
k////A | other side wes the home of the presiding eldef. The piazzas were
| added later. | ) |
214 CALHOUNVST. =="Built after 1834 by Prederick Shaffer, prosperous
L////A | house carpenter, this brick residence on a2 high basement is remi-
niscent of.houses in Beaufort.

220 CALHOUN ST. -- Old Bethel Methodist Church. This is the oldest

structure of Methodism in the Lowcountry and possibly in South

bt i e :

Carclina. It is the third oldest church building in the city.
“ o . — T T e

Originally, it stocd on the southwest corner of Pitt and Calhcun

streets. In 1852 the frame building was moted to the western

part of.the.church grounds and used there for class ﬁeetings of
Bethel’s black members, after the.present brick sanctuary of Bethel
Methodist Church.was built, 1In i880, the building was given to-

the black memhers and rolled across Calhoun Sireet to its present




location. The congregation today includes descendants of the 1880

congregation., & portico has been added to the exterior. The
interior is substantially the same as when the structure was dedi-
cated i The same pulpit is in use from which the great
Méthodist bishop, Francis Asbury, preached in in 1798, |

261 CALHOUN ST. =- Franke Home. This Luthergn home for the aged was
located on this site in 1908. It first occuéied the Adger House,
built in 1851. The old house has been replaced by the L-shaped
brick building. |

268 CALHOUN ST. ~- Large frame house on high basement was built c. 1838
by Edward Sebring, a native of New York who made a fortune in
Charleston. He razed an earlier house to build this mansion An
the shores of Bennett's Mill Pond, which lay torthe south, The
house was pillaged by federal troops in 1865. In 1882, Sebring's
widow sold the property to Charles Poﬁs Almar, whose descendants
have owned and lived in it for five generations; Tradition says
a quantity of wine has heen sealed up in a secret place in the house
for more than a century.

274 CALHOUN ST, -- Margarét Cannon House, built c.~1802 by Daniel Caﬁﬁon,
lumberman and builder, for his daughter. From 1838 to 1855-it was
the home of William Gregg, silversmith and pibneer ménufaéturer.

The kitchen building in rear ié also noteworthy.

286 CALHQUM ST. -- Jonathan Lucas House, built c. 1809. Lucas, the first
owner,.built the first steam-powered rice mills in South Carolina.
Near the turn of the century, the house was converted into the
Riverside Infirmary. Later it became the Xinloch Home for Nurses

of Roper Hospital.

<
|
|
|
,
i
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316 CALHQUN ST. -- Roper Hospital. The original Roper Hospital was built
in 1852 on Queen Street, adjacent to the original Medical College
building. It was built with funds from a bequest for that purpose
left by Col. Thomas Roper. A new hospital, now demolished, was
built iﬁ 1904 at the northwest corner of Barre and Calhoun streets.
The present building was built in 1946 as the New Roper Hospital.
The facility has been expanded several times. With Medical Univer-
sity Hospital, this hospital has been the nucleus of Charleston's
growing medical complex.

326 CALHOUN ST. -- The western portion of this building was constructed
in 1953 as the Pinehavén,Tuberculosis Hospital, a facility formerly
located on the present site of Pinehaven Shopping Center in North
Charleston. The western part of the buildinglwas designeq by Simons

'_and Lapham, architects. In 1963, the facility was expanded into
a general hospital for Charlesécn County, at which time tﬁe east

- wing, designed by Augustus Constantine, afchitect, was built.
This wing houses the Charleston County Emergency Room. Another
expansion of the building is in progress (1975). The hospital is
aléo'a teaching facility affiliated with Medical University of
South Carclina.

325 CALHOUN ST. -—- Charles Webb Easter Seal Rehabilitation Center,

The first of its kind in the state, this facility opened in 1963.
‘It is named for Charles Webb, who gave 34 years of ser?ice to the
crippled children of Charleston County and the State. He was a
former director of the Charleston County Chapter, S.C. Society

for Crippled Children and Adults. Mr. Webb died in 1962. The
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center is operated by the Crippled Children's Society, with Easter
Seal donations énd other local funding. The society also maintains
an Orthopedic School.

334 CALHOUN ST. <= Charleston County Health Department Health Center.
This facility is named for Dr. Leon Banov, the county's first
.héalth officer, who introduced pasteurization and other health
reforms into the area. The building to the west of the Banov
Building housss the Mental Health Assn., the Speech and Hearing
Clinic and other social services,

CANNCN STREET
Cannon Street, like Cannonsbofough, was named for Daniel Cannon,

pioneer in the lumber industry.

-3 CANNON ST. -- Fireustation,_built;circa iBBB.MTThe“alarm_bell tower
._is of the same data. |
135, CANNON ST. =— Site of Islington Mancr, a post—Revolutioﬁary dwelling
house, put up circa 1800, It was converted to hospital use in 1897
.and until 1954 was a training school for black nurses. The build-
ing has been demolished. The facility was replaced by the Mcciennan—
Banks Memorial Hospital and Training School for Nurses, at 25
‘Courtenay Drive.

134 CANNON ST. =-- Zion-olivet United Presbyterian Church. 2ion Presby-
te;ian'Church began as a mission of the Second Presbyterian Church
in 1847, led by The Rev. John B. Adger, who had served ll.years
as a missionary in Asia Mincr. Members first met in Second Pres-

byterian's lecture room on Scociety Street near Meeting. 1In 1850, a
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building was constructed at 95 Ansen St. (now S5t. John's Reformed
Episcopal Church). By 1858, attendance had grown so that a large
building was erected on Calhoun Street east of Meeting, with the

name Zion Presbyterian Church. Olivet Presbyterian Church began

as a mission in a chapel on George Street and was organized as

a separate congregatiqn in 1879. 3Zion and Olivet merged in 1959

and in 1564 built the present church.

CHAILMERS STREET

Chalmers, earlier called Chalmers Alley and alsc known as Mulatto

Alley, was named for Dr. Lionel Chalmers, who owned and lived on prbperty
— _

L.

on the street. Dr. Chalmers was one of Charleston's notable physicians

and was associated with Dr. John Lining, who was the first persbn in

—

America to take weather cbhservations with instruments. The Alley at first

— 3

was one bleck long, between State and Church streets.,  From Church to

Meeting, the street was named Beresford Alley, after Richard Beresford,

e

a wealthy planter and philantropist who lived on the Wando River. In

1715, Beresford left his large estate for founding a free-school in the

parish in which he lived. Since then, this fund has been in continucus

e —

operation for é&ﬁcational purposes, and yields a small income thch is
used to help needy students. 'Forty vears after the Revolution, the two
alleys were widened, paved and merged into orne street under the name,
Chalmers.

6 CHATMERS ST. =-- 0ld Slave Mart Museum. This site was acaguired in

_1853 by Thomas Ryan and his silent partner, James Marsh. They

built the present structure, originally called Ryan's Auction

Mart., Here, everything from slaves to steamboats was auctioned.

e ene——p—
Ryan was one of more than 30 auctioneers in Charleston at that
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fime. They dealt in slaves, horses, carriages, livestock, cargoes
of goods, lands, furniture and any other commedity that might be
offered for sale. Auctigﬂgers held public and private éales at
their places of business on the wharves, con B;oad Street, Chalmers,
State, Vendue Range, East Bay. . Ryan, unlike most of his féllow
auétioneers, had a spectacular sign on his bﬁilding. S5laves were
sold in public from early times, and frgp Colonial days until the
middle of the 1%th Century they were scld in front of or just north
of the Exchange on East Bay. Auctioneers' sales generated so much
”£¥éffic at that location.that in 1856 a city ordinance was adopted
forbidding auction sales in the city streets. Ryan's Auction h
Mart had a large yard behind tﬁe office building, convenient for
han&ling 1#£ge gangs of slaves. After the 1856 ordinance became
affective, other bﬁékers&madé use of Ryaﬁ's plaéé. 'Néwspaper'ad_
A "
-vertisemgnts of the time referred Eo the place as "the Mart," "the

Auction Mart" and "Ryan's Slave Marts." However, Charleston never

ﬁigkégma:ke:ﬁgggoted exclusively to the sale of slaves. 1In 1938

this property was purchased by Miriam B, Wilson, who develeoped it
-as a museum of African and Afro-pmerican arts, crafts and histofy‘
The museum is opérated by the Miriam B. Wilson Foundation. Note:
the date on the building is wrong; the building was not standing

before 1853. The building is a notakle example of the Gethic
—_—
Revival style of architecture.

8 CHALMERS ST. -- German Volunteer Fire Co. Hall. This notable Gothic
%

—

Revival style structure was built in 1851. The dates on the building
refer to the founding and incorperation of the firefighting companv,
not to the construction of the building.
/“'—M




115

17 CHALMERS ST. -- The Pink House. Built circa 1712 by John Breton, this

tiny structure is believed to have been a tavern in Colonial days.

It is constructed partly of Bermuda stone, a coral formation im=-
W L

ported in blocks from Bermuda as building material. Disregard

.

tradition that Bermuda stone was brought to Charlestown as ship

T e Ry

ballast; it is too light to have been used for that purpose. The

W -

building's gambrel roof is unusual in Charleston. The building,

once the studio of artist Alice R. Huger sSmith, is now a lawyer's

———

office.

25 CHALMERS ST. -=- Huguenot Society Headquarters. The scociety, founded

W

in 1885, is open to descendants of French Huguenots who settled

——

it

in South Carolina in the Colonial period. The address is actually

the rear of the Confederate Home on Broad Street (which see).

. United States District Court were located here from 1845 until 1860,

o

when Judge Andrew G. Magrath (pronounced Magraw) deéi;red the

"Temple of Justice" closed.

——

29 CHALMERS ST. =-- German Friendly Society. The society, founded in

e - -
1766, formerly had a hall on Archdale Street (which see), and has

been located here since 1942. Though limited to 175 members, the
scciety dees not restrict membership to persons of German origin.
Portraits of past officers, some of whom were distinguished Patriots

in the Reveolution, line the walls of the hall. The society also

has here a museum of artifacts of its more than 200 years of his-

-tory, The Arion Society, another Germanic fraternal organizaticn,

ey e ————————

also meets here. %The building, after the Confederate War, was

=

the headquarters of the Carolina Art Association.

L




34, 36 and 38 CHALMERS ST. -~ Three dwelling houses built by Benjamin
McInnis, A Sco;tish-born blacksmith, McInnis also pioneered in
'the studf of éefénus. He acquired the site of 34 Chalmers in
l/////f iBSO ana haa.his blacksmifh shop on the first floor. He bought
the sites of 36 and 38 Chalmers in71858. NUmbér“§4 w;s coriginally
a twin of No, 36, but wgs Extensively :ebpilt after the facade
collapsed in the earthquake of 1886.

CHAPEL STREET

Chapel Street was named for a chapel (apparently never built),
for which a loﬁ at the northeast corner of Chapel and Elizabeth streets
was set aside in the.plan éf'Wraggbofough. Later, a chapel was built
on the triangle at the street's western end, in 1858. It was used bﬁ
the congregation of St. Luke's Episcopal Church while their sanctuary
fﬁow Neﬁ Tabernacle Fourth Baptist-Church at.22 Elizabeth St.) was
being buiit. The tradition that the street was pgped.for'this chapel

is untrue, as the street name predates the construction of that building.

4 CHAPEL ST. -- Railroad warehouse in romantlc “Chlnese" style, bUlit

in 1881 by the North Eastern Rail Road. The building is a register-

ed National Historical Engineering Landmark. A twin of the struc-

ture stood just to the east until demolished recently.

28 CHAPEL ST. -- Elias Vanderheorst House, built c. 1832 by a member
of the wealthy Vanderhorst rice pl;nting family. The structu;e
is a valuable example of early Greek Rev}vgl arqhitecture. The
ﬁppef piazzas wéré édded later.

34 CﬁAPEL ST. == Built ¢, 1830 by Dr. Anthony Vanderhorst Tocomer, this

twe story house on a high brick basement combines elements of the

early Greek Revival and Gothic Revival stvles, the details of which
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show the influence, and perhaps the design, of Robert Mills, the

——

nation's first native professicnal architect, The house was the

:sg home of Dr. Toomer's son, Dr. Henry V. Toomer, who was appointed
official physician for The Neck, that part of the peninsula above

‘the city limits. He died tending victims of Charleston's great

yellow fever epidemic of 1858.

36 CHAPEL ST. -- Thig plantation style house was built by Dr. Anthony
Vanderhorst Tocmer about 1809,. when it was one of the first houses
in still~-rural Wraggborough. It has interiors in the Adam style.
Dr. foomer, who was a planter in Christ Church Parish as well as
a physician, built this house as his suburban villa, 'TE;N;;;;Erty
retains interesting outbuildings.

CHARLOTTE STREET

A

EAST END OF CHARLOTTE -- Notable antebellum structures built for the
Gas Works.

v 16 CHARLOTTE ST. -— The large brick house with Greek Revival piazzas,

e

beautiful curving outside steps and fine antebellum interiors,

- was built after 1834 by Robert Martin, successful merchant in

the "wagon-yard" trade. The wagon-yards were located mainly on
upper King_street, where wagon arivers from the interior exchanged
country'producﬁs for store goéds. The eity's first_étatiopary
bathtﬁb, carved from a single Block of granite, is lecated in

the basement.

20 CHARLOTTE ST. —-— Robert Martin also built this fine Greek Revival

mansion, as a waedding gift to his daughter, in 1848, on her mar-

riage to Joseph Daniel Aiken. The design of the house has been
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attributed to James M. Curtis, architect and builder.

29 CHARLOTTE ST. -=- Three story brick single house in late Adam style,

begun by Richard Cunningham, completed in 1828 by John Gordon.

30 CHARLOTTE ST. -- Built in 1882 by William E. Holmes, merchant, as
a rental unit. Holmes lived next door at 32 Charldtte St.

32 CHARLOTTE ST. -- Valuable la;é Adam style house,-builﬁmbetween 120
and 1825 by John Casker, carpenter, for Catherine'Wegman.

33 CHARLOTTE ST. ~- Notahle mansion built by J.T. Hamlin White, Christ
Church Parish.planter, about 1854, During the.Confederate War,
the house was a hospital. After the war, it was héadquarters_of the
notorious Maj. Gen. Daniel (Dan) Edgar Sickles, commander of the
Department of the Carolinas during the federal occupétion of the
South. Dan Sickles was later minister to Spain. The house form-
erly had a hidden pass;ge with a ladder,_from the top floor to the
5asement. | |

36 CHARLOTTE ST. - Built c¢. 1830 for Mrs. Rebecca Cordes, this house
with a.Pélladian window on its east side and Greek Revival piazzas
on the west side, is transitional in styie between the Adam-Regency
and the Greek Revival.

40 CHARLOTTE.ST. -= Notable house built by Jonah M. Venning, lumber
merchant and factor, c. 1831._

43 CHARLOTTE ST. 4f Built c. 1849 by Williard A. Hussey. Tradition
says house is haunted by small girl in mid=-1%th Century costume.

44 CHARLOTTE ST. -- Built <. 1834 by William Henry Houston, carpenter
and contracteor. Notable early Greek Reviv;l architecture. His-
toric Charleston.Foundation bought apd restored the house in 1966.

CHISOLM STREET

Chisolm Street received its name from Chisolm's Mill, a rice and
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lumber mill which is now part of the U.S. Coast Guard Station to the
west of the street. On the east side of the street is a playing field

known as the Horse Lot, part of a filled former mill pond.

-

3 CHISOIM ST. -- Andrew B. Murray Vocational Schoel, Built 1922-23,

and named for the philantropist who financed it, this was Charleston's

first vocatiocnal school. The building, designed by D.B. Hyer,
architect, cost $225,000 to build and equip. It is now used for
offices of the Charleston County School District.

CHURCH STREET.

- Church was one of the regularly laid cut streets of the 1680 settle-

. ment, extending the length of the town between what is now Cumberland

Street con the north and Vanderhorst Creek on the south. Later, Yonge's

Bridge was built across the creek and a street, called Church Street

‘Continued, was cut tec the south.

12 CHURCH ST. -~ Notable Adam style single house, built c. 1810. Orne
story piazza and wpdden fence are interesting features.’

15 CHURCH ST. ==~ During the chfedérate War, this house, then the home
of Dr. William Snowden, was used as a hospital. The Snowden family
silver, buried in the garden when the family evacuated to Columbia
in.1865, was dug up.again in 1922. The top floor of the house
was heavily damaged in the 1886 earthquake and replaced with a
mansard ropf.

19 CHURCH ST. -— Former carriage house,.built c. 1875, for Gecrge W.
Williams House (Calhoun Mansion) on Meeting Street. Now a sepa-

rate resjdence. Valuable architecturally.
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20 CHURCH ST. == Valuable Adam=style house, ¢. 1809, The gardan was

site of Lyttleton's Bastion, a fortification of 1738,

22 AND 24 CHURCH ST, =- C. 1796. Notahle post-Revolutionary row houses.
35 CHURCH ST. -~ Built c. 1770 by Thomas Young. Later home-cf Dx. Joseph
Johnson, author of "Traditions and Reminiscencés of the American
Revolution." Dr. Johnsen wa§ a2 prominent physician, Intendent
(Mayor) of Charleston, president of the Charleston Branch, Second

Bank of the U.S., and a Union Party leader. In 1941, the house
became home of Wilmer.Hoffman, nationally known sculﬁtor. House

has waluable interiors in Georgian style.

37 CHURCH ST. -~ George Mathews House, c. 175Q0. Valuable Georgian

house, Wrought iron balcony characteristic of early Charlestqn.
\J | i?onwork. A ;ater owner, Captain Vanderhorst, is said to have
. safequarded his money by keeping it in a cask on the front stcop,
..wﬁere no potential thief ever thought to lock.

38 CHURCH ST. =~ Notable Regency style house, built ¢, 181S% by Dr.
‘Vincent LeSeigneur, a refugee toc this city from the Santo Domingan
slave revolution. The crenelated north bay was ﬁdded,after 18%4.

39 CHURCH ST. == George Eveleigh House, built c. 1743. Eveleigh made
his fortune trading with Indian trikes of'the.interior, and later

retutned to England., In 1795, the house became home of Dr. Jean

Jude Chancognie, French censul. The house once had a secret stair-

case.

l CHURCH ST. -- Built in 1909 by A.W. Todd, architect. According to

a(aé) Louis Polony, noted botanist; Iﬁ 1807, it was bought Ly Simon
L\
[T od
I 4

tradition, Todd designed the house as a result of a wager challenging
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Note garage

him t¢ put such a substantial house on a narrow lot,

. entrance through chimney.
47 CHURCH ST. == Notahle pre~Revoluticnary house in Georglan style.

55 CHURCH- ST. -~ Notable post-Revolutlonary house.
59 CHURCH ST. =--— Thamas Rose House, C. 1735. Valuable early Georgian
‘interiors with robust and slmple panellng and woodwork of period. t/’f/’

La’r’ft Sald to be haunted by the ghost of Dr. Joseph Ladd Brown, who, in
B 1786, was carrled into the house after belng mortally wounded in |

. a duel over an actress nlcknamed "Perdita."”
860 CﬁURCﬁIST..a—.C. 1758, Vaiuable Georgian sty;e smal;_house_w1th
ﬂmahogany paneled rcom. . | | ) _ f | |
61'CHﬁRCﬁ ST, == Flrst Baptlst Church OldestIEaptfst Church in the
Organlzed in Klttery, Malne, -in 1682 drlven by persecutzon

3
H
i o
‘g South.
f o to South Carollna in 1683. The Baptlsts flrst settled at Somerton,
;:; . ) '__’/'-'
near Charlestown, later moved thelr church 1nto the c1ty. B

Wllllam Elllott gave the present lot on Church Street and a frame
Durlng the Revolutlon, the Brltlsh seized

E S bulldlng was erected.
the bullding and used lt for storage of salt beef and other pro-

Lord Cornwallls, the Brltlsh commander, admltted that he

“visions.
"feared the prayers of the young Baptist mlnlster more than the

The “young Baptlst mlnlster" was the

g

AP et

" armies of Marion and Sumter."
Rev, Rachard Furman, founder of Furman UanErSlty, the first Baptist
In the present Greek Revival style

m\_‘w— I
tollege in the south. f
. M

It was de51gned by the flrst American~born’

RSy

E

building was erected
‘}ﬁ> archltect, Robert Mllls, who conszdered 1t "the best specimen of
Two of the churcn s

N,

\’/f// § correct taste. in archltecture in the c1ty."




éastors} thelhev. Dr. Basfl hanly and the Rev. Dr. James Petigrun
Boyce, were founders of the Scuthern Baptist_Seminary, now the
'largest in thenworld. ..

' 69 CHURCH ST, ~- Some.authorities say‘this_house was built about 1745

by Richard Eahers, but there is nc proof of that. In plan and

f .{' S scale, the house is typlcal cf double houses bullt in Charlestown

in the 17605. The flrst record of the house is in 1767, when it

was occupled by Jacob Motte, treasurer of the Prov;nce of Scuth
Carolina for 27 years. He was the father of 19 children and was
the ancestor of many promlnent South CarollnlanS. Motte never

cwned thls house, but rented lt from the Jordan Roche famlly,

although Motte hac extensive landholdlngs in hls own rlght. In
"1778 the house became the home of James Parsons, a member of the

'ProVanlal Congress and of the Secret Commlttee of 1775 Severely

'damaged durlng the federal bombardment, the house was purchased i

after the Confederate War by Mrs. Wllllam Mason Smith. Her descen-

;/ ) dant the late M;ss Alice R. Huger sSmith, natlonally known water-

colorlst, llved here; For many years, the_entrance was ih the
'fnortherhhostdoéehihg ih the street facade. Becentlyr the entrance
uas.returnedﬂtoiits original positfon,.in the_cehter of;the facade,

during an ertehsive;restoration of the house. 1In the rear, the

property has aliine of outbuildfngs which were remodeled ih the

"Gothic_hevirai:style in the mide19th Century. -
: 71 CHURCH ST. "‘-.-.":Col.. .Robert Brewton House, _c_ The earliest sur-
{Eg viving eaahpie‘of the slhgle.house. The'moulded brichhaodEIII;;;“
e, _ L

of the cornice are a notable feature, as is the wrought iron balcony.
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~.Col. Bfewton, a wealthy wharf owner, succeeded his father, Miles

Brewton, as powder receiver of the Province. Garden in the rear
e : e .

e

designed by Loutrel Briggs, author of "Charleston Gardens." The
\/// house ;as designated a.Registered National Historic Landmark in
1962,
73 CHURCH ST. -- Col. Miles Brewton presented this house, "for love and
affection" to his daughfer, Mary, and her husband, Dr. Thomas Dale.
Dr. Dale was a physician, a medical translator and a theatrical
_writer, as well-as assistant justice of South Cardlihé}'iﬂwi736.
The Royal Council of.the érovince held its meetings here. The
house originally had three stories.

76 CHURCH ST. —-- In this small, notable post-RavolutionarywHSuse,'DuBose
o SR S

Heyward wrote "Porgy," the novel on which the operetta, "Porgy and

Bess," was baseﬂi It was d551gnated a Natlonal Hlstorlc Landmark

in 1972. Some years ago, the house was combined with 78 Church St.,

a notéblé post-Revolutionary dwelling, into one residence. MNote
beautiful iron balcony oﬁ No. 78.

"77 CHURCH ST. --.Site éf the home of Col. Miles Brewtcn, powder receiver
of the Province and foreman of the Grand Jury which indicted the
pirate, Stede Bonnet, in 1718.. Presenf structure was built c.

h_f?;guaswthe shop, with residence above; of 'a wine merchant. Noﬁable
‘carriage house té,ﬁhe éwelling stands at 75”Church.
79 CHURCH ST. —-- Notable-early Colonial structure, built c. 1718,
83-85 CHURCH ST. -~ Valuable double tenement built c. 1749 By William

Hendricks, planter in Christ Church ‘Parish.,

,WW“"“" -

86 - CHURCH ST. ---Valuable post—RevolutLOnary house,--.c; -1784. Note

e A 1 i

delicate fanlight over door.

<::527CHURCH 8T. —- Heyward-Washington House. Built c. 1770 by

La””’—- | —
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v

Daniel Heyward, rice planter. Was home of his son, Thomas Heyward,

—
a signer of the Declaration of Independence. President George

Washington stayed here on his visit to Charleston in 1731. After
many yéé;s as a bakery, the house was restored in 1929_by the
Charleston Museum and the Soéiety for the Preservation of 014
Dwellings (now the Preservation Society of Charleston}. OCperated
as a house museum by the Charleston Museum,., Formal 18th Century
style garden in iear created'by Miss Emma Richardson.

Pt poper s e A iy,
was called "Cabbage Row"” because black tenants there put cabbages

89-91 CHURCH ST. =- This valuable ost-Revolutionary double tenemert
P

for sale on the window sills, This was the inspiration for "Catfish

Row," a mythical tenement which was the setting for DuBose Heyward's
TUEEOEE

novel, "Porgy." For the purpose of his novel, Heyﬁa}dﬂﬁiécéé
B AR

."CiEEiEEfgggi“eiﬁffimrfiffffiff (East Bay Street).

30 CHURCH ST. -- Valuable Georgian style house with valﬁéble iﬁteriors,
built c¢. 1760 by Thomas Legare. Pigzzas added about 1816 by George
MacAuley.

92 CHURCH ST. == Valuable Adam~style house, built c. 1807 by Alexander

Chrisite, Scot merchaht. This has heen the rectory of St. Philip's
Episcopai“Churchmsiggén1908.

94 CHURCH ST. =- Thomas Bee House, built c. 1730. Bee was a leader in

Colonial government and a Patriot in the Revolution. & later owner
e oy e e e e e T

was Gov. Joseph Alston. His wife, Theodosia, the daughter of

Aaron Burr, was lost at sea, inspiring many legends about her fate.

e RIS S ———— e .

The Nullification Papers were drafted in 1832 in the house's drawing
W"“"—-.n

room by John C. Calhoun, Gov. Robert Hayne, GeEL_Egggg_aggiigpn
—«\-N.M i s b S ST S .
-and others. The entrance to this waluable Colqnial structure was




:r_‘. ..

<
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originally in the center of the street facade.

The Greek Revival
style piazzas were added in the mid-19th Century.

100 CHURCH ST. -~ Notable post-Revolutionary buildirng, said to have
. been built for the Charleston Branch,

Second Bank of the U.S.
103 CHURCH ST, —— Notable post-Revolutionary structure.

116 CHURCH ST. == Valuable 1l8th Century structure.
121 CHURCH ST. -~ Valuable early single house.
124~126 CHURCH ST. —- Notable double tenement,

Corresponding half of
gable has been removed from No. 126 and roofline changed.

128 CHURCH ST. -- Notable house, the two parts of which date from
different periods.

©131 CHURCH ST. =~=- James Huston House, c.

1809. wvaluable single house,
retains entrance on street facade. Huston was a merchant tailor.

134 CHﬁRCH.ST. -— Notable structure, perhaps.pre-Revolutionary. Was

built as recﬁory for the Huguenot Chuxrch.

ettt o

135 CHURCH ST. == Dock Street Theatre, in old Planter’s Hotel building.

———

_Planter's Hotel moved to this location in 1803. The hotelkeepers,
Alexander Calder and his wife, added onto buildings*théy found on
“the lot.

The complex was remodeled in 1855 by J.W. Gamble, who
probabhly installed the present entrance, with its recessed, brown-
stone columned porch and its cast iron balcony. The building was

restored in 1935 by the City of Charleston as a Works Project
A
Administration project.

The present Dock Street Theatre was built
into the building at that time. The theatre is named for Charles-

town's first theatre building, which was built abouz 1735 cn the

Y e N

———

Queen Street {then Dock Street)} side of this property.

Reception
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rooms of the theatre have Adam style mantels and stucco decorated
woodwork from the Thomas Radcliffe House, built c. 1802 at George
and Meeting streets and demolished in 1935. The stucco work from
the Radcliffe House was carved by William Purviss, noted craftsman
of Charleston's Adam.period. Guests at the old Planter's Hotel
included the actor Junius Brutus Booth, whe in 1838 allegedly
attempted to kill his manager, a Mr. Flynn, in one of the rooms.
The Dock Street Theatre is the home of the Footlight Players,

a community theatre group with professicnal direction.

136 CEURCE ST, ~- French Huguenot Church. French Protestant imigrants
organized their church in 1681 and built their first sanctuary on
this site in 1687. This structure was deliberately blown up in a

—
vain effort to arrest the great fire of 1796, which swept through
the area., A succession of structures were built, The present build-
ing, erected in 1845, was designed by the architect, Edward B.

e— : —

‘White. It is the earliest church in the Gothic Revival style in
Charleston. Tablets on the walls of the interior are in memecry of
illustrious Huguencts. This is one of the few Huguenot churches

remaining in America. Services in French are conducted periodi-

cally. The Henry Erben organ, designed for the church in 1845,

has been restored recently and is used for recitals cccasiocnally.
141 and 143-145 CHURCH ST. == Both structures wé?e constructed about

| 1740 by Alexander Perroneaun, a Huguenot merchant. The basement and
first floor of Ne. 141 is built of Bermuda stone, the upper part of

brick. The ba

ent of No. 143-145 is of brick, the upper part
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of Bermuda stone. No. 143-145 was originally. a double tenement, it
was renovated in 1928 by Mrs. R. G. Rhett. Mrs. Rhett also built the
attractive brick buildings in the rear, using materials from Shepeard's

Tavern, which stoed at Broad and Church Streets (see BRCAD STREET).

146 CHURCH ST. ~-- St. Philip's Protestant Episcopal Church. The oldest

church organizaézzz\zﬁ“cﬁiflé§t§n7"3tf‘Phtii@*?“was established

in 1680. It was the first Anglican Church organized south of

Virginia. The first church, a frame structure, was built in 1681

on the present site of St. Michael's Church at Meeting and Broad

streets. A second church of brick was begun in l710“on the pre-

sent site of st. Philip'é and completed about 1723. The church

' caught fire in 1796 but was saved by a black boatman who was sub-

sequently given his freedom for the good deed. The huilding was
described as the most‘elegant church structure in the American
colonies. It burned to the ground in 1835. Rebuilding began

immediately. The new structure, very similar in style'to the old,

‘was designied by architéct Joseph Hyde. The steeple, designed by

et s M it

‘architect Edward B, White, was added about 1848-30, The bells

———"

were donated to the Confederacy for making cannon. During the

federal bombardment, the church was extensively damaged. For

many years, a'light in the steeple guided ships into port. Many

e

famous persons have worshiped in the church, including President
m‘
George Washington, on his state wvisit in 1791. John Wesley preach-
e - —
ed here in his wigit to America as a young man. In 1924, the

church was damaged by fire caused by lightening. Restoration

was begun by architects Simons and Lapham. Completed in 1925,
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the work included extension of the chancel by 23 1/2 feet, pro-
viding space for choirstalls and a new organ. The new construc-
tion ﬁas placed above graves and tombstones, so as not to disturb
them. The Western Graveyard, across the street from the church,

was set aside in 1768 for burial of "Strangers and transient white

persons." Now it is used for members of the church. Many prom-
. .
inent persons are buried there, including John C. Calhoun. Mrs.

Maria Graci; dura Een Turnbull, the first Greek resident of sScuth
Caroling{ is buried there. Coleonial governors of South Carclina;
Edward Rutledge, a signer of the De;laration of Independence; five
bishops of the Episcopal Church; and DuBecse Heyward, are buried
in the graveyard. Alsc of note are a pair of stones in the yest-
ern part of the graveyard, near the i;on fence, known as the
"Footpad's Memorial." The stones tell the story of Nicholas John
Wightman,_age 25, who was murderedﬁby a footpad.on the nigh£ of
March 12, 1788, and avenged by his brother, who rounded up the
.:murderer'and six accoméliges,"members of a gang which had “kept
.the inhabitants in constant alarm.” The beautiful iron gates of
'~ the Westerm Churchyard were installéd in 1770. In the northeast
corner_of the Eastern Chquhyard:is thé_cld parish house, a val-

uable structure.

181 CHURCH sT. =-- Notable Greek Revival deoorway. Was main entrance

“"to the warehouses of George W. Williams, built in the 1850s.
CLIFFCRD STREET
" Clifford Street was early knoyn as Dutch Church Alley, for the
Gerﬁgg‘(Deutsches} Lutheran Church {St. John's) which stood on the.
present site of St., John's parish house. It was later named for John

Clifford, who owned property at i1ts eastern end.
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16 CLIFFORD ST. -- Built in 1860 by Albert Elfe, master builder, as a
rental unit. |
26 CLIFFORD ST..-~ Built ¢. 1827 by Casimir Patrick, German merchant
and tanner. WNote finely finished window.sur;ounds.
éOMING STREET
Coming'Street is named for Mrs. Affra Coming, who. came on the
ship Carolina in 1670 and left the Glebe Lands (whicb see) to the

Anglican Church.

10 COMING ST. -- Notable dwelling, possibly pre-Revoluticnary.

17 COMING ST. =-- Single house built after 1839 by Mrs. Sarah A. Cohrs.

28, 29, 32, 34, 36, 38, 40, 37, 43, 59, 69, 70, 71, and 72 COMING ST.--

(See COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON).
110 COMING ST. ~- Notable antebellum house.
123 COMING ST. -- Built c. 1839 by Jacob W. Cardozo.

126 COMING ST. -~ Cathedral of St. Luke and St. Paul (Episcopal).

The largest episcopal church edifice in South Carolina, it was

‘built between 1811 and 1816 as St. Paul's Church (Radcliffekorough).

James and John Gorden were the architects and builders. They also

N,

designed and built the Second Eresbyterian Church on Meeting Street,

which resembles this structure. The tower of St, Paul's was so
weighty that tﬁe méin walls began to split; so the tower was dis-
mantled and later capped with a Gothic style parapet. The cost of
.construction of the church, and for repairs of f£laws which were
discovered later, approached a gquarter of a million dollars.

During the bombardmeént of the city during the Confederate War,

-the congregations of St. Michael's and St.'Philip‘éjChﬁrches joined.

that of St., Paul's, which was out of range of the federal guns.
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In 1949, St. Paul's merged with St. Luke's Episcopal Church, and in

1963 the structure was designated the Cathedral Church of the

]

Diocese of South Carolina. The interior is notable for its arch-

——

itectural beauty.

135 COMING ST, -- Regency style house built c. 1830 by William Wightman.

189 COMING ST. -- Xahal Kadosh Beth Elchim Cemetery. Originally the

private burial ground of Iéaac DaCosta, & Sephardic Jew, the property

was transferred to the Congregation Beth Elchim in 1764. It is one

of the country's most historic burial grounds, with graves dating

back to 1762, Moses Cohen, Beth Elohim's first Rabbi, is buried

here, along with Jews who served in the Revolution and all subse-

‘quent American wars.

CORDES STREET

7-%9 CORDES ST. -- 19th Century warehouses.

COURT HOUSE SQUARE. -

6-8 COURT HOUSE SQUARE -~ Blake's Tenement%, buiit_before 17?2 by Daniel
| 'Blake; Eastern ﬁenement retains'original interiors in Georgian
"style; Western tenement remodeled in Adam style. For many years,
' the tenements were ownéd 5? St.-Michael's Church as rental property.

' Charleston County acquired the building in 1967 and uses it for

cffices,

'8 COURT HOUSE SQUARE ~- Notable Adam style house with pan-tiled rocf.

COURTENAY DRIVE

25 COURTENAY DR. -- McClennan-Banks Memcrial Hospital. This black-

operateé hospital and training schopl for nurses has a record of

fine work. 1t was located for more than fifty years at 135 Calhoun
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St., and moved to its new building here in 1954, Recently, it has

devoted a major portion of its facilities to the treatment of

alcoholism.
CUMBERLAND STREET
}‘: Vv;; Cumberland Street originally was one block long, between Church and
C;lu\ E;i\ Meeting streets. Cumberland Street was widened in the early part of

the 19th Century, and extended to East Bay. In doing so, a slice was

\

taken from Amen Street, which then ceased to exist. BARmen Street began
at East Bay and extended northwestardly to Church Street. One tradi-~

tilon says it was so named because it was the last street on the north

\

side of town; another that it was so named because it was in hearing

distance of the "Amens"™ from nearby churches.

FIRST BLCOCK OF CUMBERLAND (See Lodge Alley Warehouses).
79 CUMBERLAND ST. -~ Powder Magazine, built 1712-13, is the only sur-
A —

viving public building of the Lords Proprietors' period, which

-{ﬁ&-,:x'uuended in+ 1719 It was+ in-use-until the Revolution. ~The building
. piae il o, .

£

\:\0 now is owned and used as an assembly place by the South Carolina

\

Society of Colonial Dames of America. Open to visitors.
83 CUMBERLAND ST. =- This small structure is said to have been built
 c. 171% as an outbuilding to Judge Nicholas Trott's house. Judge
Trott presided at the trial of Stéde Bonnet and his pirates, in
1718, and later wrote the first South Carolina lawbook.
OPPOSITE 83 CUMBERIAND —- Site of the Blue Meeting House, the first
Methodist Church in the city. Built in 1787, the church was later

- named the Cumbgrland Church, taking its name from the street.
+
2? } <;L4~jbﬂudic-dkh - G?‘KA Qe r'l‘ijr:}‘“““’
) 713 |

SL SeeNq g CReaud Crerd Omen)
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1 EAST BATTERY -- Built c. 1850 by Thomas Coffin, planter in the Sea

Islands near Beaufort. Coffin sold the property to Louis deSaus-

sure, and the house is usually identified by his name. Later it

was the home of Bernard O'Neill, an Irishman who amassed a fortune
in the grocery business in Charleston. He remodeled the facade
of the house, adding new wiﬁdows and door surrounds and beautiful
cast iron balconies. The balustraded garden wall, curving around
to South BatFery, was built before the Confederate War.

‘5 EAST BATTER: ~= Built c. 1850 by John ﬁavenel. Léter it was the

home of Dr. St. Julien Ravenel, designer of the Little David, a

A
1‘7 65ﬁ 1)

‘semi-sutmersible vessel used by the Confederate Navy. After the

Confederate War, Dr. Ravenel was a leader in developing the local

mining of marl deposits and their processing into phosphate ferti- _

-~ ————
lizer, an industry which helped revive the local economy after the

ruin of the war. The house was rebuilt in the Victorian style

by Horry Frost after the earthquake of 1886,

o EAST BATTERY = Built c. 1838 by Robert William Roper. -Valuable early

'Lw’//’ example of Greek Revival architecturg.

13 EAST BATTERY =-- Williém Ravenel House, c. 1845. The bullder solved
the_problem of erecting a large house on a narrow lot by running
his porte-cochere under his drawing room. The mansion lost its
massive Greek Revival portico in the 1886 earthguake.

19 EAST BATTERY, North Wall -~ Marker of Fort Mechanic's site, now

covered by 19 and 21 East Battery. The fort, replacing an earlier

L””, one of the American Revelution, was named for the mechanics of the

city who gave their laboer to build it in 1794, when a French naval
pm—

D) invasion {which never came) was expected. It was garrisoned with
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U.S. troops until after the War of 1812. Razed in 1816.

21 EAST BATTERY -- Edmondston-Alston House, Valuable Regency style‘

house built c. 1828 by Charles Edmondston, a native of the Shetland
Islands who méde a fortune on the Charleston waterfront, as a
~~  merchant and wharf-owner. Purchased in 1838 by charles Alston,
L/;fffﬂﬂw a wealthy planter, who femodeled it in the Greek Revival style,
adding the third flod: piazﬁa and the roof parapet with his

family coat of arms. The cast iron balcony replaced an earlier one

which was knocked down in the 1886 earthquake, First two floors

open to public as a museum operated by Historic Charleston Foun-

dation.
e ]

. 25 EAST PATTERY -~ Mansion built in 1885 by Charles H. Drayton, who
mﬂ#\. i b.%if G

mined phosphate deposits at his family plantation, Drayton Hall.

LTy - N, 2t
v ’ o . . . : ] H
i INRLN Medieval European and Chinese architectural influences are com- g@£§ﬂ¢,}zi
(Y] N ) . o )
N :.@6 ; ; : Q{/‘
Qfﬂb bined in this structure. . = oo o - o :
” ' Lo g dmeaX
39 EAST BATTERY ~~ George Chisclm House,. c¢. 1810. Gold leaf ornamen-
e o
W, o )' » - » »
gﬁ_J,\ e tation in drawing room by Tiffany's, 1305. Garden designed by
,A':’JU v 3 . . - -
A 1‘:{/1/ ; G Wl o Colpne s > Renek 2 \v\
pb 4 Loutrel Briggs. .A} . ) o i)
- ' ‘ YN U D e f‘y
44 EAST BATTERY ~=- Missroon House, c. 1789-95, Enlarged for Omar
Temple, 1925. Stands on site of Granwville Bastion, <. 1704.
~  Note marker. Behind the Missroon House is the new Omar shrine
. _ . .
- Temple, designed by architect Albert Simons.

EAST BAY STREET

43 EAST BAY -- Built c. 1755 by James Hartley, prosperous Cooper River

H”‘pianter and lumber merchant. Valuable Georgian style house.

45 EAST BAY -- Built c. 1850 by Gen. Wilmot Gibbes deSaussure. Notable

an:ebellum house.
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47 EAST BAY -=- Valuable Georgian house. Built c. 1740 for Mrs. Joseph
Boone. Altered several times.

50 EAST BAY —- Carolina Yacht Club. Oldest portion of building ceon-~
structed before 1830 as factors' offices. The club was organized

\ in 1883 and purchased this property in 1907, built club with large
square cupola. The water side of the club was town down in 1974
apd replaced with new construction. Premises open to members only.

51 EAST BAY -- John Fraser, Scot merchant, built this valuable Regency
style house after 1818.3

53 EAST BAY -= Valuable postiRevolutionary shop and residence buildingf
Now home of Charleston.Club, organized in 1852,

55 EAST BAY -- Valuable structure built c, 1780 by Jonathan Simpson.

57 EAST BAY == Gen., Thomas Pinckney's House, c. 1783. Gen. Pinckney
was Governor of Scuth Carolina,'the first U.S. minister to England,

-”"énd the envoy to Spain who negotlated the treéty opening the Mis-
sissippi River to American navigation. The balcony came from 28
Queen St.

71 EASf BAY == Built as a commercial building c¢. 1900, this structure
was converted into an attractive residence in the 1930s, an early
éxample of "adaptive use.,"

76-78 EAST BAY =-- Vanderhorst Row, built in 1800 by Gen. Arnoldus Vandg;f_
horst, Intendant (Mayor) of Charleston, Governor of South Ca:o;inﬁlT 

and general of the War of 1812. ©One of several buildings in Qh§rié$%_

ton designed to accommodate more than one family. The rquh;

separate apartments, originally called "tenements," ﬂaéﬁ

a half stories. The middle tenement was used for a time

Charleston Club.
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CORNER, EAST BAY and LONGITUDE LANE == Marker denotes site of home of’
landgrave Thomas Smith, Governor of the Province of Carolina in
1693-94,

83-107 EAST BAY -- Rainbow Row, In the 1930s, this line of valuable

old houses was gradually changed from slums into a valuable and

td’ﬂw’fyﬁff handsome residential area. Built as merchant's houses, some as

e

early as 1740, the buildings originally had stores on the first
floors and living quarters above. Entrance to the second story
was generally from stairs outside the house, as there were none
between the first and second floors. One of thgllast houses to
gain an inside staircase was No. 87,

83 EAST BAY -~ Valuable post-Revolutionary building. Fanlighted doofway
is modern addition.

85 EAST BAY -- Built <. 1784, notable post-Revolutionary building.

87 EAST BAY -- Notable post-Revolutionary building.  Balcony modern.

89 EAST BAY - C. 1780. One of few-houses built during the Revolution,

L///// this structure has a degp cellar paved with English stone, sug-

gesting it was built as a tavern. _Valuable architecturally.

90 EAST BAY -- C. 183s5. Notéb;e comméréiai'building. _ ro

91 EAST BAY -~ C. 1778. Notable.

93 EAST BAY -- C. ;780 by James Cook.

95 EAST BAY - Valuable Colonial building, built c. 1740,

97 EAST BAY -- Valuable Colonial building, <. 1740,

101 EAST BAY -- Col. Othnieil Beale's House, c. 1740. A native of New

England, Col. Beale was a merchant and engineer. He was placad

1//1 in charge of rebuilding Charlestown's fortifications in 1742 and

égain_in 1744, Mrs, Lionel K., Legge restored this house in 1931,
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sparking the reclaimation of the entire block. She added the graat
wooden doors and iron gate.
103 EAST BAY —-— C. 1787 by Joseph Dulles, hardware merchant from Ireland,
an ancestor of John Foster Dulles,'férmer Secretary of Stata.
b/// The asymetrical roof line was due to the necessity of placing the
{ eaves .on the south side higher to receive the roof of the older
house at 10l East Bay. Garage and doorway are mcdern,
105 EAST BAY -- 19th Century commercial building.
137 EAST BAY f-'Notable antebellum structure. Ground floor facade
retains cast iron store front.
114-120 EAST BAY -- Coates' Row. Built c. 1800 by Thcomas Coates.
No. 120 housed Harris®' Tavern, later called the French Coffee

! House. It has extensive'underground wine cellars. No. 118 has

P .

rouged brick, designed to make thé_Carolina "grey" brick look like

Philadelphia red brick, for which there was a brief vegue in Ccharles~

o

ton.

1l5 EAST BAY -- Built c., 18%90. Mansard after earthguake.

\i@ site of the "Court of Guard," where Stede Bonnet, "Gentleman Pirate,"”
‘ was imprisoned in 1718, Thomas Weoodin was the architect of the

[ . H ——— e i
b

————— it s pamgems b,

ﬂ\,w\ 122 EAST BAY ~— 0l1ld Exchange and Custom House., Built 1767-71, on the
s

building, which was constructed by the brothers, Peter and Jéhn

B

il

Adam Horlbeck, German-born mascns. Patterned after English'market

halls of the Georgian period, this building originally had an open

% R
arcade on the first floor and an elegant assembly hall on the second.
7 Twin stair towers which projected inte East Bay Street were taken
! e .
‘j down in the early part of the 19th Century as they impeded traffic.

Al e
\ On December 3, 1773, citizens of Charlestown met here to protest
—_—

the British Tea Tax. That public meeting is considered the first
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meeting of the South Carolina General Assembly and the birth of

Cwl\__mmw e
South Carolina's present government. Taxed tea was seized by the
,__,‘._._----"‘""'WM"’""-—--—-___

Patriot aufhorities and stored in the Exchange until it was sold-
to help finance the Patriot cause. The Patriots also walled up
%
gunpowder under cne of the basement arches, but it was never dis-
A
covered by the British when they occupied the city in 1780-82.
The British confined 61 citizens including Lt. Gov. Christopher

Gadsden in the basement as political and military prisoners.

Among them was Isaac Hayne, whom they hanged as an example to

the rebellicus Colonials. When President George Washington came

to Charleston in May, 1791, he was rowed across the harbor by
T s ot

prominent gentlemen of the city, from the east shore of the Cooper

River to the official landing below the Exchange Building, which

then was Charleston's City Hall, having been conveved to the city

in 1783. Among many entertainments given'W;shington in the‘week
he was here, a magnificent concert and ball were held in this
building. Ladies of the city wore "fillets" or bandeaux in their
hair, with a picture of the President and the words "Long Live

the President" in gilt letters. The building was conveyed to the

- federal government in 1818 and became the Post Office. The build-

ing is now held by the Rebecca Motte Chapter of the Daughters of
the American Reveolution.. In 1972, negotiations began, with the
goal of leasing the Exchange to the South Carclina Bicentennial
Commission, which wbuld_restore it as an American Revolution
Bicentennial project. The basement of the building contains the
Provost Museum, where can be seeﬁ models of Patriot prisoners and
their British guards and an excavated portion of the Half Moon

Battery of <. 1701,
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141 EAST BAY -- 01d Farmers and Exchange Bank, built .1853=54,. in the

"Moorish" style. Architect'ErancisﬁDQ_Leéndesigned the building,

with its horseshoe arches and striped stonework which are remini-

\’;”,’f;ﬁ scent of the Alcazar:-at Seville. To achieve the striped effect,

4 aain Lee used ‘pale Jersey and darker Connecticut brownstone. This
ﬁ>33f3 charming building was long vacant and in disrepair and in danger
\\Q}”ﬂ, of demolition for a parking lot when the present owners bought

P > and restored it in 1970.

dxig(ﬁp~153 EAST BAY --Nineteenth Century commercial facade masks the entrance
to McCrady's Tavern, built c. 1779 by Edward McCrady. The long
room of the tavern is at the rear of tﬁe building, with an entrance
on Unity Alley. The Society of the Cincinnati gave a dinner fo;
President George Washingten in the long room in 1791. The long
room is also the oldest surviving building used for theatrical
productions in the Unitgd States, It conﬁinuedxin use as a
coffee house or restaurant until akout 1855. Afterwards, it be-
came a warehouse.

155 EAST BAY -- Commercial building built in the 1850s by Etienne
Poincignon, French tinsmith and real estate investor.

16l EAST BAY -~ Facade c. 1880 by F.W. Wagener and Co., combining several
older buildings'behind new front. HNote interesting brickwork on
Queen Street side of building. Sa&e Charlesten Devéidpment Co.
has proposed turning this warehouse inte a condominium complex.

154~162 EAST BAY ST, -- Notabie Greek Revival commercial row, built

before 1850 by Dr. P.G. Pricleau.

178-180 EAST BAY -- C. 1794 by Stephen Lefevre, French merchant.

188 EAST BAY -~ Post-Revolutionary bullding, believed to have been home

of Arthur Hugh Clcough, English pcet.
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183-199 EAST BAY -~ (See LODGE ALLEY WAREHOUSES).

200 EAST BAY -~ U.S. Custom House, built on the site of Craven's Bastion.

——

Begun in 1853, constructlon was 1nterrupted by the COnfederate

Lw”f’ War and completed in 1879, The Roman Corinthian style building

was designed by Ammi Burnham Young,_who was also'coFérchitect of
the Bostor. Custom House.

EAST BAY and MARKET STREETS -- In 1767 a.bridge was built across Daniel's
Creek at this pOlnt, connectlng East Bay with thé area to the north,
then called Colleton's Square. The Pinckney family owned a great .
deal of property\north of the creek and had a magnificent home there.

In 1752, Chlef Justice Charles Pznckney tock hisg famlly to England

for a few years, and his dwelllng house was rented to Gov: Glen

and to successive governors, and soon acquired the name of "Governor's
Mansion." . The stone bridge across Danie;'s Creek, leading almost
direétly to ﬁhe Mansion, became.known as tﬁ; "Governor's Bridge.f

The Pinckney Mansgion was one of many buildings destroyed ih the

great fire of 1861.

EAST BAY, EAST END OF WENTWORTH -- Bennett’s Rice Mill ruins. Built

c. 1844 by Gov. Thomas Behnett, the mill is nationally impqrtant:

L’y’,f’ﬁwfyf architecturally. A tornado scme years age destroyed all but the

West Facade, which remains propped up with steel supports.

301 EAST BAY -- C. l8lé6. Valuable single house. .

311 EAST BAY -~ Stephen Sﬁreﬁsbury House, builﬁ before.1809. .shrewsbury
wés a shiﬁbuilder, Qharf—owner; banker and Revolutionary Patriot.
Historic Charleston Foundation acquired the house in 1962.and sold

it to the present owner, who completed the restoration.
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321 EAST BAY -- Built <. 1789 by william Blake, planter. Later owned by
u/// Judge John Faucheraud Grimke, Patriot and jurist., BHis 16 children

included Sarah and Angelina Grimke, early ptoponents of abolition

\._________/""!-‘—nn-—-w-—;‘ - -'}MM.E-
and women's rights. The northwest wing with the bay Witidow was
/’“’H\\'_-_m R

added after 1850 by William M. Martin, Charles O. Witte, German
consul, also lived here, Purchased in 1964 by Historic Charleston
Foundation. Became a branch of Citizens and Southern Bank in 1968.
328 EAST BAY -- Andrew Moffatt Eouse, c. 183%9. Gift of anonymous donor,
u/// restored by Historic Charleston Foundation.

329 EAST BAY -— Built c. 1800 by Philip Gadsden. After the Confederate

L////’ War, home of the Right Rev. W.B.W. Howe, Episcopal Bishop of South
Carclina. Presented to Historic Charleston Foundation by a Gadsden
descendant. Valuable Adam—style house.

332 EAST BAY ST. ~~ Robert Primerose House, c¢. 1Bl7. Primerose was a

b/// prospercus merchant. House was given to Historic Charleston Foun-

dation in 1961. -~ ' L

635 EAST BAY -=- Faber House. Construction on the beautiful Palladian
Mu,..‘,__,(-"\__‘__/ o —n—

style villa was begun in 1836 by Henry Faber, planter on the Pon

Pon (Edietp) River. It was completed after his death in 1839 by

ﬁis brother; Jeseph Faber. Later it was the home of the widow of
Johﬁthshua.Ward, waalthy Georgetown planter and lieutenant gover-
nor of‘South Carclina. After Werld War I, the structure was b;iefly
the Hamitic.Hotel. Historic Charleston Foundation boughe the..
house in 1965 when it was in denger.of demelition for a housing
project. The present owner purchased it in 1971 and restored

it as an office and apartment complex. The owner alsc donated
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land on the Drake Street side of the property for a public play-
ground.. |
EAST BAY AND COLUHBUS, N.W. CORNER -- 0Qld American Cigar Factory.
Built in 1881 by the Charleston Manufacturing Co. as a cotton
mill. 1In 1917, it became the American Cigar Co. factory. Recently,
it has become the World Trade Mart.
727 EAST BAY -- Tennant House, notable antebellum structure.
ELIZABETH STREET
12 ELIZABETH ST.--- C. 1851 by John Carberry, accountant. Victorianized
later.
14 ELIZABETH ST. == C. 1860 for Miss Sarah Rutledge Hart, Noteworthy
brick kitchen building in rear.
19 ELIZABETH ST. -- Store, wiﬁh residence above, built ¢. 1841 by Henry

Bulwinkle, grocer and grist miller.

.22 ELIZABETH ST. =~ New Tabernacle Fourth Baptist Church. . This Gothic

Revival structure, begun in 1859, was designed by architect Francis
D. Lee for St. Luke's Episcopal Church. It was consecrated.in
1862 when nof fully completed, ceonstruction having been halted
_by the Confederate War. The steeple, planned for the northwést
-corner, was never built. Built in the shape of a Greek Cross,
each side of the edifice has a single Gothic window 37 feet high.
The center of the ceiling, uniting the Tudor arches which spring
from Gothic columns, is 55 feet above the floor. St. Luke's con-
gregation, which was organized in 1858, united with St. Paul's
(Radcliffeboro) in 1249. In 1950 this structure was pﬁrchased
by the New Tabernacle Fourth Baptist Church. This Church, founded

in 1875, had its building on the site of the Medical University
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Hospital and moved when the hospital was huilt. The Rev, D.J.
Jenkins, founder of the Jenkins Orphanage, was once a pastor.

24, 26, and 28 ELIZABETH ST. -- Rental units built in 1896 by the
Queen Investment Co,

48 ELIZABETH ST. -- Gov. William Aiken House. Built ¢. 1817 by John
Robinson, merchant and real estate investor, the house was pur-
chased in 1826 by William Aiken, who remodeled and enlarged it,
The wing extending along Elizabeth Street is said to have been
designed by the governor's cousin, Joseph Aiken. The wing was
used as an art gallery by the governor, who filled it with French
art. Aiken was governor in 1844-~46 and a Congressman, 1851-57.
He was a son of William Aiken, first president of the South Car-
olina Canal and Rail Road Co. The house was inherited by Gov.
Aiken's ERhett descendaﬁts, and is alse known as the Aiken~Rhett
Bouse, The Charleston Museum is currently neéotiating to acquire
the property (1975). The house and its complete line of original
outbuildings is to be restored and-cpened to tﬁe public as a
branch of the Charleston Museum.

ELLIOTT STREET
Elliott Street, at different times was known as Callaiﬁeuf‘s Blley

.and Poinsett's Alley, from Huguenot families who owned property there.

. During the late 18th and early 19th centuries, Elliott Street was a
major shop area. Most of its buildings date from the 1790s.
Restoration of houses on the street, which had fzllen into slum

conditions, was begun in the 1930s.

4 ELLIOTT ST. =-=- Built c. 1790.
14 ELLIOTT ST. == Notable structure.

16 ELLIOTT ST. -—- Notable structure.
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20 ELLIOTT ST. -— C. 1793, wvaluable post-Revoluticnary architecturé.
28 ELLIOTT ST. ~= Poinsett’'s Tavern was built on this site c. 1734 by
dig Elisha Poinsett, ancestor of Joel R. Poinsett, the.diplomat who
broﬁght the poinsettia plant from Mexico. Pfesent structure built
c; 1814 on old foundations.
FRANKLIN STREET

Pranklin Street was criginally called Back Street.

9 FRANKLIN sST. =-- C. 1850.

13 FRANKLIN ST. -- C. 1849 by George W. Cooper, attorney. Carpenter's
Gothic style.

15 FRANKLIN ST. ~- C. 1850 by Etienne Poincignon.

17 FRANKLIN ST. =-- C. 1850 by Theodore A. Whitney, broker and commission
merchant. In 1870s and 1880s, home of Paul Dejardin, F;ench consul.
Room in basement was constructed‘és wine céilar. During.a hurriqane
in the 1940s, it is said that a great quantity of French wiﬁe

bottles floated out of the basemenf.

20 FRANKLIN ST. == 0ld Marine Hospital. Designed by Robert Mills, arch-

[ r—

itect, this building, completed in 1834, was the city's earliest

-building in the Gothic Revival style. It was built by the federal

b//’ff”r govermnment for the care of sick and disabled merchant seamen of
America and foreign ships. It served alsc as a teaching hospital
for the Medical College of South Carolina and as a military hospital

for the Confederacy. After the Confederate War, a free school for

black children, staffed by white Southern women, was conducted
here. It was used for various purposes by blacks until 1895, when

it was occupied by the Jenkins OQrphanage for black children.




The famous Jenkins Orphanage Band toured the United States and
Europe in the early part of this century to raise funds for the
orphanage. In'1939, the building was acquired by the Housing
Authority of Charleston, which remodeled it as administrative
cffices. The twe rear wings, having been weakened by fires,
were demolished during the reﬁovation; The architect of the build-
ing, who was also the architect of the Washington Monument in
the national capital and of many other famous structures through-
out the copntry, iz commemorated in the name of the housing project
adjoining the Old Marine Hospital, Robert Mills Manor.

GADSDEN STREET
Gadsden Street was named for Christopher Gadsden, Patriot general

and lieutenant governor of South Carolina during the Revolution.

4 GADSDEﬁ.ST..—- C. 1852 by Joﬁn Steinmeyer, lumber merchant, Notable
| Greek Reﬁival style house. | . |

19 GADSDEN ST, -- C, 1828 by.Thomas Hamlin. Notable raised cottage

style house, o ‘
.GﬁORGﬁ STREET -

4 GEORGE ST. -=- Notable anfebellum hoﬁse.

5 GEORGE ST. =~ Robert Roulain's House, c. 1816. Roulain was a masonry
coﬁtractor. Facade added after 1586 earthquake,

7 GEORGE ST. -- Built by 1813 by Miss Mary Scott.

8 GCEORGE ST, -- Built between 1787 and 1791 for Mrs. Sarah Daniel Lawrence,

14 GEORGE ST. -— Middleton-Pinckney.Mansion. Mrs. Frances Motte Mid-
dleton, widow of John Middleton, a Continental officer, began

huilding this imposing mansion in 17%6. In 1797, she married

Maj. (later Major General) Thomas Pinckney, and together they




completed the house. ' According to their jeoint will, the total cost

ST

of the house was 553,800, which at the date of the will in 1822

was more than the selling value of the house, which was $35,000.

A

24, 26, 28, 54, 58, 66, 67, 72, 72 and 74 GEORGE ST. -- (See COLLEGE

OF CHARLESTON) . _ 1770 CR&D_—-.‘R
32 and 36 GEORGE ST. -- Valuable antebellum houses. /7 )w=r "’“G"‘k
: ' LY
GIBBES STREET ) C"
Gibbes Street is named for William Gibbes who built the house at

64 South Battery, 1772, at which time the property extended to Gikbes

Street.’

0 GIBBES ST, == Victorian cafriage house, ekpanded intoc contemperary

home.

. 6_GIBBES ST. -~ Parker~Drayton House. 3Built c. 1806 by Isaac Parker,

planter and brickyard owner. Remodeled inﬂ/thestyle in

1820 by Col. William Drayton, with money won in the East Bay
L’,r”’ﬂ Iottery. Col, .Drayton, a.Unionist Congressman, moved to Philadel-
phia after the Hullifiéation controversy. Later tﬁe home of Na~
thaniel Heyward, plantef and of Dr. Gabriel Ménigaulﬁ,_osteologist
and edugator and head of thé Charleston Museum.

7 GIBBES.ST} —-=- Notable house built 1804-11.

GILLON STREET

Gillon Street is named for Commodore Alexander Gillon, a Scot who

commanded the South Carolina Navy during the Revolution.

10 and 12 GILION ST, -- Two notable post-Revolutionary buildings.
GLEBE STREET

Glebe Street was named for the Glebe Lands {Which see)}, through

which it was cut.
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6, 9, 11, 12, 14, 16, 20, 22 and 26 GLEBE ST. -- {(See COLLEGE OF CHARLESTCN).

7 GLEBE ST. =-- Mount Zion A.M.E. Church. In 1847, a lease from St.

_ - Philip's Churﬁh was assigned to the Glebe Street Presbyterian
Church and the present structure was built in that year. Accord-
j ing to Francis D. Lee's obituary, the church was designed by him.
W At the time of its construction, the architect was 21 years old and
| " a recent graduate of the College of Charleston. 1In 1856, the lot
was conveyed by St. Philip’'s to the Glebe Street Church in fee

simple. The Glebe Street Church sold the lot to Zion Presbyterian

Church in 1866. In 1882, Zion Presbyterian merged with the Central

Presbyterian Church and the Glebe Street building was sold to a
group from Emanuel A.M.E. Church. They kept the name Zion and
named their church Mount Zion A.M.E. Church. Architecturally,

‘this Barogue style building is one of the city's most valuable

)

buildings.

GREENHILL STREET

present name in the early part of the 19th Century.

4 GREENHILL ST. -- Samuel Axson House, c. 1l806=13. BAxson was a master
builder..
[ 6 GREENHiLL ST. -- Nineteenth Century kitchen building for 143 Tradd
St., now a separate residence.
HANOVER STREET

16 HANOVER STREET -- St. John's Episcopal Mission, notable antebellum

structure.

]
H
H
1
‘
Greenhill Street was first called Adams Street; and acquired its
|
|
|
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HASELL STREET

28 HASELL ST. -=- Commercial building built in 1814 by J.C. Witt.

30-36 HASELL sf. -= Row of houses of antebellum period.

37 HASELL ST. -- C. 1840, Valuable Greek Revival style house. The
extensive yard once had a formal garden of symmetrically shaped
beds.

41 HASELL ST. —-—- Notable antebellum house.

45 HASELL ST. -- Charles W. Seignious Store, <. 1852.

48 HASELL ST. -—- S5t. Johannes Evangelical Lutheran Church. This Tuscan-
columned church was built in 1841~42 and designed by Edward Brickell
White, the most prolific .of Charleston's l9th Century architects..
The interiq: has galleries with balustered fronts, like Charleston
piazza railings. The building was first occupied by St. Matthew's
Lutheran Church. When that congregdtion moved to Xing Street, in
1872, the Salem Baptist Church, a black coﬁgregation, purchased
this building; In 1878, it was bought by St. Johannes Evangelical
Lutheran Church. This congregation was organized in 1878 and first
met in a chapel oﬁ Hasell near naeting Street. BServices continued:
to be canducted in the German language until 1910,

50 HASELL ST. -~ Built after 1846 by Joel Smith, planter in Abbeville
District. St. Johannes' rectory since 1920.

54 HASELL ST. ~- Col. William Rhett House, c. 1712. When built, this
wasg the main house of a 30 acre plantation known as Rhettsgbury,
the southern boundary of which was the neorthern boundary of Charles-
tbwn. Col..Rhett in 1706 commanded a local fleet which drove off.

a combined French and Spanish invasion and in 1718 he captured an&x

returned to Charlestown for trial the notoricus pirate, Stede




Bonnet, and his crew. After Rhett's death, Chief Justice Nicholas
Trott, who had sentenced Bonnet to hang, married Rhett's widow
and renamed the plantation Trott's Point. Wade Hampton III,
.Governor of South Carolina, Civil War general and U.S. Senator, was
born here in-1818. The house retains early Georgian paneling in
one room. Plaster decorations in the Georgian Rococo style, the
only surviving examples in Charleston, were added about 1750, -
The interior was extensively remodeled in the Adam style about
1800.

553 HASELL ST. —- Notable antebellum house.

60 HASELL ST. -- Valuable antebellum house, built q. 18477by George

| N. Reynolds. Pillars show Egyptian influence, while towers are

Italianate. Accessory buildings at 58 and 62 Héseil are of same
date. |

64 HASELL ST. == Built e, 1843 by'Benjamih F. smith, build.ing supply
merchant, Notable Greek Revival architecture.

66 HASELI ST. =-- Built in- 1839 as lecture hall for Third Presbyterian
Church. Originally a tall, one story structure, it was converted

. into a two story reéidence in 1896 by Mrs. Florida Gadsden for
her daughter, Mrs. Florence Gadsden Smyth.

S.E. HASELL and MAIDEN LANE —- Site of briéinal Trinity Methodist
Church, erected in 1792. The church moved in 1926 to its present'
‘location at 273 Meeting St.

B6 HASELL ST. =-- C. 1797. HNotable architecture.

90 HASELL ST. -- Kahal Xadosh Beth Elchim (Holy Congragation, House

\}/,{ - of God). .Jews, attracted by a promise of religious liberty, began
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settling in Carolina scon after the founding of Charleston. A l‘q Lf‘7

formal congregation was organized in 174%9. The first synagogque

[

on this site was built in 1792. It burned in the great fire of
-y R s ——

. 1838 and was replaced in 1840-41 by this beautiful Greek Revival

building. Designed by Cyrus L. Warner, a New York architect,
=

it was built by David Lopez, a Charlestonian and member of the
.___-_._..——F—'_-‘

congregation. The building is the second oldest synagogue in
_—-__,..-d—l-l—"". m—

the U.S. and the oldest in continucus use. The interior has a

domed ceiling, an ark of Santo Domingan mahcgany and a museum of
IO

South Carolina Jewish artifacts. Beth Elchim is the cradle of

Reform Judaism in the United States. In 1824, a group of members

organized the Reformed Society of Israelites, which existed until

L

1833. When the old synagogque burmed in 1838, this group won out
in the propcsal to install an organ in the present structure, the

first organ in any Jewish congregation in America. In 1838, the

second Jewish Sunday School in the United Stafea'was established

[ ——

here.

95 HASELL ST. ~- St. Mary's Roman Catholic Churxch. St, Mary's is the l’l 97

mother church of Catholiciém.in the Carolinas and Georgia, having
e e

been established in 178%9. . The Catholic community bought in that

L e

yvear a Methodist Meeting House, in runious conditicn, on this site.
The congregation worshiped in this frame building until 1801 when

a brick structure was built. This church was destroyed in the

e

great fire of 1838. The cornerstone of the present structure was

laid in 1838 and the church was opened in 1839. Over the main
- e

altar hangs a painting of the Crucifixion, paintad in 1814 by




150

John S. Cogdell and restored by the same artist after it was damaged

in the 1838 fire. The first members of the church appear to have

been Irigh. In the 1790s, the membership was augmented by French

refugees from the siave revolution on Santo Dominge, descendants

P

of whom attend the church today. Many of the tombstones in the

chu;gpygrd are in Erench and the chgrgh registers were kept in
French until_;SZZ.
96 HASELL ST. --— Built_c. lBSB:by”Edwin L. Xerrison, merchant. (See
.. history of Kerrison's at 2§9~§;§G STREET) .
HAYNE STREET

16 HAYNE ST. -- Young America- Fire Hall, built 1866 for volunteer fire-
fighting group, the Young America Company.

31-39 HAYNE ST. =-- Row of 19th Century commercial buildings with cast
‘iron fronts, No. 33 has an Italiznate roof cornice and window

-eornices in stone and terza cotta. T
JORN STREET

4 JOHM ST. -- Notable Regency style house, with 19th Century store
building attached.

36 JOHNwsT.”—-_Sopth CarolingﬂRail:oad Wérehouse, c..1850,

37 JOEN ST. -=- C. 1850. Office of the South Carolina Railroad Co.
Notable Gothic Revival style building may have been designed by
Edward B. White, or perhaps by Edward C. Jones and Francis D. Lee.

" JUDITH STREET

6 JUDITH ST. =-- Built after 1817 by John Robinson, whq_glsqﬁbuilt

10 Judith St,_agd 48 Elizabeth St, Purchased recently by Historic

Charleston Foundation.

10 JUDITH ST. =-- Built after 1817 by John Robinson. Home, 1902-1910,

Tt Y O e
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of the Rt. Rev. Peter Fayssoux Stevens, first bishop of the Reformed

Episcopal Church. Stevens commanded the Citadel Cadet unit which

fired the first shot of the Confederate War, a warning shot at

the federal supply ship Star of the West, in January, 1861, After

the war, Stevens became superintendent of The Citadel, but soon

resigned to lead the Reformed Episcopal Church.

KING STREET

King Street, named for the ruler of Great Britain, was'EH“;he early : .
days of the settlement the mein highway into Charlestown, down the narrow
"Neck" from the interior. It followed a ridge of high ground between
the many creeke and marshes lacing the peninsula. The road was known
vérioﬁeiy éskﬁihé“ﬁ£BAéW£ath," "The High Way" and "The Broad Road."”

| T T T T

Those names continued to be appliéd to that part of the street above
Beaufain Street until after the Revolution._ During the latter part
of the lBth.and early part of the'lgth_centuries{"the upper part of
King Street became the center of the wagon-yard tradef Wagon drivers
from the interior there exchanged country products for store goods.
Dgring the mid519th Centur&, King Street was the commercial center for
much of the Lowcountry. The street ended at South Battery until 1911,

when it was extended southward to newly created Murray Boulevard.

1 KING ST. —- 0ld Fort Sumter Hotel. Opened in 1923, it was éhaxleston's
most_notable,hotel.at”the”time.m.Building,wdes;gned by G. Lloyd
Preacher, architect,‘coét $850,000 to build.  Hotel closed in
1974 and building was converted to offices and condiminiums,

8 KING ST. -- Notable Regency style house.

10 KING ST. -~ Nathaniel Ingraham'’s House, c. 1791.
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19 KING ST. -- Notable Georgian period house with Greek Revival piazzas,

built by Thomas Lamboll.

21 KING ST. =-- Patrick O'Donnell's ﬁouse, c. 1851. 0O'Donnell, an Irish-
born master builder, is said to have built this Italianate style
s mansion for his prospective bride, but took so leng at the task

that she married another. Consequehtly the name, "O'Donnell's

Folly," was applied. The houée‘s library section dates from 1800
—_— _
but was rebuilt after the earthquake of 1886. Home of Josephine

Pinckney, the novelist, from 1907 to 1937. It was alsc the home
of ﬂrs{ Thomas R. McGahan, who is said to have been the model for

Melanie in "Gone With the Wind." The Poetry Society of South

.Carolina was organized here in 1920. The Piping and Marching

————

Society of Lower Chalmers Street has held its annual "routs”

here for several years.
22 KING ST. -- Alexander Chisholm Housé, ¢. 1789. Mansard roof iater.
23 KING ST. -- Notable. Thomas Lamboll Hbuse, 18th Céntury. Regency

‘balcony from 56 Broad Street.

24 KING ST. == Notable single house, John Laurens North House, before
1820. Balcony also from 56 Broad St. -

27 XING ST. -- Miles Brewton House. Built between 1765 and 1789 by'

s e ———

Brewton, a member of the Commons House of Assembly. Has been

called the most important Georgian town house in America. Most
. i — =
- of the fine Georgian interior woodwork and the beautifully. de-
tailed woodwork of the exterior was designed and carved by Ezra

Waite, a woodcarver from London. His work shows the influence .

of Thomas Chippendale, the famous English cabinetmake:. The fine
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line of outbuildings, in the 18th Century English "Gothic" styvle,
are contemporary with the house. The wrought iren fence and gateway
to the forecourt of the house afe of the same period. The tin
lanterns are copies of the originals, those having rusted beyqnd

use. The heavy iron bar with the spikes, called a "Chevaux-de-

frise," is said to have been added after the Denmark Vesey insur-
Laniins PN

rection plet was revealed in 1822, Brewton, his wife and children

were lost at sea in 1775. His sister, Mrs. Rebecca Brewton Motte
‘ W—
occupied the house during the Revolution, when it became the head-
e e e et st T Tt .

quarters of Sir Henry Clinton and Lords Rawdon and Cornwallis.

The story that Mrs. Motte locked her three yoﬁng daughters in-the-
attic while the British were in the house may or may not be true.
Clinton's.profile and the picture of a full-rigged ship were etched
on one of the marble manteis by one of the British officers. 1In

1865, the house was the headquarters of Union Generals Meade and
P —— :

b G A A Sy 1 5550 T e AT i

Hatch. The.house has continued to be owned by the family of the

builder.

39 KING ST. -— C. 1847 by Richard Yeadon.

41 KING ST; -- Valuable pre-Revo;utionary'House,

44 KING ST. =~ C. 1796 by John McKee, brickmason.:

46 KING ST. == C. 1851 by Walter Webb.

50 KING ST, -- V&lu;ble early Georgian house, <. 1729 by John Cowan.

52 KING ST. -= Valuable early Georgian house, c. 1730 by Edgar Wells.
In the 1780s, océupied by Dr..Georgé Hahnbaum, physician to Gerxman
Fuseliers, later a founder of the Medical Scciety of South Carclina.
The trajectéry of a cannon ball can be traced.throﬁgh the house's

timbers.
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55

- 70
73
75
77
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81
84
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KING ST, =-- C. 1768. Valuable Georgian style house with Regency piazzas.
KING.ST. ~= C. 1762 by Frederick Grimke. Later the home of Charles
Fraser, 19th Century miniature painter and author. (;’JL&L;)

KINthf. -« Jens Peter Fink's Bakehouse, c. 1842,

KING ST. ~-- C. 1820, Converted from store to residence,

XING ST. ~-- William Elliott House, c. 1739. Notable Georgian house.
KING ST. -~ Notable antebellum house.

KINGiST-”-—.FraﬁcismBaker House, c. 1747. Notable Georgian.

KING ST; -- Notable house, unusual gable,

KING ST; ~= Notable structure, <. 1786.

KING ST. -- Site of Fayelle's Long Room, where in 1819, La Societe

' Francaise, oldest

French benevolent society in the U.S., was organized.

{Marker on ‘98 King is in wrong location.) Peter Fayolle, a pro-

fessional French dancer, conducted dancing school in his long room.

94-98 KING ST..-- Valuable group, c. 1742. No. 98 built by John Vaun.

114 KING ST. == C. 1758 by John Wagner, merchant. Berlin's store since

1883.

136 KING ST. -~ Site of Quaker Meeting House, now County Parking Garage.

"

Three Quaker meeting houses, the last one destroyed in the 1861 fire,

stood on this site. The property was deeded to the Society of

Friends by John Archdale, a Quaker who was Governor of the Province,

1695=-96., Mary Fisher, who tried to convert the Great Sultan of

Turkey to Quakerism, preached here. The property was owned by

the Soéiety of Priends in Philadelphia when purchased Ly the

Cbunty of Charleston. THe first unit of the parking garage was

completed 1970, the second in 1975. Before the second was built,

the graveyard was excavated for remains. The tombstone and remains
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of Daniel Latham, who brought the news of the Patriot victory'at
Fort Moultrie to the Continental Congress, were moved to the park
adjacent to thg County Office Building on Court House Square.

152 XING ST. -- Built 1866 by George W. Flach, German jewéler. Site
of home of Thomas You, silversmith, burned in great fire of 1861,
Building has had numerous uses, including a peried as a Chinese
laundry. Now headguarters of the Préservation Society of Charleston.
The soclety was organized in the 1920s as the Society for the
Preservation of O0ld Dwellings, whose first projects included helping

to fescue the Jﬁseph Manigault House and the Heyward-Washington

House. The society is the city's largest preservation group in
membership. - |

164 KRING ST. =— Charleston Library Scciety. Organized in 1748 by a

- group of young gentlemen who Qished to keep ‘up with. the scientific

and philosophical issues of the day, the society recei#ed a Royal
charter in 1754. The present building was constructed 1514.
The society is the third cldest of its kind in the U.S.

165 KING ST. == Built in 1875 by William Byrne, grocer and liquor dealer,
as a residence, 7

169 XING ST. —- Built between 1866 and 1872 by Mrs. Emma B. McKenzie.

171~173 KING ST. =-- Built between 1865 and 1872 by Mrs. William Enston.
This double commercial building replaced a building built in 1835
by William.Enston, merchant ana philantropist (see his history
under ENSTOﬁ HOME} . Earl Maze, a bicgrapher of Richard Nixon,
grew up above his father's grocery store at 171 King.

186 XING ST. -- C. 1829 by Andrew Moffett. One of Charleston's most

interesting storefronts.
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187-191 KING ST. -- Built after 1848 by William Enston (see his story
under ENSTON_HOME). Note granite-columned storefront in Gothic
Re?ival étyle.

200 KING ST. -- Commercial building with Adam style residence on upper
floors. |

202 KING ST. —-=- Built in 1912 by John Rugheimer, Sons, merchant tailors.
A native of Germany, John Rugheimer founded the business in 1864,

_after an injury incurred while blockade running for the Confederacy
barred him from sea duty. The business continued in operation until
1972;

225 KING ST. -~ Riviera Theatre. Built in.1939 by.Albert Sottile, this
building is Charleston's best example of Art Deco architecture.
it stands on the site of the Academy of Music, which opened in
1369 and was for 70 years one of America's best known theatres.
Sarah Bernhardt and other'internationally-known performers played
the Academy. See marker on Market Street side of building.

240=-242 KING ST. =-- C. 1838 by Joian Hunter. Formefly the Waverly House
hotel. Now headquarters of Washington Light Infantry.

241 XING ST. -=- C. 1839 by John Siegling, German born music merchant.

" Remodeled in 1900 by his descendants. Siegling's Music House,
the oldest in the country, until it closed recently, was founded
in 1819 and moved to this location in 1830.

260 KING ST. =-- Kerrison's Departmeﬁt Store, South's oldest department
store. Founded in 1830 by Charles and Edwin L. Kerrison. The
store put its resources at the disposal of the Confederacy and,
in 1889, was the first store to employ saleswomen. The present

building was constructed 1920.
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268 KING ST. -— McIntosh Seed House. One of Xing Street's cldest businesses,
established 1839. Present building, c. 1850, facade added 189%4.

270 KING ST. ~- Masonic Temple in Gothic Revival style, built in 1872
of brick and stucco. The architect, John Henry bevereaux, though
a Roman Catholic, took the Entered Apprentice Degree of Maéonry.in
order to curb possible ériticism that the building was designed by
a non-Méson. The building was remodeled iL the 1950s.

281 KING ST. - Kress Building. Built in 1330s in Art Deco style.

313 KING ST. == C.-1812. Restored in 1939 by Jack Krawchek, pioneer
restoration. Notgworthy rear garden.

319-325 XING ST. == 014 American Hotel. Facade <. 1850 by Robert F.
Henry, combining several older. buildings. The facade combines
masonry, iron and tin construction. Burned in 1974, restored in
1975.

329 KING ST. -

1

Gloria Theatre. Movie house added in 1927 by Albert
Sottile to existing antebellum structure.

340 KING ST. =- Bullt after 1821 by Mathew Miller, jeweler., Facade

]

13940s.

342 XING ST. -- Built after 1821 by Mathew Miller, jeweler.

371 XING ST, -- Garden Theatre, c¢. 1918 by Albert Scottile. 7

370 KING ST. ==~ Headquarters of Fellowship Society, founded in 1762
to establish a hospital. Loaned money to U.S. Govermment during
the Revolution and War of 1812 and to Confederacy. Provides care
for widows and orphans.

387 KING ST. -~ Francis Marion Hotel. Built 1922-24 by Marion Square
Realty Co.

PASS MARION SQUARE (which see}{
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405 KING ST. -- St. Matthew's German Lutheran Church. The 265-~foot
steaple ofrthis church cnce made it the téllest structure in
South Caroiina. Congregation organized in 1840 for German-speaking
Lutherans. Their first building, at Hasell and Anson streets, is
now St. Johannes' Evanéelical Lutheran Church. The church in 1856
'purchased land outside the city for Bethany Cemeter?. Having
outgrown the old church, the congregation built the present one
in 1867-72. Patterned after a German church, this Gothic Reviwal.
structure was designed by architect John Henry Devereaux. .A fire
in 1965 sent the tall steeple crashing spectacularly into Xing
Street. The church was rebuilt exactly as it had been, at a cost

~of mere than a2 half million deollars.

f?? 404 KING ST. =-- Charleston County Library. Built in 1960 on site of
City Guard House, the city's police station from 1887 to 1905.
Sculptures by Willard Hirsch, Chérlesfon aréist, added to build-
ing in 196€1.
409 KING ST. -=- Notable antebellum building. Was the Rev. Ferdinand
Jacobs Seminary for Girls. G.W. Aimar & Co., druggists, has oc~

cupied ground floor since 1852. The building was a "wayside hos=

pital” during Confederate War.

431 XING ST. =-— Condon's Department Store, Established in 1899 by James
F, Condon. Present building'on northwest corner built in 1927,

that on southwest corner built 1948.

456 KING ST. -- William Aiken House, c. 181ll. Aiken was president of

e

the South Carolina Canal and Rail Road Co. 'The house is a registexr-

L/////’ ed national landmark as the birthplace of America's first railroad

L.

to use a steam locomotive to pull a train of cars on a track in
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regqular service. The railrocad began operation on Christmas Day,
1830, between Charleston and Hamburg, S. C. A full-scale model

of the first locomotive, "The Best Friend of Charleston," is dis-

played in a small building in the rear. The railroad was the first
—

to carry the U.S. Mail. The company went through various changes,

subsequently was purchased bylthe Southern Railway system which
‘uses the building as Division Headguarters, A railroad museum is
also in_the building. BAiken added the east wing of the building
afte: 1831. Note alsc the Gothic Revival carriage house,

500 and 502 KING ST. -- Built in 1894 by Isaac and Nathan Jacobs.

517 KING ST. -=- Edward's Department Store, First store opened here
1926 by Edward Krbnséerg. Edward's now.has more than 20 stores in
its chain.

556 KING ST. =-- C. 1883 by George S..Hacker, lumber merchant.

358 KING ST. -- C. 1859 by George 5. Hacker, i;mﬁer merchant, with

facade rebuilt after earthquake to match that of 556 Xing.

IADSON STREET

2 LADSON ST. -= James Shoclbred House, ¢. 1793. Shoclbred was Charlesteon's
first British consul. Thoﬁgh built after the Revolution, the in-
teriors are in pre-Revoluticnary Georgian style. |

LAMBOLL STREET

Lamboll Street has wvariously been called Smith Lane, Dedcott's

o

Alley, Rivers Street and Kincaid Street. Its present name comes from -
the Lambell family, early tombstones of whom can be found in the Cir-

cular Churchyard,

14 LAMBOLL ST. -~ C. 1850 by Patrick O'Donnell, master builder,
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"Wedding-cake" style.
15 LAMBOLI, ST. =~ C. 1908 by Benjamin Howard Owen, wholesale druggist
. - from Tennessee. "Colonial" style.
22 LAMBQLL ST, ~- C. 1822 by Richard Baker. Once rectory of St. Michael's.
28 LAMBOLL ST. -~- Kincaid's Eastern Tenement, built ¢, 1777 by George
¥incaid, one of four merchanfs who f£illed in a large tract in this
-area to create building lots. The Western Tenement is now 4 Legare
st. |
LAURENS STREET
Laurens Street is named for Henry Laurens, President 6f_the Contin-
nental Congress. His house, built in 1763, stood on the southeast corner

of Laurens and East Bay streets until 151e.

39 LAURENS ST. =~ This house, built <. 1788 by Thomas Winstanley, was
moved twice by Historic Charleston Foundation -~ first from 116
Anson St., on the site of the Municipal Auditorium, then from 42
Laurens St., where it had been kept on blocks for éeveral years.
The foundation completed restoration of the huilding in 1975.

45 LAURENS ST, =~ C, 1804 by Thomas Wallace, noted Cha:leétén cabinet-
maker.

'48lLAURENS ST. -- Built after 1807 by Simon Jude Chancegnie, French
consul, Fine.éxample of small scale single house with beautiful
interiors, including an outstanding marble Adam style m;ntel;

49 LAURENS ST. == C., 1804-09 bz_foungs Hasmef and John Haslett, specu-
lative builders. |

50 LAURENS ST. =-- Built before 1808, Piazzas later.

53 LAURENS ST. =~ Valuable antebellum house.
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55 LAURENS ST. -= Jervey House, ¢. 1818. Valuable double house with
fine interiors. Traditions says owners put powder kegs in bhase-
ment wifh intention of blowing up the house to prevent spread of
1838 Ansonboro fire. Luckily, the fire did not come this way.

57 LAURENS ST. -— C. 1836. The builder’s daughter married Pierre G.

| Stoney and the house remained in his family until recently,

House is built of black cypress, a highly durable local wood,

61 LAURENS ST. == James Mackie House, ¢. 1800. This two story frame
house with fine mantels and interesting stairway was moved from
the Municipal Auditorium site by Historic Charleston Foundation.

LEGARE STREET
Legare Street was early called Johnscn's Street, for Sir Nathaniel
Johnson, Governor of the Province, 1703-09. Later it was named for
Solomon Legare;'prdsperous Huguenot silversmith who owned considerable

property at Legare and Tradd streets.

4 LEGARE S5T. -- Kincaid's Western Tenement, c. 1777. Has unspoiled
Georgian interiors. Eastern Tenement is 28 Lamboll St.

7 LEGARE ST. -- This house, built 1887=90 by Henry Laurens, has an

"earthquake-proof™ floating foundation. It alse had a mansard 3 ? .

roof until 1937, when the house was remodeled to its present

appearance by‘Dr."Jqseph'I. Waring.
8 LEGARE ST. -- Notable house, c. 1857, with valuable iron gateway.

Home of the late Burnet R. Maybank, mayor, governor and U.S.

senator.
10 LEGARE ST, =~ C. 1857.
14 LEGARE ST. -- C. 1800 by Francis Simmons, John's Island planter.

L“"",, "Pineapple" Gates after 1816 by George Edwards, merchant and
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planter, whose initials are in the ircawork in either side of the
piazza entrance. Home from 1880 to 1930 of J. Adger Smyth, mayor
of Charleston.
15 LEGARE ST. =~— John Fullerton, who built several fine houses fér
others built this one for himself, <. 1772. Fullerton, a Scottish
born Patrict, died on thé eve of the Revolution. His house was
occupled by British staff officers in 1780-82}'according to tra-
dition.
16 LEGARE ST. -- Miss Amarinthea Elliott, plantress, built this house
with fine interiors c. 1795.
18 LEGARE ST, =« C. 1800, shows West Indian architectural influence.
21 LEGARE ST. == William C., Gatewood, Virginia=-born factor, built this
" house between 1843 and 1852. Note masking windows on piaﬁzas.

[ ————

GCatewood was actively interested in thé'lottery business and was

associated with the South Carolina Ldttery.J
22 LEGARE ST. =- C. 1764. Has fine interior woodwork, wrought #ron i

fence, _ ' _ _ : !
23 LEGARE §T. -— C. 1B38 by Dr. Robert Trail Chisolm. Was home of

.Herbert Ravenel Sass, noted-author, historian and naturalist.

Notable irpn gates.;t entrance, said to be c. 1817. Tradition

says a ghost appears only to members of the Chisolm family.
25 LEGARE ST. -—qurmer stable, now a residence.

26 LEGARE ST. =~ This was a Victorian house with a columned portico

i before it was remodeled in the Georgian style in 1937 by T. Wilbur

Thornhill, oil broker. Stephen Thomas was the architect for the

remodeling. The grounds include an Oriental garden.
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29 LEGARE ST, =-— C, 1835 by the Rev. Paul Trapier Gervals, who used the
first floor of a brick house built before 1788. - In 1895, Josephine
Pinckney, the novelist, was born here,

31 LEGARE ST. == C. 1789 by Mrs, William Heyward. House has valuable
Adam style decorations, particularly in second floor drawing room,
which has a Paliadian Qindow in the southern bay. Since shoftly
after the Confederate Ware, the home of descendants of'Augustine

T. Smythe, attorney. The ghost of young James Heyward, killed in

a hunting accident, is said to appear in the library. Society for
the Preservation of Spirituals was organized here,

37 LEGARE ST. =— C. 1774 by Gen. William Moultrie, Revolutiocnary hero
and governor of South Carolina.

32 LEGARE ST. =~ Sword Gates House. Before 1740 Solomon Legare, Huguenot

—— . —
silversmith, acquired a large tract at the southeast corner of

by,

Legare and Tradd streets and built his héﬁSe, now gone. Thisg
portion of the property passed to his granddaughter, Elizabeth
Legare, whose second husband,: Isaac Holmes, survived her. Holmes,
a Revoluticnary Patriot,.was governor in 17%1-92 and custom col-
_lector in 1791-97., Due to debts to the federal government he
incurred as customs ceollector, the property was broken up and sold.
Two German mer;hants, Jacob E.A.. Steinmetz and Paul Emil Lorent,
bought up the Holmes property in parcels between 1803 and 1818.

Befo

18, they built the masonry and frame portions of the house

and linked them tbgether with a frame addition, as the three por-
tions appear on a plat of that year, . Also appearing on the plat

is the btrick wali on Legare Street, which disproves the legend

~that Madame Talvande built the wall to prevent girls at her boarding
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from eloping ~- the wall was already there when her husband,
Andrew Talvande, bought the property in 1819, However, the elope-
ment which inspired the legend is apparently true. Col. Joseph

Whaley's daughter, Maria, and George W, Morris of New Jersey, main

characters of the story, were married in 1828. Because of a law
prohibiting aliens from owning property, an act of the state leg=-
islature was necessary in 1835 to confirm Madame Talvande's right

to inherit the property from her husband, who had died without

becoming a U,S. citizen. In 1849 the property was purchased by
George A. Hopley, merchant and British consul. ©Noted for his
elegant hospitality, Hopley added a game room and remcdeled the
house in the Empire style. He.is said also to have added the Sword
Gates, which had been made a decade before by Christopher Werner.
Accordingsﬁoutradition, Werner was commissicned in l838'to make
iron gates with Roman swords for the Guard H;use which was con—“
structed at Broad and Meeting streets, and madé one more pair than
was needed.. The Roman swords are symbols of authority. A subse-

. quent owner, Robert Adger, is said to have planted the avenue of
magnelias in 1856, The formal gérden which once filled most of
the frsnt yvard was said to have been designed by Philippe Noisette,
for whem the'Noisetfe rose is named, but there is no evidence to
prove that. In 1881, this became the home of Judge Charles H.
Simonten, speaker of the S.C. House of Representatives and U.S.
District and CircuitlJudge. Author Hervey Allen was a tenant here
in 1921-22. Mrs. Jessie Lincein Randolph, a granddaughter of Abra-
ham Lincoln, owned the property in the 1930s but never lived here.

The house is reputed to have several ghosts. The masonry and frame
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portions of the house were divided into two residences in 1960.
The masonry portion is now a home as well as a small motor inn,
with an address on Tradd Street.

LEGARE STREET, from Tradd to Broad, originally was named Friend Street,
in honor of the Societg of Friends, or Quakerst From Broad to
Queen, the street was named Allen, for the man who allowed the
_street to be cut through his property. Later, Allen Stréet be-
came part of Friend and after 1900 the entire length became Legare
Street.

39 LEGARE ST, -- C. 1852. Notable architecture.

43 LEGARE ST. == C. 1759 by Charles Elliott, whose daughter, Jane,
married Cal. William Washington, Revolutionary herp. Facade re-
modeled 1911. | |

67 LEGARE ST. -- Crafts School. Founded in 1%59 as the Friend Street

(:6;35‘ School, this building burned in 1861 and was rebuilt in 1882.
M“" W‘-‘m Remodeled in 1915, HNamed for William (_:raf_ts, statesman, lawyer,
- writer and free school prcgonent.
LIMEHOUSE_! STREET
9 and 10 LIMEHOUSE -- Two similar houses built by William Pinckney
_lshingler, planter and cotton broker. He built No. 9 about 1856
and sold it the next year because of business reverses. He re-
couped.his fortune, however, in time to‘begin bg%ldinq No..l0 about
1858._ . |

7 LIMEHOUSE == Original house cn Limehouse lands, -c. 1830 by Robert

Limehouse,
LINE STREET
Line Street is named fo; "The Lines," the fortifications erected

across the peninsula at this point during the War of 1812. The Lines
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were pulled down about 1823,

27-29 LINE ST, =-- Plantation style suburban house built c., 1823 by
James N. Elford, maker of mathematical and nautical instruments.

44 LINE ST. -~ South Carclina Railroad engine repair housé, c. 1850,

106 LINE ST. =~ Calvary Episcopal-chuxch.' Congregation organized in
1847 for black Episcopalians. First five rectors were white.

The first church stood at Beaufain and Wilson streets and sold
to the Housing Authority of Charleston in 1940 ahd demolished in
1961._ The present building was built in 1941-42. Simons and
Lapham, architects, designed it in the Gothic style.

LOGAN STREET

4 LOGAN ST. =~- Antebellum house, built by Dr. Edward Frost for his son.
Gutbuildings in rear predate house and originally served house
around corner at 128 Tradd st.

6 LOGAN ST. =-- St. Peter's Episcopal Church burial ground. Church built;
here in 1834-36, burned in great fire of Dec. 12, 1861 and was '
not rebuilt.

16 LOGAN ST. -~ Site of home of E;W.M; Mackey, Reconstructionist speak-
er of the S5.C. House of Representatives, |

122 LOGAN ST. —- Notable house. Late 18th or early 19th Century.

LOCXWOCD DRIVE

WEST POINT RICE MILL, built in 1860.on site of previous mill built in
1840 by Jonathan Lucas. Ceased operations in 1927, In 1937,
restored by City of Charleston and Works Projects Administration
and mﬁde terminus for trans-cceanic seaplane service. During
World War II, office building and recreation center for the Mine-
craft Baée, U.S. Navy. Restored again in 1966 as headquarters for

Trident Chamber of Commerce.
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CHARLESTON MUNICIPAL MARINA is on Ashley ﬁiver behind the Rice Mill.
.LODGE ALLEY WAREHCUSES

In August, 1973, the Save charlestoﬁ Foundation began its nationwide
campaign to ralse more than $1 million to save an approximately cne-acre
complex of buildings on Lodge Alley and East Bay, Cumberland and State
streets. The group of mostly 19th Century warehouses was slated to be
leveled to make room for a 70-unit, high~rise condominium building.
Most of Ledge Alley, with its ties to Colonial and Revolutionary histery,

was to become part of a parking lot for the condominium building.

fhe foundatien w#s successful in raising the money through donations
and loans and purchased the pfoPerty from the developer. Anothe; developer, é
the Save Charleston Development Corp., agreed to develop the érea into ]
residences, shops, offices and a motel, retaining most of the old ware— ' l
house walls. Initiaticn of this project has been held up by the national ;

recession. However, the warehouses remain standing and waiting to be

adapted for new uses.

Lodge Alley, one of the city's oldest streets, alsc remains, although
it is no lenger a public thoroughfare. - It appears on a.map of the city
in 1739, at which time it was called Simmons Alley. In the latter part
'qf the 18th Century, it acguired its present name from the Marine ﬁodge,
Society of Freemasohry,_which was located there. 1In this lodge was con-
structed in November 1774, a_parade float used in protest against the
British tea tax and in support of the Charlestown Tea Party. The float
has been reconst:ucted for use in the local American Revolution Bicen-
tennial celebraticn.. The_Marine Lodge, two story wooden structure,

has disappeared.
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Existing buildings in the Lodge Alley warehouse complex include:

2 LODGE ALLEY =-- Small two story brick warehouse with a high gabled roof
of construction characteristic of the 1840s. It was probably built
by Etienne Poincignon, a wealthy tinsmith, who in 1845 acquired
the two lots fronting on East Bay Street, the rear portion of which
lots the building occupies.

4 LODGE ALLEY -- Small two story brick building constructed c. 1817 by
Joseph S. and Henrietta C. Barker.

‘183=-185 EAST BAY -- Three story commercial buildiﬁg, c. 1880, by 0.T.
Wieters and W.G. Marjenhoff,.grocers.

187-189 EAST BAY -- Two story brick commercial building built c. 1845
by Etienne Poincignon. When he bought this site in 1845, it Qas
occupled by two houses which had been rebuilt after“the 1796 fire
by Samuel Cordes and Samuel Porcher. On thé,sduth'elevation, along
Lodge Alley,. .may be seen the fenesﬁration of Cordes' three story
single house. Poincignen bricked up the windows of.thié wall and
used it in building the present double commercial structure with

its Italianate facade on East Bay.

191 EAST BAY =~ The front part of this. building is a Charleston single
house of c. 1800. Theodore Gaillard left this property in 1805
to his daughter, Henrietta, wife of Joseph S. Barker. The building
Q( . has a Charleston-made iron storgfront on the first floor} aéted
1887 and apparently installéd when the facade was rebuilt.after
the 1886 earthquake. |

197-199 EAST BAY -- Three story double commercial building, bﬁiit.c. 1852

by James Walker.
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195 EAST BAY —- A look;alike of No. 197-199, this building was built
in thé 18503 by isaac Barrétt.

201-203 EAST BAY -- Built by I.M. Pearlstine after_the tornado of Sept.
29; 1938;_destroyed #.three-story building on the sife, which was
built by S.S. Farrar about 1852. |

SOUTH SIDE, CUMRERLAND éT. -~ Midway in this block is a range of brick
buildings with Flemisﬁ bond construction, built c, i839 by Jochn
L'Aiﬁaéblé Pezant, native of Santo Domingo. |

44 STATE ST..-- Threelstory single house, built in 1799 by Simon Elstob

"on land leaéed from John Loveday.

46 STATE ST. -- Former Vigiiance Fire Engine House, built c. 1817 by
‘the City of Charleston, | |

48 STATE ST. -- Twe story brick ﬁarehouse, built either befofe 1811
by Peter Trezavant or Seforellazz by Joseph S, Barker,

50 and 52 STATE ST. =~ Warehouses built before- 1888,

| MAGAZINE SfREET
Magazine Street is named.for a sefies of powder magazines which
were built at its western end. The first, built about 1737, was called
the New Magazine to distinguish if‘frqm the old one on Cumberland Street.

A second and larger one was built in 1748 and stoed until after the

Revolution. The adjoining area of four acres had been set aside in

1680 as public land and.was used as a burying ground. Later, the

magazines, the Poor House, hospitals, the Work House for runaway slaves,

and the Jail weres built on the square, which was bounded by Magazine

Street on the north, Mazyck (now Logan) Street on the east, Queen Street

on the seouth and Back (now Franklin) Street on the west.
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21 MAGAZINE ST. -- 0ld Jail. Built ¢. 1800. Octagonal wing added 1820-22

e

by Robert Mills, architect. John and Lavinia Fisher and other members

of their gang were impriscned here in 1819=20. Four white men
cenvicted of encouraging.the Denmark ﬁesey plot of 1822 also were
impriscned here. Pirates, the last of tbeir kind, were impriscned
here in 1822 while awaiting hanging. After the Denmark Vesey plot,
the law required that all black seamen be kept in the jail while
their ships were.in port. During the COnfEQerate War, this was a
military prison. Originally, tﬁe octagenal wing was of four stories
with a two story qctagonal towef. The tower and fourth story were

removed after severe damage in the 1886 earthguake. Continued in

use as county jail until 1939, when purchased by Housing Authority

as part of Robert Mills Manor project. Being developed into a

museum, 1975. o . 'l
MAIDEN LANE

One of the last cohblestone streets in Charleston.

5 MAIDEN LANE -- Antebellum house built by Henry FIEming;
| MARYET STREET
34 MARKET ST. -- Old Church of the Redeemer, c. 1916 as seaman's bethel.
Built by Charleston Port Scciety on land giveh a mentber of the
Pinckney famil?. The pulpit is in the shape of a ship's prow and
the baptismal font was on top pf'a capstan. Port Society, organized
in 1823, originally had a church on Church Street. A seaman's home

was operated in connection with the bethel here. The church was

converted intoc a restaurant several years ago.

i
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85 MARKET ST. -- Site of Chicco's Cafe. Vincent Chicco, tﬁe "¥ing of
the Bligd Tigers," had his headquarters here. Chicco led the
fight 1ocall§ against prohibition. He became a local hero and
was elected repeatedly to City Council. "Blind tiger" was the
name given to an establ;shment to which one paid admittance to
see the "blind tiger {(which of course didn't exist)" and recesived
a "free" drink. Charleston had many "blind tigers" in the 1890s

when statewide prohibition was enacted.
MARY: STREET

26 MARY ST, =--~ After 1825 for Mrs. Aann Julianna Miller.

44 MARY ST. -« Notable antebellum house,  Note interesting masked

piazzas and Savannah style entrance portico of cast iron. i



172

MEETING STREET

1 MEETING ST. =-- Notable house, built c. 1846 by John Robertson, cotton
broker, Formerly the Ross Memorial Museum, housing the art col-
lections of the Ress family. The collections and house were sold,
with proceeds going to the Charleston Library Society and the
South Carclina Medical Society. It is once again a private resi-
dence,

7 MEETING ST. == Josiah Smith, built c. 1783. Headquarters of the
Charleston Club, 1881-1927. Distinctive features include the
octagoﬁal lantern or cupela, semi-circular portico. Smith re-
claimed much of the marshland between Meeting and King streets.

8 MEETING ST. -~ Ladson House. Note decorative iron balcony.  Tradi-
tion says federal scldiers were quartered here in 1865,

12 MEETING ST. —- Netable house.

15 MEETING ST. == Jochn Edwards House, <. 1770. Edwards was.a member of
the ‘Council of Safety. Later the home of John Bee Holmes, Patriot.
Valuable architecture -- note shiplap siding scored to simuléig

[

stone blocks.  The large semicular piazzas are said to have been
[ e e

added by an owner who wished to accommedate all children from the

Charleston Orphan House for ice cream parties.
16 MEETING ST. -- Calhoun Mansion. Completed in 1876 by Gecrge W.
Williams, banker and merchant, this ié one of the most important
\J}//f Victorign mansions on the Atlantic Seaboard. W, P. Russell was'
the architect. Became a hotel called the Calhoun Mansion after

World War I,




taking the name of Williams' son~in-law, Patrick Calhoun, a grand-

son of John C. Calhoun.

18 MEETING ST. -- C. 1803—06 by Thomas Heyward, Signer of the Declaration

p—

of Independence. Later home of the Rev. Thomas Smyth, theolcgical

writer. A secret wine closet is on the second floor.

23 MEETING ST. == Albert Detmar's House, c. 1750,

25 MEETING ST. -=- C. 1760 by William Hull.

26 MEETING ST. == C, 1822 by William Mason Smith, planter. Design zat-

tributed te William Jay, English architect. Regency style.

27 MEETING ST. -- Valuable post-Revolutionary house. Cast iron gates
recent addition.

30 MEETING ST. -- Started c. 1769 by Thomas Young, completed in 1770

\//// by Col. Isaac Motte, planter. Hessian headquarters in Revolution.
- .
Tradition says Hessian soldiers hid in chimneys in 1782 to aveid

being evacuated with the Britiﬁé: Col. Motte was commissicned . in

BT -

the Royal American Regiment in 1756, but served with Gen. Moultrie

in Revelution. In 1780 he went to the Continental Congress.

31 MEETING ST. -~C. 1792 by Lt. Gov. James Ladson. Original entrance

was on Ladson Street, was changed to the piazza entrance in the é:

1840s, when house was remodeled by Erastus M. Beach. Victorianized

after 1877 by Christopher P. Poppenheim, planter and hardware mer- ;w
chant. Notable garden with impressive fountain. | _ | f
34 MEETING ST. == Bull-Huger House. Built between 1759 and the Revo-
lution by Capt. John Bull, his widow, Mrs. Mary Bull, or their
LI’,”' érandaughter, Mrs, Elizabeth Blake. Fine Georgian interiors.
Eesidence 1775 of last Royal Governor, Lord William Campbell, who

\ :
married Mrs. Blake's cousin, Sarah Izard. Lord Campbell made
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35

36

37

39
42
43

47

48

51

\//// a Bhode Islander who made a large fortune as a merchant in Charleston,

his nighttime exit through thé garden of the house to Vanderhorst

Creek, where a boat waited to take him to the H.M.S. Tamar. He

took with him the Great Seal of the Province, marking the end of

Roval government in South Carclina. Daniel Elliott Huger acguired

the house in 1818 and it has been in his family since. LaFayette

i e

was entertained here in 1825, Huger was an eminent jurist and

-

legislator and 21 of his descendants served in the Confederacy.
MEETING ST. —- C. 1720 by William Bull, Lieutenant Governor of the
Province,. From the front steps, Gov. Robert Y. Hayne dissuaded
a group of Nullifiers from préceeding to the harbor to seize a
U.S. ship and declare war on the Union.
MEETING ST. -- Valuable pre-Revolﬁtibnary house, altered in taste of
mid=-12th Century. | |
MEETING ST. == Before 1775 by James Simmons, aﬁtorney. Bows added
before 1846, Home of Otis Mills, builder of ﬁills chsg and of
Michael P. O'Connoer, ﬁ.s. dongreséman.
MEETING ST. -~ C. 1767 as St. Michael's rectory. Designed by Miller

& Tullerton, architects.

METTING ST. == Former D.W. Ohlandt énd Sons Store (1860~19586).
Remodeled as residence 1959.

MEETING ST. =- Notable house.

MEETING ST. -- Notable antebellum house.

MEETING ST. -- Built in 1840s by otis Mills, builder of Mills House.
In 1850s home of James Adger, merchant and steamship line operator,
reputed to have been the richest man in South Carolina.. Now Firsﬁ.n

Baptist Church Scheol, a day school.

MEETING ST. ~-=- Nathaniel kussell House, built ¢, 1809. Russell was
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His house is one of the cutstanding Adam houses of America. It

boasts a free flying staircase rising three floors without visible

support, oval rooms and fine Adam decorations. Russell's heirs

PE——— e e e -

sold house to Gov, R.F.W. Allston, who lived here while governor.

Later it was the Academy of the Sisters of Our Lady of Mercy.

Historic Charleston Foundation bought house in 1955 and has re=-
e b st

stored it as a house museum, with the foundation’s headquarters

on the ground level.
52 MEETING ST. == Office of Dr. Edmund Ravenel (1797-1870). Given to

Historic Charleston Foundation in 1964 by Mrs. Ransom D. Hooker,

in memory of her husband, Dr. Hooker. Foundation uses it for ticket
sales,
54 MEETING ST. =-- Timothy Ford House, c. 1800, Builder was ﬁ New Jersey-

born lawyer, Later home of Dr. Edmund Ravenel, conchologist.

57 MEETING ST. -~ First (Scots) Presbyterian'qhurch. Congregation

organized in 1731 by 12 Scottish families who withdrew from the

———

Independent Church and formed the "Scots Xirk."” The first build-

L—"

ing was a frame one and stood in the southeast corner of the present
graveyard, It was enlarged in 1763 and twice during the years 7 |

.1793-1808, The frame building was replaced by the present huild-

ing in 1814. It is the fifth oldest church building in the city.

L

The seal of the Church of Scotland can be seen in the_window over

the main'entrance, JA number of tableté'adorn the walls, notably

—
one to Lady Anne Murray,'painted on wood.. Silver and pewter tokens
-were formerly used for admission to Communion. In the graveyard

gt e

are more than 50 stones dating before 1800.
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59 MEETING ST. —Q'Efénford-Horfy House. Built c. 1767 by William

v

60 MEETING ST. -

Branford, planter of St. Andrew's Parish. Piazzas added by Elias
Horry, his son;in-law; C. 1830. Iron piazza.railings same pattern
as those of South Carolina Society Hall. Horry was a planter

and president of the S5.C. C;nal and Rail Road Co. when its rail-
road was the longest in the world. Waticonally impertant archi-

tecturally.

.William Ellis's Western Tenement, <. 1771. Later

remodeled in high Victorian taste.

61 MEETING ST. -— Former stable to 59 Meeting St.

64 MEETING ST. =-— Andrew Hasell House, ¢. 1788-89.

68 MEETING ST. =

C. 1810 by John‘Cordes Prioleau, factor and planter.
Remodeled in 1890s by William Bachman Chisolm, phosphate fertilizar
manufacturer. Madame Rosalie Acelie Togno had her school here,
1855-62. Dr. Charles Y. Shepard Jr., after 1885, had his labora-~

tofy fof‘énalytical chemistry in a small building in the garden.

69 MEETING ST. --,b. 1796-1800 by Dr. John Ernest Povas Jr., physician;

72 MEETING ST, -- South Carolina Society Hall. 3Built irg

Fine Adam style interiors,

designed by Gabriel Manigault and is considered one of the city's

‘ﬁostlﬁéiﬁable-Adam style buildings. Portico was added in 1825,

M Ty

'"designéd by Frederick Wesner., The lantern stands appear to date

"""-l-—._.,.——u-—u-.._-_
from the 1760s and were apparently salvaged from an earlier building.

The South Céfélina Soclety was organized in 1737 by several

P,

Huguenots., It was first called the "Two Bit Club," as members agreed

ﬁb—‘——-“—'——..._,__.—-é
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to contribute 15 pense a week to the relief of a Huguenot tavern

owner. The sgociety later established schools for orphans and indi-

gent children -= a Male Academy and a Female Academy -=- which were
. [ — ,

in operation until the city established a public¢ school system

g

nearly a century later. The society now donates scholarship funds

to the College of Charleston.

76 MEETING ST. —-- Judge Elihu Hall Bay House, c. 1785, Since 1942,

the rectory of St. Michael's.

BPOST OFFICE PARK ~=- Until the earthquake of 1886, the federal courthcuse

stood here. During the building of the present Post Office, this
area was used for storing building stones. Park created in 1904.
A wooden annex to the Post Office was built on part of it in the.

1940s, The park was restored in 1964.

80 MEETING ST. -- St. Michael's Protestant Episcopal'Church.:'Oldest

church edifice in the city, it was erected on the site of the first

——

-

St. Philip's. Construction began in 1752 and was completed in

i

176l. Samuel Cardy, a native of Ireland, was the master builder
R e

and may have been the architect. A mysterious "Mr. Gibson" was

also identified as the architect in a contemporary aécount. James

Gikbs, the English architect whose famous church of St. Martin=-in

i RSttt

the-Fields is similar in respects to St. Michael's, might have

—

been meant. The clock and bells were imported from England in 1764.

The bells were taken to'Englan& 25 a prize of war by the British,

but later returned. During the Confederate War, the bells were

sent to Columbia for safekeeping, and were burned in the great fire

————

there in 1865. However, the metal was salvaged and sent to England

e

j—

to be recast and rshung. The bells have thus crossed the Atlantic

e i =
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five times. The steeple is 186 feet high, with a weathervane seven
e S
and one-half feet long. The tower sank eight inches as a result
of the 1886 eafthquake. The chancel rail cf”iron dates from 1772.
The pulpit with its‘hassive sounding board is original. Pew No.
43 was used by George Washington in 1721 and by Gen. Robert E. . gf' L&'S’
e e e o~
Lee 70 years later. The original Snetzler crgan was installed in
e,
1768; the case and some of the pipes were used when a new one was
installed, 1911. The steeple served as the city's fire lockout and
alarm tower until the latter part of the 19th Century. The gates

to the churchyard, on Meeting and Broad Streets, were made and signed

by I.A.W. Iusti. Eminent persons huried in the churchyard include

— e,
James L. Petigru, John Rutledge and Charles Cotesworth Pinckney.
S B rtmronny e T

In the southwest corner is a cypress grave marker known as the

"Bedstead Tombstone,” placed there in 1770.

prem————_—____J

77 MEETING ST. -- Charleston County Courthouse. The first South Carolina

;u///f/f

State House, built on this site in 1752, was destroyed by fire in

1788. This building was built on the same foundation, with the

old walls and‘doorways being retained. It was completed in 1792, v/, ‘

two years after the state capital was moved to Celumbia, so it was'
apparently never used as a state_hcuse, but always as a courthouse.
The north extension was added in 1941 and the main entrance on

Broad Street was closed.

'.100 MEETING sT. -—;Firep:opf Building.' Designgd by Robert Mills, it

o

was begun in 1822 and completed in 1827. County records were kept

in this building, the first fireprocf structure in the U.S5. Now

.'Héadquarters'df the South Carclina Historical "Society.
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105 MEETING ST. -- Hibermian Society Hall, completed in 1840. Thcmas

S—— -

U. Walter architect. Portico rebuilt after 1886 earthquake. The

society, founded in 1799, elects a new president every year, alternating

between a Roman Catholic and a Protestant. A piece of stone from
the Giant's Causeway stands on the portico, was brought from County

Antrim, Ireland, in 1851. Note Irish harp above deoor and in over-

e

throw of iron gates. Ironwork thought to be by Christopher Weraer.

E——

St. Cecilia Society Balls and other brilliant social occasions are

held here.

115 MEETING ST. == Mills~Hgmees House, Stands on site of the original

Mills House Hotel, dating from 1853, later called the St. John's

Hotel. Gen. Robert E. Lee was a guest here in 1861, when the great

/  fire of that year forced him to leave the hotel. The building was.

blackened, but did not burm. In 1968, the old hotel was torn dowh3Q

and the present building was erected in the same style. The old
T .

iron balcony was retained and the terra cotta cornices were copied.

~—

130 MERUENG ST —w=—Biventemiat-Park--developed. 1275,

134 MEETING ST. ~- Site of the Scuth Carolina Institute Hall, where the

Ordinance of Secession was signed Dec. 20, 1860. The hall and

the building next south of it, which housed the "Teetotalers Club,”
were'destrdyed in the great fire of 186l., The present building was
formerly the Charleston Evening Post plant, 1914~532°

135 MEETING ST. -- Gibbes Art Gallery. Built 1905. Headguarters of

Carolina Art Assn. Noted for collections of South Carolina portraits

—,

and miniatures. Artists represented in permanent collection ine

clude Benjamin West, Charles Willscon Peale, Rembrandt Peale, Gilbert

Stuart, Samuel F.B. Morse, Thomas Sully, Charles Fraser and Edward




Green Malbone. Displays of Oriental jade and Jasanese prints,
asuﬁéii as contemporary works. |

138 MEETING ST.'-- Lane Hall, Circular Congregational Church Parish
House. Built 1870, was used for éervices.unfil present church was
built.

141 MEETING ST. -- Architect Edward Brickell White des%gzzé-zgigﬁgffff

Revival building, built in 1876-78 for the Charleston Gas Light

—

Co., a forsrunner of South Carolina Electric and Gas Co., whose

office it now is.

150 MEETiNG ST, == Circular Congregational Chuzch. The earliest dissent-

ing church in South Carolina, the Independent Church of Charlestown
was established about 1681, Its members were French Huguenots,
e

Scotch and Ixish Presbyterians and Congregationalists from Englanﬁ

.and New England. The first building of white brick, known as the

White Meeting 3ouse, gave Meeting Street its name. A new Church

was built in 1732 and wés usedqas a héspital_by the British during

the Révolution. In 1804, the-first.circular churcg; éesigned by

Robert Mills, architeqt, was built. Except for the round auditorium,

it resembled St. Michael's. This church was destroyed by the

great fire of 1861; The ruins stood until shaken doﬁn by the

earthquake.of_Aug. 31, 1886. Using the old brick, the present

.structure was built on the same site. Its architectural stylas

is Romanesgue. The graveyard is one c¢f the oldest in the city
T e e,

_and has legible inscriptions dating to 1729, 1In 1961, this church,

along with others in the Congrecgational-Christian denomination,

joined with the Evangalical-Reformed denomination to form the

United Church of Christ.
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158 MEETING ST. -- Site .of Carteret Bastion. See marker on building.
188 MEETING ST. == City Market. Stands on site of filled in creek and

marshy lands donated by Pinckney family for a city market. Market

established and built hetween 1788 and 1804, although none of the

present buildings are that old, the market having been rebuilt
several times after fire and tormade damage. Market Hall, erected
V’/,// in 1841, was designed by Edward B. White in Roman style. Sheep

e r—— r

and bulls' heads decorate the building's frieze. Second floor now

houses the Confederate Museum and is headguarters for the Charleston
Chapter, United Daughters of the Confederacy. Note marker.,
200 MEETING ST. =-- Site of Charleston Hotel. When built in 1839, it

[ V—

was one of the most notable hotels in the United States. . Designed

by architect Charles F. Reichardt, it had a Corinthian colonnade

extending the full length of the bléck aloqg Meeting Street.
baniel Webster, Jenny Lind, Thackeray and Queen Victoria's daughter,
ﬁrincess Louise, were among guestsf |
209-235 MEETING ST. -- Row of commercial buildings dating from c. 1840
' to c. 1915, many with cast iron store fronts. Historic Charleston
P/) .

é)fl i:pu- J © Foundation acquired an easement to preserve the facade of No. 213
clf

. after the building burned recently. The facade serves as the entrance
Q%;' to a parking lot.
256 MEETING ==- Lutheran Service Center. Main portion of building was
. built as a bottling'plant for carbonated artes;an water, in the
late 1%th Century.
262 MEETING ST. -- Artesian Well. This well.ané several others once
provided water for the city._ 

264 MEETING ST. -- Fire Station, c. 1888.




;33$§u§ﬁﬂ537§5MEETING ST. ==~ Two residences built by Hart family. No.

i 268 wag built c. 1850. No. 270 was built shortly after the great
fire_of 1838.l:Facades were probably added after the 1886 earth-
quaké_ e

271 MEETING ST. (NW Eorner, Meeting and Society) -~ Site of Shirras' Dis-
pensary. Alexander Shirras was a Scot merchant who died in 1811,
leaving a trust estate to found a dispensary for the pocor. The
Dispensary building was built here. Many vears ago the Dispensary
was moved to Roper Hospital and the Dispensary building and Shirras’
house were razed.

275 MEETING ST. -~ The Trinity Methodist Church. Organized in 1791 as
the Trinity Primitive Methedist Church, with a building at Hgsell
Street and Maiden Lane. Initially the deed to that property was
i# thé nﬁme'of the minister, the Rev. William Hammett. _When he died,
‘he willed it to his successor, the Rev, Mr. Br;zier. He sold the
church and grounds to the rgctor of 3t. Philip's EpiséOpal Church,
to the consternaticn of his flock. Although-thé-Episcopalians
had moved in, erected pews and dedicated the churﬁh, some of the
Methodists obtained the key, moved in and barricaded the building.f

" They remained there for several months until the courts awarde&;the
property to the Methodists in 1816. Two other buildings were erecﬁ@f}
ed on that site, in 1838 and in 1902, Ip 1926, the congregation
purchased the present building, whichrhad been first the Central
Presbyterian Church; then the Westminster Presbyterian Church.

Designed by Edward C. Jones, architect, the Greek Revival struc-

ture was modeled after the Church of the Madeleine in Paris,

x

278 MEETING ST. -- Notable antebellum house, e
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286 MEETiNG ST. -~ C., 1807 by Abigail Noyer.

289 MEETING ST.. .=~ Built in 1870 as the Deutsche Freundschafts Bund
Hail, this Gothic Revival building has been used as a U.S.0. and

Laf”ﬂ"’ as.a Masonic Hall. The Bund, organized 1832, is now the Arion

Society.

288 MEETING ST. == Site of Gabriel Manigault House, replaced by service-
station made from materials from house.- See marker on building.

296 MEETING ST.‘-- Strobel House, c. 1800. Miniature Adam style house.

309 MEETING ST. ---Romanesque style building, built in 1890s for Con=-
nelley's Funeral Home.

313 MEETING ST. == Built after'l796 by John Adam Horlbeck, who witﬁ
his brother, Peter, built the Exchange. Victorianized aftér 1892
b? Jesse M. Connelley; o i |

PASS MARION SQUARE (Which See).

238 MEETING ST; == Citadel Square Bapfist Church, Organized in 1854
as Fourth Baptist Church and worshiped in the Orphan House Chapei
on Vanderhorst Street. In 1855 merged with Morris Street Baptist
Churgh and purchased present site, taking the name Citadel Square

Baptist Church. The present building was built 1855-56. Archi=

tects Edward C. Jones and Francis D. Lee designed it in the "Norman" ‘;

e S

style. The cyclone (hurricane of 1885) toppled the 220-foot steeple
andxthe earthquake the following year resulted in further damage.

The steeple was rebuilt, but not to its original height.

342 MEETING ST.-~ Second Presbyterian Church. Organized in 1809 as
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"The Second Presbyterian Church of the City and Suburbs of Charles~

ton." When built If I[BO9=iir-~the-churelr wis Sutside the city limits.

———————-
It is the fourth oldest church structure in the city. The brothers,
o""’_-'——_‘_-_“_—-
James and John Gordon were the architects and builders. The steeple
e s pderanp s
was never built because of a lack of funds. The church bell was

a——-

given to the Confederacy in 1862 for use as cannon metal. BRefore

b

the Confederate War, the galleries were used by the church's more

than 200 black members. One of them left a legacy which is used

for werld missions. The Communion silver disappeared during the

Confederate War but was returned in 1866. Dr, Thomas Smyth, pastor

- 1834-73, was a noted author and theologian. The sanctuary was.
completely renovated after a fire in 195389. Situated on one of the

highest points in the city, the church appeared on mariners' maps

as "Flynn's Church,"” so called after the first pastor.

WRAGG SQUARE -- The small park in front of the Second Presbyterian
Church, was given to the ¢ity by Major John Wragg for a "Common for
the free use of the c¢itizens.”

350 MEETING ST. =-- JoSeph Manigault House, ¢. 1803. Designed by the

owner's brother, Gabriel Manigault, Charleston's most famous amateur
architect. One of America's most important Adam style houses.

In the 1520s, when thg house was in danger of destruction; the
Society for the Preservation of 0ld Dwellings began campaigning

to save it. In 19533, Princess Henrietta Pignatelli, a Charleston
nativé, gave the house to the Charleston Museum. The garden was
recreated from drawings of the original. The domed garden house

was not the original entrance to the grounds; the main entrance was
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formerly on John Street. When built, the Manigault House was a
suburban villa,

MEETING AND JOHﬁ STREETS, NE_prggr -~ New site of Charleston Museum.
Oldest Museum in the U.S., founded 1773. Funded by the City and
County of Charleston and by contributions and memberships. The
museum's collections were housed in various plaées, including the
College of Charleston main building, and moved to 121 Rutledge
Avenue in -1907. When a new building is erected on this site, the
museum will move its collection here.

WRAGG MALL is another common donated by Maj. John Wragg for the citizens
of Charleston. It contains an acre of land. Sometimes called

l/’/’ Aiken Mall because Gov. William Aiken, who lived facing the mall

at 48 Elizaheth St., donated the trees planted here.

382 MEETING ST. -- Courtenay Elementary School. On this site in 1852,

the first public¢ schoecl in the city was erected at the "one=mile

stone." 'Present building completed 13856. Note marker on building.

448 MEETING ST. =~- Wesley Methodist Church. Congregation organized in
1873 in the basement of St. James Methodist Episcopal Church on
Spring Street. Church built in this location 1875. Present building

erected 1962, -

665 MEETING ST. -- Old Car barns for Charleston Street Railway Company.
Now Transportation Department facilities of 5.C. Electric and Gas
Co.
MONTAGU STREET
Montagu Street was named for Sir Charles Greville Montagu, Governor

of south Carclina, 1766-68., No "E" in the name.




& MONTAGU ST. -~ C. 1803 by John Rudolph Switzer, a saddler,

11

12

13

16

18

20

23

24

25

27

28

29

30,

MONTAGU ST. -- Begun lalé by Schmidt family, completed 1829 by Robert
Eason Conner, gréin merchant and grist miller. Note charming doorway.

MONTAGU ST. —- C. 1812 by Capt. Daniel McNeill, mariner, wholesale
grocer and wine merchant. Rebuilt c. 1900 by Gecrge W. Eagan,
building contractor, who added third story and the three story
bay.

MONTAGU ST. =-— Notable early 19th Century house.

MONTAGU ST. -- C. 1830 by Mrs. Carolina Blackwood.

MONTAGU ST, -~ C, 1788 by Benjamin Smith of Goose Creek. Honme of
Chancellor William Henry deSaussure, first director pf the U.S.
Mint. Exterior remodeled c. 1900.

MONTAGU ST, =-- Built before 1809 by Daniel Cobia, planter and butcher.
Home of Dr. James Moultrie Jr. {1793-1869), a founder of the Medical
College of South Carolina. Home of Gen, Edward ﬁcCrady (1833-1303),
historian. |

MONTAGU. ST. ~~ C. 1843 by Dr, Thomas Everleigh for his daughter,

Mrs. Eliza Rivers. Eacade later.

MONTAGU ST, == C. 1804 by Daniel Bruckner, merchant.

MONTAGU ST. =-- After 1847 for John Robinson, factor.

MONTAGU ST. =- C. 1846 for Mrs. D.T. Heriot.

MONTAGU ST. -

C. 1809 for Mrs. Hannah Groning, wife of Johh Groning,
merchant.. Remodeled several times.
MONTAGU ST. —— C. 1849 by Etsel L. Adams, merchant.
32 and 34 MONTAGU ST. -~ Three Italianate town houses attributed
to Edward C. Jones, architect. No. 30 built by Dr. Christopher
G. White, the double residence by T. Jefferson Tobias and John H.

Lopez.
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40 MONTAGU ST. == C. 1891-94 by Bernard Wohlers, grocery firm manager.
Combines Eastlake, Queen Anne, Shingle styles of aréhitecture.
42 MONTAGU ST. =-- Carriage house, <. 1850, for 93 Rutledge; built by
Edward Lecnard Trenholm, merchant and shipper.
44 MONTAGU ST. -=- Affer 1847 by Jcohn Harleston Read.
54 MONTAGU ST. == C. 1815-20 by Dr. Edward Washington North, physician,
Intendant of Charleston and president of Medical Society of South
Carolina.
60 MONTAGU ST. -~ Before 1802 by Theodore Gaillard, Cooper River rice
plantef and factor. From 1815, home of Gen., Jacob Read, Revolu-
. ////f” tibnary hero and U.S. Senator.  From 1819, home of James Shoolbred}
7 first British consul in Charleston. From 1851, home of Washington
Jefferson Bennett. Each embellished house and grounds in the

taste of his periocd. House has elaborate Adam styie interiors.

62 MO&TAGU ST, == Notable antebellum house.

64 MONTAGU ST. ---Builﬁ befcre 1813 by Thomas Bennett, architect,
lumberman, contractor and mill-owner, Portico over stair landing
later extended into piazza.

MURRAY BOULEVARD

MURRAY BOULEVARD is named for ANDREW BUIST MURRAY, native Charles-

tonian, philanthrepigst and public benefactor. The area back of the

driveway embrécés §7Iacres of mud flats between the original shore

liﬁe and the sea-wéll from the wést end of White Paiﬁt Gardénsr(better

known as "The Battery"} to the wesf end of Tradd Street and Chisolm's P

e v Wt 1 A T A,
Mill, now the U. S, Coast Guard Station. Reclamation of this area by

filling in these mud flats, begun by the City in 1909, was completed

by 1911, and develcoped into building lots. At Mr. Murray’'s suggestion, -
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the driveway along East and High Battery was connected with the newly
filled in area by extgnding the sea-wall of High Battery, and the wall
in front of White Point Gardens southward, and continuing the drive,
the length of the water=-front from the.south end of High Battery to the
end of the new development. This created a riyerside Boulevard over a
mile long. Mr; Murray donated some of the funds for this, but final
costs exceeding early estimates, Mr. Murray added to his original gift,
so that in the end-his contributions amounted to approximately fifty
per cent of the total cost. The Boulevard was named for him as a lasting
memorial to tﬁe public-spirited man, who had started 1ife in the Charles-
ton Orphan House.
ORANGE STREET

Orange Street was cut along the eastern boundary of the Orange

Garden in 1767 by Alexander Petrie, who divided the lgnd'on the west

side of the street into building lots. - Lots on ‘the east side of the

' street were taken from the rear of lots fronting on King Street. The

Orange Gardén, named for the fruit trees planted there, was a public

pPleasure garden, where concerts were given.

4 ORANGE ST. —- Built before 1774 by Blake Seay White. In 1777, bought

by Samuel Carne, a Tory, whose property was confiscated by the
Patriot authorities., House has valuable unspoiled pre-Revolutionary

intericrs.

6 ORANGE ST. -« Built before 1779 by John Stevenson. Gen. Robert Howe

of North Carovlina, commander of the Continental Line in South -
Carolina, lived here briefly during the Revolution.

7 ORANGE ST. -- C. 1789 by Cel. Charles Pinckney.
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8 ORANGE ST. -— C. 1770 by Samuel Miller. Modern addition.

9 and 1l ORANGE ST. ——- Double tenement, c. 1770. After 1836, No. 11
was home of Dr. Samuel Gilman, pastor of Unitarian Church (Which

See).

12 ORANGE ST. =-- Antebellum house.
PI&T STREET

1 PITT ST. -- After 1834 by Charles Henry Lanneau.

2 PITT ST, -~ Built before 1788 by Bazile Lanneau, moved from 34 St.
Philip St., on site of City Parking Garage, by Preservation }
Society of Charleston, 1974. | .

3 PITT ST. -- Built before 1830 by Bazile Lanneau, prosperous currier

and tamner of Acadian origin. <Carriage house in rear may be 18th

Century. Third floor to house added in late 19th Century. |

4 PITT ST. -~ Built after 1815 by Rachel Lazarus, moved from 53 George

St., on site of City Parking Garage, by Preservation Society of |
Charleston, 1974.

5 PITT ST. -= Built by Bazile Lanneau's heirs after 1830. Home of the
Pollitzér sisters, musicians and Suffragettes.

7 PITT ST. == C. 1837-40 by Bazile R. Lanneau, son of the first Bazile
Lanneau who built 2 and 3 Pitt.

9 PITT ST. =- Builtlby Bazile Lanneau's heirs after 1830.

13 PITT ST. =-- C. 1860 by Henry Gérdﬁs, wholesale grocer and commission
mexrchant., Handsome Greek Revival dwélling house.

21 PITT ST. -- C. 1838 for Mrs..Emily Futledge Gaillard, wife of Theodore
Gaillard.

36 PITT ST. ~— Notable antebellum house.

52-54 PITT ST. —-- Site of Brown Fellowship Society Hall and Burial

Ground. Society founded 1790 by free blacks as mutual benevolent
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association. Purchased téis site 1794. " Sold to Bishop of Charleston
1957 and stones moved torékgnolia Cemetery, The society maintained
schools for black childréj.

56 PITT ST. -~ Built before 1822 by Richard Brennan, merchant. Home of
Thomas Lee, U.S. DistricﬁrJudge.

57 PITT ST. =-- Bethel Methodi%; Chufch. A group of Methodists from
the Blue Meeting House in%ﬁumberland Street purchased this site
in 1797 and built the st:éﬁture now called 01d Bethel Methodist
Church (moved in 1880 to éalhoun Street). Present building erected
1853. The a;chitect haslﬁot been identified. During the Confederate
War, Bethel was the only Methodist Church in the city which re?

mained open. In 1974, the structure was placed on the National

Register of Historic Places.
84 PITT ST. -~- Built c. 1827 by Elias Whilden, planter in Christ Church’

Parish. Fine Regency style.

PRICE'S ALLEY

1 PRICE'S ALLEY —— C. 1825 former servants quarters., =

2 PRICE'S ALLEY -- Sewerage pump house, used until 1916, recently con-

verted into private residence.
4 PRICE'S ALLEY <= C. 1760, former kitchen building to King Street house.
Note huge chimney. |
6 PRICE'S ALLEY == é. 1729 by John Cowan.
PRIOLEAU STREET
1 PRIOLEAU ST. ~- Valuable antebeilum commercial building.
BSVPRIOLEAU 8T. =-=- Former cotton warehouse, remodeled as restaurant.
QUEEN STREET

6 QUEEN ST. -- Antebellum warehouse, now studio of 5culptor Willard

Hirsch.
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8 QUEEN ST. =-- Built after 1796 by Joseph Olman.

10 QUEEN ST. =-- Notable antebellum structure.

‘14, 16, 18 QUEEN ST. =— Notable structures.

20 QUEEN ST. =-- Notable antebellum warehouse with West Indian aspect.
Now Footlight Players' Workshop.

22-28 QUEEN ST. -- Row of valuable post-Revolutionary buildings.

23-25 QUEEN ST. -— Notable double tenement, -c. 1806. EBEast side altered.

30 QUEEN ST. == Valuable post-Revoluticnary house.

32 QUEEN ST. =-- Meeting room and tea gaiden for st. Philip's Church.

44 QUEEN ST. -- C. 1800.. Notable house with notable cartouche on
balcony.

45 QUEEN ST. -- Former servants' quarters, made into residence.in 1944.

46 QUEEN ST. -- C. 1800, Valuable house with noteworthy accessory bhuild-
ings.

54 QUEEN ST. -

C. 1760 by Thomas Elfe, master.éabinetsmaker. Miniature
single house with fine Georgian woodwork.
127 QUEEN ST. ~-= Notable example of anteﬁellqm Eingle house. .
129 QUEEN ST, =-- Antebellum single house.
152-136 and 142 QUEEN ST. -- Tenemeﬁts built by Marlboro Realty Co., 1913.
140 QUEEN ST. -- This I;alianate building was built in 1850-52 as the
first Roper Hospital, Designed by architect Edward C. Jones. It
originally had archaded east and west wings. The wings were damaged
L,f’y’ in the earthquake of 1886 and finally.demolished in 1913, when the
main part'qf the building became the Marlboro Apartments.
153-155 QUEEN ST. -= Notable antebellum double tenement.
QUEEN AND FRANKLIN, MNE CORNER ~- Site of Medical College of South Carolina,

built in 1826, two years after the college was founded. The college
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moved to Barre Street, 1914. Building demolished 1938.
160 and 162 QUEEN ST. -- Notable pair ofzantebellum single houses.
165 QUEEN ST. == Nbfable house with Regency doorway.'
122 QUEEN ST. == C. 1850. Notable becard-and-~batten construction ﬁith
"Carpenter’'s Gothic"” style porches.
RACE STREET
28 RACE ST. -- Holy Trinity Greek Orthodox Church. The first Greek
Orthodox Church in South Carolina was built in 1911 at Fishbufne
and St. Philip streets. The Hellenic Community Center was built
at 30 Race St. in 1940. Constructicn of the present chﬁrch began
in 18530 and was completed in 1953. The church is a close copy of
a Byzantine church. Icons in the interior were by Photis Kentogleou
of Athens, Greece.
RADCLIFFE STREET
26 RADCLIFFE S§T. == Central Baptist Church., Church Built in 1891,
designed by John P. Hutchinson, a black architect. Thé'inte;ior
contains murals by A. Mohammet Milai, a native of Calchﬁta, India.
57 RADCLIFFE ST. -~ C. 1816 by Mrs. Sophia Francis Perry Shépheid Wilson,
o.flbefore' 1816 by Thomas Radcliffe Shepherd.. a Wést indian style
 house dating from the time when this: was country. o
RUTLEDGE AVENUE |
22 RUTLEDGE AVE. -- C. 1902 for Dr. Mannin§ Simons; Desigﬁéd by Bradford
Lee Gilbert of New York, architect'for the South Carolina Interstate
and West Indian Exposition, neld 1901-'02 on present site of Hampton
?ark.
30 RUTLEDGﬁ AVE. -~ C., 1902 by Mrs, Anna M. Wagner. Originally étood

at 28 St. Philip St. and was moved in 1375 by Dr. Anna M., Wagner,




grandaughter of the builder. The move was coordinated by Preser-

vation Society of Charleston, which moved several structures_frbm
the site of the City Parking Garage.

40 RUTLEDGE AVE, -- Built c. 1903 by A.W. Todd, architect. Stucco con=
struction made popular by S.C. interstate and West Indian Exposition.

42 RUTLEDGE AVE. =-- C. 1856-59 by Thomas J. O'Brien.

44 RUTLEDGE AVE. -- C..1874 by Thomas J. O'Brien.

61~63 RUTLEDGE .AVE. —-- Berkeley Court Apartments. Built c. 1922 by
Edward J. Murphy, builder of Fo;t Sumter Hotel. Fireproof con-
struction throughout building.

67 RUTLEDGE AVE. -=- C. 1851 by Ccl. James H. Taylor, nétive of New
England. "Persian" style architecture.

74 RUTLEDGE AﬁE. ~- Built c. 1770-83 by Peter Bocquet, planter; In
1793, purchasea by John Mathews, Revoclutionary Patriot, member of
Continental Congress énd Governor of South éarolina in 1782-83,
Chancellor in 1784-97. Formal garden possibly laid out by Bocguet
who was well knowﬁ for interest in botany. House remodeled c. 1300
in Adam style.

73 RUTLEDGE AVE. -- Built c. 1852 by William G. Whilden. Remodeled or
rebuilt c. 1893 by Isaac W. Hirsch, clothing merchant, in Second
Empiré'style. The stag window is a pun -=- Hirsch is German word
for stag. |

81 RUTLEDGE AVE. -- C. 1826 by'Dr. doseph Glover, noted Charleston physi-
cian. Service wing c. 1775. In 1906, purchased by Cavaliere
Giovanni Sottile, consul for Italy. Imposing Regency style house.

93 RUTLEDGE AVE. -- C. 1850 by Edward L. Trenholm. Valuable antebellum

house in Italianate style.' Note Bohemian blue glass in . sidelights
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and trégsom at main entrance. Headguarters of Junior League of
Charleé&oh;

94 RUTLEDGE AVE. -— C. 1853 by Isaac Jenkins Mikell, Edistec planter,
for his third bride. Italian villa style with original ochre
color, Jupiter or ram's héad capitals. Was home of Mayor Jchn
Ficken. Charleston County Library, 1935-60. Now divided into
luxury apartments.

95 RUTLEDGE AVE. == C. 1820 by Thomas Bannister Seabrock, Edisto planter.

97 RUTLEDGE AVE. -- Home of Miss Maud Gibbon who founded Charleston
Symphon? in 1913. Paklo Casals, cellist, was among her famous '
guests., Symphony headgquarters, 1967-75.

101 RUTLEDGE AVE. =-- Capt. F. Warrington Dawscn, editor of the News and
Courier, was fgtally shot in the basement office of Dr. Thomas -~
Ballard McDow here. Story is told in the book,,“charléston Murders.”

*= 104 RUTLEDGE AVE. —- C. 1816 Ly Thomas Bannister Seabrook, prosperous

i?§?* Edisto Island planter. Charming Victorian tower a later addition.
{;f£§3 121 RUTLEDGE AVE. == GCharleston Museum from 1907. Building constructed
1899 by City of Charleston for United Confederate Veterans Reunion.

\,,//// Architect, Frank P. Milburn. ﬁdmpletéd in 90 days at a cost of

\"’//’/, 535;000. Named Thomson Auditorium for John Thomson, who left a
) g) $30,000 bequest_with which most of construction was financed., Site
W\qa‘ once covered by SBennett's Mill Pond, in 1875 filled and designated
yjqqf as Cannon Park, commemorating Daniel Canneon, developer of Cannons-
e, DOEOUGh. Note artesiap well on Calhoun Street side.
135 RUTLEDGE AVE. -~ St. Francis Xavier Hospital. Established c. ;835.
New building completed and occupied, 1926 is now rear wing of new

building, as is a wing added in 1942, The hospital maintains its

own nursing school and hoeme at the northeast corner of Ashley
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Avenue and Mill Street, which opened 1949, The hespital's first

b

nurses' school opened in 1900 in a building which was torn down

- agﬁf” to make room for the new main hospital building.
(ijff?mi) 156 RUTLEDGE AVE. —-- C. 1808. Home of William Johnson, historian and
Justice of the U.S. Supreme Court. ?

172 RUTLEDGE AVE. -— Ashley Hall Schbcl. Built c. 1B1l6 by Patrick

e s

Dunecan. After 1838, home of James R. Pringle, speaker of 3.C.

House of Representatives and Customs Collector. Later owned by

George H., Trenholm, Confederate Secretary of the Tregasury. Charles
O; Witte, German consul, owned the prbperty 1870-1%07. 1In 1909,

Miss Mary Vardrine McBee established the school here.

179 RUTLEDGE AVE. -- Begun 1874 by Edmonds T. Brown, contractor. Com-

| Pleted 12 yeérs later. George A. Wagener was the first to occupy
the house in 1887. His daﬁghter and son—ig-law, Dr. Harrison
Randolph, president of College of Charleston, lived here. Bricks
used.iﬁ constriaction said to have been salvaged from a Goose Creek
plantation house which burned in early 1800s.

182 RUTLEDGE AVE., == Brith Sholom Beth Israel Congregation. Brith Sholom

Orthodox Jewish congregation organized 1854 and dediéated synagogue

// in 1855 at st. Philip and Calhoun Streets, Members of congregation
ﬁ left in 1911 and formed Beth Israel Congregation. In 1945, the
\\u//; present synagogue was built by Beth Israel. In 1855, the two con-

gregations merged as Brith Sholom Beth Israel. The synagogue

was enlarged and the beautiful interior from the old Brith Sholom

sanctuary was rebuilt inside this structure. The remodeled syna-
gogue was dedicated in 1956. The Charleston Hebrew Institute is

housed on the premises.
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185 RUTLEDGE AVE, == C; 1798 by Daniel Cannon for his niece, Miss Sarah
Perconneau Webb. |

554 RUTLEDGE AVE, -- Rutledge Avenue Baptist Church. Organized in
1892 as Caﬁnon Street Baptist Church. Moved to this location with
new natte in 1918.

570 RUTLEDGE AVE. - Salem Baptist Church. This building, erected in

1931 in Gethic style, was formerly St. Peter's.Episccpal Church.

St. Peters, which combined the congregations of Old St. Peter's,

Logan Street and Christ Church, Charleston, recently built a new

church at 1393 Miles Drive. Salem Baptist Church was organized

\DEgJ in 1867 in a house in St. Michael's Alley and bullt a church on :

viwgﬁELlne Street in 1912. d'“ . . “ ' . i

/% | A ﬁOISETTE 'S ROSE FARM was about half way between Grove Street and Mt.
Pleasant Street. Noisette, a French hortlculturist sent here by
his govermment to purchase natlve plants sultable for the cllmate
of France, settled and remalned in charleston, and dled here.

The tea-roses he developed while here used to be con51dered the
finest, and were in catalogs of cutstanding rose-growers._ They
include the MARECHAL NEIL, P.AUL NEYRON, DEVONIENSIS, and CLOTH

OF GOLD,




197 ﬁ

ST. MARGARET STREET

WEST END of ST. MARGARET ST, -- ﬁowndes' Grove Plantation House. The
Grove Plantation was developed about the middle of the 18th Century
by John Gibbes. His plantation house with its large garden of
exotic plants, was destroyed during the Siege of Charleston by
the British in 1780. it stood some distance to the southwest of

the present house, which was built before 1790 by George Abbott

iR ST
Hall. The house was remodeled in the Adam style after 1804 when
.
it was acquired by Congressman William Lowndes, The front piazzas,
L -
with Gothic Rewvival arches on the ground floor, were added c. 1830
. ——— ey SRR

by the Rose family. Later the home of Capt. F.W. Wagener, who kept .
a private racetrack on the plantation and allowed the property to

be used by the South Carolina Interstate and West Indian Expositicn

in 1901-02. The plantation house was used as the Women's Building
S ST :

‘during the Exposition, President Theodore Roosevelt had dinner

there, on his visit to the expostidn. Acquired in 1917 by James

.

Sottile, who developed the faxm into building lots, leaving the

Grove House with an entire block of gréunds.
ST. MICHAEL'S ALLEY

8 ST. MICHAEL'S ALLEY =-- Law office of James Louis Petigru. Built in

AR e R O
1548. Designed by E.B. White, Petigru, a leader of the Unionist

. ARSI, SRR E T

L,aaf’”"‘.Party, was an outspoken opponent of secession.

]
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15 ST, MICHAEL'S ALLEY -=- Post-Revolutionary accessory building to 76

Meeting St., converted into residence.
ST. PHILIP STREET
50 ST. PHILIP ST. ~- Site of Charleston Female Seminary, founded in
| 1870 by Miss Henrietta Aiken Kelley, Was cne of the leading

schools for girls in South.

134 sT. PHILIP‘ST. -- st. Pgtrick's Roman Catholic Church., Parish
established 1837. Present building constructed 1886-87.

218 ST. PHILIP ST. -- Built after 1849 by thn H. Hartz, grocer. In

1920-29 was Peoples Federation Bank which was, according to tra-

dition, the first black bank in the city.

SMITH STREEf
34 SMITH ST. == C. 1855 by George Robertson, merchant. Home of Samuel
Pickens, who fired the second shot of the Confederate War.
47, 48 and 49 SMITH ST. — Notable antebellum houses.:
51 SMITH ST. -- Notable Antebellum house, remodeled.
52 SMITH ST, -- Notable antebellum house in Italianate style.
54 SMITH ST. == Notable antebellﬁm house with fine docrway.
59 SMITH ST. ~- C. 1818 by Joseph Jenkins. Valuable architecture.

63 SMITH ST. == Notable antebellum house.

‘67 SMITH ST, == Notéble post-Revolutionary house.

89 SMITH ST. -- Valuable antebellum house. Note bays with windows and
drapery simulated in wocod.
SCCIETY STREET

Society Street is named for the South Carolina Society which bought
T : [~ % NV,

the property c. 1759 and established the street.
w‘uﬂu_‘
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32 SOCIETY ST. ~- Gabriel B. Browne House, c¢. 1846, Unusually large,
well proportioned rooms and large kitchen building.

36 SOCIETY ST. -—— C. 1840 by Henry T. Street, commission merchant.

40 SOCIETY ST. == Mrs. Juliana Dupre's house, c. 1854,

42 SOCIETY ST. -~ Mrs. Juliana Dupre's house, ¢. 1850. Mrs. Dupre's
two houses, evidently built for rental property, show how much
in demand geood houses for rent were in Charleston. Planters flee-
ing malarial rice plantationé spent the summer in the city énd often
rented ﬁouses for their families during the stay. The.servants
came too, so suitable accessory buildings were prowvided.

43 SOCIETY ST. -- C. 1840 by Robert M. Venning, Christ Church planter
and factor. Onezéf several houses in the neighkorhoed built by
Venning family.

44 SOCIETY ST. -- Isaac Reeves House, c. 1340. Unusual small house deep
in a large Qarden. |

46 SOCIETY ST. -~ C. 1839 by Johan M. Venning, lumber merchant, factor,.
commission merchant and Christ Church Parish planter. .

48 SOCIETY ST. -- C. 1838 by Mrs. Susan Robinson.

49=51 SOCIETY ST, -- The western.part of this interesting building was
bui;t €. 1838 by Edward Reoach. Acquired in 1883 by Rﬁman Catholic
Diccese, which established St. Peter's Colored Schoel here and
added the éastern‘wing after 1894. Later the convent of the Oblate
Sisters of Charity. .In 1973, bought and restored as private home.

55 SOCIETY ST. -=- 0ld High School of Charleston. Designed by Edward
A,

- ——

Brickell White and built about 1842, White also designed the portico

P rEn, [ T NN e,

which-was added in 1850. 1Its terra cotta Corinthian capitals were

lost in the earthquake of 1886. The school moved from here in 188l1.

Gy

g4 - 188/

i
;
?
:
f
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56 SOCIETY ST. =-- Built in 1840 by Dr. Joseph Johnson, medical scientist,

h/,/// astronomer, historian and Intendant of Charleston. MNotable interiors

with spacious dfawing rooms and handscme stairhall,

59 SOCIETY ST. -- Jonah M. Venning built this three-story house for
income purposes, c¢. 1839.

62 SCCIETY ST. -- C. 1830.

64 SCCIETY ST. =- Notable antebellum house.

66 SOCIETY ST. =~ William T. Hieronymeous House, c. 1839. TUnusual cast
iron plazza details. |

SOUfH BATTERY

SOUTH BATTERY. The street now called Socuth Battery, originally was

named "Fort Street,” obviously having been so-called because of
Y

the forts which covered the area in early days. "Fort Street"
. : o

was a small, narrow lane between Church StIESE.and what is now
East Battery. When the street was wideped and extended, not all
at once, but gradually, to what is now Lganod, it was named SQUTH
BAY, and ended in a b;eak-water_extending the width of the street
and the pavements. As the land east of King Street and south of
South Bay was developed into a park, ;nd the sea-wéll along what
we now call Hiéh Batterg‘was continued to join the wall in front
of (south) the-park,.which ended at Kipg Street, thé park although
officially named "WHITE POINT GARDEN", genera;ly was called "THE
BATTERY", and the street from East Battery to King Street became
"SOUTH BATTERY". From King Street west, however, the étreét was’
naﬁéa'and called "SOUTH BAY" up to the time the Boulevard was

created (1911-15). Now the name "South Battery” is applied the

full length of the street from East Battery to Tradd Strest.
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2 SOUTH BATTERY -- C, 1905 by O'Neill sisters -- Miss Mary J. 0'Neill,
Mrs. Elizabeth Pendergast and Mrs. Isabella O'Connor. Rear portion

was part. of carriage house of 1 East Battery, c. 1849 by Thomas

Coffin.

4 SQUTH BATTERY -- Villa Marguerita. Built 18924 in "Italian Renaissance"”

style. Became hotel called Villa Marguerita in 1905. The house {\gﬂ*l\

was built by Maj., Andrew Simonds, president of the First National 'fjﬂa;d

X‘\W . /Y‘b
Bank and commodore of the Careolina Yacht Club. RS - -
- N g o gl
8 SOUTH BATTERY == C. 1768 by Thomas Savage. Bought in 1785 by Col.
' —— SRR AR AR RE

William Washington, a Virginian and kinsman of the first President.
L L
According to tradition, Col. Washington met his future wife, Miss

Elliott when he stopped at her family plantation near Rantowles on

his way to the Battle of Eutaw Springs. He had no flag for his . |
[

command, so Miss Elliott made him one from her mother's damask - ‘ ;
R, [ A ;

curtains. The banner, known as the Eutaw Flag, was presented to '
[P SR .

the Washington Light Infantry by Mrs. Washington. Col., Washington
SR EITSRTIa

is buried on the Elliott plantation near Rantowles,
20 SQUTHE BATTERY —-- C. 1843 by Samuel N. Stevens, altered c. 1870.
22 sSouUTH BATTERY -~ C. 1858 by Nathaniel Russell Middleton, planter.

26 SOUTH.BATTERI == Col, John Algernon Sydney Ashe House, huilt by 1853,

-Edward C. Jones, architect., BHouse is in Italian villa style.

The interior has rounded corners. Col. Ashe; a bachelor, was a
o ’ R TR

son of Col. John Ashe who built 32 South Battery.

32 SOUTH BATTERY -- Col. John Ashe House, c¢. 1782. Valuable Adam interiors.

Note cupeola.
e

39 SOUTH BATTERY -- Moreland House, c. 1827. Floating foundation 6f

palmetto logs makes house earthguake proof. Second story piazza

is an old addition.

=
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44 SOUTH BATTERY ~-- Notable antebellum house.
48 SOUTH BATTERY -- C. 1B46. Excellent Greek Revival in Charleston
tradition.

49 SOUTH BATTERY -- C. 1760 by Col. James English. Occupied by six

generations of his descendants and a portrait of the builder hangs

oy

in the drawing room. BAn old sea wall remains across the rear of

the property.

50 SOQUTH BATTERY == C. 1820 by Mrs. Charles Drake, in style then prev;il—
ing in Washiﬁgton, D.C., from which she came.

56 SQUTH BATTEﬁY ~-= Post-Revolutionary house with picturesque ironwork

L/// and exterior woodwork.

58 SOUTH BATTERY -- John Blake House, c. 1793.

64 SQUTH BATTERY -~ William Gibbes House, c. 1772. Gibbes, a mer;hant,
: S — e
shipowner and plé#fér,‘sﬂilt éhis house overlocking his wharf.
Remodeled in Adam style c. 1800 by S@ith familY; Affer 1826 the

home of Thomas Smith Grimke, lawyer, writer and inventor of simpli-

fied spelling. Later residence of Rev. John Grimke Drayton, who
SIS RS

adopted his mother's name to inherit Magnolia Plantation. Mrs.

L AR

| Washington A. Roebling, widow of buil@g;‘pﬁmg;?q#iyn Bfi&ge,'created
the beaq?%{glhg§;Qen. | '
68 SOUféméngERx -—:C. 1797 by John Harth, planter and iﬁmber merchant.
In 1816 sold to Henry Augustus Middleton who enlarged it. It re-
L///// mained in his family until 1917, when Dr. and Mrs. W.J. Pettus
bought property and craated the.notable garden on filied.marshland.
SPRING STREET |

68 SPRING ST. -~ St., James' United Methodist Church. Founded in 1797 as

St. James' Chapel on upper King Street. Present structure begun

in 1856 as Spring Street Methodist Church. The official name of
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St. James' was restored in 1946. Completion of structure delayed
" by Confederate Wér, and the unfinished structure was used as a

Confederate medical storehouse. After the Confederate War, the

church was given to a black congregation, but restored to St.

James' congregation by order of the President of the U.S. Louis

J. Barbot and John H. Seyle were architects for the building, de-

signed in the Greek temple form with Corinthian columns. |
124 SPRING ST. —=- Plymouth CQngregatioﬁal Church. Black members of the

Circular Congregational Church formed their own church in 1967.

A church at Pitt and Bull Streets was dedicated in 1872. The

present building was built in 1957-58.

State Street was originally called Union Street, in commeration
. p RN

' of the Union of England and Scotland. It became State in 1812, °

SRR

| |

STATE STREET ) i
' 1

f

7 STATE ST. -- Union Ingurance Co. Building, early 19th Century.

Note marker in pediment.

11 STATE ST. -- Notable post-Revolutionary building. I : '

12 STATE ST. -- Valuable antebellum single house.

13 STATE ST. == Valuable post~Revoluticnary building.

21 STATE ST, ~=~ C., 1796 by Frederick Wolfe. Moved from adjacent lot

to north and restored by Preservation Society of Charleston, 1973-74,
25 STATE ST. == C. 1815 by Robert Dorrill.

27 STATE ST. -~ C. 1796,

27 1/2 STATE ST. -~ C. 1Bl3 by John G. Wurdeman.
22-24 STATE ST. == Notable double tenement, c. 1843. -
36 and 38 STATE ST. -~ Valuable post-Revolutionary structures.

42 STATE ST, -- C. 18l16. Restored by Robert N. Whitelaw, late director

of Gibbes Aft.Gallery.
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44-52 STATE ST. -

STOLL'S ALLEY \J)ptﬁ’ ofé)

'C. 1745 by Justinus Stoll, blacksmith. =~ .éé o~

7 STOLL'S ALLEY -

9 STOLL'S ALLEY -- Valuable pre-~Revoluticnary house.

THOMAS STREET
6 THOMAS ST. -- C. 1832 by James Legare. Home, 1856-63, of Robert

[

' Barnwell Rhett, "Father_of Secession,” U.S. Senator who composed
] ol 5

the "Address.to the Slaveholding States." Legend says gates on

Vanderhorst Street side were locked by a young lady of the house
who swore she would not open them until her hushband returned from
the Confederate War. He did not return, and the gates have remain-

ed closed.

12 THOMAS ST. —— C. 1836 by James Legare, wealthy planter and cotton

factor; he alsc built & Thomas.

13 THOMAS ST. =— C. 1823 by Benjamin Faneuil Dunkin;xwho also.built
89 Warren st.

14 THOMAS ST. =-- 5t. Mark's Episcopal church. 'Conqreéatioﬁ organized
1865. This lot purchased in 1875. Building erected 1878 by
Devereaux Brothers. Dr. A. Toomer Porter, founder of Porter Mili-

tary Academy, was rector, 1878-1888. Louis J. Barbot is said to
BH hy

have been the architect.
15 THOMAS ST. -- C. 1839-42 by Samuel Mills, native oA: "achusétts.
This house and twin at 86 Warren St. show New Engiéﬁé influence
in design. |
TRADD STREET
TRADD STREET. The.northwest corner of Tradd Street and EastIBay,
and adjacent lots were owned by a man named Robert Tradd, who}.accord-

ing to tradition, was the first white male child berp i

Charles Town.
; . ‘ oL CS  LOWI.

See LODGE ALLEY WAREHOUSES. r/"b’
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Records of early deeds to property on Tradd Street mention it as "the little
.street'that runs from Ccoper River past Mr. Tradd's house." I£ Seems to
have been.a common custom in the Province to name streets after perscons
living, or cwning éroperﬁy, on them, s¢ it is presumed that was the

way this street got its name.

EAST END OF TRADD STREET. Within the last two decades the extreme East
end of-the street has been transformed from a strictly commercial district
of old warehouses and wharves into attiwactive modern apartments and

homes. At one time all of Tradd sStreet between Church and East Bay had .
‘become a slum area, but in the past quarter century it gradually has

been feclaimed, and the houses beautifully restored, so that now the
street is one of the most attractive in the City. There are a_few

houses of outstanding architectural or historical significance, but

the majority of them are old with éasily recdgnized features of either
Pre~Revelutionary or Post-Revolutionary copst:uction. Many have iron
bolts which indicate the presence of.eazthquake rods, put in to reinforce
and. strengthen the buildings which were damaged in the earthquake of 1886.
Scme of the houses have deep lots'with lovely gardens, which are hidden

behind them, but this insures privacy to the owners.

1l TRADD ST, == C. 1785. During remcdeling in 1927, three cannon balls

o Bty

EFd embedded in brickwork, believed te have been from federal
nent of 1863=74.

were. fo

bomk

5 and 7 TRADD ST. -- C. 1727.-

6 TRADD ST. -- Becfre 1789. HNotable Georgian interiocrs,

8-10 TRADD ST. -- C. 1726. Notable double tenement with unusual rocfline..
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12-16 TRADD ST. and 2 BEDON'S ALLEY -- Humphrey Sommers, a subcontractor
of St. Michael's Church, willed the westernmost three of these
tenements to his daughters in 1788, with instructions and money

to build No. 12.

13 TRADD ST. == Notable house, c. 1781.

i

15 TRADD ST, == Valuahle pre-Revolutionary structure,

17 TRADD ST. =

C. 1750 by Charles Warham. Roofline altered.

19 TRADD ST, -

C. 1745 by John McCall. Site owned c. 1698 by Mary
Fisher Crosse, Quaker preacher, the great-grandmother of McC;ll.
Rectory of Grace Church, 1948.

23 TRADD.ST. -~ C. 1797-1800 by William Bell,lmerchant.

25 TRADD ST. =— C. 1748 hy Maj. William Boone. |

26 TRADD ST. -- C. 1785, Rohert Ewing's Hoﬁsé.

28 TRADD.ST. -- Post=Revolutionary.

32 TﬁADD 5T. == Post=-Revolutionary. _

38.TRADD ST, == C..l718. Sfudio.and reéideﬁce of Elizabeth O'Neill

Mm

Verner, native Charleston artist whose etchings have won her inter-

national féﬁe.
40 TRADD ST, -- C. 1718.
41«43 TRADD ST. -- C. 1746. Jonathan Badger's Tenements.
44 TRADD ST, =- Notable pre-Revolutiocnary structure.

46 TRADD ST, -- C. 1770 by James Vanderhorst. Home of the late Alfred

Z#/,//, Hutty, well known artist, an adopted Charlestonian from Woodstock,

N.Y.
49 TRADD ST. -- Valuable pre-Revolutionary building.
51 TRADD ST. ~-- C. 1737 by Alexander Hext.

53 TRADD ST. -- C. 1736.
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54 TRADD ST. —-= Postmaster Bacot House, c. 1740. Said to have been

Charlestown's first Post Office.

aneuafTibeS

56 and 58 TRADD ST. -- Valuable pre~Revelutionary houses.

\ \

60 TRADD ST. -~ C. 1732 by George Ducat, shipbuilder, for his daughter,
Margaret, on her marriage in 1732 to Dr. William Cleland of Crail,
Scotland.

61 TRADD ST. == C. 1731 by Jaccb Mcotte, Royal Treasurer of the Province.
. i

- Original pane

Louis, Mo. Greek Revival piazzas.

62 TRADD ST. =-=- John T. Marshall, baker and rice and cotten planter,

;

built this structure c. 1852 as a bakery with a dwelling upstairs.
Second floor has fine drawing room of the period. Outbuildings
included a bake house and.quafters for bakery workers. Bakery
conﬁinﬁed in operation'into the 1880s. Acquired 1879 by Dr. Andrew
Simends, bankef} owned today by a descendant.'..
€4 TRADD ST. -~ William Ellis's Eastern Tenement, c. 1771. Western
| Tenement‘has Meeting'Stréet address.
65 TRADD ST. —=- Notable pre-Revoluticonary building.
70 TRADD ST. -?.Judge Recbert Pringle House, 1774, Pringle.was a merchant
and Assistant Justice of the Province. His house; with handsomei
\c*ui”’a’/Georgian interiérs witﬁ excellent carved wocod decoration, continued
to be cwned by his déscehdants to 1886. The family of Arthur Rut-
lédge Young has.owned it siﬁce 1209. |
72 TRADD ST, -- Valuabie double rasidence, <. 1765 by Dr. Alexander
ﬁEothrihgham and Dr, Archibald MacNeill, two physi&ians who married
L«f’”/!ﬂ grandaughters of Robert Wright, Chief Justice of the Province.h

Note jerkin head roof. Now converted into single residence.
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75 TRAbD.ST. == Valuable antebellum house.
78 and 80 TRADD ST. -~ Notable antebellum houses.
92 TRADD ST. == Nétable.antebellum house.
100 TRADD ST. -- Valuable 18th Centuf@ house.
101 TRADD ST; - Notablg 18th Centué@dhouse. s 7
103 TRADD ST. -~ C. 1797. Was a tévern and a music SEHZSL.
_102 TRADD ST, —-- Notable pre-~Revolutionary house, Greek Revival piazzas.
106 TRADb ST. —-= Col. John Stuarf House, built before 1772. Portions
of interior now in Minneapolis Museum of Art. A model of the’
drawiné room is in Charleston Museum., The builder, Royal Com=
k///f missicner of Indian Affairs for the area from virginia to West
’ Fleorida, was a Tory aﬁg-his propertf.was confiscated Ly Patriqt
authorities. 1In 1934, John Mead Howells, New York architect['m .
Bought and réstored the house and c{géﬁed the garden.
123.TRADD ST. == C. 180C, Valuable. | f
125 TRADD ST. =~ C. 1807 by Capt. Wi;liémrgor;ison, sea captain and
merchant.
126 TRADD ST. -- C. 1732. Mzxs. ﬁéter Fayssoux House. _
128 TRADﬁ 8T. -- C. 1765 by Humphrey Sémmers, English born builder.

. West winé a&ded before 1788. .Home of Judge William Draytoh,'
designer of ﬁhe County Courthogse.gnd U.S5. District Cqurt Judge.
From 1830,.home of Elizabeth Lowndes, widqw of Hon. William ifowndes,
stateman. Bi:thplace 1832 of Mrs. St. Julien Ravenel, author of
QCharleston,.the Placé and the Pecople." Greek Revival piazzas
added c. 1840 by Judge Edward Frost, in whose descendants the
ownership remains. .Interior has fine cypress paﬁeled drawing

room with elaborate Georgian chimneypiece and beautiful staircase

with Palladian window.
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129 TRADD ST. =-- Joseph Winthrop House, c. 1797. A merchant from Boston,
Winthrop married Mary Fraser, sister of artist Charles Fraser.
Long line of outbuildings included a doctor’'s office.

131 TRADD ST. -- C. 1805 by Mrs. Ruth Lowndes Simmons, wife of Francis

. 5 R B, PR E.VA N
Simmons who built 14 Legare St. She resided here, while he resided
on Legare Street, the entire period of their marriage.

143 TRADD ST. -~ Tobias Bowles built a house here between 1797 and 1801.
Solomon Legare Jr. remodeled the house c. 1855, in the fashion
of the tiﬁe.

172 TRADD ST. -— C. 1836 by Alexander Hext Chisolm, mill owner. Also
Enown as the John Ashe Alston House.

WEST END OF TRADD =-=- Chisolm's Rice Mill, c. 1830. Was both a rice
r. . _

O
mill and lumber mill. 1914, used Ey Lighthouse Service; since
pr— AL DS |

1939 part of U.S. Coast Guard station.

-

M%ANDERHORST STREET
8 VANDEBHOBST ST. -- C. 1855 by Walter Steele, hat merchant_on Xing
Street. Home of late Gustave J. Knobelochr City Councilman'ana
State Representative.

13 VANDERHORST ST. —- Site of Charleston Orphan House Chapel, c. 1802,

designed by Gabriel Manigault. Demclished 1953 for Sears parking

lot.

64 VANDERHORST ST. -~ John Bickley House, c. 1824, Regency style.

Bickley was lumber factor and rice planter at Goose Creek,
VENDUE RANGE

Vendue Range takes its name for the "vendue masters" or auctiocneers
ARG AT ENNR A,

who had their establishments here. Street has notable rows of.antebellum

commercial buildings, many built by merchants and vendue masters of French
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origin.

15-17 VENDUE RANGE -- Built in 1830Cs by Thomas Napier, Scottish merchant.
WALL STREET |

1 WALL ST. =-- C. 184% by T.D. Wagner.

3 WALL ST. -~ C. 1795 by George Nelson, house caipenter.
WARREN STREET

64 WARREN ST.

1
i

Motable antasbellum plantatién.style house..

86 WARREN ST. —- C. 1839-42 by Lawrence A, Edmondston, brother-in~law
of Samuel Mills who built 15 Thomas St.

89 WARREN ST. —-- Built after 1823 by Benjamin Faneuil Dunkin, a native
of Massachusetts who became Chancellor of the 5.C. Equity Cdur£
of Appéals and Chief Justice of Scuth Carolina.

WATER STREET
2 WATER ST. -- C. 1812. Mansard 1a£er. “
14 WATER ST. -= C. 1769 by Thomas Yéung; Note fire insﬁrénce mafké}

b
B on Church Street siée.

WENTWORTH STREET
Eastern end of Wentworth was early called Trott Street. Street

named for Charles Watson Wentworth, Marquess of Rockingham,

7-15 WENTﬁDRTH ST. == Winslecw Tenements. Built 1841-42 by Edward Winslow.
No. 11 is the "Lucinda Bouson House." Mrs. Agatha Bouson Hoyt
left it in trust as memorial to her mother, and it was devised te
Histeric Charleston Foundation.

8 WENTWORTH ST. -- John T, Henéry built this house in 1850. 3Small house
set far back on deep lot.l |

10 WENTWORTH ST. -- C. 1856 by Charles W. Seignious. Single house with

attached kitchen building.
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12 WENTWORTH ST. =— C. 1852 by William G. Arﬁétrong, manager of Bennett's
Rice Mill. Bovhood home cf James Campbell Armstrong, Confederate
hero. Iﬁposing double parlors.originally opened on piazzas facing
street.

15 WENTWORTH ST. =-= Christopher Myers House, c. 1847.

18-20 WENTWORTH ST. =-=-Dcuble residence, c. 1839 by David Lopez. He alse

W
built Beth Elohim synagogque.

19 WENTWORTH ST, -- C. 1847 by William Lebby, engineer and machinist.

Unusual double-ell construction allows maximum air and light to

all rooms. Notable cast iron fence.

22-24 WENTWORTH ST. ~- C. 1840. Double dwelling built by Francis Q.
McHugh, attorney. Historic Charleston Foundation acquiréd 19686,

Note palmetto trees in cast iron parapet insets.

23 WENTWORTH ST. == C. 1.843 by James J. Jefforc_l.

030 WENTWORfH ST, =— William Thompson House, c; 1843,

32 WENTWORTH ST. =- Also built by Thompson; c. 1843.

_ 34-36 WENTWORTH ST, -- St. Katherine's Convent. Built 1968 for Oblate :
Sisters of Providence. Designed by David LeRoy Parrott, architect.
Site of building of Shearith Israel'Congregation,'built 1847 and |
remodeled in 1866 as St. Peter's Roman Catholic Church. '

38 WENTWORTH ST. -~ C. 1847 by William é; McElheran. In 1880s was part
of C.D. Franke Carriage Factory. Restored 1974-75 as residence.

43 WENTWORTH §T. -- St. Andrewfs'Lutheran Church, Built in 1834 as

L'
Wentworth Street Methodist Protestant Church (the only church of

iy

that sect in the state). Rebuilt after great fire of 1838. In

1866 the congregation merged with Zion Evangelical Lutheran Church,
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making the church a landmark in ecumenism. The Zicn Church had
begun as a mission of St. John's Lutheran in 1851 and dedicated a
building on Mofris Street. Sale of the Morris Street building
furnished money'for renovating the Wentworth Street one. ZInterior

remodeled extensively in 1908, but original galleries and nave

are retained.

RSB A PO
46 WEMTWORTH ST. -- Notable small antebellum building in Greek Revival

stylé.
60 WENTWORTH ST. -- Centenary Methedist Church., This Doric temple

. B
with a hexastyle portico was designed by architect Edward Brickell
NSoTTERLRonaea

‘White, who quarrelled with the building committee about the place-
L .

ment of the small doors on either side of the main entrance. He
lost, and the doors were installed "in violation of architectural
propriety and good taste," according to White, Built as the Second
Baptist Church. Sold in 1866 to the Methodist Episcopal Church.

Nine of the first 12 pastors of Centenary were white.

. 88-90 WENTWORTH ST. -

{See COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON).

87~89 WENTWORTH ST. -- Double residence built hefore 1788 on land leased
from St. Michael's Church. No. 87 had top floor expanded and ex-
terior remodeled in mid-19th. Century, but retains Georgian ﬁantels
on all floors; No. 89 retains original jerkin head roof, 18th
Century facade and one story piazza,

92 WENTWORTH ST. -~ Built ¢. 1850 on land leased from St. Philip's

- Church. House formerly faced Wentworth Street. After 1881,

.Jacob Knobelocﬁ, fiour.dealer,.turﬁed the . house sideways to the
street and thorbuéhly remodeled the exterior, replacing the orig-

inal weatherboarding with German siding, adding a mansard roof and
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new piazzas and entrance door. The house, however, retains its

original interiors of . 18530.

97 WENTWORTH -ST. -- {. 1830 to 1840 on land leased from St. Michae;'s

Church., A twin stood at 95 Wentworth until 1964.

99-111 WENTWORTH ST. (See COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON) .

100 WENTWORTH ST. =— Grace Episcopal Church. Organized 1846. Church

e
built 1848, designed by Edward Brickell White. One of his most

————— i Rl

beautiful Gothic Revival buildings. In 1863, the rector, the Rev,

-

Dr. Chafles Cotesworth Pinckney, was ordered to pray for the Presi-

dent of the United States, and federal soldiers stood by to enforce

the order. Dr. Pinckney complied, stating, "I know of no one who
L
needs praying for more than the President of the United.States,”

Repairs after the 1886 earthquake cost more than the original cost
—

of the building.:
RS TR

112-114 WENTWORTH ST. ==~ (See COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON).

120 WENTWORTH ST. -= John Burckmeyer, butcher, built this house <. 1796.

Piazzas later.

122 WENTWORTH ST. -~ Built after 1791 by John Burckmeyer, who lived here

while building Neo. 120. Henry Muckenfuss, after 1845, added the

third floor, rear wing and piazzas to accommedate his large family.

128 WENTWORTH ST. == C. 1850 by Henry Cobia, wealthy merchant. Elaborate

interior plaster work.

138 WENTWORTH ST. -- Charles Xerrison House, c¢. 1842. cCharles and his

o

brother Edwin Kerrison founded the Scuth's oldest department store.
Design of the house has been attributed to architect Russell Warren

of Rhode Island. The front deor is copied from Minard LeFevre's

book on Greek Revival architecture, while the columns show Egyptian




influence. Hotable octagonal bathhouse in rear is retained, can

best be seen from Pitt Street. From 1947 to 1970, headquarters of

Protestant Episcopal Diocese of South Carolina. Restored recently
as private residence. Gates and semicircular driveway are new.
144 WENTWORTH ST. ~-=- Tradition says this Adam style house was built at {

Dorchester, S5.C. and dismantled and rebuilt on this site about 1865.

Miss Mary Jane Ross leased the house to the Red Cross during World
War I and willed it to the organization in 13922,

149 WENTWORTH ST. -- Rodgers' Mansion. Built 1B85-87 by Francis Silas

= RO TG [

Rodgers, wealthy cotton factor, phosphate manufacturer and coast-
L

A [~ " FEY
wise shipper. Daniel G. Waynes, architect, designed house in Second
SRR R I . . LT

Empire style, named for the reign of Emperor Napoleon III of France.

e

Interior is elaborately finished in mahogany, cak and walnut, with

tile floors and plaster decorations, marble man;els and crystal

chandeliers which were designed for the house. Rodgers, a member
_— e,

of City Council and Chairman of the Board of Firemasters for 31

years, organized Charlesteon’'s first paid professional fire depart-

attended every fire in the city until shortly before his death.

Cotton, the source of much of his wealth, is memorialized in the
L .

bas-relief cornice over the front bay

mg;gégy,'which depicts cotton

plants. After his death, the building became the Scottish Rite

Temple and the star of that order is set into  the sidewalk at the
Lo Y - .

front gate.  Headquarters of Atlantic Coast Life Insurance Co.

.

since 1540,
Lo
150 WENTWORTH ST. =~ Site of home of Christopher Gustavus Memminger,

Secretary of the Treasury of Confederacy. Recently demolished.
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151 WENTWORTH ST. -« Built c. 1849 by Benjamin Lazarus, member of
prominent Sephardic Jewish family. Home of educator Miss Henrietta
Aiken Kelley, founder of Charleston Female Seminary. Altered c.
1917 when remodéled into apartments.

154 WENTWORTH ST. -- C. 1836lby Henry Muckenfuss, master mason.

156 WENTWORTH ST. == C., 1851 by James T. Sanders, mason. Facade c. 1910.

157 WENTWORTH ST. -— C, 1853 by Mrs. Eleanora Wilkinson, widow. She
was mother-in-law cf C.G. Memminger.

164 WENTWORTH ST. ~— Built after 1889 by Carsten Wulbern, wholesale
merchant. North portion built c. 1820 by Dr. Joseph Glover and
Dr. Francis Porcher. During Confederate War, owned by George A.
Trenholm and John B.F. Lafitte, blockade runners.

166 WENTWORTH ST. -- C. 1809 by Job Paimer, native of Palmouth, Mass.,
builder-carpenter, deacon in Congregational Church. Two of his
sons and four grandsons became ministers,” Retains Adam style
interiors. Diamond-cut inscriétion in dining room window pane

says, "Jan. 9, 1861, the first guns for Southern liberty fired

at Morris Point.”

o

169 WENTWORTH ST, -—— C. 1837 by Dr. John Beaufain Irving, physician and

auther of "A'Day on Cocoper River" and "History of the Turf in South
Carolina." Becrn in Jamaica, Irving was Sheriff of the Charleston
District, a factor, assistant cashier of the Southwestern Rail-
road and for 30 years secretary of the Scuth Carolina Jockey Club.
WRAGG PLACE
2 and 4 WRAGG PLACE -~ Survivors of Aiken'’s Row, sevén identical rental

houses built after 1832 by Gov. William Aiken. Also known as the

"Seven Days of the Week," because, in theory, each of the houses
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supported Gov. Aiken's house at 48 Elizabeth St. for one day of
the week, . |
21G ZAG ALLEY
This alley, running north from Atlantic Street, haifway between
East. Battery and Church Street, was named for its "zig zag" course
through its one short'block.' The name was changed to Liéhtwood Alley
for a number of years and recently regained its.original name. Shape

TR
followed shore.line of an l8th Century boat basin.
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"THE BATTERY", or WHITE POINT GARDEN

WHITE POINT GARDEN, the park at the scuth end of the Ccity, is better
known as "THE BATTERY." The earliest recqrds of Charles Town gave the
. names of both "WHITE PCINT" and "OYSTER POINT" to the site of the second
and permanent location of the City. These names probably were derived
from the great amount of whitening oyster shells found on the point of
the peninsula. Because of this "WHITE PCINT GARDEN" seems a logical
name for the-park._ Oyster shells were here in such quantities they

were made use of by the colonists. Cne of the earliest laws passed in

the 1690's ordered crushed oyster shells to cover the streets, and this
material was used for paving thoroughfares as well as sidewalks through-

out the succeeding vears until well into the second decade of this centurvy.

Crushed oyster shells were used for the walks through the Battery until

Murray Boulevard was extended and connected with High Battery i

The park probably was called, unofficially, "THE BATTERY" because

of the fortifications and batteries placed along the sea~front on both
the south and east sides of the city from earliest times, In 1739 Fort
Broughton covered the south end of "WHITE (or OYSTER) PCINT" - during
the Revolution, Fort Wilkins occupied the same site ~ in the War of 1812
guns were mounted on the sea-front, and du;ing the Confederate War

earthworks were thrown up at the point of "THE BATTERY," with gquns com=-

‘manding both the Ashley River and the Harbor.

_ :
It is not generally known that as early a(just a little over f}

- one hundred vyears ago), the City Fathers planned to extend White Point

Garden, and have a "grand waterfront park along the entire south front
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of the City." For that purpose they secured the property south of

"SOUTB BAY STREET" (now called South Battery), and west of King Street.
After the War Between the States, however, needipg funds to suppert
public institutions and charities, they sc¢ld off the water front prop-
erty to private parties, and used the proceeds for the purposes stated
above.

CANNON placed at WHITE POINT GARDEN r=presents the cycle of Ameri-

can Wars in which Charleston has participated. Some of these <annons,

~used in both Revelutionary and Confederate battles were made in South
Careclina at the Hill Foundry at York, S. C. ©One of the Confederate

cannons has stamped on the barrel a plametto tree between the. letters

"s" and "C". Plates and inscriptions identify the various field pieces.
MONUMENTS::
SERGEANT JASPER, and the BATTLE OF FORT MOULTRIE, JUNE 28, 1776,

in center walk near East end of The Battery.

TO THE DEFENDERS OF FORT SUMTER, 1861-1865. Said to be the only
. : 2 .

insured monument in the United States. Funds to keep up the insurance

premiums were left by the donor of the monument.

! . . ANDREW BUIST MURRAY, for whom MURRAY BOULEVARD is named. This
L aane W i,

memorial stands at the S,E. end of the Boulevard, facing FORT SUMTER.

SUBMARINE MONUMENT - to the HEROIC MEN OF THE CONFEDERATE ARMY

AND NAVY who died in the service of the FIRST SUBMARINE AND TORPEDC

T Bi——,

i

BOAT USED IN MARINE WARFARE - 1863-1865. Called the Hunley, it sunk

.

the Union ship Housatonic in 1864. On the north side of the Battery

e

in the center walk, facing Meeting Strget. .

WILLIAM GILMORE SIMMS, native poet, histeorian and novelist -1806-

1870 - In middle walk, west of Jasper Monument.

I........ll.........lIl....IIIIII-IIIIIIIIIIIIIIlEEE%§444444444_______w~_;444444;,
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PIRATE MARKER. Near East end of north walk. See inscription.
R A,
CAPSTAN of the U.S.S. MAINE. At East end of middle walk.

U.S.S. HOBSON. At S.W. Corner of The Battery.
g Y R N BT i,
THE BANDSTAND, placed in center of The Battery by Mrs. Waring P.
Carrington, as a memorial to her parents, Mr. and Mrs. George W.

Williams.

CHARLES TOWNE LANDING

The Landing is a state-operated historical theme park on the site
of the establishment of Charlestown in 1870,

It was developed initially for the South Carolina Bicentennial
celebration in 1970, bu£ continued to be used and improved after that
celebration.

In addition to a palisade at the site of the original settlement,
a full-scale model of a 17th Century trading kééch,'the Adventuré;fmay'
" be visited.

A theatre for showing of the movie, "Carolina" and other features .
of historical interest, an exhibit pavilion which tells the story of .

- South Carclina's fifst century and a geodesic dome where concerﬁs and
other activities are held aﬁe in the Visitors' center.

TherAnimal Forest features animals native to South Carolina seen
in their natural habitat. The forest was developed by Jim Fowler of
the "Wild Kingdom" television series.

An experimental gafden featuring crops that the first settlers
grew, and a Crafts Area, where early town crafts are demcnstrated, more
than 200 picnic tables, and bicycle paths through acres of landscaped

gardens and natural woods, are also among the offerings.
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Concerts and other entertainments, banquets, conventions, dances,
stage productions, craft and pet shows are among the regular events which

take place at the Landing.

COLONIAL LAKE

The lake and its park were part of the Commons established by an

Act of the Commons House of Assembly in 1768, setting aside the area

forever for publie use.

The tradition that the lake was developed as a small boat harbor
for planters has apparently no foundation in fact. Most likely, it
gserved as a mill pond for a succession of sawmills which stood on the

IRt
site of Baker Hospital.

For many years the lake was known as the Rutledge Street Pond.

It acquired the name, Colonial Lake, in 1881, in honor of the "Colonial
Commons"” established in 1768. Some residents still call it "The Pond."
o The park around the lake was develeped in 1882-87. The fountains

were added in 1973, not only for decorative purposes, but also to aerate

the water to prevent fish kills on hot summer days.

"Gala Week" used to be held in the fall of the year, with a fire~

works display on the west side of The Pond, As there were no buildings

on that side of the lake, there was no danger of houses catching fire
from the fireworks shot over the river. The park gave plenty of rcom

for spectators and the lake provided room for boatleads of others.

Now the embankment has been pushed farther westward and the area

ﬁ west of the lake has been developed.
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HAMPTON PARK

Hampton Park, at the north end of Ashley Avenue, was developed after

the close of the Scuth Carclina Interstate and West Indian Exposition

which was held in 1901-02. The park site was part of the 250-acre grounds
et oo T

of the Exposition, in which 31 states and territories and several foreign
. ]

countries participated and at which President Thecdore Roosevelt was
A DY IN

quest of honor. The dome-rocfed bandstand and portions of the gardens
remain from the Exposition.

Mary Murray Drive, the encircling drive which berders the park,

approximates the Washington Race Course, the great race track laid out

by the Seuth Carclina Jockey Club in 1792. The track was the third and

last owned and cperated by the club. The first was the York Course,

1735-1760, located about six miles from the city; the second, the New
N L

Market Course, laid out east of King Street bétween present-day Huger

and Line streets,. 1760-92. Race Street gets its name from the proximity
to the New Market Ccurse. The Washington Course, except for suspension
of races during the Confederate War, when the Confederates used it for

a military priscon, was not clesed until 1895;

The annual Race Week, held in February, brought thousands of peoplg

to the course, where wealthy planters raced their thoroughbred.steeds.
Grand prizes were offered, But many competed "solely for the honeor that
a‘hofse of their own breeding and training should distinguish himself."
Elegantly dressed ladies watched from the Italianate style Grand Stand
which Charles F. Reichardt, the architect of the Charleston Hotel;
designed; the rest of the spectators enjoyed the spectacle and betting
from the sidelines. Race Week was so popular that courts of justice

e oy, e i,
adjourned, schools let out and businesses on Brocad and Xing streets closed.
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The park today presents a quiet contrast to those occasions, except
for an occasicnal jazz or rock music concert. The gardens reach their
peak in the spring when azaleas, roses, wisteria and dogwood are in

bloom, -

MARION SQUARE

MARICN SQUARE was previously known as The Citadel Green., At ocne:
R T S S g

time, it was bisected by Lowndes Street and divided into building lots.

Some houses remained on the King Street side of the square until the

latter part of the 19th Century. Lowndes Street has disappeared, but

Tobacco Street, which runs along the north side of the sguare in front

.of the 0ld Citadel, remains a dedicated public street. According to
an agreement with the City of Charleston, the central portion is to
be kept open forever as a parade ground for the Sumter Guards and the

Washington Light Infantry.

THE OLD CITADEL stand on the site of the Tcbacco Ingpection, a group

of buildings erected in 1790 by the State of South Carolina for the-

storage and inspection of tobacco before shipment. The central portion

of the 014 Citadel was erected for the State Guards fellowing the at-

tempted black revolt led by Denmark Vesey in 1822. Designed by architect
F?ederigk Wesner, it was first built as é two=story brick building with
a wooden parapet, with two-story arches, supported on massive pillars,
around the rectangular courtyard. It was completed in 1830. The arsenal

_-’un-nm
n 1843 \pecame the home of the South Carclina Military Academy, also
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calied The Citadel. The college remained here until 1922. During that
time, the original building was twice made higher and wings were added.

The two wings were added in 1850 by Edward B. White, who alse Gothi-

ey

- s
cized the exterior of the main Eui}é&gg. Only the eastern of White's

wings remains. The main building was made higher again in 1910. The
0ld Citadel now houses county and school district offices and the

Family Court.

JOEN C. CALHOUN STATUE, on the Calhoun Street side of the sgquare,

memorializes that antebellum statesman. Calhoun was an outstanding
member of Congress from his first term of service in 1813 in the House

of Representatives, and was famous as Secretary of War in James Monroe's

Cabinet, as Vice President in Andrew Jackson's administration, and as
tiaipn 2 . .

Senator from South Carclina for 14 years, having been elected to that

office five times,

HORN-WORK REMMNANT. Large block of tabby, enclosed in an iron

fence, stands on the sguare near the Bandstand. 'This is a remnant
OO,

of the city's Revolutionary fortificatiops, which extended across the

pehinsula from river to river, The Hofnwork enclosed the city gates which
stood in the middle of what is now King Street, then called the B:oad'
Path,

RBANDSTAND, designed by architect Augustus Constantine, was erected
in the 1940s as a memorial to Charleston citizens who served in the
armed forces. The back of thelbandstand contains an artesian fountain.
Another artesian fountain in a more traditional style, is on the opposites

side of the saquare.

MONUMENT TO GEN, WADE HAMPTON, C.S.A., honors the Confederate mili-
tary herc, South Carolina governor and U.S. Senator, who was born in _
—E

Charleston.
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THE CITADEL
The Military College of South Carolina's first home was the sturdy

fortress still known as the 0ld Citadel, on Marion Square. The first

Corps of Cadets, consisting of 20 young men, arrived there in March,

In 1861, Citadel cadets on Morris Island fired the first shots

of the Confederate War, a series of warning shots at the federal supply

ship Star of the West, to prevent it from aiding federal troops at Fort

Sumter.
u———

In 1865, federal troops occupied The Citadel and it did not recpen

——

R,

.as a college until 1882.

The City of Charleston, in 1918, gave The Citadel itg present site
1o22,)

The main entrance to the college is the Lesesne Gate, named for:

on the banks of Ashley River, and the college moved here

Thomas Petigru Lesesne, a 1501 graduate who was instrumental in moving

the college to this.campué. The pedestrian gates on either side of the
DA S
large cone were made by Christopher Werner for the City Guard House about

1835,
('_—--_

Buildings of the college are grouped around the Parade Ground, where
each Friday at 3:45 p.m., October through May, the Dress Parade of the
entire Corps of Cadets (some 1,800 strong) is held. Major points of
interest, going arcund the Parade'Ground'counter-clockwise, ars:

- SERAPH MONUMENT -- Honors the submarine which served both the United
States and British Navies in World War II and tock Gen. Mark Clark on

a hazardous'spy mission to North Africa just prior to the 1942 invasion

there.
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CITADEL MEMORTAT, LIBRARY and MUSEU& -— The library contains more
than 125,000 volumes and can accommodate 250,000. Murals and portraits
are displayed iﬁ the library; The museum contains exhibits on Citadel
and military history.

SUMMERALL CHAPEL -~ Named for Gen. Charles P. Summerall, president
of the college from 1931 to 1954. Inside are displayed the 50 state
flags.

CARILLON TOWER —-— Bells were cast in the Netherlands. The tower

- is named for Maj. Thomas Dry Howie, a 1929 graduate who was the famous

World War ITI hero, the Major of St. Lo.

MARK CLARK HALL -- The student activities building. It is named
for Gen. Mark W. Clark, president of The Citadel, 1954-65, now president-
emeritus.

JENKINS HALL =-- The military.science building, it is thought to be
the first ever constructed fei ROTC instruction.i Named for Gen. Micah
Jenkins, C.S.A.

THOMPSON HALL -- The physical education department. Named for
Hugh S. Thompson, twice Governor of South Carclina and the first commissibne:
of the U.S. Civi; Service. |

ALUMNI HALL -- Built with.gifts from alumni. Its top floor houses
the Gadsden Gymnasium, scene of fierce basketball competition between
The Citadel and the College of Charlesteon in the 1330s.

LeTELLIER HALL -- Civil Engineering Department. The first engineer=-
ing scheool accredited inISQuth Carolina. |

MCATLISTER FIELD HQUSE -- Named for a 1324 Citadel graduate, Cocl.
Daivd S. McAlister, the field house contains basketball courts and an

olympic swimming pocl, and converts into an auditorium seating up to

6,000, largest in the Charleston area.
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BARRACKS ROW -- Four large buildings with quadrangle courts, the barracks
Vhouse the Corps of Cadets.
COWARD HALL ;Q'To the rear of the barracks, this building is the Mess Hall,
named for Col. Asbury Coward, C.S.A. |
DUCKETT HALL -~ Named for former Citadel President Maj. Gen. James W.
Duckett, fhis is a modern bioclogy facility.
BYRD HALI, -- Named for Col. Ralph M. Byrd, the chemistry building.
BOND HALL =-~-The administration building, also contains classrcoms and
laboratories. Named for Col. 0.J. Bond, former Citadel president.
CAPERS HALL -- Named for Ellison Capers, Episcopal bishop, Confederate
general and chanceller of the University_of the South,
The campus also contains a yacht basin, indoor and outdcor rifle
ranges, tennis courts and a hospital. The college alsc maintains
a beach club on the Isle of Palms, -
The Citadel is a liberal arts military college, a state supported

institution. 1Its daytime student body is all male and includes 1,800

cadets in uniform and 300 veteran students. The Evening Cocllege has

1,000 co=-eds, mostly graduate students in the Master of Arts in Teaching
and Master of Business Education programs.

COLLEGE COF CHARLESTON

Efforts to establish a college in Charlestown before the Revolution
were not successful, owing perhaﬁs to the prestige of sending one's
young men north or to England for their education. An endowment for
& college was established in 1770. It was not until 1785 that the

ey .
College of Charleston was established by an Act of the General Assembly,
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The infant college was given the old Free School Lands (which see} and

was housed in the o0ld barracks there. The Rt. Rev. Dr. Robert Smith,

the first Episcopal éishop of South Carolina, was President of the

college trustees, 1786-89 and Principal of the Faculty, 17%0-97. 1In 1826,
the City of Charleston began providing financial support, and in 1837

=

the college officially became a municipal college, the oldest in the
‘M‘

United States.. It became co-educaticnal in 1918. The college became
a private institutiop in 1949 and a state supported institution in 1970.
Soon after becoming a state college, the institution began the expansion
program Which is still in progress {1275). The expansion program has
included tﬁe construction of.sevgral new buildings and the restoration
of more than 40 histeric structures and their adaptation for college
use.

The campus consists of the following buildings:

66 GEORGE ST. =-- The ¢ld campus. Includes Harrison ﬁandolph Hall, the

cld main building. The central pertion, designed by architect

William Strickland, was built 1826-28. The portico and wings were

—y

added in g by Edward Brickell White. ' The wings were damaged in

Rl

the 1886 earthguake and rebuilt following the designs of Dr. Gabriel
Manigault. Simons and Lapham, architects, designed an extension

of the west wing, built in the 1930s. Currently, Randolph Hall is
is heing festored to house administrative offices and clasérooms,
preserving the tradition that c;aSSes always be taught in the main
building. A new portic§ is being added on the north side, facing
the College Mall. 1In front of White's Greek Revival style portice
on the south side is the Cistern, used for graduations and other
ceremonies, and a daily gathering place fer students. Alsc on the

cld campus is the Towell Library, named for a former dean. Ccmpleted '
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in 1856, this Italianate style structure was designed bf architect

George E. Walker. It has been restored and adapted into a learn-
_ing resources center, containing language laboratories, recording

studios and audio=visual equipment. The main entrance to the old

campus is the two story, arched porter's lodge, built c¢. 1852 and
- Y AR AT IS

designed by Edward B. White. White also designed the iron fence,

Ry

made by Christopher Wérner,
. ot
24 GEORGE ST. -- College Athletic Center, built 1938-39. Gates remain

from the Thomas Radcliffe House, c. 1803, which for many years
was the High School of Charleston.

26 GEORGE ST. == Pormer YMCA Building, built 1912-13, now used by col-
lege for classrooms and athletic activities. Behind this building
and-the gymnasium are the tennis courts. |

28 GEORGE ST. == Two and one-half story brick residence'oﬂ high base-
ment, built c. 1833 for Mrs. Sarah Arms, whose detailed specifica-
tions for its construction still exist. The rear wooden portion
dates from the 1780s when it was the home of Capt. John Morrison,
mariner and merchant. Now used for student housing.

58 GEORGE ST. —- Adam style house built <. 1803 by Barnard Elliott,
ﬁlanter.- Contains woodwork from the George Walker House, a Regency:
period mansion which was demolished in 1912 for the YMCA building
at 26 George St. MNow used for a&ministrative offices.

'~ 72 GEORGE ST. == Buillt <. 1835, this Greek Revival single house was turned.
90 degrees to make room for the new science center. Now houses the
music department. . |

74 GEORGE ST. -- Greek Revival single house, c. 1837, was also moved

to make room for the science center. Houses art department.
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67 GEORGE ST. —-= Built in the 1850s, houses the campus ministry,.

71 GEQRGE ST. -- Theodore S. Stern Student Center, named for current
president of college. Completed in 1975, houses ballroom, theatre,
pool, lounges, snack bar, campus store, game and meeting rooms.

6 GLERE ST. == Built in 1770 as St. Philip's Parsonage and named for

S

its first resident, Bisheop Rokert Smith. Now the college's

President's Mansion.

9, 11, 12, 14, lé and 20 GLEBE ST, -=- HousSes built before 1855 on land
leaéed‘frcm St. Philip's Church. Now used for sorority and faculty
housing.

22 GLEBE ST.k-- Built c. 1905,.now faculty housing.

26 GLEBE ST. == Built before 1888, now faculty housing.

2=-8 BULL ST. =-- Rental units built in 1907 by E.M. Hacker. Restored
as administrative offices.

12 BULL ST. == Built_in 1851 by Hugh P, Camercmf crockery merchant.
Initials of a later owner, David Bentgchner, appear in cast iron

gate. Restored as a faculty residence.

18 BULL ST. —--— William Blacklock House, c. 1800. One of America's most

iﬂggsgggE_Adam style houses. Home of Emil H. Jahnz, German consul,

during World War I. Landscaped garden and Goth Revival outbuild-

h onmai

ings in rear. Now the College of Charleston Club; Has faculty
dining and lounge and recéption fgcilities. |
24 BULL ST. -- C. 1858 by Benjamin Lucas, builder. Faculty residence.
5, 7 and 9 COLLEGE ST. -~ These three single houses were built between
1826 and 1835 by Abiel Bolles, schoolmaster, who had.his academy at
No. 5. Now faculty offices.

11 COLLEGE ST, -~ Built iQ\}BQO by Samuel H. Wilson, merchant and banker.
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The fine Vicﬁorian structure was from 1912 the home of the Albert

Sottile family. WNow a women's residence.

13-15 COLLEGE.ST. ~= Rivers Womens' Residence Halls, ne@.

28 COMING ST. -- C. 1835 single house. Women's residence.

29 COMING ST. —-- Built 1907 by J.A. Hesse. Fraternity house.

32 COMING ST. =-- Built 1908 by H.T. Jacharias. Sorcrity house.

34 COMING ST. -~ Eighteenth Century single house with Victorianized roof,
sorority house.

36. COMING ST. -- C. 1842 by Charles Graves, planter, on land leased
from St. Philip's Churéh. Masked piazza adds interest. Women's .
residence. |

38 COMING ST. =-- C. 1770 by John Scott. Sorority.

40 COMING ST. -- C. 1851 by William James Rivers notable Charleston |
author and teacher. Now houses student clinic and administrative
offices. |

43 COMING ST, =-- C. 1800,.fraternity house.

59 COMING ST. =~ Built 1879 by Francis A. Ryan. Was a grocéry, now
psychology ;abs.

69 COMING ST. -~ Built before 1817 by Nathaniel Farr and wife, Mrs.
Katherine Blacklock Farr. Qutbulildings at 71 Coming St. Women's
residence.

70 and 72 COMING ST. =-- Antebellum single houses, now women's residences.

2 GREEN ST, -=- C, 1817 by James Martindale, planter. From 1844, resi-
dence of Mrs. Elizabeth Johnson, a "free person of color,". and
her descendants. Record books of the Brown Fellowship Society
(See 52-54 Pitt St.) were found inside the hﬁuse when it was being

restored by the college. Administrative offices.
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4 GREEN ST. --= Built before 1817. BAdministrative offices.

& GREEN ST. -- C. L815. This small "West Indian" style house was moved
in 1967 to permit creation of the College Mall, and moved in 1971 /
from the ﬁew library site. Administrative offices,

10 GREEN ST. =-- C. 1841 by Gov. William Aiken as rental unit. EHallway
contains fine example of hand-graining wall decoration. Adéministra-
tive offices. |

14 GREEN ST, -=- ;:.1846 by Mrs. Catherine Xnox. BHome of Albert Oseola
Jones, mulatto clerk of the South Carclina House of Representatives,
18687i7. lLater the Lesesne residence., Women's residence. Iron
piazzés unusual.

15, 17, 19 ST. PHILI? and 88 and 90 WENTWORTH ST. =-- John S. Riggs'
‘Tenements, c. 1859-60. These five Italianate style single houses
are to become administrative offices. College is currently (19735)
negotiating to buy them.

25 ST. PHILIP ST. =-- Built c. 1798 by James Denton, on lot leased from

St. Philip's church. Denton operated the Fish Market Wharf on
East Bay. Later Victorianized. This housé is to be moved in 1977
to vacant lot on Wentworth Street and the two late Victorian
houses to the south of it will be demolished to make room fgr a
classroom building.

44 ST. PHILIP ST. -= Bullt after 1770 by Edward McCrady, Patriot and
tavern keeper. To be moved to ﬁacant lot on Gecrge Street before
the proposed Fine Arts Center is constructed.

62 ST, PHILIP ST. -~ Small antebellum building, also to be moved to
Geprge Street to make room for Fine Arts Center. —

ST. PHILIP and GEORGE ST., SW CORNER -- Craig Unien Dormitory. Built

in the 1960s as men's dorm and student union, now women's residence.
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Estate Co., these late Victorian houses are now fraternity houses.

_”¢4M " 107 WENTWORTH ST. -- €. 1858 by William Johnson, dealer in grain; build-
s S

ing materials and coal, on lot leased by his family since 1771 from

St. Philip's Church. Facade rebuilt after earthquake of 1886.

During the earthquake the Johnson women sat on the roof and prayed

for Grace Church's steeple not to fall. In 1890, the family pur~

chased the lot from St. Philip's. Home, 1873-1934, of Dr, William
- AR TAORERHM

Henry Johnson, who started the orthopedic school at the Medieal
I
College and brought the first X-ray to Charleston. Dr. Jchnson
- " — = :

exercised by throwing an anvil about the yard and invented a p

sure cooker which fitted on the radiator of his automol

jile. Build-~

ing under restoration, 1975.

112 WENTWORTH ST. -~ Two-story masonry store building, built before
1888, will house faculty offices.

114 WENTWORTH ST, ~- Two story wooden building, formerly a grocery,
restored for the Urban -Studies Department.

COMING and GEORGE STREETS -~ Science Center ~-— classrooms, labs, offices
and the Physician's Memorial Auditorium which seats 516. . Opened
1974.

MARINE SCIENCE LABORATORIES -=- New faci;ity being completed at Fort
Johnson.

MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CARCLINA

Founded in @ as the Medical College of South Caroclina, this

institution first occupied the Charleston Theatre on Broad Street, then

in 1826 completed its building at Queen and Franklin Streets. Since
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then, the campus has besn expanded northward and westward for several

blocks. The institution became the Medical University of South Carolina

in 1969,

~—

The main buildings of the campus are:

ADMINISTRATION~LIBRARY BUILDING. -~ Completed in 1971, this building,
facing the entrance mall on Ashley Avenue, houses the offices of
the President and other administrative offices, the library and
student activities facilities.

BASIC SCIENCE-COLLEGE OF DENTAL MEDICINE BUILDING -~ This seven story _
building, to the north of the Administration-Library Building,
was completed in 1970. Iit houses teaching facilities, laboratories
and cffice space in one half, and the College of Dental Mediqipe
in the other half. A first floor auditorium seats.300;

MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL -~ Completed in 1955 and subsequently
expanded, this facility is South_Carolina'ézprincipal teaching
hospital. It has ten stories, 500 beds and a house staff of 290
interns and residents. The hospital also employs 1,909 persons
in health and supportive services. | |

CLINICAL SCIENCES BUILDING -- Under construction (1975) oﬁ the west
or Barre Street side of the hospital. This eight-story structure
will connect by corridor with each floor of the hespital. It
will be used for a number of cliniéal and research purpcses.

ATBERT FLORENS STORM MEMORIAL EYE INSTITUTE =- Under construction (1975
on the east or Ashley Avenue side of the hospital. Initially it

will be five stories tall and will be devoted to the research on

and. treatment of diseases of the eve.
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THE QUADRANGLE ~- The oldest portion of this complex, a three story brick
building with an engaged Classic portice, was built in 1914 on
Barre Street. It was added to repeatedly until in 1952 the Labora-,
tory Clinic Building was constructed, completing the Quadrangle,

The Quadrangle houses the College of Medicine and College of Phar-

macy, Barﬁch auditerium, the Cancer Clinic and other facilities.

Future plans are to demolish all but the eastern pertion of the

Quadrangel, which will be refained for the College of Pharmécy,

and to construct a central energy plant, cafeteria and lahoratories.
RESEARCH BUILDING -- This eight-story building was completed in 1962. -

| Its first floor is an eﬁﬁension of the outpatient cliniecs, with

the remaininé floors devoted entirely to research activities.

COLLEGE OF NURSING BUILDING =-- Built in the 1950s, this Suilding has
administrative offices and classrcoms and the computer center.
It stands at Barre and Déughty streets.

VINCE ﬂOSELEY CLINIC =-- Small.contemporary #uilding houses the diagnostic
clinic for the South Cérolina_Retarded Children's Habilitation
Center at Ladson. The clinic is at Bee and President streets.

COLCOCK HALL -- This antebellum brick building, designed by Edward

Brickell White, was built about 1844 as part of the United States

L TR SR T
Arsenal. In the latter part of the 19th Century, the Arsenal became
ST TATIR, ' 2
the campus of Porter Military Academy, later Porter~Gaud School.

The Medical Ccllege acquired the Porter-Gaud campus in 1263 and
the scheoecl moved to Albemarle Road. BAll but three of the former
Porter buildings have been demolished for expansion of the univer-

sity. Colcock Hall now houses administrative offices. It stands
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on the northeast corner of the campus, near Ashley Avenue and Bee

Street.

ST, LUKE'S CHAPEL =-- This building at the corner of Ashley and Bee start-

ed its existenfe as an artillery shed. It was converted into St.
St e _
Timothy's Chapel for Porter Military Academy. Now it is an inter-

dencominational chapel named for the patron saint of medicine.

WARING HISTORICAL LIBRARY —-- Built in 1894 for the Porter Military Aca-

T

demy library, this crenellated Gothic building on Ashley Avenue

was designed by the New York architect, J.B. Snocks. Renamed for

Dr. Joseph I, Waring, Medical University professor and_médical
historian.

MACAULAY MUSEUM OF DENTAL HISTORY -- Housed in new building behind the
Waring Historical Library. | |

FAMILY PRACTICE CLINIC ~- Occupies the formér Riverside Nursing Home
on Calhoun Street, across from Roper Hospital. Houses the new
Family. Practice Department, createé in 1970 to increase the state's
supply of family physicians.

ALUMNI MEMORIAL HOUSE =-=- Three story building on Courtenay Drive, pro-

vides dormitory and cafeteria facilitiés for single students.
Built in the 1350s. |

INSTiTUTE FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT.~— A facility including a maternity
and child care hospital, will be housed in the buil&ing presently

occupied by the High School of Charleston at 147 Rutledge Ave.
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HARBOR FORTS

JOHNSCN, James Island. Stockade and lookouts were placed at "Wind-

mill Point” on James Island in 1704. First fort there was built.
R

1708; repaired and added teo in 1737. When captured in September,

1775 from the British, who had taken it before it was occupied by '

local americans, it was then and there that THE FIRST AMERICAN

FLAG TO REPLACE THE BRITISH FLAG IN AMERICR was raised. That

o S S
flag was designed by Colonel (afterwards Major-General) William

e [

‘Moultrie to match the color of the troops uniform and the silver

A Mg S R
clasp worn on their caps, viz.: a blue field with a white crescent

in the upper dexter corner. The Palmetto Tree was added in 1861

when it was made the Confederate National Flag, In 1865 thié'

TR IS TS

same flag was adopted for the State Flag.

On April 12, 1861, the first shot fired against Fort Sumter was

gl Frovey

SRS,

fired by the Confederates at Fort Johnson. The fort was evacuated

February 17, 1865, after active participation in the war. The
property next was used for a U.S. Quarantine Station until 1948.
Ahout 1952, or 1953, the 90-acfe tract was turned over to the
Ceollege of Charleston and the.South Carolina Medical College hy

the U, S, Department of Health, Education and Welfare, for research
laboratories. The projects of the two.institﬁtions were operated .
entirely separately. Now the property is owned by the College of

Charleston which maintains its MARINE BIOLOGICAL LABORATORY there,

and by the S.C. Wildlife and Game Commission which has its Marine
Research Laboratory there.

MARSHLANDS, home built by John Ball in 1810, was on the area acguired

by the U. s. Naval Base, and was used by the Navy at first for
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FORT

officers’ quarters, later as an office building until 1961. The

site then being needed for an essential naval unit, the house had
to be moved or destroyed.. The College of Charleston acguired tbe
building which was rolled from its foundations onto a dredge, and

movif<ii:wate:\to its present site at Fort Jochnson, the operation
- Sy, - Pl .

. a —*N\S\‘{\ ‘J" uﬁl-«""’f( i .
reguiring two year§\to gffect the transfg;. The building now is

" e, -
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used for offices of the Wildlife Commission, and also provides

suitable accommodations for official entertainments.

MOULTRIE. Original palmetto fort was started in 1776. It had not

been completed when Colonel William Moultrie defeated Admiral Sir

Peter Parker's fleet and General Henry Clinton's land forces on

Long Island (now the Isle of Palms), on June 28, 1776. This date
[ S — TSI,

is known as CAROLIMA DAY. The fort had no name un;il after the

Battle, when the fort was named "FCRT MOULTRIE“.in honor of Colonel

William Moultrie, in command of the fort at the Battle. This was

one of the most important battles of the American Revolution,

- and was the f;EEt decisive victory of the Americans over the British.

Edgar Allen Poe was stationed at Fort Moultrie when he wrote his

famous story, "The Goldbug”.

In 1860 the fort was occupied by United States Army force under

Major Robert Anderson. Under cover of night, on Degcember 26th,

1860, Major Anderson spiked the guns, burned the gun carriages,
LY

and moved over from Fort Moultrie to Fort Sumter. Later on the

guns at Fort Moultrie played an active part in the defense of

Charleston. After the Confederate War the Fort was again occupied

ag a regular Army Post until 1948. 1In 1950 the Marshall Reservation

was sold to the Sullivan's Island Commission, and approximately




ten acres around Fort Moultrie were deeded tc the State of Scuth
Carolina for a public, historical park. It is in the custedy of
the State Sinking Fund Commission which has jurisdiction over the

State's public lands. During its long life Fort Moultrie has

participated in five wars - the American Revolution, the wWar Be=~
L

tween the States, the Spanish-American War, and Werld Wars I and II.
———— ] LY

It is one of the most historic spots in the state and nation. The
Federal Government recently has recognized this by making the

area a Naticnal Monument under the Nitional Park Service, Expanh-

sion of the visgitor facilities and restoration of the fort area
relevant to its several periods of military history is underway
(1975} .

FORT SUMTER is one of a series of coastal fortifications built by the

R SR RSB B R

United States. It was named for the patrict, Thomas Sumter, whose:
TR
SRR STy,

nickname was "The Gamecock™. Begun in 1829, it was almost but
. CEA T

po—
]

not entirely completed when on the 26th December 1860, Major Robert

[ o— e A OISR

Anderson, under cover of night, moved his force from Fort Moultfie

to Fort Sumter. When the U.S5.S. Star of the West tried to come
R R ST .

inte the harbor to re-inforce Fort Sumter with men and provisicns,

the ship was turned back by Citadel cadets firing from a battery

¥ Ay

on Morris Island. Negotiations tc evacuate the Fort were begun

April 11, 1861, nearly four months after Andersen had moved in,
He refused to leave the fort, but after it was bombarded he ac-

cepted an offer of truce April 13th, and moved out. Twe years

later, forces blockaded the harbor and from then - April, 1863
e JS—— T

until February 17, 1865, the Confederates and Fort Sumter were

subjected toc murderous bombardment from both land and sea forces =

-

"
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'Esésr' \ forces in the history of wars. But the defenders of the Fort never

%Lg/SB’/ days of continucus fighting -~ the longest siege by land and sea

—

capitulated. It was not until the city and the fort were completely

surrounded and the opposing ready to move in that the brave men

at Fort Sumter evacuated on February 17, 186§E

Fort Sumter was established as a National Monument under the National

Park Serwvice, under the authority of Act of Congress, approved
T I A T AR,

Bpril 28, 1948.

CASTLE PINCKXNEY stands on an island granted to Colonel Alexander Parris

about 1711. In 1746 the property was purchased by a Quaker named

Joseph Shute, and it became known as sShute’s Folly, for some unknown
R RERSATRS

reason. After his death in 1752 the island remained unoccupied

until 1780 when a Battery, called the MUD FORT, was built there.

TSRy
The next fertification was built in 17%7 in anticipation of War

with Great Britain, and was named "CASTLE PINCﬁﬂgY" in compliment

to Charles Cotesworth Pinckney, ambassador to France, who returned

home just about that time. That "fort" was washed away, and in 1811,

the last structure was built for the War of 1B1l2Z. At the beginning
P TR Y

of the Confederate War, U. S. Army engineers prepared to fortify

it, but were surprised by S, C. militia, who took the fort. It

played only a minor part during the War, beinj used to house prisoners-

of-war, and for storage. Like Fort Sumter's, this garrison never

surrendered, but evacuated Castle Pinckney on February 18, 1865.

After the Qar a liéhthouse sFation was maintained there until 1916,

but after that was little used until made a Naticnal Monument in

1934. There has been no appropriation for its up-keep, however,

and for a few vears it was "leaned" to the U. S. Enginear Department,
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but was transferred back to the National Parks Service in May,
195%4. A bill to abolish the Castie Pinckney National Monument was
passed in May 1951, but no further action had been taken in 1956.
Later the U. 5. Government offered +he property for sale, and it
was acquired by the City of Charleston. Now owned by the Seons

of Confederate Veterans who plan to restore it as a museum.,
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MARKERS

The bronze markers placed or approved by the Historical Commis-

sion of the City of Charleston, with a few exceptions have at the

top of each, one of the three official seals used in the three dis-
tinct periods of govermment in the history of the city. The first

seal is the seal of the Lords Proprietors, 1670-11%2. The second

is the seal of Great Britain used during the Co%gnial Period, from

1719 until the Reveolution. (Jchn Rutledge, President of the Indepen-

—cars

dent Republic of South Carolina, set up in the Old Exchange Building

on March 26, 1776, used his perscnal seal bearing his coat-df-arms
AR TR,

as the official seal for that interim govermnment. That, however,

was a temporary seal for a temporary government, which is not used

on our markers,) The third is the present seal of the City of Charles-

ton, dating from the incorporation of the City, August 13, 1783,

e

Charles Town in the beginning was not the seat of a crown colony
(that is it was not under the protection of the English Government,

as the other colonies were), but was started as a business venture

by eight English Noblemen, to whom Charles II of England had given

large grants of land in Carclina. These eight men were granted a

charter and certain powers to govern the territory they held in Carolina,

and. they sent out ships and people to settle and hold that land for them,
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financing the expeditions with funds raised by them. Their names are
familiar to us because of the counties and places to which they have

been applied. They were: the Earl of Clarendon, the Duke of Albemarle,

Lord Craven, Lord John Berkley, Lord Anthony Ashley-Cooper, Earl of
e R A

Shaftsbury, Sir George Carteret, Sir William Berkeley and Sir Jchn
A G

Colleton. They called themselves the LORDS PROPRIETORS, and sold shares
R RITR T, N

in their enterprise. They did not concern themselves wvery much with

their infant settlement overseas--they were interested chiefly in the
financial returns they hoped to get from it-—and they soon became in-
attentive to the problems and needs of the colonists. BAs a result, by

L]
1719 the people in Carclina became disqusted by the Proprietary form

of government and the indifference of the Proprietors tc their require-

' ments. The colonists stirred up so much trouble, the matter ended by
A

TR

the Crown buying out the Lords Proprietors and taking over the govern-

[ —

ment of the Province. Proprietary rule ended then, 1719, although it

was ten years later before the matter was comple:ely settled.

| The Colonial period which followed lasted only until the American
Revolution. With the end of that war, our present government began.
Thus there have been three distinct pericds and kinds of administration
at Charleston. For each one there ﬁas been a distinctive Great Seal
for use on official documents. -

The first, the Seal of the Lords Proprietors was designed ahout

1663, On the obverse in the lower center there is a shield showing
R L )

two crossed cornucopias, or horns of plenty. The figure of a woman

stands at the left, one hand resting on the top of the shield, an infant
SR
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in her other arm, a small child standing at her knées. At the other
M o

gide of the shield, the figure of a man stands with one hand resting
W TR Rty

on the shield, a spear in his other hand. At their feet a scroll bears
iy, P g
the words: DOMITUS CULTORIBUS ORBIS. At the top of the shield is the

figure of a stag standing on some embossed decoraticns. Around the

edge are the words: MAGNUM SIGILLUM CARCLINAE COMINORUM. This face

is the one used on the markers. ©On the reverse side were the Coats of
Arms of the e?ght noblemen . listed above. In reality there were only
seven designs, because the seals of the two Berkeleys were identical.
This seal of the Proprietors was used until replaced by the Great Seal
of Scuth Careolina under the Royal Government. That, the second ssal,

was a representation of the Great Seal of Great Britain with a reverse

charged with a sovereign conferring libérty upon a subject, beneath which

is the word: NOSTRAE, and encircling are the words: SIGILLUM MAGN.

AUSTRALIS PROVINCIAE NOSTRAE CAROLINAE (Our gréat seal of our Southern

Province of Carclina). A&s you will note, the words of the Seal of the

Lords Proprietors are very similar to this motto.
After the Revolution the name of the city was changed from Charles-

town to Charleston when the city was incorporated on August 13, 1783.

A seal was needed and the accepted design is described as follows: ©On
the right in the foréground is a feméle figure, her right arm raised
and forefinger pointing, her left arm down and left hand holding a
sceptre; on the left is a ship under full sail; in the background is

a water view of the city, with fhe steeples towering; immediately below

the female figure are the words: "CAROLOPOLIS CONDITA A.D. 1670"

(Charlestown founded 1670).
i :

Encircling the whole are the following inscriptions in Rcman capitals:

AEDES MORES JURAQUE CURAT (SHE GUARDS HER BUILDINGS CUSTOMS AND L&HS)
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and CIVITATIS REGIMINE CONMNATA A.D. 1783 {MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT ESTABLISHéD
A.D. 1783). Crecssed palm frcnds.are below the seal which rests upon a
pile of bocks and scrolls, a feathered pen and a covered inkwell are

on the top of the books and scrolls. This is the seal which has been

in continuous use since August 13, 1783.

The seal at the top of the marker will identify at once the period
of the ewvent, person or place recorded by the marker. ”

There is one other most‘important marker, to which attention al-
ready has been directed in the INTRODUCTION. That is the Plague recently
placed on the East side of the Entrance to City Hall. The inscription
states that:

HISTORIC CEARLESTCN
HAS BEEN DESIGNATED A
- REGISTERED NATIONAL
HI'ST.ORIC LANDMARK
Under the Provisions of the Historic Sites Act of August 21,'1935
This Site possesses Excepticnal Valué in Commemc;ating and Iliustrating
The History of the United States

U. S. Department of the. Interior, Mational Park Service.
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MARKERS PLACED OR APPROVED BY THE HISTORICAL

AIXKEN HOQUSE, WILLIAM
BASTION MARKERS
Carteret
Colleton
Craven
Granville
BETH ELOHIM TEMPLE
BROAD STREET, No. B8
CIRCULAR CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH
CITY HALL
CITY MARKET
COUNTY CQURT HQUSE
EVELEIGH HOUSE, GEORGE
FIREPROOF BUILDING

FORT MECHANIC

LIBRARY, FIRST PUBLIC LENDING

LINING HOUSE, DR. JOHN
MANIGAULT HOUSE, JOSEPH
MARTON SQUARE

ORPHAN HOUSE

PIRATE (Granite, no seal)
PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, FIRST

RIVIERA THEATRE

COMMISSION OF CHARLESTON, S. C.

456 Xing Street

Cumberland, N.E. Cor. Meeting

W. side Meeting, 5. of Tradd

U. S. Customs House, East Bay
Omar Temple, N. end High Battery
78 Hasell Street

Corner of Court House Square

138 Meeting Street

Broad, N.E. Cor. Meeting

Market Hall, Market and Meeting

Meeting, S.E. Cor. Mary Street

" 39 Church Street

Meeting, S.E. Cor. Chalmers
19 East Battery {on wall)

Memminger School Wall
St. Philip Street

Broad, N.W. Corner Xing Street

350 Mesting Street

Xing Street, S.W. Cor. Maricn Square

Near Calhcun Street entrance to
Sears, Reoebuck & Co. Building

E. end N. Walk, The Battery
Meeting, S.W. Corner Tradd

Market St. side of Building.
N.W. Corner of Xing
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ST. ANDREW'S SOCIETY HALL

ST. JOHN HOTEL

SALVADOR, FRANCIS

SOCIETE FRANCAISE

SOUTH CAROLINA NATIONAL BANK
SOUTH CAROLINA POWER COMPANY
UNITED STATES MARINE HOSPITAL
WALKER, EVANS & COGSWELL COMPANY

WEST POINT RICE MILL:

Fence, No. 118 Broad Street
Meeting, S.W. Corner of Queen
East Wall, Washington Square
98 King Street

l6 Broad Street, Cor. State
141 Meeting Street

20 Franklin Strest

East Bay Entrance, south of Broad

West end of Calhoun Street

R
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MARKER INSCRIPTIONS
THE BATTERY

PIRATE MARKER

(Granite - No seal}

Near this spot in the autumn of 1718, Stede Bonnet, notorigus

"Gentleman Pirate" and twenty-nine of his men, captured by Colonel

William Rhett, met their just deserts after a trial and charge, famous'
R .

in American history, by Chief Justice Nicholas Trott.

Later nineteen of Richard Worley's crew, captured by Governor

L Y b
Robert Johnson, were also found guilty and hanged. 2ll were buried
et SR . TCRANAITER ey

off White Point Gardens, in the marsh beyond low-water mark.

At East end of North Walk of The Battery.

BROAD STREET

SQOUTH CAROLINA NATIONAL BANK

This building erected in 1817 for a Branch of the Second Bank
"
of the United States was acquired 'in 1835, and has been occupied con-
tinuously since that date by the Bank of Charleston, whose name was

changed in 1926 to the South Carolina National Bank. This was the

only bank in the State to resume business after the war of currency is-

sued prior to that war.

(Inscription was approved by the Historical Commission although
not so stated on this marker. The small oval seal at the top of the-
marker is not one of the seals used by the Commissicn.)

16 Broad Street, N.E. Corner of State
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CITY HALL

SEARL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C. 1783

CITY HALL. This building, designed by Gabriel Maﬁigault and built

in 1801 for the Charleston Branch of the First Bank of the United States

stands upon the site which was set apart as a market place in 1672 and

used for that purpose until 1796 when the old "Beef Market," as the

place was then known, was destroyed by fire. Purchased by the City

in 1818 it has been occupied as the City Hall since that time. Erected

by the City of Charleston April 20, 1938.

on City Hall, N.E. corner of Broad and Meeting Streets

#88 BROAD STREET

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, SCUTH CAROLINA, 1783

This building erected in the post-Revolutionary period was occupiled

by the Charleston Branch of fhe Firsf.Ban

to 1800, Acquired in 1833 by the‘Hebrew Orphan Society, it served as
hama Y [

the Societf's Hall, also for a time as the meeting place of the K.K..

Beth Elohim}Congregation, and during a later period as the Hebrew QOr-
phanage. /Plaqed 1949./ Approved by the Historical Commissicon of
Charleston, S. C.

#88 BROAD STEEET, N.W, CORNER OF COURT HOUSE SQUARE

HOME OF DR. JOHN LINING

SEAL OF THE LORDS PROPRIETORS, 1670 - 1719

HOME OF DR, JOHN LINING who made the first systematic weather

observations with instruments in America January 1738, February 1753.
a R

In this building, which probably antedates the year 1715, Dr. Lining
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lived, made observations of the weather, and may have conducted an
apothecary shop. It is certain that it has been used for this last
purpose since 1780. Erected by the City of Charleston, January 11,
1936,

106 Broad Street, at N.W. Corner of Xing.

SITE OF THE ST. ANDREWS HALL

SEAL OF THE COLONIAL GOVERNMENT, 1719 - 1775

SITE OF THE ST. ANDREWS HALL. Designed by Hugh Smith for the St.

Andrew's Society of Charleston, S. C. Founded in 1729, the

benevolent organizs

Gfa.South Carolina. Corner stone

laid July 4, 1814. Building destroyed by fire December 11, 1861.

SRR

. Here such sécieties as the South Carolina Jockey Club, the St. cCecilia
Society, and the Hebrew Benevolent Association held their meetings:

Here President James Monroe and the Marquis de Lafayette wera 1

guests of the city; and here on December 20th 1860 was

Carolina Ordinance of Secession. Erected by the St. Andrew's Society

of Charleston, S. C. 1947. Approved by the Historical Commission of
Charleston, S. C.

(At bottom of marker is a replica of the hall in relief.)

.

Oon fence at #118 Broad Street.
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CALHOUN STREET

CHARLESTON ORFPHAN HQUSE

SEAL - OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C. 1783

CHARLESTON ORPHYAN HOUSE. Oldest municipal orphan house in the

United States. Founded October 18th, 1790. Corner stone laid Neovember
[RR————S WO S e Y

12th, 1792 on site of Revelutionary Horn-Work Fortifications. Main build-

ing completed and occupied October 18, 1794, BAmong the hundreds of its
graduates who have become useful citizens, many have achieved high
honor in the state and some have been distinguished men of national
importaﬁce. Placed by the City of Charle#ton Octcber iB, 1938. (This
marker formerly was con the wall left of the Calhoun Street entrance to
the Orphan House grounds. The Orphan House sold to Sears Reoebuck &
Company in 1952, was razed and the new store of that company was opened
on this site September 30, 1954. The above marker was placed near the
Calhoun Street entrance of Sears Roebuck & qOmpéﬁy’s Store, and just
beneath it, the following explanatory'harker:)

The Charleston Orphan House stocod on this sife from 1794 to 1952,
at which time it was moved to its present location at Oak Grove. The
above plaque from the old building was plaéed here by the present owners
of the éroperty, September 30, 1954.

#100 Calhoun Street, near King Street.

WEST POINT RICE MILL

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, 5. C., 1783

WEST POINT RICE MILL, cone of the three great rice mills operated
.———-—~——"'-"—"—--.._____~/_

in Charlesteon during the nineteenth century. Erscted in 1861~1862 on

site of mill built by Thomas Bennett Lucas, which was destroyed by

g
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fire in 1860. Used chiefly for storage purposes during the War Between
the States. Operation of the mill was resumed in 1876 and continued
until 1220 when éhanging conditions rendered it unprofitable. Property
acquired ﬁy the City of Charleston in 1926. Designated as a seaplane
base 1936. Placed by the City of Charleston December 18, 1933,

Marker on waterfront sidé of the Rice Mill. The Mill for a while
Qas converted into an office building for the U.S.N. Minecraft Base.
At present thg building is used chiefly for offices, but also has a
lounge for‘yachtsmen from visiting craft moored at the Marina.

CHURCH STREET

GECRGE EVELEIGHE HQUSE

SEAL OF THE COLONTAL GOVERNMENT, 1719-1775

GEORGE EVELEIGH HOUSE. One of the few houses built about 1743

remaining in Charleston., It has the thick walls and finely paneled

rqomﬁd?XPi¢§; ad., The land on which it stands, granted 1692,

is in the area then known as White Point, bordering Vander Horst Creek

{(now Water Street). The property was conveyed to George Eveleigh in

1743, Thé house was bought in 1875 by R. Maynard Marshall in whose

family it has remained. Placed 1%48. Approved by the Historical Com-

mission of Charleston, S. C. i

On wall in front of house at #3% Church Street.

CUMBERLAND STREET

SITE OF CARTERET BASTION

SEAL OF THE LORD PROPRIETORS, 1670-1719

THE SITE OF CARTERET BASTION. (Reproduced above these words is a

map of Charles Town, 1708-1711, based on Edward Crisp's map of 1704,
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followed by the legend of the fortifications.,) The plan of Charles Town

prepared by Edward Crisp about 1704 gives the location of the several

bastions.
A, Granville F. Blakes
- B. Craven G. The Half Maoon
C. Carteret H. The Drawbridge in the Line
D. Colleton K. The Drawbridge in the Half Moon
E. Ashley L. The Palisades

Other Places (References differ slightly from Crisp's 1704 map.)

Q. The English Church S. The Presbyterian Meeting House

R. The French Church T. The Ana Baptist Meeting House-

W. The Court of Guard
Placed by the City of Charleston, 1940.
On Cumberland Street at S.E. corner of Meeting Street,

{The other three bastion markers are identical except for name-and

location, which are given. The inscription is not repeated.)

EAST BATTERY AND EAST BAY.

FCRT MECHANIC

SEAL COF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C. 1783

" SITE OF FORT MECHANIC so named because lpocal mechanics gave their
services for much of iﬁs const;Lctign._ Originally a timber structure
builf in 1794, during the Wars of the French Revelution, it was replaced
in 180% by a fort of masenry. It was garrisoned by United States forces
until after the War of 1812 and was razed abéut 1818. Erected 1948.
Approved by the Historical Commission ¢f Charleston, S. C.

On south side of wall between #19 and #21 East Battery.

SITE OF GRANVILLE BASTION

SEAL, OF THE LORDS PROPRIETORS, 1670-1719,

THE SITE OQF GRANVILLE BASTION. (For inscription see SITE CF CARTERET

BASTIQON, Cumberland Street, MARKERS,)
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On Omar Temple, aﬁ north end of High Battery;

WALKER, EVANS & COGSWELL COMPANY

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C., 1783

WALKER, EVANS & COGSWELL COMPANY distinguished for achievement as
stationers, book binders, and printers, since its founding in 1821 by

John C. Walker. Appointed Lithographers and Printers to the Confederate

-

Government in 186l. The Company in this building produced stamps, bonds,

e

bank nctes, certificates of stock, executive documents, medical publi-

cations and military manuals until 1863. Stock and machinery then

were removed for safety to Columbia, and were destroyed when Columbia

was burned in 1865. After the War business was resumed in Charleston,

e t—

and has continued without iﬁterruption te the present time. _1953.
Approved by the Historical Commission ef Charleston, S. C.

On Walker, Evans & Cogswell Company's buildiqg, East Bay, south of
Broad Street,

SITE OF CRAVEN BASTION

SEAL OF THE LORDS PROPRIETORS, 1670-1719 _ A

THE SITE OF CRAVEN BASTION, (For inscription see MARKERS )
On column south of steps at U. S. Custom House, East Bay.
FRANKLIN STREET

UNITED STATES MARINE HOSPTITAL

SEAL QF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C., 1783

UNITED STATES MARINE HOSPITAL. This building, designed by Robert -
Mills, widely known architect, was erected 1833 for the care of sick and

disahled merchant seamen. It served also as a teaching clinic for the
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Medical Cellege of South Carolina, and after 1860 was a miiitary hospital

for the Confederacy. Following the War, a free school for negro children,

staffed by white Southern women, was conducted here. From 1895 to 1939
it was occupied by the Jenkins Orphanage for Negroes. In 1939 the build-

ing was remodeled for the administrative offices of the Housing Authority

of the City of Charleston. Placed by the Historical Commission of

Charleston, S. C. 1954,

On wall south of building at #30 Franklin Street

HASELL STREET

BETH ELOHIM TEMPLE

SEAL OF THE COLONIAL GOVERNMENT, 1719-1775

KAHAL KADOSH BETH ELOHIM (HOLY CONGREGATION HOUSE OF GOD). Founaed
1750. The Cradle of Reform Judaism in the United States, 1824. Jews
————— o
who settled in Charleston as early as 1695 worshipped informally until -
the founding of this congregation in 1750, First Synagogue on this

site, 1780-1792, was a converted cotton gin. .A second, built 1792,

burned in 1838. The Sunday School begqun in 1838 was the second Jewish

Sunday School in the United States, and oidest in continuous use. The
Tabernacle was built 1938 on the site of the old Tabernacle (1838—1948);_
George Washington wrote the Congregation in 1720: "May the same temporal
and eternal blessings which you implore_for me, rest upcn your congre-
gation." Approved by the Hiétprical Commission of Charleston, S. C.

On fence, right of entrance td Synagogue at #%0 Hasell St.

KING STREET

THE SQOCIETE FRANCAISE |
SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C. 1783

THE SQCIETE FRANCAISE was organized June 17, 1818 by men who came from




France to aid America in the Revolution and by refugees from the Ff@ﬁﬂﬁ:

Revolution and Uprisings in Santoc Domingoc. The Societe was founded in
the "Long Roomﬁ of the Chevalier Pierre de Fayolles, Soldier of France,
and Friend ahd Companion of the Marquis de Lafayette, in a building which
stood on this site. Designed to "give succor to those in misfortune,"

the Societe has fungtioned in this capacity ever since. Approved by .

the Historical Commission of Charleston, S. C. 13955,
No. 98 King Street.

THE RIVIERA THEATRE

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C. 1783

THE RIVIERA THEATRE built 1939 by Albert Sottile stands on the site

of the ACADEMY OF MUSIC for seventy years after its copening in 1369,

one of America's best known theatres,.énd noted for the perfection of‘
its acoustics. In this older theatre appeared such famous artists as“. :"}“; oL
Theodore Thomas's Orchestra, Maurice'Barrymore, The Grau Opera Company,

John Drew, The Booths, Joseph Jefferson, Mrs. Fiske, Lillian Russell,

Otis Skinner, Irving & Terry, Weber & Fields, Bernhardt,'Schumann——Heinck,

Maude Adams, Paderewski and other world-renowned performers in all the

range of professional entertaimment, Erected 1%42. Approved by the

Historical Commission of Charlesten.
On Market Street side of Riviera Theatre building, N.W. corner of : |
King street.

MARION SQUARE

SEAL OF THE CITY CF CHARLESTCN, S. C. 1783

MARION SQUARE. Named in honor of General Francis Marion. t the

time of the Revolution the town-gates stood near this spot across what
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is now King Street originally the High Way into Charles Town and formerly
called the "BROAD PATH." 1In 1780 these gates were enclosed in the "horn-
work," the post of honor in the city's land defenses extending from

river to river and known as "The Lines." Tﬁe "Tobacco Inspectien" -
warehouses established for the inspection and storage of tobacco before
exportation -~ stood north of the Sguare between Tobacco and Hutson Streets.
The buildings now on that site include the Arsenal erected for the Muni-
cipal Guard_after the attempted slave uprising of 1822, and subsequently
named the "Citadel." 1In 1842 they were occupied by the South Caroclina

Military Academy. In 1937 these buildings were converted into county

offices. Ceded in 1833 to the Field Qfficers of the Fourth Brigade, the

Square was and still is held as a public mall and a parade groun@.

It haé-long been.known as the "CITADEL GREEN." Erected by the City_of

Charleston, 1941. | |
Attached to a granite column at S. W. corner of Marion Square on

King Street, near the intersection <of Calhoun.

WILLIAM AIKEN HQUSE

SEAL QF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, 5. C., 1783 5.

WILLIAM AIKEN HOUSE. Built between 1807 and 1811, The East wing
was added after 1831, Residence of William Aiken, First Presidéht
(1828-1831) of the South Carolina Canal and Rail Road Company. This
Company inauguréted the American Steam Rajilroad era at Charleston,
Christmas Dbay, 1830, by usihg for the fifst time on this continent a
steam locomotive in reqular service to pull a train of cars on a track.
It also was the first in this country to carry the mail. The property
was inﬁeritéd by Goﬁernor William Aiken, Jr., who sold it in 1863 to

the South Carolina Railroad Company, which later became a part of the
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Southern Railway_System. The building now is used for division head-
quarters of the Railway. Approved by the Historical Commission of
Charleston, 3. C.
#456 King Street, S. E. corner of Ann Street.
MEET;NG STREET

SITE OF COLLETON BASTION

SEAL OF THE LORDS PROPRIETORS, 1670-1719.

THE SITE bF COLLETON BASTION., (For inscripticn see MARKERS,

Cumberland Street.)

Tablet on south post of fence of Eirst Presbyterian Chufch, S. W.
corner Meeting and Tradd Street.

FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

(No seal used)

1
i
:
?
:
<

THE FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH QF CHARLESTON. OrganizediEZEi;
Incorperated 1784. This building dedicated 1814. Originally founded
by tﬁelve Scottish families, it was familiarly known in its eariy his=-
tory as the Scots' Kirk. The present church replaced an earlier one,
which had been enlarged once before thé American Revolution and twice
afterwards, This building was damaged severely by. the earthquake of
1886 and to a lesser extent by the tecrnado of 1938. Erected 1940.

{Inscription was approved by the Historical Commission prior to
placing the tablet, although not so stated on the marker.)

On fence near entrance *»n Church, 3. W. corner of Tradd & Meeting.

COUNTY COURTHOUSE

SEAL OF TEE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C., 1783.

CHARLESTON COUNTY COURTHQUSE. Prcbably designed by Judge William

- Drayton. Eracted in 1792 on the foundations of the First South Carolina

g
Y o
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South Carolina State House, destroyed by fire in 1788, The Capital having
L ° Y

keen removed to Ceolumbia in 1790, the bullding was made the Courthouse

of Charleston Digtrict (now County).

The North extension, designed by David B. Hyer, was added in 1941.
Erected by the County of Charleston 1947. Approved by the Historical
Commission of Charleston, S. C.

Meeting Street at N. W. corner of Broad Street.

FIREPROQF BUILDING

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C., 1783

FIREPROOF BUILDING. Erected 1826. The first public building in
AN T
America specifically designed to protect important records from the
hazard of fire. State and county records were housed here until-the

completion of the addition to the courthouse in 1942. Since that date

it has been occupied by the Scuth Caroclina Historical Society. The

T

building was designed by Reobert Miils,‘widely known architect, whose
e

work included the Washington Monument and the United States TreaSury

Building. ZErected by'the County of Charleston/1947/ Approved by the
Historical Commission of Charleston, S. C.
Meétihg Street side of building; 5. E. corner Chalmers Street.

ST. JOHN HOTEL

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, 5. C., 1783,

THE ST. JOHN HOTEL stands on the site of Archdale’'s Square granted

W .
1683 .to John Archdale, Quaker Governor of Carolina, 1695-1696. The
original house was built prior to 1768. It has been a hotel almost

o

continuously since 1801 when it was The St. Mary's Hotel, followed

by The Planter’'s Hotel 1803-1809. Purchased by Otis Mills in 1836.

o e
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Leased for a United States Courthouse 1837-1844. Designated The Mansion

House until 1853 when it was enlarged and renamed "THE MILLS HOUSE."

e

It received its present name in 1901. /Placed 1348 / Approved by the -
Historical Commission of Charleston, S. C.
Meeting Street at 5. W. corner of Queen Street.

CIRCULAR CHURCH

(Wooden marker - no seal)

CIRCULAR CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH. Crganized about 1681, The first

building, known as the "White Meeting House" from which Meeting Street

took its name, was succeeded by a building of brick, completed 1732,

enlarged 1759, The third building, designed by Robert Mills, circular

in shape and completed in 1804 was destroyed by the fire of 1861. The
RO R A,

chapel in the rear was used for services until the dedication of the
present structure, the fourth building on this site, January 17, 18%9z.
. ’ - ]
/ Approved by the Historical Commission of Charleston, S. C.
In Churchyard, on wooden support. #135 Meeting Street.

- SOUTH CAROLINA POWER COMPANY

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C., 1783

THIS BUILDING, erected in 1878 by the Charleston Gas Ticht Company,

a pioneer in public service, was designed by Edward Brickell White-

soldier - Enginéer.— Architect. The South Carolina Power Company is
the ocutgrowth 6f the Charleston Gas Light Company, the oldest member
body in its corporate history, which was founded 102 years ago on
December 18, 1846. Placed by the South Carelina Power Company 1948.. /
Approved by the Histozicél Commission of Charleston, S. c.

On Column, near N. Entrance to building at %141 Meeting St.
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CITY MARKET

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C., 1783

CITY MARKET. BHere was erected between 1788 and 1804 a public market
. .

on land ceded to City Council by Charles Cotesworth Pinckney et al.

L

Work of f£filling in low ground and creek completed in 1B06; and six
blocks of building constructed extending from Meeting Street to the

Cooper River; in order, the Beef Market, three buildings for Vegetables,
Oty AR SECRT T R

[

Fruit and other Pfovis%gns, a market for Small Meafs and the Fish Market.
Market Hall erected 1841, now houses the Confe&erate Mﬁseum. / Placed
by the City of Charleston, November 2, 1939.

On Market Hall at Meeting'and Market Street entrance;

JOSEPﬂ MANIGAULT HOUSE

SEAL OF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, S. C., 1783

THE JOSEPH MANIGAULT HOUSE. An outstanding example of the Adam style
of architecture in Plan, Interior Detail, and Decoration. The house

was designed by Gabriel Manigault, Charleston's most famous amateur

architect, for his brother, Joseph Manigault, who acquired the lot in
A vyt ST, :

1802 and built the house a short time later.

The lot, which was part of a tract formerly known as Wraggsborough,

had belonged to Joseph Manigault's mother, Mrs. Peter Manigault, to
i

whom it had come by inheritance from here father, Joseph Wragg.

) S ———————

/ Placed by the City of Charleston, S. C. 1853.
At 8. end of garden wall #350 Meeting Street.

COURTENAY PUBLIC SCHCOL

SEAL QF THE CITY OF CHARLESTON, 5. C., 1763

PRIOR TO THE ERECTION ON TEIS SITE in 1852 of the FIRST FREE SCHOOL

BUILDING in Charleston, School Rooms were maintained at various places
v p————
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in the city at the expense of the.teachers. This school opened with &9
female scholars under Mrs. Isabella Blari, who served 31 years. 1In 1899
a new building erected on the same site was named the COURTENAY SCHOOL
in honor of MAYOR WILLIAM ASHMEAD COURTENAY who was actively interested
in public education. Placed by the City of Charleston, S. C., 1852,

On White column of piazza of school, facing Meeting Street gate,
near Mary Street.

ST. PHILIP STREET

FIRST PUBLIC LENDING LIBRARY

SEAL OF THE LORDS PROPRIETORS, 1670-1719

SITE QF THE FIRST PUBLIC LENDING LIBRARY IN THE AMERICAN COLONIES.

This land, granted 1680 to John Coming is part of the Glebe given in

1698 to the English Church by Mrs. Affra Coming. - The PROVINCIAL LIBRARY

established in 1698 was in ST. PHILIP'S CHURCH PRRSONAGE which stood

on this site until 1858 when a girls' school, later named MEMMINGER

was built thereon, The property was conveyed to ST. MICHAEL'S CHURCH
W

in 1797 and by it to the City Board of School Commissioners in 1899.
Placed by The Historical Commission of Charleston, S. C., 1955.

On Memminger School fence on St, Philip Street, half-way between
Beaufain and Wentworth Streets.

WASHINGTON SQUARE

FRANCIS SALVADOR

SEAL OF THE COLONIAL GOVERNMENT, 1719-1775

COMMEMORATING FRANCIS SALVADOR, 1747-1776. First Jew to hold office

in the early government of this country and to die for American Indepen-

dence. He came to Charles Town from his native London in 1773 to develcp

b
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extensive family land holdings in the frontier District of Ninety-Six.
As a deputy to the Provincial Congresses of South Carolina, 1775 and
1776, he served wigh distinction in the creation of this State and
Nation. Participating as a volunteer in an expedition against Indians
and Tories, he was killed from ambush near the Keowee River, August 1,
1776. Born an aristocrat, he became a Democrat; an Englishman, he cast
his lot with America; True to his ancient faith, he gave his life for
new hopes of human. liberty and understanding. =Zrected at the time of
the Bicentennial Celebration of the Jewish Community of Charleston 1950.
/ Approved'by the Historicél Commission of Charleston, 5. C.

On the East wall of Washington sgquare, just south of the Beauregard

monument.
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MISCELLANECUS DATA
EARLY CHARLES TOWN -lTOPOGRAPHY; CLIMATE, ETC.
WHAT CHARLES TOWN'S FIRST SETTLERS FOUND

{And what they had to put up withl!l)

In dealing with Charleston's early days, one comes across bewilder-
ing descripticons of creeks, marshes, etc., within a ¢ity that now is
dry land {unless there's a heavy rain on a high tidel). Soon one
has the impression that Charleston, like most Dutch cities, has been
won from the waters of Cooper and Ashley Riverﬁ and from marshes,
creeks, etc., which formerly bounded streets an@ lots, Just what
was the peninsulg like in its earliest days? And why was Charles
Town situated there? Whe placed us where we are?

In The Shaftesbury Papers, pp 378-9, there is a long letter from
Joseph Dalton to Lord Ashley; written January 20, 1671, from l;Charles
Towne on the Ashley." The new name was already in use for the first
settlement. Dalton had come on the Carolina in 1670, was Secretary
of the Council and held many chet responsible positions. He is explain-

ing why the first settlement at Albemarle Point was made so near the mouth
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of Ashley River, therefore subject to Spanish attack and not further
inland where, he explained, they would have "laid a way to have our-
selves blockt in and to have our relief intercepted." But he added it
would be too much to expect that the "Spaniard has forgott his sullen-
ness." Therefore:

"It will become us to erect townes of safety as well as of Trade
to wich purpose there is a place between Ashley and Wandoo river (early
settlers called the Cooper "Wandoo") about six hundred acres left vacant
for a téwne and fort by the direction of the cld Geovernor Coll sSavle
for that it commands beoth the rivers, It is not above a Mile between
River and river with a bold landing free from any Marsh sce as many
ships as can may ride befeore the Towﬁe at once and as many ships as can
come into the River under the protection of the fort if one should be
there: It is as it were a Key to cpen and shutt this settlment into

safg;y/or danger.."

Since Sayle was anything but popular, Dalton would scarcely give

him credit for having selected this site unless he really had done so.
H

i

“j The plan of the new town, the so=called Grand Modell, is mentioned

in a letter froﬁ four Proprietors, Craven, G, Carteret, Ashley and P.
Colleton, written from White Hall (the old palace in London, destroyed
by fire in 1698, ieaving crily its great Banquet Hall standing. Tbe
letter. is addressed to the Governof and Council eof Ashley River and
orders {(pg 323):

"When ye place for ve Town is chosen & ye Survevor shall lay out
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streets according to ye model herewith sent as near as ye particular
scituation of ye place will admit..." {They also ordered scale maps
of the district to be made.)
But the "scituaticon of ye plate" made considerable adjustment of
the model necessary in view of the Proprietors' orders that "... ye
Model of ve Town... was of streets runing strait, whereof ye largest
was 80 fout,.ye back street to 40 foot, ye next, 60 foot, & ve baﬁk Street
30, with streets divided the Towne intc squares, each of whose sides
was 600 foot." These directions were.evidently on the map ‘itself, for

the quotaticon just given was in the hand of Lord Ashley's secretary,

John Locke, as a notion to the letter.

Qldmixon, a British historian, commented acidly that, "A model
of a town was sent, which it will be well if the people of Carolina
are able to huild 100 years hence."

The earliest real map of Charles Town and surrounding territory

[T )
was made in 1704 by Edward Crisp. It shows Charles Town already

with fortifications, bastions, walls, etc., and apparently all solid

ground except for the arm of a long creek which_snakes under palisades

at about the intersection of Water and East Battery Streets, to the
southeast corner of Tradd and Church Streets., This was a most misieading
sketch, judging from the description of the early topography of Charles
Town, in Volume II of Dr. David Ramsay's History of South Carolina,
pp 70=~72:

"The sit$ of Charlestown in its natural state was a slip of land
stretching soughe;stwardly, between two rivers, and pfojecting into
the harboxr forﬁea by their junction and divided into a number of penin-

sulas by creeks and marshes; indenting it on three sides so as to
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leave but little unbroken high land in the middle. The first buildings
extended along East Bay-street, and had a marsh in their whole front.

A considerable creek, named Vanderhorst's creek, occupied the foundaticon
of Water-gtreet; and passing beyond Meeting-street, sent out a branch

to the northward nearly to the Presbyterian Church. AaAnother creek stretch-
ed northwestwardly nearly parallei to East Bay-sfreet, from the neighbor-
hoeod of Magleod's leots, through Longitude Lane and to the north of it.

The same kind of low grounds ran up Queen-street;, then called Dock-street,
beyond the french church, and through Beresford's alley until it approached
Meeting-street. The north end of Union~street was planted with rice about
the middle of the 18th century. Ancther very large creek occupied the
site of the present central market, and extended westwardly beyonq
Meeting-street, which diverged scuthwardly almost to the indépendent
church, and nerthwardly spreading extensively, then dividing into two
branches; running to the north-west apd to the north-east so as to cover

a large portion of ground. Besides the marsh and these creeks which
nearly environed three sides of the’improved part §f Charlestown, there
was another creek a little to the southward of what is now Water-street,
which stfetched westwardly over Church—street;_and another which ran
northwardly up Meeting-street, and then extended across westwardly nearly
to King-street. A creek ran from the west near where Peter Smith's

house now stands, and nearly parallel to South Bay till it approached

the last mentioned creek, and was divided from itlby Xing~-street and a
slip of land on each side. six 6ther creeks ran eastwardly'from Ashley
river, three of which stretched across the peninsula so as to approximate
to King-street, There were also ponds and low grounds.in different parts

of the town. One of these extended on the east side of Xing-street almost
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the whole distance between Broad and Tradd streets... There was also a.
large body of low grounds at the intersection of Hasell and Meeting-
streets.” A footnote on pg 72 describing flooding after a hurricane
adds: "Peréons new living (1809) rememher that they have heard the
deceased Samuel Priocleau, who was born in or about 1718, say that he
had swam in the line of Meeting-street, from the west end of the pre-
sent Water-street to the gite of the present national bank."

Net unreasonably_did Gecrge Chalmers, in his political annals
of the united coloﬁies, printed in 1780, declare that, "Cha;lestown
was long unhealthful. From ;he month of June te¢ October, the courts
of justice were commonly shut up. No public business was transacted.
Men fled from it as from a pestilence, and orders were given to inquire
for situations more friendly to health." (In other words, a healthier
place to spend the summers.}

Descripticons of the heat of those early days almost passes belief,
Charles Town's inguiring doctors hung thermometers in the open, in the
halls of their houses, down their wells, recording temperatures as high
as 131 degrees in summer. And Dr. Lionel Chalmers' account of the weather
and diseases in Scuth Carolina, printéd in London in 1776,rdeclares:

"I cannot convey a better idea of the heat we perceive in passing
along the streets at noon in summer, than by comparing it te that glow
which strikes one who looks into a pretty warm oven; for it is so in~
creased by reflection from the houses and sandy streets as to raise the
mercury scmetimes to the 130th division of the Thermometer, when the
temperature of the shaded air may not exceed the 94th... Nay, I have
seen a beef-steak of the coﬁmcn thickness so deprived of its juices

when laid on a cannon for the space of twenty minutes as te be overdone
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according to the usual way of speaking..."”

Excessive heat brought violent storms and lightning. Dr. Chalmers
reported Severai dramatic deaths by lightning, after a heat wave and
drought in 1752.

These descriptions by men who had lived through the events and
encountered the conditions they describe, or who had known pecple who
had geone through them serve to show the toughness, courage and energy
of Charlesten's first citizens, who took a mass of mud, begs and creeks
and turned them into ‘the lovely city that we know.

COBELESTONES

Ships coming to America from British and Eurcpean ports often
travelled with holds half-empty, to have room for cargoes going home.
But ballast - some heavy, bulky material - was needed in the ships to
make them steadier to handle and increase thé_vessel's stability.

Mach of the ballast that came to Charleston was heavy stone and many
of thé streets were paved with it in éarly times, The wvessels would
depart with cargoes from Carolina that demahded a;maximum amount of
space - timber, bales of hides, barrels of rice, etc., which would bhe
enough to steady a ship by their weight'on the returp trip.

The stones on the cutward veyage would cost the ship's owners
nothing except the labor needed ﬁo find and load them. Crushed oyster
shell was also used to paﬁe cther Charleston streets, up to comparatively
recent times. .Early le;ters, diaries énd newspapers contain complaints
about the dust of Charleston's streets in summer.

When the c¢ity began to pave the streets, the City Fathers decided
to leave one streef with its original cobblestone paving, as a rzlic

of other days. Chalmers Street's cobbles lay just as they always had
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until it was necessary to run a new water line down Chalmers Street in
1967.. The cobblestones, laid in sand, were removed. But when the time
came_td replace them, it was discovered that nobedy ﬁow living understands
just how to do this - at least nocbody now living in.Charleston- so the
stones with much trouble were relaid, not in sand, but in a weak mortar
mix, When it was necessary, in November 1972, to disturb the stones
again, with a new sewer connection to the Fireproef Building, the City-
teock no chances. Before the old stones were touched, a photeograph was
made of the section to be disturbed, the stones were marked, and later
replaced in order. -
CHURCH SERVICES TIMED BY THE TIDES

Before the Huguenot settlers living up the Ccoper River had their.
own churches, they came.to Charles Town for services in the first Huguenot
Church, then as élways, situ;ted at the corner'ogigueen and Church.Streets.
The only way inﬁo town by land was long and dangerous, both becausé of
possible Indiaﬁ attacks and becéuse of the natural hazards of travgl
through wild, uﬁsettled country. Besides, it ?ould have taken too
long for a family to get inte town for a morning service, on foot or
horseback. | : A

The Huguenots therefore came to town by water in cances or peri-

'augers; a kind of cance dug out of a single huge log. These craft

ware difficult to manage against the tide, especially when laden with

passengers, so0 the settlers came down on the ebb tide, attended services,

and went home on the flood tide. The church services were timed accord-

Cingly.
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"until it was necessary to run a new water line down Chalmers Street in
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again, with a new sewer connection t¢ the Fireproof Building, the City'
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Befors the Huguenot settlers living up the Cooper River had their

own churches, they &ame £0 Charles Town for services in the_first Huguenot
church, then as always, situated at the corner.cfugueen and ChurCh_Streets..
The only way info-tcwn.by land was long and dangerousf~both"becau§é ﬁf.
possible Indiaﬁ attacks and because of the natural hﬁzade”of travel
through wild, unsettled country. Besides, it yculd have taken_too.
long for a family to get ipto town for a morning service, og_foot or
horseback. | |

| The Huguenots therefore came to town by water in cances or peri-
augers, a kind of cance dug out of a single huge log. These craft
were difficult to manage against the tide, especially when laden wifh
passengeis, g0 the settle;s came dowﬁ on the ebb tide, attended services,
and went home on the flood tide. Tﬁe church services were timed accord-

ingly.
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Their light-draft boats could come right up past the church and be
moored very near it since, in early times, a creek came up what is now
Queen Street, then called.ﬁock Street. 1In those days, sermons were
preached in the ﬁorning and again jn the afterncon, so thé Sunday trip

lasted all day. When, in 1622, the Council of the Province ruled that

all churches in Charles Town must begin their morning services at 9:00

a.m., and their afternoon worship at 2:00 p.m., the Huguenots appealed

te the Lords Proprietors themselves in London, asking indulgence ﬁor'
."the convenience of such (worshippers) they begin their devine worship
earlier or later as the tide serves." The Lords assented,.adding that
in this "we would not havé them meolested.”

EARTHQUAKE BOLTS AND RODS

These were made necessary by the terrible earthquake ¢f August 31,

1886, one of the most destructive guakes ever td.strike the eastern

part of this country. At 9:53 p.m., when most of Charleston's inhabi-

—

tants were in bed, the first of five severe tremors struck the citys

wrecking entire blccks, shearing away the fronts of houses (and éften
leaving the furniture undisturbgdl} and wreaking havoc con scme of the
city's most historic structures. In many places, wells became minia-

ture geysers, the upward force of their water knocking off well-covers

and emptying the wells themselves. Wide, deep fissures opened in the

earth, and sand of odd cclers from the lower strata came in the streams -
of water. Fires broke ocut and destroyed many houses.

An cld scrapbook in the Charleston Library Society tells the story

graphically. The city had not recovered from a disastrous cyclone which
had cccurred on ARugust 26, 1885. There had been light shocks bhefore
the severe ones, as early as ARugust 27, 1886, and the shocks continued

with diminishing force until September 30, 1886.
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Newspaper pictures show the ruin. St. Michael's Church showed
massive cracks in the walls. The porch, or portico, was wrenched from
~ the body of the church. Down the middle aisle, a deep fissure appeared,
as though a plow had been run down the center of the church, and water

gushed from the crevice, St. Michael's steeple settled eight inches

during the quake.

St. Philip's Church lost the part of the steeple directly under
the spire, and pictures taken immediétely after the guake made it look
as though a'pointed witch's hat sat on a series of unended broomsticks
abcve‘thé body of the steeple. Inside, the "News and Courier" called
the destruction "indescribable.”

Several entire blocks of Market Street were so ruined that the
"News and Courier” declared there was nothing to do but pull them all
down and rebuild. Roper Hospital was padly hit. The picture of King
Street between Broad and Queen Streets looks like a block in Pompeii.
The Unitarian Church tower fell inwérds, crushing not conly the roof
but the organ inside. The Hibernian Hall on Meeting Street lost its
massive columns and the pediment was sheared off cleanly, as thoﬁgh with
a giant knife. The main Police Station on the site of the present Post
Office at the corner of Broad and Meeting Streets, a ponderous building
with six massive Doric columns in front, was a complete wreck and had
to be taken down entirely,. |

The refugees swarmed into Washington Square, which was shortly
a mass of improvised tents and shelters, mattresses lying on the ground,
etc. Even after conditions seemed back to normal, many refused to.go
back into any building. Hysteria spread as the rumor sped tﬁat.this

was Judgement Day and the end of the world.
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Freakish survivals of buildings and monuments were numercus.
Charleston's churches were hard hit, but the Academy of Music, on the
northwest corner of King and Market Streets - typical of secular amuse-
ment - remained unharmed. |

In the historic Miles Brewton home, only a little plaster fell,
and the chief damage was a few old china ornaments broken. While the
ponderous walls of the old Citadel, on "The Green" (Marion Square)} were
cracked and broken,.the unfinished Calhoun Mbnument stood £irm.

Casualties were light. Nine white pecople were either killed out-:
N B

right or died from injuries latertﬂiaé_zz_giisii; Damage to the city
was estimated at $5,0C0,C000., Help came from all over the United States
and from abroad. |

.In repairing houses whose walls had parted, or were weakened,
great iron bolts were passed througﬁ the.entire house (usually between
floor and ceiling) and the whole structure waé scré@ed back togéther.
It is fhe ends of theée earthquake bolts, ip the shape of flat, round
buttons, lion heads, crossed bhars, etc.,'on extérior walls which show
the building was damaged in the guake, and mark.its age = sometime
before 1886. (There are sets of.phony bars on some new buildings,
the final touch in."antiquing" a strucﬁ%reﬁ) 9

Shortly after the gquake, Charleston newspapefs carried ads for
"Earthguake Dust'" 1s small bottles, priced ten cents éach with a "cabinet"
of 12 bottles, each containing.a different color of sand, at $1,0C
postpaid., For years there were few Charleston whatnots or.mantels
which did not display phials of such dust, in shades of pink, lavender,

vellow and gray, liberally sprinkled with mica. Undergrcund Charleston

had made its own souvenirs!
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FIRE MARKS
High on walls or gables of several old Charleston houses are metal |

plagues, or "fire marks" indicating that the house was insured against

fire. Often‘these plagues were brightly painted, probably to make them

more easily seen, and bore touches of gilt., Each insurance company

issued its own distinetive plaque, and nearly all early fire insurance

companies had their own fire brigades, whose helmets, trumpets, buckets,

etc. bore the company's insignia. In case several houses blazed up-

" which often happened-the insurance fire brigades concentrated oﬁ saving
those dwellings bearing their parent company's fire mark. Several early
Charleston fire marks, pieces of equipment, etc., are on display at
the Charleston Museum.

Original fire marks still in Charleston include one on the Church
Street side of the house at the northeast corner of Church and Water

Streets. The other is in the gable of No, 7 State Street. The latter
. “,___—-—-—...,.._, .

et e g,

bears the mark of the PHOENIX FIRE COMPANY, of London, which is still

o e

in operation. There was a time, however, when American buildings could

 not be insured in Great Britain, and this led to the formation of pos-

sibly the earliest fire insurance company in America, THE FRIENDLY
. PRI RGERADI Ry

SOCIETY FOR THE MUTUAL INSURING OF HOUSES AGAINST FIRE. {This organi-

e S

_zation has NO connection with the German Friendly Society);

Fire insurancé had come about in London after the great fire of
" 1666, which raged unchecked from September 2nd to September 5th, 1666,
destroying more than 90 churcheé, 14,000 dwellings and priceless works

‘of art and architecture. fKing Charles II and his brother, later James

II, had worked in the bucket brigades, which soon were helpless.)

Charleston's close-built wooden houses posed an obvious danger, In
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1735, the Friendly Society was organized ;t the home of "Captain William
Pinckney on the Bay” and the list of the first "subscribers” - organizers
of the company And themselves insured - contains some of the leading
names of the Province.

Addprding to an article in Volume VIII, pages 46-~53 of the South
Carolina Historical and Genealogical Magazine, the first notice of the
organization was announced in the SOUTH CAROLINA GAZETTE on November 21,
1735, The last mention of it was on February 21, 1741. A copy of the

long agreement to be signed by prospective policy-~holders appeared in

the GAZETTE'S first announcement, and indicate just how the Friendly

Society was set up. Those putting their signatures to the agreement,
which was to he seen at Captain Pinckney's were to be freeholders - that

is, completely owners - of the properties insured against fire alone.

‘Apparently, the contents of the buildings were not to be protected.

The first article set forth the reason whay a loéal insurance company
was necessary:

".... whereas, by reason of our Distance from Great Britain, no
Insurance Office the;e, will upon any Terms.or Conditions, insure any
House in this Town from Loss by Fire." There were too many uncertainties
and too much chance of fraud, and this is implied in the article but_
never openly stated, in order not to offend the gentlemen insurors.

The Society was a mutual fire insurance company. It prayed the
Lieutenant Governor (then Thomas Broughton) and the General Assembly
to grant the company powers to "purchase lLands, Houses, and Tenements,
Goods and Chattels, and lend out Money, in ordgr to have and establish
a Fund, always to make good any Loss or Demand...” ¥No property outside

Charleston could be insured. Properties which in the opinion of the
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fire chief, should be blown up with gunpowder to arrest the spread of
a fire, or pulled down before the flames took it were to be replaced
by the Society as though they had been destroyed by fire. (Early
companies all had fire-hooks, for pulling down beams, etc.) Dependent
buildings as well as main dwgllings were covered, since the description
of the properties includes the now obsolete word, "Messauges" which
means the premises attached to a house. Servants' gquarters, stables,
the "Necessary House," etec. were thus safeguarded.

No house could be-insured for 'less than 250 current money or more
than 4,000. "Current Money" meant the money of the Province, as op-
posed to the Pound Sterling. At that time, about 5 in current money
was equal to the 1, sterling. Values varied with years, wars, etc.

On signing the agreement, which made him an insured person, each
subscriber gave his bond {promise to pay) of 100, payvable with 10%
interest for the next 12 months. Anybody insuiing property up o

1,000 in value had to pay 10 for his policy. The sums thus paid in
were loaned out at interest. In case an insured person's house was
destroyed or damaged by fire, all the other members had to pay a pro
#ata part of what they owed at. that time, or all of it, depending on
how much was necessary to make the damage good. Subscribers were Qarn—
ed that if premiums went unpaid for three months, protection ceased,
and the policy lapsed. Report on a loss-ha& to be made within three
days of its occurance.‘ Members were alsoc on the Board of Directors,
with a voice in the coﬁpany's policies. Other persons could join, if
proposed by a member, and anyone giving bond and not paying it on-time,

could be sued by the Society!
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Cn November 18, 1740, a fire consumed at least half of Charles Town.
The loss has been estimated at 51,500,000 and 300 houses weré destroyed.
In all probability this marked the end of the Friendly Society for on

- Pebruary 19, 1741, an announcement in the GAZETTE asked all members
to pay what they owed the Friendly Society.

All this information may seem lengthy now, but early Charleston
business is a faécinating subject, and the city now is expecting con-
ventions from all sorts of businesses thch may in future include in-
surance companies. Bear in mind that an attempt was made in Boston,
Mass. to form a fire insurance company in 1728, but it was apparently
unsuccessful, Bear in mind alsc, that replicas of old fire marks are
being widely sold by gift and specialty companies, and affixed to houses,
often quite modern, which have no right to bear them, Be caréful which
marks you indicate as genuine.

Charleston had fire engines as early as 1756, for General William
Moultrie, in his memoirs, tells of how these engines were concentrated
in the lower part of the city, which would be the first attacked by the
British in case they passed Sullivan's Island. These engines had leather
hoses. and were handfpumped. They were fed from firewells, cisterns
under certain streets, whose locations are shown on many old maps of
the city.

After the 1740 fire, Parliament sent 20,000 to the strickén town -
only a fraction of its loss. Laws'wére passed, forbidding the erection
of a wooden house in Chérles Town. Following this fire and others
which have plagued the city, Charles Town possessed a number of fire
companies whosgse members often enjoyed the social standing of the

various exclusive military companies. Membership was by invitation.
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Uniforms were bought by the members and were elaborate and colorful.
These early firemen drew no salaries; instead, they paid dues to their
organizations. In the absence of a central fire station, the alarm-
was rung on St. Michael's bells and watchmen in the steeple held ocut
lanterns on staves in the direction of the blaze.
GATEWAY WALK

This walk begins at St. Philip's West Churchyard, follows west-
wardly through the adjoining Churchyard of the Circular Church, crosses
Meeting Street‘to continue along the north side of the Gibbes Art Gallery,
past the fence and through the gate from the William Aiken House at-
3456 King Street, continuing along the south side of the Charleston
Library Society, and coming ou£ by the hitching posts at the edge of
the Library grounds, again crossing a street, this time King, to the
gateway opposite through which the walk continues on to and through
the yvard of the Unitarian Church, to emerge on'Archdale.Street.

CHARITAELE AND BENEVOLENT INSTITUTIONS

THE CONFEDERATE HOME, 62 Broad Street - This building has been a. -

private residence, a department store, a hotel and a hoarding school,

and the section on Chalmers Street was used as a United States Court-
house. (It now houses the headquarters of the Huguenot Society of -

Sttt

R —— e —— b

South Carolina, its office, research library and mailing room. A few

¢ i e

apartments are also in this section.)

Today the Home is operated by. the Ladies Memorial Association,

P WY

to carry on the work of caring for the widows and daughters of Confede-

rate soldiers and sailors, which began in this building in 1866. A
school for the daughters of Confederates, known as the Confederate

College, was also established here in 1867 by Mrs. Mary amarinthia

T
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Snowden and her sister—--~two of the most devoted Confederate women who
ever lived, apparently, for there seéms to have been no work in_the
Confederacy's behalf (from nursing to importing supplies through the
blockade to literally Qearing concealed in their clothing the securities
destined to build the Calhoun Monument on Marion Square) that the
siéters did not accomplish., With education in the post-bellum Scuth

at a standstill during‘the darkest time of Recongtruction, Mrs. Snowden
decided that the daughters of her country's defenders {and mothers of
the future South éarolina) should be educated. She rented the building
and in order to pay, mortgaged her own and her sister's residence for
the first year's rent. Friends came forward and subscribed enough to
carry on the school and home énd to pay off the Snowden mortgage.

Mrs. Snowden, nee Yeates, was born in Charlesteon in 1819 and-died,
honored by the whole city, in 1898, Originally the home she founded
was for the mothers, widows and daughters of Confederate soldiers,

She was founder and, for her.lifetime; the president of the Ladies Mem-
orial Association of South Carolina. The school was badly damaged by
the earthquake of 1886, but was restored with contributions from all
over the United States. The story is told briefly but literally in
the marble inscription over the entrance: RUINED BY THE EARTHQUAKE -

OF 1886 - RESTORED BY THE PEQPLE OF THE UNION - 1887. The building

is no longer used ﬁs a school but is divided into rental units occupied,
no doubt, by many Confederate descendants still.

WILLIAM ENSTON HOME, 900 King Street at Huger Street - This interest-

ing collection of brick Victeorian cottages is modeled about as closely
on their British charitable prototypes as one can imagine. It was

founded by English-born William Eanston "to make old age ccmfortable”
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as gtated in his will. Scores of cities and towné throughout Great
Britain possess such refuges for the aged and infirm, endowed for
several centuries and still functioning as their founders intended.
These institutions are generally called "Hospitals” from the Latin
word "hospes”, a guest.

William Enston, born iﬁ Canterbury in 1808, came of an old family
in that county of Xent which had long been connected with charitable
projects. William's father was a cabinet maker whose shop was in the
shadow of Caﬁterbury Cathdral and within an easy walk of the Hospital |
of St, John (founded by Archbishop Lanfranc in 1084 for the lame, the
weak and the infirm--it still houses twelve Brothers and thirteen
Sisters). &4 similar institution,. Jesus Hospifal, nat far away, was.
endowed by a maternal ancestor of William Enston, Sir John Bovs, towards
the end of the léth century.

In 1825, Daniel Enston moved to Philadelphia. His son William
(eldest of seven children) was apprénticed at age 14 to learn "chair
ornamental painting and gilding." His apprenticeship finished at 21,
William stayed in Philadélphia_until his adored invalid mother died,
then set out to make his fortune. 1In 1832 he arrived in Charleston,
got a job at a fu;niture store kept by "a French lady” and, a year
later, went back to Philadelphia to marry Hannah Shuttlewool, of Colster-
worth, England. They returned to Cbarleston and Enston gave not only
hisg whqle life to the city, but his hea;t_as well. "I soon identified
myseif with the people," he wrote, "and entered inte all their sympathies.
From that time, my march was onward." .

It certainly was, for by the.1840's he had a large furniture store

in King Street, owned a half interest in the Charleston Hotel, and a
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share of a steamship line into Charleston and from the city to New Yorkr
and Havana. He died March 23, 1860 leéving a fortune of close to

' 51,000,000. THere were no children. His wife was his sole executor.
Aside from funds left for Mrs. Enston’s maintenance, William Enston
willed his entire fortune to the City of Charleston for a home for
*old and infirm persons" of good éharacter but few means and nct under
the age of 45. By the end of the war, his fortune had dwindled éon-
siderably, but the;e was enough to construct 24 cottages with a- potential

1 occupancy of 96 people., It was constructed on Storen's Farm, in a gquiet

area far up Charleston Neck. High walls guard the guiet precincts,

shaded by oid trees. Streets and courts are named for Ensfon's memories
of England and of Canterbury: Canterbuy Avenue for his own birthp;ace;

Colsterworth for his wife's birthplace in Lincolnshire; St. Martin's

Court for the Church of St. Martin in Canterbury'(a Saxon church with

an unbroken record of 1,300 years‘of Voréhip wiﬁhin.its walls); st.

Bertha's Court for that Christian queen of Ként who, with her husband,

welcomed St. Augustine to Britain in 597 A,D. There is also St. Augus-

tine's Court, named for one of the earliestrChristiah missionaries

to Britaih. {(who the first one was, nobody knows.)

In the Enston Home; occupied not only by sihgle peocple bﬁt by

some married couples, Charleston possessés a fine example in social

pioneering and preobably one of the earliest in this country. The Enston

| Home is designed for people who are over 45 years of age, able~bodied,

j and with a small indepen&ent income. No one over the age of 75 may
enter, but ogcupants who reach 75 and are still able to care for them-
selves and their quarﬁers, cook their own meals, etc., may reamin as
long as they ragquire no special care. (Several there now are 90 but

still going strong.) Utilities are furnished together with a stove
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for cooking and cone for heating, but occupants provide their own furni-
ture, etc., just as they would do if they were in their own homes or apart-
ments. Units consist of one rocom and a kitchenette and the two occupants
on each floor share the bath, An cold set of rules still posted up in

the halls states that if two occupants have a disagreement which cannct

be solved between themselves, they must take it te the manager, who, if

SHE can'’t solve it, must lay it before the Board of Trustees. So far
as anycne remembers, nc Enston Home disagreement has ever gone that
far.

CANTERBURY HOUSE -- A new high=rise aparfment building for retired
persons, cperated by the Episcopal Church. Located at 175 Market St.

EPISCOPAL CHURCH HOME <= Currently located at the N.E. corner of

Bee Street and Ashley Avenue, provides for members of the Protestant
Epiécopal Church. A new 1l32-bed facility is to be built at the N.W.
corner of St. Philip and Vanderhorst Streets, which will provide inter-
mediate nursing care for the pecple of‘Chaflestoni

FRANKE HOME ~- 261 Calhoun St., is for members of the Lutheran
Church, but alse accepts persons from other denominaticns if room is
available.

COLLIN McKAY GRANT HOME on Meeting Street, just South of Huger Street,
is for members of the Presbyterian Church..

ST. PHILIP'S CHURCH HOME -~ Church Street, N.E. Corner of Queen,

is for members of St. Philip's Protestant Episcopal Church.
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REBELLICN ROAD

REBELLION RCAD, anchorage off Mt, Pleasant, cpposite the south end
of the city. ‘The name is very ancient. A letter from Francis Yonge
about 1721 or 1722 teo the Lords Proprietors says that Rebellion Read
is so called because a ship lying.there is beyond the reach of the
guns of any of the forts, and sc nc ship is allowed tc lie at anchor
there over 24 hours without the Governor's written permission. Definance
of orders created the name.

SQUTH CARCLINA GAMECOCK

That was the nickname given GENERAL THOMAS SUMTER for whom Fort
Sumter was named, Hé‘was born.in Virginia in 1734, died 1832, and is
buried at Stateburg, S. C. He was a soldier, planter, Congressman
and one of the founders of the first American Republic.

THE SWAMP FOX

THE SWAMP FOX was the name given GENERAL fRANCIS MARICHN. He was
born about 1732, died 1795, and is buried at the plantation he owned,
"Baelle Isle,” just south of the Santee River on what used to be called
the "River Road," a neighboring road leading to Eutawville from High-
way #52.

The two nicknames "GAMECOCK" and "SWAMP FOX" seem to have originated
partially from a remark reporﬁed in correspondence of Cornwallis Banastre
Tarleton, British Colonel, was trfing to capture Géneral Francis Maricn
when Cornwallis sent for him to go after Generai Sumter at Ninety-Six.
Tarleton had been folloﬁing Marion on a seven hour chase through the
swamps for several miles and had just reached a swamp above Xing's Tree
(now the town of Kingstree, about 75 miles from Charleston). He is-

said to have called off his men with the remark: "Come my boys! Let us
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go kack, and we will scon find the gamecock, but as for this damned old
qu, the devil himself could not catch him!”
STATE BIRD: The Carolina Wren.

STATE FLOWER: Yellow Jasmine or Jessamine.

STATE MOTTO: Dum Spiro Spero (While I breath I hope) and Animus Qpibusque

Parati (Prepared in Spirit and Wealth), BAnother translation is:
(Prepared in minds and resources).
STATE TREE: ?he Palmétto.
TRANSLATIONS OF LATIN MOTTOES
OFTEN SEEN IN CHARLESTON
{Cr ;ncogntered in Research)

Note that a seal usually has two sides; the obverse, or most impor-
tant side, and the réverse. Mottoes are generally in Latin since the
languages admits of great compression and was for long the universal
language of diplomacy and learning, thus understocd'by mosf educéted
people in the Western World. °

Seal of the State of South Carclina

‘Obverse - A palmetto tree, emblem of the victorf at Sullivan's
Island, with two shields just below its fronds. O©On the right cne is
inscribed the date, "March 26th," the date of the ratificétioﬁ of the
Constitution by South Cérolina. One the right shield is “July.4th“
date of the Declaration of Independence. The tree stands on a torn,

"uprooted oak tree, symbol of British power. Twelve spears, representing
the 12 sﬁates first accéding to the Unicon, are kbound together crosswise ¢
at the base of the palmetto, with a streamer market "Quis separabit,“

"Who shall separate {us)?". Above the tree are the words, "South

Carolina.” Below, the mottoc: "Animis Opibusque Parati,” "Prepared
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in Spirit and Wealth" {or, Prepared in Mind and Resources"). This side

of the great seal of the state was designed by William Henry Drayton.

The reverse side of the seal is said to have been designed by
Arthur Middleton, one cof the Signers of the Declaration. &4 robed
;;;;n”;;;;lgg a laurel branch (token of honor and victory) is walking
over a collection of swords and daggers, symbols of danger, but look-

ing towards the sunrise. The work, "Spes” identifies her "Hope."

Above her are the words, "Dum Spirc Sperc"” ("While I breathe, I hope").

it

Obverse and reverée now appear upon the Great.Séai of the State together,
Seal of the City of Charleston

A female figure heolding a laurel wreath and carrying something
that is either a spear or a small banner looks across the harbor towards_
Charleston, which a full-rigged ship, symbol of commerce, is apprdaching.
Above the figure are the words, "Aedes Mores Juraque Curat” ("SHE GUARDS
HER CUSTOMS, ;ER BUILDINGS AND PEW

Below the figure is her name, "Carolopolis.” "Carolus" is Latin
for "Charles."™ "Polis" is Greek for “City.“_ Below, more latin:
“Civitatis Regimine Deonata A.D. 1783." "Granted by the Government of
the City, A.D.-1783" - the date when Charlgs Town became chérleston.

This seal appears also, in modified form, upon the small metal
award plagues given by the Preservation Society of Charleston for out-
standing restoration and preservatiqn of old buildings. ©On these "house-
medals” the word "Condita 1670" appears. It means "Founded." BAdd dates
in ancient Rome were reckoned "Ab Urbis Condita," "From the Founding
of the City"...so many.years.

Seal of the South Carolina Society
(Founded 1737)

This is one of the oldest Charléeston benevolent socleties organized
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to provide schooling for the city's indigent boys and girls. Qften &
large, light blue flag hangs from the portico of the Society Hall at
72 Meeting Street. On that flag, within a wreath, an outstratched

hand helds a small slip, or cutting, just a leaf or two, with the sug-

gestion of a root. The Latin motte reads, "Posteritati" ("To Posterity”

s G

or "For Posterity”). The Society hands on the small plant of learning

which those who shall come after may cultivate.
Seal of the College of Charleston
This oldest municipal college in the United States carries above
the figures in the center the words, "Sapientia Ipsa Libertas." This
sentence can bhe read several ways, and perhaps was intended to he.

It can mean either "Wisdom is Freedom Itself" or "Wisdom Itself is B

[ty

Freedom," or even backward as "Liberty Itself is Wisdom."” Below, the

o

Charleston motto is repeated, "Aedes Mores Juraque Curat.”
= ——-“M“—M

R
Seal of St. Michael's Church

This appears on pamphlets issued by the church. In the center

of an oval is the church itself, seen from the Meeting Street side.

The Latin motto says, "Discite Non Temnere ﬁegm,f "Teach Ye Not_to De-
spise God" ("Despise" in the sense of "Reject" or "Slight"),_
| ‘ CHARLESTON TODZ_-\Y
Information Furnished in 1970 by the
U. $. Bureau of the Census

U. S. Department of Commerce

Population
In April, 1975, there were approximately 724600 persons living in
the city. This represents 22% of the total population of the metropoli-

tan area, which is 275,000.
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Racial Composition

There we?e 36,695 white persons living in the city, or 54.8% of
the population. White persons represented 68.3% of the population of
the metropolitan area.

There were 30,225 Negroes living in the city in 1970, constituting
45.2% of Charleston's population. They represent 31.2% of those in
the metropolitan- area.

Foreign Stock

In Charleston proper there were in 1270 3,385 persons enumerated
in the 1%70 census who were themselves foreign~born or were children
of foreign-born parenté; Foreign Stock accounted for 5.1% of the city's
population and 4.1% of the metropolitaﬁ area. The.largesf foreign stock
groups came from Germany and PQland. |

Educational Attainment

Of the population of the city 2; vears old and over, 29.3% hgd
a grade school.education or less, 51.4% were high school graduates, in-
cluding 27.6% who had completed some years in college. About 16.2% of
the population of the city, 25 years Qld and over had completed four
years of college or more. There were 20,163 persons from age 3 to age
34 vears enrolled in sphools thféughout the city., including nurseries
and kindergartens, grade schools, high schools and 3,389 enrolled in

college. Negroes comprised 66.3% of the public school enrollment.
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Employment

In 1970 the labor force of Charleston numbered 26,005 persons or
55.5% of all persons 16 years old and over. Females constituted 45.3%
of the city's civilian lakor force, and 40.1% of the civilian labor
force of the metropolitan area. Negroes comprised 40.4% of the civi-_
lian labor force.

The total.labor force of both sexes, in the city was 46,822 persons
16 years old and over. In the metropolitan area, 198,5684.

Major Industries

In Charleston there were more perscns employed in professional and.
related services_than in any other industrial category. The second and
largest related industries were wholesale and retail trade and manufactur-
ing respectively. The median income in 1969 of families in Charleston |
was $7,920.00. This means that one half of the families in the city
had incomes below this value and one half had incomes above it. The
median inccome of Charleston Negrces was $4,771. 0Of the 15,865 families
in Charlestop, 3,475, or 21.9% had incomes below the 1969 low=-income or
poverty level. This was about $3,700 for a family of fqur, in 1969,

A total of 17,609 persons below the low-income level were in Charleston

in 1969, ©Of these, 13,761, or 78.1% were Negroes.
Housing

In 1970, there were in Charleston 23,432 year-round housing units

of which 21,213, or 20.5% were occupied. Of theses, 41l.6% were owner-

occupied. Negroes occupied 8,413 of the housing units of the city.
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FLOWERS, SHRUBS AND TREES

The great variety of plant life in Charleston gives color to the
clty every month of the Qear. There is 'a constant procession of beautiful
flowers, shrubs, and trees which displays an ever changing pattern of
bloom and hue. A list of some of these lovely flowers and trees is
arranged alphabetically on the following pages. It does not pretend
to be complete, but the ones named are among thoge the tourists usually
ask about., Of course, we all should know and take. pride in the flowers
named for or by Charlestonians, and some of those developedﬁor imported
here. The ones Charleston may be said to have a special claim to_aré
the following: |

.l. GARDENIA

2. HUGUENOT FERN

3. NOISETTE TEAXA ROSES: CLOTH OF GOLD, DEVONIENSIS, LAMARQUE,

MARECHAL'NEIL. | |

4. POINSETTIA
Among imported plants there are:

1. AZALEAS

2. CAMELLIA JAFONICA

3. CHINESE CANDLE;BERRY, or TALLOW TREE.

(This also is known by the local name of "PQP-COR& BERRY")

4. GINKGO TREE

Brief notes on these and on a few others h;ve been ;rranged in alphabet-.

ical order, on pages following the list.
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10.

11.

12.

13,

14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.

27,

Altheas

Atamasco Lillies

Azaleas

Banana Shrubk

Bay

Bignonia, Yellow, Purple
Bridal Wreath

Camellia Japaniéa

Cassena Berry

‘Cherokee Rose

China Berry (Pride of India)
Chinese Candle-Berry, Tallow, or "Pop-Corn"” tree
Coral Vine

Crab-A?pie

Crepe Myrtle

Ficus, or Fig Vine

Fig Tree

Flawering lednd

Forsythia -

Gardenia

Ginkgo Tree

Hawthorne

Hibiscus

Holly

Honeysucklé

Huguenot Fern

Jasmine, or Jessamine




28.
29.
30.
3.
32.
33.
34,
35.
36.

37.

1s,
39.
40.
41,
42,
43,
44.
45,
45.
47.
48.
49.
50.

51.

52.

Japanese Yew

Judas Tree

Lady Banksia Rose
Ligustrum .

Logquat, or Japanese Plum
Magnolia Grandiflora
Mimosa

Mock Qrange

Nandina.

Noisette Tea Roses: Cloth of Gold, Devoniensis,

Lamarque, Marecﬁenal‘Neii_

Oaks: Dive, Willow

Oleandefs

dPOPanéx_'

Palmettos

Pérkinsqnia

Pittosporum

Plumbago

Poinsettia

Pomegranate

Privet

Pyrus Japonica (Flowering Quiﬁce)
Spanish Moss | |
Spikeﬁard

Strawberry Shrub

Spirea

305
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53.

54.

33.

56.

37.

38.

Swamp Lillies

Sweet Myrtle

Sweet Olife (Chinese Tea?)
Trumpet Vine

Tulip Tree

Wisteria
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Spartinia patens is the name of the grass used by the Negro women in

making baskets.
It is said to be found in marsh near Charleston, in cypress swamps,
and near-old plantation storehouses.

AZALEAS are both native and imported. They grow wild in many parts
of the country, and are too wéll—known and numerous to need comment here.
BIGNONIA has both yellow and purple flowers, These plénts are

American, mostly tropical, ¢limbing shrubs, with large trumpet=-shaped
flowers which begin blooming in the early spring. They can be seen
throughout the City on walls, fences, and houses. _They are particularly
effective on the brick house just back from the cérne: of Broad and New
Streets. Another particularly effective site useﬁ_to_be on the wall of
the house immediately north of the Quaker Churchyard on King Street.
There must be many more places which willﬂ;ogguto'mind in the spring.

CAMELLIA JAPONICA. Henry Middleton invited Andre Michaux, cele-

brated French botanist, to visit Middleten Place, and”through_him Pro=-

.

cured tne.first Caﬁellia Japonica ever b;ougﬁt %o“América;__Tﬁréé'df the

four plants set out by Michaux at Middleton Place Gardens are still living.
'CASSENA is the .Indian name of a speqies_of_hqlly tree native to

the southern Un;ted_States. It is alsé.kﬁpwn by another Indian name,

YAUFPON, sometimes written Yapon, Youpon, Yupon. The berry is bright

red, and the_sma;l smooth'Leaves formerly were used by the Indians to

make Qhat théy caliea“;ﬁéw"Biéck Drink." The U. S. Governmgnt once

condﬁctea‘eipériments here at Charleston in making tea with Cassené

leaves. The experiments were made by one of Charleston's native sons,
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Mr. George Mitchell, who at that time was an expert "tea taster" for
the government.

CHINA BERRY. This plant, like the Chinese Tallow Tree, is an

"Asiatic tree, as the name implies. It is known also by other names

such as Pride of India, Pride of China, Bead Tree, Indian or Persian
Lilac, etc. It is planted as a shade tree.in the southern United States
and tropical countries. The pink flowers grew in largé clusters, and
are followed by yellow drupes, a drupe being a sbrt of over-ripe,
wrinkled'olive-like pod, which contains the seeds.“ Thé'tree blooms in

warm weather.

"CHINESE CANDLE-BERRY or TALLOW TREE. The berries of thié tree are
called by the négroés."poé-cofn berries,” becausé they say the berries
not oniy look'liké pop-corn, buﬁ because if they.afe.piéked with fhe
hulls oh'them, ybﬁ cén hear'ﬁhé hulls “poé" whéh tﬁef.opeﬁ. The berries
are ‘also called “Candle¥berries;“ and the.tréé.thé "Tallow Tree," hecause
of the wéxy coating'on the'berrieS? which isfﬁséa.in'tﬁe native land

of China for making candles.

W iaaiind

" The tree is an Asiatic shrub, a native of China. It was brought
to Charleston not long after the Revcolution by Andre Michaux, French

e

botanist and horticulturist, who was sent to America by the French
s T } ) . . . . . )
Government to collect trees and plants to be transplanted to France.

This was one of the plants he had collected in his travels over the

world, and which he planted at the Frenéh Botanic Garden he had here.

_ It was located at Ten Mile Hill, near the present Municipal Airport,

—

and contained 120 acres.
The botanical name of this shrub is SAPIUM: the local variéty was

named STILLINGIA SEBIFERA Ly Michaux. The tree grows to a height of
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approximately forty feet, wifh the largest and lowest branches from

six to eight feet long. The branches are very much smaller in diameter
than the trunk; which measures from twelve to fifteen inches in diameter,
The leaves are heart;shaped, green in the spring and summer, turnihg
into a beautifui reddish-yellow in the autumn just before they drop.
The berries, which are white, grow at the very tips of the smallest
twigs and have a black pod covering them which does not open until laté
in the fall. The leaves grow so close to the berries as to alimost hide
them, The tree has a flower, white, but very small and insign;f;cant.
In winter the tree never has a leaf left on it and very few, if any,
berries, Yet the berries will remain on the picked branch for years
when kept indoors, if the stems are not p;aced in_wate#. They can be
washed off from time to time, to get off dust, allowed to_dry; and
.continueﬁ to be ﬁsed. Formerly some of these trees.were Qlanted_iq

avenues in the grounds of the Charleston Orphan House., There is one

on Franklin Street near Queen, one on Meeting at Lamboll, and elsewhere

- . .

in the City. They are more numerous in the rural areas now, and in

the Summerville section will be found in abundance.

CORAL VINE or "BLERDING HEART", has a coral-colored flower which
grows in alry clusters, with twining tendrills. It is a lovely decora=-
tive plant. It usually comes into flower in late summer, but has been

known to bloom as early as June,

CREPE MYRTLE is a very decorative tree which is being planted more
and more throughout the city, on streets as well as in gardens. The

colors vary from a lovely pale pink to deep water-melon pink and purplish

red. There also is a white variety. This is another summer favorite
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blocoming all'through the hot weather. The flowers leock as if made of
old-fashicned crinkled crepe paper, which perhaps accounts for the name.

GARDENIA was named by Linnaeus, the Swedish scientist and botanist,

for Dr. Alexander Garden, native physician and distinguished naturalist

who conducted scientific experiments in botany.. Dr. Garden died in
1791, when he was onlf 61 years old. |

| GINKGD TREE. The history of tnis tree is said to be as old as
the dinosaurus of.fery ancient times. These trees were found in Bavaria,
western Greenland, the Yukon territory - in England, Italy, ankestan,‘
Scandanavia and Austria, Mongolia, and.fatagonie - Europe, Asia, Africa,
Nerth & South Amerioa, Australia. .Cultivation of the tree is said to
have begun in the Hetherlands, got flrmest foothold in England and

from there spread over the world. Today in Amerlca it is almost common.

Some streets 1n Brooklyn are lined w1th glnkgos, at-“least one street
in Richmond, Vlrglnla is planted Wlth them. In Charleston, there is
a very lovely one in the yard at {E_fiffifg—ngng' and there are two,
one on elther side of the entrance at the Charleston Library Society,
164 King Street. There are also others in the City.. N

| The first one in this;coontry is said to have been:planted in what
is now Philadelphia's Woodland Cemetery, in 1784. |

. Before the.now generally accepted name of ginkge became common, it

was alsc called "elephant ear tree," "fan leaf tree," and beczuse of a

superficial resemblance to the maiden-hair fern, the "maiden~hair tree."
"Fanleaf tree" was probably best, because the leaves look like.an cld-
fashioned fan. |

The velns of the leaf radiate from the stem, like the ribs of a fan.

The shape of the tree is primitive. The slender tapering trunk develops
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a number of large branches, but_smaller branches aré missing. Twigs
grow direcfly.from the large Eranches, and both branches and twigs are
covered with numerous little barrel-shaped "short shoots" an inch long
or less. Tﬁe leaves and fruits grow in clusters from these "short
shoots.”

The ginkgo's fruits hang in clusters like cherries. Their numbers
are such that fallen fruits will form a thick carpet under the tree.
The “fruité" look like wrinkled apricots - ahout an inch in diameter.

| Unless an earthquake or a roaabuilder interferes, a young ginkgo
has an excellent ﬁhance of growing up - it'is.resistant to fungus diseases,
insect pests fail te bother it - even Japanese Eettles take off after
the first tentative bite; smoke froﬁ coal fire does it ﬁo harﬁ, neither
db gasoline fuﬁes; As one expert put itﬁ fNo one has ever seen a dead

branch on a ginkgo treel™

-

Japanese“éélled them TEMPLE TREES - they ‘got them first from the

Chinese who had planted them around their temples.

HUGUENOT FERN is so—callea because it is said to have been brought
to Carolina by the early Huguenot settlers. It grows uéually in damp.
places, against and hetween bhricks and stone walls. It.éan be foﬁnd
against thé-walls and fences of St. Michael‘s,.St. Philip's, and the
Huguenot Churchyards, and in similar environments elsewhere in.the City.

LIGUSTRUM with its lovely purple or white.floweré is used extensively
for decorative purposes in southern states., It is also calied PRIVET
ana used_for hedges. o | |

LOQUAT or JAPRNESE PLUM is a Japanese evergreen tree with large

oblong leaves and fragrant white fldwers, which bloom in the fall. The
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fruit which follows and ripens in the spring is shaped somewhat like
a small orange or yellow pear. The tree is used extensively for orna-
ment in mild climates and is rarely found north of this latitude.

MAGNOLIA GRANDIFLORA. We all know this stately, handsome tree

with its beautiful large, brown-backed glistening dark green leaves.
The tree was named for a French professér of botany, Pierre Magnecl,
R —
who lived in the 16th and 17th centuries. ' There are a number of
varities and related plants;.such as the laurel bay, the sweet bay,
etc. These béar white, pink and purple blossoms. .The deeply-scented
lérgé, velvety white blossoms of the MAGNOLIA.GRANDIFLORA, the pre-
dominant varietf he:é; begin opening in May. A specimen was sent
from Charleston by Dr. Alexander Garden to the scientist Linneaus}

At that time, before the Revolution, it took many months for a package

to travel from America to Sweden, and by the time the plant reached

Sweden, it was oderiferocus! Linnaeus named it MAGNOLIA FOETIDA,
which means evil-smelling! However, he later called it the
MAGMOLIA GRANDIFLORA, and this is the tree we have here in Charleston

and throughout the Low Country.

NOISETTE TEA ROSES: CLOTH OF GOLD, DEVONIENSIS, LAMARQUE, MARECHAL

NEIL. These roses were developed and named by Phillip Stanislaus Noisette,
a Frenchman, whose father had been head gardener to Iouis XVIII. Noisette

was commissioned by the French Government to propagate flowers from this

climate suitable to France, and he settled in Charleston. He had his
rose farm and experimental gardens at his home o what 1s now upper
Rutledge Avenue, nQt faxr. from. the—pregsent-Lity--bimtts. Noisette took

an actiwve part in civic life, was a member of the Societe Francaise,

which is still an active club, and died and was buried here.
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OAKS: Of the many varieties the best known 1R Charleston are the
' i i i and
LIVE OAK and the WILLOW OAK, as its name implies, 1S an evergreen,

' i aves in
has small, smooth green leaves. The WILLOW ORX sheds its le

i i i osy tint
winter. In the spring its young new leaves have 2 lovely, rosy
which makes it very colorful.
i in great
OLEANDERS are natives of the East Indies, Put they grow in g

; i i of color
profusion here and are very lovely, showing 2 great diversity

] llows
from pure white through pink to deepest red, with creams an§ ye-to

i ' jeti here., It
adding to the total of more than 32 known varieties found exe

' 1 i and
is known that every part of the plant is dangerously poisonous,

‘ ' i i ities
for that reason is not permitted to be planted 11 certain locali '

. i i ] t. The
+ especially on farms where cattle and ljve-stock Might get at i

lovely flowers are a favorite here in thig City, however. The bloom
: , . . . oadty
starts early in the spring if the weather 1S wa:m:_and‘glves beau.y

through most of the summer months.

PALMETTO. The native palmatto is noted fot lts tough, lmpenetrable

y 4
fibrous growth. It grows in profusion on the coastal islands an

throughout the Low-Country, This is the tzee which 1n.1861 was adde

t
to the flrst South Carolina flag - a biue field with a white crescen

t
in the ‘upper left hand corner - first iuged in 1775 The flag in its

e

origi i i ini e crescent
original design, minus the palmetto tree but containing th | R

. : ATES
was the FIRST NATIONAL OR STATE FLAG To Sg FLOWN IN THE UNITED ST. ’

i ;
according to General Moultrie.

PARKINSONIA. Although named after an English botanist who lived

- i ears.
here three centuries ago, this tree hag not been 11 ?harlest°n many y
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It has bec&m; very popular however, for its unusuai beauty. It has
lovely, feathery vellow blooms, and sometimeslis_called'the "Golden
Rain Tree."

PITTOSPORUM. This evergreen shrub used so lavishly throughout
the city for hedges and shaped decorative borders, etc., is another
imported shrub brought from Asia ér Africa. The flowers are white
or yellow, very often fragrant, and'are_suceededAby berries with
seeds within them.

EOiNSETTIA is the flower brought to Charleston frﬁm ﬁexiéo in 1830
by Joei'RDbeIts Poingett, native Charlestonian. He had béén-Ministe?

- to Mexico;.and-althpugh not popular.there, the flower is éailéd édin-.

- settia in that country as well as elsewhere.
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